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INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BASE PROSPECTUS
General

In this base prospectus (the “Base Prospectus”), any reference to the “Company” or the “Issuer” means
Latvenergo AS and the “Group” means Latvenergo AS together with its consolidated subsidiaries. In this
Base Prospectus the “Arranger of the Programme” and the “Issuing Agent” refers to AS SEB banka.

In this Base Prospectus, unless otherwise specified, references to a “Member State” are references to a
Member State of the European Economic Area, references to “€”, “EUR” or “euro” are to the single currency
introduced at the start of the third stage of the European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant, and as
defined in Article 2 of the Council Regulation (EC) N0.974/98 of 3 May 1998 on the introduction of the euro,
as amended, and references to “LVL”, “Ls” or “lats” are to the currency of the Republic of Latvia through 31
December 2013. Pursuant to Council Regulation (EU) No 870/2013 of 9 July 2013 amending Regulation
(EC) No 2866/98 as regards the conversion rate to the euro for Latvia an irrevocably fixed conversion rate

between EUR and LVL was set at LVL 0.702804 = EUR 1.00.

Items included in this Base Prospectus, as well as in the audited consolidated annual reports of the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and in the unaudited consolidated interim reports of the
Group for the three month period ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group’s entity operates (the “Functional
Currency”). Those items for consolidation purpose are presented in EUR, which is the Issuer’s Functional
Currency and the Group’s presentation currency. All transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the Functional Currency at the exchange rates set by the central bank of the respective
primary economic environment in which the respective Group’s entity operates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
Functional Currency using the exchange rate set by the central bank of the respective primary economic
environment in which the respective Group’s entity operates at the last day of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is charged to the Consolidated Income Statement. For consolidation purposes the
results and financial position of all the Group’s entities that had a Functional Currency different from EUR are
translated into EUR as follows: (i) assets and liabilities for each financial position presented were translated
at the closing rate at the date of that financial position; (ii) income and expenses for each income statement
were translated at average exchange rates (unless this average was not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses were
translated at the rate on the dates of transactions). With the introduction of EUR in Lithuania from 1 January
2015 the Functional Currency of all of the Group’s entities is EUR.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared by the Issuer in accordance with the Financial Instruments Market
Law of Latvia and Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 implementing Directive 2003/71/EC of the
European Parliament and of the Council as regards information contained in prospectuses, as well as the
format, incorporation by reference and publication of such prospectuses and dissemination of
advertisements. The Issuer will, as deemed necessary, supplement the Base Prospectus with updated
information pursuant to the Financial Instruments Market Law of Latvia.

This Base Prospectus has been registered with the Latvian Financial and Capital Market Commission and
has been validly notified to the Bank of Lithuania (Lietuvos Bankas) and the Estonian Financial Supervision
Authority (Finantsinspektsioon).

The Latvian Financial and Capital Market Commission has approved this Base Prospectus, but is not liable
for the correctness of the information presented therein.

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed together with any supplement hereto and with any other
documents attached herein and, in relation to any Tranche of Notes, with the Final Terms of the relevant
Tranche.

No person has been authorised by the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent to give
any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base Prospectus
or any information supplied by the Issuer or such other information as is in the public domain and, if given or



made, such information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer,
the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent.

No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made by the Arranger of the Programme and the
Issuing Agent as to the contents of this Base Prospectus, and nothing contained in this Base Prospectus is,
or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation by the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing
Agent in this respect, whether as to the past or the future. The Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing
Agent assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information and, accordingly,
disclaims to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any and all liability which it might otherwise be
found to have in respect of this Base Prospectus or any such statement.

The information contained herein is current as of the date of this Base Prospectus. Neither the delivery of this
Base Prospectus, nor the offer, sale or delivery of the Notes shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no adverse changes occurred or events have happened, which may or could
result in an adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of operations and/or the
market price of the Notes. Nothing contained in this Base Prospectus constitutes, or shall be relied upon as,
a promise or representation by the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent as to the
future.

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements in this Base Prospectus, including statements under the sections “Risks Related to
Macroeconomic Conditions”, “Risks Related to Business Operations”, and “Financial Risks” are based on the
Company’s Management Board’s views and understanding of the Group and its operating environment and
on the assumptions made based on the factors known to the Company’s Management Board as of the date
of this Base Prospectus and thus can be forward-looking statements. Statements which include such words

as “believe”, “anticipate”, “predict”, “expect’, “will”, “would”, “could”, “consider”, “likely”, “estimate” or “plan”
and variations of such words or any other similar statements identify forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important
factors, as a result of which the Group’s actual results, activities or achievements or the actual results,
activities or achievements of a business segment of the Group may differ materially from the expressly or
indirectly presented results, activities or achievements indicated in the forward-looking statements. Such
risks, uncertainties and other important factors include, among others, general economic development, the
Group’s need for financing, the Group’s indebtedness, the Group’s liquidity, the development of demand in
the Group’s products and services, competition, as well as other matters described under the sections “Risks
Related to Macroeconomic Conditions”, “Risks Related to Business Operations”, and “Financial Risks” and
forward-looking statements described under the section ”Financial and Trend Information”.

The sections “Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditions”, “Risks Related to Business Operations” and
“Financial Risks” include risks, uncertainties and other important factors, which may affect the Group’s
business operations, financial position and/or business result. The risk factors described in the Base
Prospectus do not necessarily include all risks and new risks may surface. If one or more of the risk factors
described in this Base Prospectus or any other risk factors or uncertainties would materialise or any of the
assumptions made would turn out to be erroneous, the Group’s actual business result and/or financial
position may differ materially from that anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. It is not the Group’s
intention, and it will not accept responsibility for updating any forward-looking statements contained in this
Base Prospectus, unless required by applicable legislation.

Figures Presented in the Base Prospectus

The figures set out in the financial statements and other figures presented in the Base Prospectus have
mainly been rounded off. As a result, the sum of individual figures set out in the tables contained in this Base
Prospectus may not always correspond accurately to the sums presented in these tables. In addition, certain
percentages have been calculated based on exact figures and thus do not necessarily correspond to the
percentages, which would have been the result, if the calculation would have been based on figures that
have been rounded off.



Notice to Investors and Restrictions on Distribution

In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own analysis on the advantages
and risks relating to the investment decision. No person has been authorised to provide any information or to
make any representation other than as contained in this Base Prospectus. If given or made, such information
or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer. The delivery or display of
this Base Prospectus shall not under any circumstances, create any implication that the information
contained in the Base Prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof or that the
operations of the Issuer have not since changed.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and any Final Terms and the offering, sale and delivery of the Notes
in certain countries is restricted by law. Any person residing outside the Republic of Latvia, Republic of
Lithuania and Republic of Estonia may receive this Base Prospectus only within the limits of applicable
special provisions or restrictions. The Issuer requires persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus
or any Final Terms comes to inform themselves of and observe all such restrictions. This Base Prospectus
and any Final Terms may not be distributed or published in such countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in
such circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under
Latvian laws, including the United States of America, Australia, Canada, Hong Kong and Japan. Neither this
Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the Notes in
any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.
The Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent or their representatives or advisers do not
accept any legal responsibility whatsoever for any such violations, whether or not a prospective investor is
aware of such restrictions.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered in accordance with the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (the
“Securities Act”) or under the securities laws of any state of the United States of America and accordingly,
they may not be offered, sold, resold, granted, delivered, allotted, taken up, transferred or renounced, directly
or indirectly, in or into the United States of America, except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and any securities laws of any
state of the United States of America.

Unless specifically otherwise stated in this Base Prospectus, the Notes may not be, directly or indirectly,
offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in such
circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those required under Latvian
laws including the United States of America, except for the exceptions to registration obligation allowed by
the securities laws of the United States of America and its states, Australia, Canada, Hong Kong and Japan.
The Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent requires persons into whose possession
this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms comes to inform them of and observe all such restrictions. The
Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent reserves the right to, respectively, at its sole
discretion reject subscription to the Notes, which the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and/or the
Issuing Agent believes would cause the violation or breach of any law, rule or regulation for the time being in
force.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of Notes (other than the offer of Notes
in the Republic of Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and Republic of Estonia) will be made pursuant to an
exemption under Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in Member States of the European
Economic Area (the “EEA”), from the requirement to produce a prospectus for offers of the Notes.
Accordingly, any person making or intending to make an offer within the EEA of Notes which are the subject
of an offering contemplated by the relevant Final Terms (other than the offer of Notes in the Republic of
Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and Republic of Estonia) may only do so in circumstances in which no
obligation arises for the Issuer or the Issuing Agent to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the
Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each
case, in relation to such offer. Neither the Issuer nor the Issuing Agent have authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer or
the Issuing Agent to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

In relation to each Member State of the EEA (other than the Republic of Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and
Republic of Estonia) that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”),
with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant
Member State (the “Relevant Implementation Date”), an offer to the public of any Notes may not be made



in that Relevant Member State, except that an offer to the public in that Relevant Member State may be
made at any time with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date under the following
exemptions under the Prospectus Directive:

(a) to any legal entity that is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

(b) to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the
2010 PD Amending Directive, 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined
in the Prospectus Directive) per Relevant Member State; or

(c) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive;

provided that no such offer of the Notes shall require the Issuer or the Issuing Agent to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in relation to the Notes in any
Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on
the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or
subscribe for the Notes, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure
implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, and the expression “Prospectus
Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC (and any amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending
Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member State) and includes any relevant implementing
measures in each Relevant Member State and the expression “2010 PD Amending Directive” means
Directive 2010/73/EU.
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SUMMARY

This summary is made up of disclosure requirements known as “Elements”. These Elements are numbered
in Sections A-E (A.1-E.7). This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for
this type of securities and issuer. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be
gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements. Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in
the summary because of the type of securities and the issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can
be given regarding the Element. In this case a short description of the Element is included in the summary
together with a statement of that the Element is not applicable.

Section A - Introduction and warnings

A1

A2

Warning

Consent to use
the Base
Prospectus

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Base Prospectus and any
decision to invest in the Notes should be based on a consideration of the Base
Prospectus as a whole, including the documents attached to the Base Prospectus, and
the Final Terms of the relevant Notes.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in this Base Prospectus is brought
before a court in a Member State, the plaintiff may, under the national legislation of the
Member State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating
the Base Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the summary including
any translation thereof, but only if the summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospectus or it does
not provide, when read together with the other parts of the Base Prospectus, key
information in order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in such
securities.

Throughout the period of the validity of the Base Prospectus AS SEB banka
(registration number: 40003151743, legal address: Meistaru 1, Valdlauci, Kekava
parish, Kekava region, LV-1076, Latvia) and its sub-agents (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) subsequently reselling or finally placing the Notes issued
under the Programme are entitled to use the Base Prospectus:

- in the Republic of Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and Republic of Estonia where the
public offering of the Notes to institutional and retail investors takes place; and

- in Member States of the European Economic Area where the private placement of
the Notes to institutional investor takes place pursuant to an exemption under
Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC), as implemented by
the respective Member States of the European Economic Area;

for the subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes during the
respective offer period (as determined in the applicable Final Terms) during which
subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes can be made. The Issuer
accepts responsibility for the information given in the Base Prospectus also with
respect to such subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes.

Issue specific summary:
Sub-agents of the Issuing Agent:[e]

The Base Prospectus may only be delivered to potential investors together with all
supplements (if any) published before such delivery. The Base Prospectus and any
supplement to the Base Prospectus are available for viewing in electronic form on the
website of the Issuer www.latvenergo.lv.

When using the Base Prospectus, AS SEB banka and its sub-agents must make
certain that they comply with all applicable laws and regulations in force in the
respective jurisdictions.



Section B - Issuer

B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5,
B14

B.9

Legal and
commercial
name

The domicile
and legal form
of the issuer,
the legislation
under which the
issuer operates
and its country
of incorporation

A description of
any

known trends
affecting the
issuer and the
industries in
which it
operates

If the issuer is
part of a group,
a description of
the group and
the issuer's
position within
the group

If the issuer is
dependent
upon other
entities within
the group, this
must be clearly
stated

Where a profit
forecast or
estimate is
made, state the
figure

A description of
the nature of
any
qualifications in
the audit report
on the historical
financial
information

In the event of an offer being made by AS SEB banka and/or its sub-agents, AS
SEB banka and/or its sub-agents will provide information to investors on the
terms and conditions of the Notes at the time of that offer.

The Issuer’s legal and commercial name is Akciju sabiedriba Latvenergo.

The Issuer is a public limited company (akciju sabiedriba) incorporated pursuant to the
laws of the Republic of Latvia on 8 October 1991. The Issuer is registered with the
Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia under the registration number
40003032949 and its registered address is Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia
(telephone number +371 67 728 222).

The Issuer operates according to the legislation of the Republic of Latvia. The main
legal acts of the Republic of Latvia which regulate the operations of the Issuer are:

- the Commercial Law (Komerclikums);

- the Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital
Companies (Publiskas personas kapitala daju un kapitalsabiedribu parvaldibas
likums);

- the Energy Law (Energétikas likums); and

- the Electricity Market Law (Elektroenerdgijas tirgus likums).

At the date of this Base Prospectus there are no information on any known trends,
uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a
material effect on the Issuer’s or the Group’s prospects and the industries in which the
Issuer or the Group operates in the financial year of 2015.

The Issuer is a parent company of the Group. As at the date of the Base Prospectus
the Group includes the Issuer and its seven subsidiaries:

- five companies incorporated in Latvia: Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS (100 per cent),
Sadales tikls AS (100 per cent), Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS (100 per cent),
Elektrum Latvija SIA (100 per cent subsidiary of Elektrum Eesti OU) and Liepajas
energija SIA (51 per cent);

- Elektrum Lietuva UAB (100 per cent) incorporated in Lithuania; and

- Elektrum Eesti OU (100 per cent) incorporated in Estonia.

The Issuer is a shareholder in one associated company Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds

AS (the Issuer’s shareholding is 46.3 per cent and the Group’s shareholding is 48.15

per cent).

The Issuer has also a financial investment in Rigas Siltums AS (0.005 per cent).

Not applicable. The Issuer has not made any profit forecast or profit estimate in this
Base Prospectus.

Not applicable. None of the audit reports on the Group’s audited consolidated annual
reports for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 includes any qualifications.
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Selected
historical key
financial
information
regarding the
issuer,
presented for
each financial
year of the
period covered
by the historical
financial
information,
and any
subsequent
interim financial
period
accompanied
by comparative
data from the
same period in
the prior
financial year
except that the
requirement for
comparative
balance sheet
information is
satisfied by
presenting the
year end
balance sheet
information

A statement
that there has
been no
material
adverse change
in the prospects
of the issuer
since the date
of its last
published
audited
financial
statements or a
description of
any material
adverse change

A description of
significant
changes in the
financial or
trading position
subsequent to
the period
covered by the
historical
financial
information

A description of
any

recent events
particular to the
issuer which
are to a material
extent relevant
to the
evaluation of
the issuer's
solvency

A description of
the issuer's
principal
activities

The following summary of the Group’s consolidated financial performance and key
performance indicators for the two financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014
and two interim periods ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 respectively has
been extracted, without any material adjustment, from the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in respect of those dates and periods.

Year ended 31 Three months
December ended 31 March
2013 2014 2014 2015
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Key Financial data (the Group)
Revenue € million 1,100 1,011 324 260
EBITDA € million 249 237 83 95
Profit € million 46 30 31 39
Total assets € million 3,575 3,487 3,598 3,627
Total equity € million 2,022 2,021 2,050 2,059
Net Debt € million 689 706 680 689
Investments € million 225 178 27 25
Capital ratio per cent 57 58 57 58
EBITDA margin per cent 23 23 24 26
Net debt/EBITDA 2.8 3.0 25 2.8
Operating Figures (the Group)
Retail electricity supply GWh 7,954 8,688 2,488 2,132
Electricity generation GWh 4,854 3,625 1,192 1,027
Thermal energy supply GWh 2,517 2,442 1,077 990
Distributed electricity GWh 6,447 6,421 1,724 1,795

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer or the Group
since the date of the audited consolidated annual report of the Group for 2014.

There has been no material adverse change in the Issuer’s or the Group’s financial or
trading position since 31 March 2015.

Not applicable. There have not been any recent material events that would be relevant
for assessing solvency of the Issuer and the Group.

The operations of the Group are organised along three operating segments: generation
and supply, distribution and management of transmission system assets.

The generation and supply segment includes generation of electricity and thermal
energy, conducted by the Issuer and Liepajas energija SIA, as well as electricity
wholesale and retail in the Baltics carried out by the Issuer and the Issuer’s subsidiaries
Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB. As of 1 April 2014, the functions of
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To the extent
known to the
issuer, state
whether the
issuer is
directly or
indirectly
owned or
controlled and
by whom and
describe the
nature of such
control

Credit ratings
assigned to the
issuer or its
debt securities
at the request
or with co-
operation of the
issuer in rating
process

public trader are handled by the Issuer’s subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS.

The distribution segment provides electricity distribution services in Latvia. Services are
provided by Sadales tikls AS — the largest distribution system operator in Latvia.

The management of the transmission system assets segment is ensured by Latvijas
elektriskie tikli AS. The Republic of Latvia has applied the second unbundling model
under EU Directive 2009/72/EC, which provides that the electricity transmission system
assets shall remain with a vertically integrated utility, while the activities of the
transmission system operator are independently managed. The assets are leased out
to the Latvian transmission system operator — Augstsprieguma tikls AS.

The lIssuer is incorporated as a public limited company (akciju sabiedriba) under the
laws of the Republic of Latvia. The Republic of Latvia is the sole shareholder of the
Issuer. The Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia holds all the shares in the
Issuer on behalf of the Republic of Latvia.

The Issuer is rated Baa2 with a stable outlook by Moody’s Investors Service. The rating
and outlook was upgraded on 16 February 2015.

The Series of Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. If rated,
such ratings will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to the Issuer. A
credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject
to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Issue specific summary:
The Notes to be issued [are not/have been/are expected to be] rated [by:[e]]

Section C - Securities

(o

A description of
the type and the
class of the
securities being
offered and/or
admitted to
trading,
including any
security
identification
number

Unsecured Notes with an aggregate nominal value up to EUR 100,000,000.
The Notes are dematerialized debt securities in bearer form.

The Notes will be issued in Series. Each Series may comprise one or more Tranches.
The Notes of each Series will all be subject to identical terms, except that the Issue
Dates and the Issue Prices thereof may be different in respect of different Tranches.

In order to identify each Series and Tranches, the Final Terms shall stipulate a serial
number of a respective Series and a serial number of a respective Tranche.

Issue specific summary:
Series Number: [o]

Tranche Number: [eo]

Before commencement of the offering of the Notes of the first Tranche of each Series,
an ISIN code will be assigned to the respective Series. Where a further Tranche is
issued which is intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche at a point
after the Issue Date of the existing Tranche, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be
assigned a temporary ISIN code which is different from the ISIN code assigned to the
relevant Series until such time as the Tranches are consolidated and form a single
Series.

12



C.2

C.5

C.8,

C.9

Currency of the
securities issue

A description of
any restrictions
on the free
transferability of
the securities

A description of
the rights
attached to the
securities
including

e ranking

o limitations to
those rights
the nominal
interest rate
the date from
which interest
becomes
payable and
the due dates
for interest
where the
rate is not
fixed,
description of
the
underlying on
which it is
based
maturity date
and
arrangements
for the
amortisation
of the loan,
including the
repayment
procedures
an indication
of yield

name of
representativ
e of debt
security
holders

Issue specific summary:

ISIN Code: [[e]}/[Temporary ISIN Code: [e]. Upon admission of the Notes to the
regulated market the Notes will be consolidated and form a single series with [e] and
will have a common ISIN code [e]]

EUR

The Notes are freely transferable securities. However, the Notes cannot be offered,
sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or jurisdictions or otherwise in
such circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those
required under Latvian laws, including the United States of America, Australia, Canada,
Hong Kong and Japan.

Ranking

The Notes constitute direct, unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Issuer,
ranking pari passu without any preference among each other and with all unsecured,
unguaranteed and unsubordinated indebtednesses of the Issuer, save for such
obligations as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of the law.

Issue Price
The Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a discount or a premium to their
nominal amount.

Interest rate

The Notes shall bear interest at fixed Annual Interest Rate. The interest on the Notes
will be paid annually on the dates specified in the Final Terms. Interest shall accrue for
each interest period from and including the first day of the interest period to (but
excluding) the last day of the interest period on the principal amount of the Notes
outstanding from time to time. The first interest period commences on the Issue Date
and ends on the first Interest Payment Date. Each consecutive interest period begins
on the previous Interest Payment Date and ends on the following Interest Payment
Date. The last interest period ends on the Maturity Date.

Interest in respect of the Notes will be calculated on the basis of the actual number of
days elapsed in the relevant interest period divided by 365 (or, in the case of a leap
year, 366), i.e. a day count convention Act/Act (ICMA) will be used.

Issue specific summary:
Interest Payment Date: [e] each year

Indication of Yield

An expected Yield to Maturity Range for the Notes being offered will be specified in the
Final Terms. However, during the Placement Period of the Notes the Issuer has a right
to update the expected Yield to Maturity Range.

Determination of the Final Yield to Maturity, Interest Rate and Issue Price

The Final Yield to Maturity will be determined after the Placement Period on the basis
of submitted Purchase Orders of the investors. The Final Yield to Maturity shall be the
same for all investors acquiring the Notes of the respective Tranche during the offering.
The established Final Yield to Maturity shall be specified in the Final Terms, which will
be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.

Issue specific summary:
Final Yield to Maturity: [e]

The Annual Interest Rate (the coupon) shall be set by rounding down the Final Yield to
Maturity to the nearest tenth of the rounded digit (which itself is set in percentage
terms). The established Annual Interest Rate shall be specified in the Final Terms,
which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.

13



c.10

If the security
has a derivative
component in
the interest
payment,
provide a clear
and
comprehensive
explanation to
help investors
understand how
the value of
their investment
is affected by
the value of the
underlying
instrument(s),
especially
under the
circumstances
when the risks
are most
evident

Indication as to
whether the

Issue specific summary:
Annual Interest Rate: [e]

The Issue Price of the Notes shall be established according to a formula provided in the
Final Terms of the relevant Tranche and shall be rounded to the nearest thousandth of
the rounded digit under arithmetic rounding rules. The established Issue Price shall be
specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the
investors.

Issue specific summary:
Formula for calculation of the Issue Price: [e]

Issue specific summary:
Issue Price: [e]

Final Terms containing information about the established Annual Interest Rate, Issue
Price, the aggregate principal amount of the respective Tranche and definitive amount
of the Notes to be issued will be published on the Issuer's website www.latvenergo.lv
and submitted to the Financial and Capital Market Commission after allotment of the
Notes to the investors.

Maturities

Each Series of Notes may have a maturity between 1 (one) and 15 (fifteen) years or
such other maturity as the Issuer decides, but in any case not shorter than 12 (twelve)
months.

Issue specific summary:
Maturity Date: [e]

Redemption

The Notes shall be repaid in full at their nominal amount at the Maturity Date. The
Issuer does not have a right to redeem the Notes prior to the Maturity Date, unless the
Issuer has prepaid the Notes in case of Change of Control or an Event of Default or in
case the Noteholders’ Meeting, upon proposal of the Issuer, has decided that the Notes
shall be redeemed prior to the Maturity Date.

Representative of debt security holders

The rights of the Noteholders to establish and/or authorize an organization/person to
represent interests of all or a part of the Noteholders are not contemplated, but, on the
other hand, these are not restricted. The Noteholders should cover all costs/fees of
such representative(s) by themselves.

Not applicable. The Notes have no derivative component in the interest payment.

The Issuer will submit an application regarding inclusion of each Tranche in the official
list of AS NASDAQ OMX Riga. An application will be prepared according to the
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sacurities requirements of AS NASDAQ OMX Riga and will be submitted to AS NASDAQ OMX

offered are or . el .
will be the Riga within 3 (three) months after the Issue Date of the respective Tranche.
object of an

application for

admission to

trading, with a

view to their

distribution in a

regulated

market or other

equivalent

markets with

indication of the

markets in

question

Section D - Risks

D2  Key Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditions
information on

the key risks

tsha:cefr,itothe e The Group’s expansion into neighbouring energy markets and the Group’s
1Tl . . . . . . .
ispsue, integration into international business processes creates growing exposures of

the Group’s business and financial results to regional and international
macroeconomic developments.

° An _unexpected downturn in the economy as well as a slower than expected
economic growth or political instability (e.g. due to potential Greece default or
further Russian-Ukrainian crisis escalation) could have an impact on the
Group’s customers and may negatively affect the Group’s growth and results
of operations through reduced electricity consumption.

Risks Related to Business Operations

e The sole shareholder of the Issuer is the Republic of Latvia. Certain _and
substantial shareholder’s decisions alternating the Group’s strategy or
decisions in respect of dividend policy, capital structure and other relevant
decisions could have a material adverse effect on the Group. In addition, the
reinstatement of the Supervisory Board of the Issuer may result in changes to
the Group's strategy and other key areas of the Group's operations.
Considering that the term of office for all current members of the Issuer's
Management Board expires on 15 November 2015, the possible replacement
of some or all current members of the Issuer's Management Board may
negatively influence the Issuer's currently selected strategic direction,
development plans, goals and policies, thus adversely affecting the Group.

e The Group’s revenues in regulated markets are highly dependable on tariffs
approved by the Public Utilities Commission and/or regulated by legislative
acts of the Republic of Latvia. There are risks that not all costs will be covered
by such regulated tariffs. Besides, there is a risk of material adverse effect on
the Group due to delayed regulatory decisions by respective state authorities
or due to changes in local or EU legislative environment governing relevant
requlatory matters. In_addition, there is a risk that the approval of the state
budget grant aimed at limiting an increase in the mandatory procurement
public service obligation fee may be delayed or not approved by the European
Commission, which could result in incurred mandatory procurement costs not
being recoverable. A materialisation of any of these risks may have material
adverse effect on the Group’s financial position.

e The electricity market liberalization in the Baltic countries is expected to be
completed in the coming years. The market liberalization creates a more
competitive environment with an increased number of market participants,
which may reduce the Group’s market share, as well as affect the pricing and
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the Group’s business and financial position. There is also a risk of the Group
incurring long-term losses due to incorrect market entry and expansion

strategy.

The market share in the Baltic countries indicates the Group’s current
standing,_but there is a risk that the market share may decrease or the Group
may be unable to attain anticipated market share growth thus causing adverse
effects on the Group’s business and financial position. Furthermore, the
Company could exit any of its markets for economic, strategic or other
reasons. This may affect the Group’s operations and financial position.

The Group’s electricity generation portfolio does not fully cover the needs of
the electricity supply portfolio, thus throughout the year approximately half of
the Group’s annual electricity supply to the retail sector is subject to price
volatility risk in the electricity wholesale market. The Group uses financial
derivatives to mitigate electricity price risk for a part of its supply portfolio. Due
to low liquidity in the current electricity derivatives’ market of the Baltic region,
the availability of hedging instruments is limited and hedging costs are high.
There is a risk that hedging will not provide the required efficiency. This may
have material adverse effect on the Group's financial position.

The ability of the Group to attain short-term goals and long-term strategic
targets is partially dependent on the legislative environment. Matters that may
have a material effect on the Group’s business and financial position include,
but are not limited to, supply of electricity to vulnerable customers (poor or low-
income persons, large families); feed—in tariff policy for environment friendly
generation sources; state or EU regulations on technical, market integrity and
transparency, competition, safety and environmental protection issues;
decisions of certain market supervising institutions (such as the Public Utility
Commission, the Competition Council, the State Revenue Service etc.).

The Group’s core business operations are partially influenced by weather
conditions. Due to this, the Group’s overall financial position may be influenced
by seasonality, weather fluctuations, as well as long-term shifts in climate.

The Issuer is, as a potential investor, involved in the negotiations of a nuclear
power plant project. Besides the nuclear power plant project, the Group may
review its participation in other extensive investment projects that may
increase the Group’s exposure to operational and/or financial risk levels or
may negatively impact the Group’s value or reputation, thus creating adverse
effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Due to the fact that the electricity transmission system assets in Latvia are
owned by the Group, but operated by a third party — Latvian transmission
system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS, there is a risk that the transmission
system operator provides in its long-term plans insufficient investments to
maintain the existing value of the assets, thus reducing their value and causing
losses to the Group. In addition, if EU funds financing of these assets falls
below expected levels, the Group may need to increase its financing share in
the existing transmission system asset construction projects, which would
reduce funds available for other projects or could result in increased debt
levels.

An expected new entrant in the heat market using biomass as fuel in the
production process may reduce the workloads of_the Issuer's combined heat
and power plants, and thus also reducing the heat supply by the Issuer. This
could, particularly in light of the comparatively higher variable costs for gas
fuelled plants, have a material adverse effect on general operations of the
Group, as well as the Group’s business.
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D.3

Key
information on
the key risks
that are
specific to the
securities

In addition to the aforementioned risks, the Group’s business and financial
position may be negatively affected by counterparty risk, asset damage risk,
litigation and dispute risk, resource risk, execution of investment projects risk,
distribution system investment risk, sovereign debt crisis risk, environmental,
health and safety risk, and tax risk.

Financial Risks

The violation of the financial covenants or certain other obligations and
representations under loan agreements and/or documentation in relation to
outstanding bonds, may lead to an event of default and acceleration of the
loans and/or redemption of the previously issued bonds. Due to the cross
default clauses in loan agreements and bond documentation, the Issuer may
need to refinance substantial parts of its outstanding debt.

A downgrade of the Issuer’s credit rating may increase its costs of funding
and/or reduce its access to funding and may require the Issuer to provide
additional security for contracts which may increase the cost of transactions.

In addition to the aforementioned risks, the Group’s business and financial
position may be negatively affected by interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Thus, each
potential investor in the Notes must assess the suitability of that investment in
light of its own circumstances, including the effects on the value of such Notes
and the impact this investment will have on its overall investment portfolio.

The Notes, if issued to finance projects eligible under the Issuer’'s Green Bond
Framework, may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking
exposure to green assets. In connection with the issuance of the Notes which
purpose is to finance projects eligible under the Issuer's Green Bond
Framework, the Center for International Climate and Environmental Research
- Oslo, a Norwegian independent institute for interdisciplinary climate research,
is expected to issue a second-party opinion regarding the suitability of the
Notes as an investment in connection with certain environmental and
sustainability criteria and such second-party opinion is not incorporated into
and does not form a part of the Base Prospectus. No representation is made
as to the suitability of such opinion or the Notes to fulfil environmental and
sustainability criteria. Such opinion may not reflect the potential impact of all
risks related to the structure, market, additional risk factors and other factors
that may affect the value of the Notes, it is not a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold securities. It will not be an event of default under the General Terms
and Conditions of the Notes if the Issuer fails to comply with certain reporting
obligations and use of proceeds in connection with such opinion. A withdrawal
of the opinion may affect the value of the Notes and/or may have
consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in green
assets.

The investors may forfeit the interest and principle amount invested, in case
the Issuer becomes insolvent or legal protection proceedings or out-of-court
legal protection proceedings of the Issuer are initiated.

The Notes will be unsecured obligations of the Issuer, without any additional
guarantees and securities; in case of the Issuer’s insolvency the Noteholders
will become unsecured creditors.

Due to the fact that in accordance with the Latvian laws certain key-assets of
the Issuer can only be owned by the Issuer or its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
claims will not be enforceable against such assets.
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Any adverse change in the financial condition or prospects of the Issuer may
have a material adverse effect on the liquidity of the Notes, and may result in a
material decline in_their market price, and thus may affect prompt and full
payment to the Noteholders.

The Issuer's ability to successfully refinance its debts is dependent on the
conditions of the debt capital markets and its financial condition at such time.
Even if the debt capital markets improve, the Issuer's access to financing
sources at a particular time may not be available on favourable terms, or at all.
The Issuer’s inability to refinance its debt obligations on favourable terms, or
at all, could have a negative impact on the Group’s operations, financial
condition, earnings and on the Noteholders' recovery under the Notes.

The Notes constitute a new issue of securities by the Issuer, thus it is possible
that an active market for the Notes may not develop or may not be maintained,
as well as it may be affected by the changes in market and economic
conditions, financial conditions and prospects of the Issuer, which accordingly
may have an impact on the liquidity and market price of the Notes.

The Notes will bear interest at a fixed interest rate, which accordingly exposes
a risk that a price of such security may be affected by the changes in the
market interest rate. Also inflation may result in a decline of the market price of
the Notes, as it decreases the purchasing power of a currency unit and
respectively the received interest.

The payments on the Notes will be made in EUR, accordingly the fluctuations
in_exchange rates and interest rates may adversely affect the value of the
Notes, if the investor's financial activities are denominated principally in
another currency unit. The government and monetary authorities may impose
(as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect
the applicable exchange rate. In addition, investment in the Notes involves the
risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the
value of the Notes.

The Notes will be affiliated to the Latvian Central Depository’s account-based
system, and no physical notes will be issued. Clearing and settlement relating
to the Notes will be carried out within the LCD's book-entry system as well as
payment of interest and repayment of the principal. Investors are therefore
dependent on the functionality of the LCD's account-based system.

In case the Notes are rated by independent credit rating agencies, such
ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to the Notes, as
well as it may be revised or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time._In
addition, any adverse change in an applicable credit rating of the Issuer could
also adversely affect the trading price of the Notes.

The Notes are governed by the laws of the Republic of Latvia, as in force from
time to time, which may change during the life of the Notes, thus no assurance
can _be given as to the impact of any such possible change of laws or
regulations. Hence, such changes may have a material adverse effect on the
Issuer, as well as the Notes.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment
laws and regulations, or reviews or regulations by certain authorities. Each
potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to
what extent the Notes are legal investment for the investor, use of the Notes
as a collateral, as well as if there are no other restrictions applicable for the
purchase or pledge of the Notes.

The Notes do not contain covenants governing the Issuer's operations and do
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Section E - Offer

E.2b  Reasons for the
offer and use of

proceeds when

not limit its ability to merge, to sell the assets or otherwise effect significant
transactions that may have a material adverse effect on the Notes and the
Noteholders. Thus, in the event that the Issuer enters into such a transaction,
Noteholders could be materially adversely affected. Furthermore, subject to
the relevant amendments to the law, the current shareholder of the Issuer may
dispose any or all of its shareholding.

There is a risk that the market value of the Notes is higher than the early
redemption amount following a Change of Control and that it may not be
possible for Noteholders to reinvest such proceeds at an effective interest rate
as high as the interest rate on the Notes and may only be able to do so at a
significantly lower rate. It is further possible that the Issuer will not have
sufficient funds at the time of the mandatory prepayment to make the required
redemption of Notes.

Only the shareholder of the Issuer has voting rights in the Shareholder’
Meetings of the Issuer. The Notes carry no such voting rights. Consequently,
the Noteholders cannot influence any decisions by the Issuer's shareholders
concerning, for instance, the capital structure of the Issuer.

The decisions of the Noteholders’ Meeting (including amendments to the
General Terms and Conditions of the Notes) will be binding to all Noteholders,
including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and
Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt. This, accordingly, may
increase the number of claims that would be entitled to share rateably with the
Noteholders in any proceeds distributed in connection with an insolvency of
the Issuer. Further, any provision which confers, purports to confer, or waives
a right to create security interest in favour of third parties, such as a negative
pledge, is ineffective against third parties, thus such security interest in favour
of a third party, even if created in breach of the Issuer’'s obligations and
undertakings herein, would be a valid and enforceable security interest over
the pledged asset.

The Issuing Agent has engaged in, and may in the future engage in,
investment banking and/or commercial banking or other services for the Group
in the ordinary course of business. In particular, it should be noted that the
Issuing Agent may be a lender under certain credit facilities with a member of
the Group as borrower. Therefore, conflicts of interest may exist or may arise
as a result of the Issuing Agent having previously engaged, or will in the future
engage, in transactions with other parties, having multiple roles or carrying out
other transactions for third parties with conflicting interests.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or any U.S. state securities laws. Subject to certain
exemptions, a holder of the Notes may not offer or sell the Notes in the United
States. The Issuer has not undertaken to register the Notes under the U.S.
Securities Act or any U.S. state securities laws or to effect any exchange offer
for the Notes in the future. Furthermore, the Issuer has not registered the
Notes under any other country's securities laws, other than laws of the
Republic of Latvia. Each potential investor should be aware of the transfer
restrictions that apply to the Notes. It is the Noteholder's obligation to ensure
that the offers and sales of the Notes comply with all applicable securities
laws.

The net proceeds of the issue of Notes will be used by the Issuer for its general
corporate purposes. If in respect of any particular Series of Notes, there is a
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E.3

E.4

different from
making profit
and/or hedging
certain risks

A description
of the terms
and conditions
of the offer

A description
of any interest
that is material
to the
issue/offer
including
conflicting

particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in the relevant Final Terms.

Issue specific summary:

[The net proceeds of the issue of each Tranche will be used by the Issuer for its
general corporate purposes] / [The net proceeds of the issue of each Tranche will
be used by the Issuer for [e]].

The Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent

The Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent is AS SEB banka
(registration number: 40003151743, legal address: Meistaru 1, Valdlauci, Kekava
parish, Kekava region, LV-1076, Latvia).

Issue Date
The Issue Date will be specified in the Final Terms of the respective Tranche.

Issue specific summary:
Issue Date: [e]

Aggregate principal amount

The aggregate principal amount of each Tranche shall be initialy specified in the
Final Terms. The Issuer may increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount
of a Tranche as initially set out in the Final Terms during the Placement Period of
that Tranche.

Issue specific summary:
Aggregate principal amount: [EUR [e] [in addition to [e]]]

Nominal amount of the Note
The nominal amount of each Note will be at least EUR 1,000.

Issue specific summary:
Nominal amount of the Note: [e]

Minimum Investment Amount
The Notes will be offered for subscription in a Minimum Investment Amount which
will be specified in the Final Terms.

Issue specific summary:
Minimum Investment Amount: [e]

Placement Period
Placement Period for each Tranche will be specified in the Final Terms.

Issue specific summary:
Placement Period: [e]

Covenants
Change of Control, Negative Pledge, Cross Default and others.

Depository
The Notes will be book-entered within Latvian Central Depository (Latvijas
Centralais depozitarijs AS).

Governing law
Latvian Law.

Save for commissions to be paid to the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing

Agent, so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Notes has
an interest material to the issue/offer, nor any conflicting interests.
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E.7

interests
Estimated
expenses
charged to the
investor by the
issuer or
offeror

No expenses or taxes will be charged to the investors by the Issuer in respect to the
issue of the Notes. However, the investors may be obliged to cover expenses which
are related to the opening of the securities accounts with credit institutions or
investment brokerage firms, as well as commissions which are charged by the
credit institutions or investment brokerage firms in relation to the execution of the
investor’s purchase or selling orders of the Notes, the holding of the Notes or any
other operations in relation to the Notes. Neither the Issuer, nor the Arranger of the
Programme or the Issuing Agent will compensate the Noteholders for any such
expenses.
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Tulkojums no anglu valodas

KOPSAVILKUMS

Sis kopsavilkums ir sagatavots, pamatojoties uz informacijas prasibam, kas apzimétas ka “Elementi’. Sie
Elementi ir sagrupéti sadajds A-E (A.1 — E.7). Sis kopsavilkums ietver visus Elementus, kas jaieklauj
kopsavilkuma par Sada veida vértspapiriem un emitentu. Ta ka atseviskus Elementus nav nepiecieSams
ietvert kopsavilkuma, ir iespéjamas atkapes Elementu numeracijas kartiba. Pat, ja kada Elementa ietverSanu
kopsavilkuma paredz vértspapiru veids un emitents, pastav iespéja, ka attiecigo informaciju par konkréto
Elementu nav iesp&ams sniegt. Sada gadijuma kopsavilkuma tiek ietverts Tss Elementa apraksts kopa
noradi, ka Elements nav piemé&rojams.

A daja - levads un bridinajumi

A1

A2

Bridinajums

PiekriSana
Pamatprospekta
izmantosanai

Sis kopsavilkums ir jaskata ka Pamatprospekta ievads un, pienemot ikvienu I[@mumu
veikt ieguldijumu Obligacijas, iegulditajam jaapsver Pamatprospekts kopuma, ieskaitot
tam pievienotos dokumentus un konkréto Obligaciju Galigos Noteikumus.

Gadijuma, ja kadas dalibvalsts tiesa tiek iesniegta prasiba saistiba ar Pamatprospekta
ietverto informaciju, prasitajam, atbilstosi attiecigas dalibvalsts, kura iesniegta prasiba,
tiestbu aktiem, var tikt pieprasits segt Pamatprospekta tulkoSanas izmaksas pirms
8adas tiesvedibas uzsaksanas.

Civiltiesiska atbildiba tiek piemérota tikai tam personam, kas iesniegusas kopsavilkumu
kopa ar ta tulkojumu, bet tikai tados gadijumos, kad kopsavilkums ir maldinoSs,
neprecizs vai nekonsekvents, ja to skata kopa ar citam Pamatprospekta dalam, vai, ja
to skatot kopa ar citm Pamatprospekta dalam, tas nesniedz batiskako informaciju, kas
palidzetu iegulditajam pienemt Iemumu veikt ieguldijumu $ados vértspapiros.

Visa Pamatprospekta deriguma termind AS ,SEB banka” (registracijas numurs:
40003151743, juridiska adrese: Meistaru iela 1, Valdlaucdi, Kekavas pagasts, Kekavas
novads, LV-1076, Latvija) un tas piesaistitie agenti (ka noradits attiecigajos Galigajos
Noteikumos), kas veic Programmas ietvaros emitéto Obligaciju talakpardoSanu vai
galigo izvietoSanu, ir tiesigi izmantot So Pamatprospektu:

- Latvijas Republik3, Lietuvas Republikd un Igaunijas Republika, kur tiek veikts
Obligaciju  publiskais piedavajums institucionalajiem un  privatajiem
ieguldrtajiem; un

- Eiropas Ekonomikas zonas (EEZ) dalibvalstis, kuras tiek veikta Obligaciju
privata izvietoSana institucionalajiem iegulditajiem atbilstoSi Prospektu
direktivas (2003/71/EK) 3.pantd paredzétajiem iznémumiem, ka tos ir
ieviesusas attiecigas EEZ dalibvalstis;

saistitba ar Obligaciju talakpardoSanu vai galigo izvietoSanu attiecigd piedavajuma
termina (ka noteikts attiecigajos Galigajos Noteikumos), kura ir iespéjama Obligaciju
turpomaka talakpardoSana vai galiga izvietoSana. Emitents uznemas atbildibu par
Pamatprospekta ietverto informaciju arT attiecibd uz Obligaciju turpméako
talakpardosanu vai galigo izvietoSanu.

Konkreétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Emisijas Agenta piesaistitie agenti [e]

Pamatprospekts var tikt iesniegts potencialajiem iegulditajiem tikai kopa ar visiem
Pamatprospekta papildindjumiem (ja piemérojams), kas ir publicéti pirms $adas
iesniegSanas. Pamatprospekts un visi ta papildinajumi ir publicéti Emitenta interneta
vietné www.latvenergo.lv.

Kad tiek izmantots Pamatprospekts, AS ,SEB banka” un tas piesaistitiem agentiem ir
japarliecinas, ka to darbibas atbilst visam attiecigaja jurisdikcija spéka esoso
piemérojamo tiesibu aktu un noteikumu prasibam.
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B daja - Emitents

B.1

B.2

B.5,
B14

B.9

B.10

Juridiskais
nosaukums un
komercnosaukum

S

Emitenta juridiska
adrese, juridiska
forma, tiesibu akti,
péc kuriem
emitents veic
darbibu,

dibinasanas valsts

Emitentu un
nozaru, kura tas
darbojas,
ietekméjoso
identificéto

tendencu apraksts

Gadijuma, ja
emitents ir
koncerna
dalibnieks -
koncerna apraksts
un emitenta
stavoklis
koncerna.

Informacija par to
vai emitents ir
atkarigs no
juridiskam
personam
koncerna.

Gadijuma,
ietvertas
prognozes
noveértéjums,
noradiet apjomu

ja ir
pelnas
vai

Revidentu
zinojuma ietverto
atrunu
iepriek$éjas
finansu
informacijas
sakara apraksts

Selektiva
iepriek$éja

batiska

Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Ja piedavajumu izsaka AS ,,SEB banka” un/vai tas piesaistitie agenti, tad AS
,»SEB banka” un/vai tas piesaistitie agenti piedavajuma izdari$anas bridi iesniegs
iegulditajiem informaciju par Obligaciju piedavajuma noteikumiem.

Emitenta juridiskais nosaukums komercnosaukums ir

.Latvenergo”.

un Akciju sabiedriba

Emitents ir akciju sabiedriba, kas dibindta saskana ar Latvijas Republikas tiesibu
aktiem 1991.gada 8.oktobr1. Emitents ir registréts Latvijas Republikas Komercregistra
ar registracijas numuru 40003032949, juridiska adrese: Pulkveza Brieza iela 12, Riga,
LV-1230, Latvija (telefona numurs +371 67 728 222).

Emitents Tsteno savu darbibu atbilstoSi Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktiem. Galvenie
Latvijas Republikas tiesibu akti, kas regulé Emitenta darbibu ir:

- Komerclikums;

- Publiskas personas kapitala daju un kapitalsabiedribu parvaldibas likums;

- Energétikas likums; un

- Elektroenergijas tirgus likums.

ST Pamatprospekta sagatavo$anas diena nav informacijas par jebkadam identificétam
tendencém, neskaidribam, prasijumiem, saistitbam vai notikumiem, kas 2015.finansu
gada potenciali varétu butiski ietekmét Emitenta vai Koncerna nakotnes perspektivas
vai arT nozares, kuras Emitents vai Koncerns 1steno darbibu.

Emitents ir Koncerna mates sabiedriba. ST Pamatprospekta sagatavo$anas diena
Koncerns sastav no Emitenta un tas septinam meitas sabiedribam:

- piecam Latvija registrétam meitas sabiedribam: AS ,Latvijas elektriskie tikli”
(100 procenti), AS ,Sadales tikls” (100 procenti), AS ,Energijas publiskais
tirgotajs” (100 procenti), SIA ,Elektrum Latvija” (,Elektrum Eesti” OU 100
procentu meitas sabiedriba) un SIA ,Liepajas energija” (51 procents);

- vienas Lietuva registrétas meitas sabiedribas: ,Elektrum Lietuva” UAB (100
procenti); un

- vienas Igaunija registrétas meitas sabiedribas: ,Elektrum Eesti” OU (100
procenti).

Emitents ir vienas saistitas sabiedribas — AS ,Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds”
(Latvija) akcionars (Emitenta lidzdaliba - 46,3 procenti, Koncerna lidzdaliba — 48,15
procenti).

Emitents ir veicis art finansu ieguldijumu AS ,Rigas Siltums” (0,005 procenti).

Nav piemérojams. Saja Pamatprospekta Emitents nav ietvéris pelnas prognozi vai

planotas pelnas apméru.

Nav piemérojams. Neviena no revidentu zinojumiem par Koncerna auditétajiem
konsolidétajiem gada parskatiem par finanSu gadiem, kas noslédzas 2013.gada
31.decembri un 2014.gada 31.decembri, nav ietvertas nekadas atrunas.

Sekojo3ais Koncerna konsolidéto finanSu raditaju un galveno darbibas rezultatu
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finansu
informacija par
emitentu par katru
iepriek$éjas
finansu
informacijas
apskata perioda
ietverto  finansu
gadu un ikvienu
sekojoso
starpperiodu
finanSu parskatu,
pievienojot
salidzino$os datus
par to pasu
periodu
iepriek$éeja
finansu gada,
iznemot
gadijumus, kad
salidzinosas
bilances
informacijas
prasiba tikusi
izpildita, sniedzot
gada nosléeguma
bilances
informaciju

Apliecinajums, ka

kops pédéja
revidéta finansSu
parskata
publikacijas
datuma nav
notikusas

jebkadas  bautiski
nelabveéligas
izmainas emitenta
nakotnes
perspektivas, vai
ari 8adu batiski
nelabvéligu
izmainu apraksts

Batisku  izmainu
finanSu  stavokli
vai tirgus pozicija,
kas notikuSas péc
iepriekséjas
finansu
informacijas
aptverta perioda,
apraksts

Aktualu, emitentu
ietekméjosu
notikumu
apraksts, kas ir
batiski  emitenta
maksatspéjas
novértésanai

Emitenta galveno
darbibas jomu
apraksts

Tulkojums no anglu valodas

kopsavilkums par finanSu gadiem, kas noslédzas 2013.gada 31.decembri un
2014.gada 31.decembrt, ka arT par katru no tris ménesu periodiem, kas noslédzas
2014.gada 31.marta un 2015.gada 31.marta, ir izvilkums no Koncerna konsolidétajiem
finanSu parskatiem, kas sagatavoti par minétajiem periodiem un uz konkrétajiem
datumiem, neveicot jebkadas butiskas korekcijas.

Gads, s nomsazss | T2 St b
.decembri marta

2013 2014 2014 2015

(Revidéts) (Nerevidéts)

Finansu raditaji (Koncerna)
lenémumi € milj. 1100 1011 324 260
EBITDA € milj. 249 237 83 95
Pelna € milj. 46 30 31 39
Aktivi € milj. 3575 3487 3598 3527
Pasu kapitals € milj. 2022 2021 2050 2 059
Neto aizpémumi € milj. 689 706 680 689
leguldtjumi € milj. 225 178 27 25
Kapitala attiecibas raditajs Procenti 57 58 57 58
EBITDA rentabilitate Procenti 23 23 24 26
Neto aiznémumi/EBITDA 2.8 3.0 25 2.8
Darbibas raditaji (Koncerna)
Z:Eﬁ?;ggf;ﬁc'ba pardota GWh 7 954 8688 | 2488 2132
Elektroenergijas izstrade GWh 4 854 3625 1192 1027
Pardota siltumenergija GWh 2517 2442 1077 990
Sadalita elektroenergija GWh 6 447 6 421 1724 1795

Kop$ Koncerna revidéta konsolidéta finanSu parskata par 2014. gadu apstiprinasanas
dienas nav notikuSas butiskas negativas izmainas Emitenta vai Koncerna nakotnes
perspektivas.

Kops 2015.gada 31.marta nav notikuSas batiskas negativas izmainas Emitenta vai
Koncerna finanSu stavokli un tirgus pozicijas.

Nav piemérojams. Pédgja laika nav iestajusies nekadi batiski apstakli, kas varétu bat
nozimigi Emitenta un Koncerna maksatspé&jas novértésanai.

Koncerna darbiba ir organizéta tris darbibas segmentos: razoSana un pardoSana,
sadale un parvades aktivu parvaldiba.

RaZoSanas un pardosanas segments aptver elektroenergijas un siltumenergijas
razoS$anu, ko nodrosina Emitents un SIA ,Liepajas energija”, ka ar elektroenergijas
mazumtirdzniecibu un vairumtirdzniecibu Baltijas valstis, ko veic Emitents un tas
meitas sabiedribas ,Elektrum Eesti” OU un ,Elektrum Lietuva” UAB. Kop$ 2014.gada
1.aprila elektroenergijas publiska tirgotdja pienakumus veic Emitenta meitas
sabiedriba AS ,Energijas publiskais tirgotajs”.

Sadales segments nodroSina elektroenergijas sadales pakalpojumus Latvija, ko
realizé AS ,Sadales tikls”, kas ir lielakais sadales sistémas operators Latvija.
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C dala - Véertspapiri

(o

C.2

Apmeéra, kada
§ada informacija ir
emitenta riciba,
noradit vai
emitentu tiesi vai
netieSi  parvalda
vai kontrolé kada
persona (noradit),
shiegt Sadas
kontroles aprakstu

Emitentam vai ta
parada
vértspapiriem, péc
emitenta
pieprasijuma vai
emitentam
sadarbojoties
vértésanas
procesa,
pieskirtais
kreditreitings

Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Parvades aktivu parvaldibas segmenta darbibu nodrosina AS ,Latvijas elektriskie tikli”.
Latvijas Republika ir ieviesusi ES Direktiva 2009/72/EK paredzéto otro nodaliSanas
modeli, kas paredz, ka elektroenergijas parvades sistémas aktivi paliek vertikali
integréta uznémuma 1paduma, savukart parvades sistéemas operatora darbibas ir
paklautas neatkarigai parvaldei. Aktivi tiek iznomati Latvijas parvades sistémas
operatoram — AS , Augstsprieguma tikls”.

Emitents ir registréts atbilstosi Latvijas Republikas tiestbu aktiem ka akciju sabiedriba.
Emitenta vienigais akcionars ir Latvijas Republika. Latvijas Republikas Ekonomikas
Ministrija ir Emitenta akciju turétajs Latvijas Republikas varda.

Moody’s Investors Service ir piesSkirusi Emitentam reitingu Baa2 ar stabilu attistibas
prognozi. Emitenta reitings un prognoze tika paaugstinata 2015.gada 16.februart.

Programmas ietvaros emitéto Obligaciju Sérijam var tikt pieSkirts kreditreitings, ka art
tas var bat bez reitinga. Ja tiktu pieSkirts reitings, tad Sads reitings var atSkirties no
Emitentam pieskirta reitinga. Kredttreitings nav uzskatams par rekomendaciju pirkt,
pardot vai turét kadus vértspapirus un reitingu agentira, kas pieskirusi konkréto
reitingu, var to apturét, samazinat vai atcelt jebkura bridr.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Reitings emitétajam Obligacijam [netiks pieskirts/ir pieskirts/paredzams, ka to pieskirs]
agentdra [e]].

::Z‘:'_la"am ie:!';"‘j’f; Nenodrosinatas Obligacijas ar kop&jo nominalvértibu Itdz EUR 100 000 000.
vértspapiru veids un

kategorija, ieskaitot Qbligacijas ir dematerializéti uzraditaja parada vértspapiri.

vértspapiru

identifikacijas . . . . . . . L .

numurs Obligacijas tiek emitétas Seérijas. Katra Obligaciju emisijas Sérija var sastavéet no

Veértspapiru emisijas

valita

viena vai vairakiem Laidieniem. Vienas Sérijas Obligacijas ir paklautas identiskiem
noteikumiem, iznemot atSkiribas dazadu Laidienu Emisijas datumos un Emisijas
cenas.

Katras Sérijas un Laidiena identifikacijas mérkim, Galigajos Noteikumos tiek
noradits katras Sérijas un katra Laidiena kartas numurs.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Obligaciju Sérijas numurs: [e]

Laidiena numurs: [e]

Pirms katras Seérijas pirma Laidiena piedavajuma uzsak3anas, attiecigajai Sérijai
tiek pieskirts ISIN kods. Gadijuma, ja tiek emitéts vel kads Laidiens, kas kopa ar jau
emitéto Laidienu noteikta datuma péc jau emitéta Laidiena Emisijas datuma veidos
vienu Sériju, tad $a8dam nakama Laidiena Obligacijam tiek pieskirts pagaidu ISIN
kods, kas atSkiras no attiecigajai Sérijai pieskirta ISIN koda, un tiek izmantots I1dz
bridim, kad Laidieni tiek apvienoti viena Sérija.

Konkreétas emisijas kopsavilkums:

ISIN kods: [[e]/[Pagaidu ISIN kods: [e]. Péc Obligaciju ieklauSanas regulétaja tirga,
Obligacijas tiek apvienotas viena Sérija ar [e], izmantojot vienotu ISIN kodu [e]].

EUR
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C.5

C.8,

C.9

Vertspapiru brivas
parvedamibas
ierobezojumu

apraksts

No obligacijam
izrietoSo tiestbu
apraksts, ieskaitot

o dalfjumu
kategorijas
tiesibu
ierobezojumus
nominalo procentu
likmi

e dienu, no kuras
javeic procentu
maksajumi
procentu
maksajumu
datumus

e ja likme nav
fikséta, pamata
instrumenta, kas
pamato likmi,
apraksts
atmaksasanas
terminu
aizpémuma
amortizacijas
noteikumus,
ieskaitot
atmaksasanas
kartibu
ienesiguma
prognozes

parada vértspapiru
turétaju parstavja
nosaukumu/ vardu
un uzvardu

Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Obligacijas ir brivi parvedami vértspapiri. Tomér Obligacijas nevar tikt piedavatas,
pardotas, talakpardotas, parvestas vai nodotas tadas valstis vai jurisdikcijas vai
citadi, tados apstakl|os, kur $adu pasakumu TstenoSana ir pretlikumiga vai paredz
tadu papildu pasakumu TstenoSanu, kadi netiek paredzéti Latvijas Republikas
tiestbu aktos, ieskaitot ASV, Australiju, Kanadu, Honkongu un Japanu.

Dalijums kategorijas

Obligacijas veido tieSas, nenodroSinatas un bezgarantiju Emitenta saistibas, kas
kategorizéjamas pari passu bez jebkadam priekSrocibam vienam pret otru, ka art
attieciba pret visam Emitenta nenodroSinatam, bezgarantiju un nesubordinétam
paradsaistibam, iznemot saistibas, kas atbilstoSi obligato tiesibu aktu prasibam
uzskatamas par prioritaram.

Emisijas Cena
Obligacijas var tikt emitétas to nominalvértiba vai arT piemérojot emisijas atlaidi vai
emisijas uzcenojumul.

Procentu likme

Obligacijam tiek noteikta fikséta Gada Procentu Likme. Procentu maksajumi
veicami reizi gada Galigajos Noteikumos noteiktajos procentu samaksas datumos.
Procenti tiek uzkrati par konkrétaja bridi neatmaksato Obligaciju pamatsummu par
katru procentu periodu no procentu perioda pirmas dienas (ieskaitot) ITdz procentu
perioda pédéjai dienai (neieskaitot). Pirmais procentu periods sdkas Emisijas
Datuma un noslédzas pirmaja Procentu Samaksas Datuma. Katrs nakamais
procentu periods sakas iepriekSéja Procentu Samaksas Datuma un noslédzas
nakamaja Procentu Samaksas Datuma. Pé&déjais procentu periods noslédzas
Dzeésanas Datuma.

Procenti par Obligacijam tiek aprékinati, konkrétaja procentu perioda pagajuso
dienu skaitu dalot ar 365 (vai t.s. gara gada gadijuma — ar 366), t.i., tiks izmantots
dienu aprékina princips Act/Act (ICMA).

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Procentu Samaksas Datums: katra gada [e]

lenesiguma noradiSana

Piedavato Obligaciju paredzama lenesiguma Iidz DzéSanai (Yield to Maturity)
diapazons tiks noradits Galigajos Noteikumos. Tomér Obligaciju lzvietodanas
perioda Emitents ir tiesigs maintt paredzéto lenesiguma lidz Dzé8anai diapazonu.

Galiga lenesiguma Iidz DzésSanai, Procentu Likmes un Emisijas Cenas
noteikSana

Galigais lenesigums Iidz DzéSanai tiks noteikts péc lzvietoSanas Perioda,
balstoties uz iegulditaju iesniegtajiem Pirkuma Pieteikumiem. Galigais lenesigums
l[dz Dzésanai bids vienads visiem iegulditajiem, kas attieciga piedavajuma ietvaros
iegadasies attiecigd Laidiena Obligacijas. Noteiktais Galigais lenesigums Iidz
Dzesanai tiks ieklauts Galigajos Noteikumos, kas tiks publicéti péc Obligaciju
izvietoSanas iegulditajiem.

Konkreétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Galigais lenesigums lidz DzéSanai: [e]

Gada Procentu Likme (kupons) tiks noteikta, noapalojot Galigo lenesigumu lidz
DzeéSanai uz leju lldz noapalota skaitla tuvakajai desmitdalai (kas ir procentos
izteikts lielums). Noteikta Gada Procentu Likme tiks ieklauta Galigajos Noteikumos,
kas tiks publicéti péc Obligaciju izvietoSanas iegulditajiem.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Gada Procentu Likme: [o]
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Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Obligaciju Emisijas Cena tiek noteikta saskana ar Galigajos Noteikumos ietverto
formulu attieciba uz konkréta Laidienu, noapalojot summu Iidz tuvakajai
tOkstoSdalai atbilstoSi aritmétikas likumiem par skaitju noapaloSanu. Noteikta
Emisijas Cena tiks ieklauta Galigajos Noteikumos, kas tiks publicéti péc Obligaciju
izvietoSanas iegulditajiem.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Emisijas Cenas aprékinasanas formula: [e]

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Emisijas Cena: [e]

Galigie Noteikumi, kas ietvers informaciju par apstiprinato Gada Procentu Likmi,
Emisijas Cenu, konkrétd Laidiena kopéjo pamatsummu un emitéjamo Obligaciju
skaitu tiks publicéti Emitenta interneta vietné www.latvenergo.lv un péc Obligaciju

pieskirS8anas iegulditajiem tiks iesniegta Finandu un kapitala tirgus komisijai.

Dzésanas termins

Katras Sérijas dzéSanas termin$ var bat robezas no 1 (viena) l1dz 15 (piecpadsmit)
gadiem vai arT cits Emitenta noteikts dzéSanas termins, ar nosacijumu, ka tas nav
mazaks par 12 (divpadsmit) ménesiem.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums
DzéSanas Datums: [e]

AtpirkSana

Obligacijas tiek atmaksatas to nominalvértibas pilnd apméra DzéSanas Datuma.
Emitentam nav tiestbu atpirkt Obligacijas pirms DzéSanas Datuma, iznemot
gadijumus, kad Emitents ir veicis Obligaciju pirmstermina atmaksu Emitenta
Akcionaru Mainas gadijuma vai iestajoties kddam Saistibu Neizpildes Gadijumam,
vai art gadijuma, ja Obligacionaru Sapulce, pamatojoties uz Emitenta ierosinajumu,
pienem [émumu par Obligaciju atpirk§8anu pirms noteiktd DzéSanas Datuma.

Obligacionaru parstavis

Obligacionaru tiestbas izveidot un/vai pilnvarot kadu fizisku vai juridisku personu
parstavéet visu Obligacionaru vai kadas to dalas intereses netiek noteiktas, taéu nav
paredzéti arT $adu tiestbu ierobeZojumi. Obligacionariem ir pienakums pasSiem segt
visas izmaksas/izdevumus, kas ir saistiti ar $adas parstavniecibas nodrosinasanu.

Nav piemérojams. Obligaciju procentu maksajumi nav balstiti uz atvasinatajiem
instrumentiem.

Emitents iesniedz pieteikumu par katra Laidiena ieklauSanu AS ,NASDAQ OMX
Riga” oficialaja saraksta. Sads pieteikums tiek sagatavots atbilstosi AS ,NASDAQ
OMX Riga” prasibam un tiek iesniegts AS ,NASDAQ OMX Riga” 3 (tris) ménesu
laika péc attieciga Laidiena Emisijas Datuma.
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D dala - Riski
D2  Bitiska informacija  Ar makroekonomiskajiem apstakliem saistitie riski
par emitentam
raksturigiem
batiskiem riskiem e Koncerna darbibas izvérSana kaiminvalstu elektroenergijas tirgos un

integréSanas starptautiskajos biznesa procesos palielina riskus, kas ir
saistiti_ar Koncerna darbibas un finanSu raditaju_atkaribu no
regionalajiem un starptautiskajiem makroekonomiskajiem faktoriem.

e Neparedzéta ekonomiska lejupslide, k& arl_ekonomiskas izaugsmes
tempi, kas ir |énaki nekd prognozéts, un politiskd nestabilitate
(pieméram, bazas par Griekijas maksatspéju vai turpmaka Krievijas-
Ukrainas krizes eskalacija) var atstat ietekmi uz Koncerna klientiem un,
samazinoties elektroenergijas patérinam, negativi ietekmé&t Koncerna
izaugsmi un darbibas raditajus.

Ar komercdarbibu saistitie riski

o Emitenta vienigais akcionars ir Latvijas Republika. AtseviSki un batiski
akcionara Iémumi, kas skar Koncerna darbibas stratégijas mainu, vai
Iemumi attieciba uz dividenzu politiku, kapitala struktdru un citi attiecigi
Iémumi _var bdatiski nelabvéligi ietekmét Koncerna darbibu. Papildus
tam, Emitenta padomes atjaunoSana var novest pie izmainam
Koncerna darbibas stratégija un ietekmét citus nozimigus Koncerna
darbibas aspektus. levérojot, ka visu paSreiz€jo Emitenta valdes
loceklu pilnvaru termin§ beidzas 2015.gada 15.novembri, atseviSku vai
visu paSreizéjo Emitenta valdes loceklu nomaina var nelabvéligi
ietekmét Emitenta izvéléto stratégiskas virzibas celu, attistibas planus,
mérkus un politikas, kas var nelabvéligi ietekmét Koncerna darbibu.

e Koncerna ienémumi regulétajos tirgos liela méra ir atkarigi no
Sabiedrisko pakalpojumu reguléSanas komisijas apstiprinatajiem un/vai
saskana ar Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktiem noteiktajiem tarifiem.
Pastav risks, ka $adi regulétie tarifi var neietvert visas saistitas
izmaksas. Cita starpd pastav risks, ka atbildigo valsts iestdzu
kavéSanas pienemt nepiecieSamos IéEmumus nozares reguléjuma joma
un_izmainas valsts un ES tiesiskaja vidé, kas regulé attiecigos
jautdjumus, rada riskus, var nelabvéligi ietekmét Koncerna darbibu.
Turklat pastav risks, ka Eiropas Komisija atliks vai noraidis valsts
atbalsta mehanismu, kas paredzéts, lai ierobezotu obligatas iepirkumu
komponentes pieaugumu, radot apstaklus, kados raduS$as obligita
iepirkuma _izmaksas nav atgistamas. Jebkuru So risku iestaSanas var
atstat batiski nelabvéliqu ietekmi uz Koncerna finansu stavokli.

e Paredzams, ka Baltijas valstu elektroenergijas tirgus liberalizacija tiks
pabeigta tuvakajos gados. Tirgus atvérSana rada konkurétspé&jigaku
vidi ar papildu tirgus dalibnieku piesaisti, ka rezultata ir iespéjama
Koncerna tirgus dalas samazinaSanas, radot noteiktu ietekmi uz
izcenojumu _un_visparigi ietekméjot Koncerna darbibu un finanSu
stavokli. Tapat pastav risks, ka Koncernam radisies ilgtermina
zaudéjumi_dél neatbilstoSas tirgus apguves un darbibas izvérSanas
stratégijas izvéles.

e Koncerna Baltijas valstu tirgus dala atspogulo Koncerna ST briza tirgus
poziciju, tomér pastav risks, ka Koncerna tirgus dala var samazinaties
vai_Koncerns var nespét sasniegt ieceréto tirgus dalas pieaugumu,
tadéjadi nelabvéligi ietekméjot Koncerna darbibu un finanSu stavokli.
Papildus tam, noteiktu ekonomisko, stratégisko vai citu apsvérumu
ietekmé Koncerns varétu iziet no konkrétiem tirgiem. Tas var ietekmét

28



Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Koncerna darbibu un finanSu stavokli.

Koncerna elektroenergijas razosanas portfelis pilntba nenodrosina
elektroenergijas pardosanas portfela vajadzibas, ka rezultitd gada
griezuma aptuveni puse no Koncerna elektroenergijas piegadém
privatajam sektoram ir paklautas elektroenergijas vairumtirdzniecibas
tirgus cenu svarstibu riskam. Dalai pardosanas portfe|a elektroenergijas
cenas riska ierobeZoSanai Koncerns pielieto finanSu derivativus. Dé|
ierobezotas likviditates elektroenergijas derivativu tirgl Baltijas regiona,
hedzéSanas instrumenti ir ierobezoti un to cenas ir augstas. Pastav
risks, ka hedZ?éS8ana nenodrosinds nepiecieSamo efektivitati. Tas var
batiski ietekmét Koncerna finanSu stavokli.

Koncerna spéja izpildit 1stermina uzdevumus un sasniegt ilgtermina
stratégiskos mérkus ir da|éji atkariga no pastavosa tiesiska reguléjuma.
Situacijas, kas var nelabvéligi ietekmét Koncerna darbibu un finanSu
stavokli ietver, bet neaprobezojas ar, atbalsta mehanismu
elektroenergdijas piegadei aizsargatajiem klientiem  (trlicigas un
maznodrosinatas personas, daudzbérnu gimenes), obligata iepirkuma
atbalstu videi draudzigiem razoSanas avotiem; valsts un ES requléjumu
tehnologiska rakstura, tirgus integritdtes un  caurskatdmibas,
konkurences, droSibas un vides aizsardzibas jautdjumiem un noteiktu
tirgu uzraugoSo iestazu lémumi_(k3, pieméram, Sabiedrisko
pakalpojumu_requléSanas komisija, Konkurences padome, Valsts
ienémumu dienests u.c.).

Koncerna pamatdarbibu dalgji ietekmé meteorologiskie apstakli. Lidz ar
to, Koncerna kopéjo finanSu stavokli var ietekmét sezonalitate,
izmainas laika apstaklos, ka arT ilgtermina klimata parmainas.

Emitents ka potencialais investors piedalas atomelektrostacijas projekta
apsprieSana. Papildu lidzdalibai atomelektrostacijas projekta, Koncerns
potenciali var apsvéert lldzdalibas iespéju citos apjomigos investiciju
projektos, kas var palielindt Koncerna saimnieciskas darbibas un/vai
finan8u riskus, vai negativi ietekmét Koncerna vértibu vai reputaciju,
tadéjadi radot nelabvéligu ietekmi uz Koncerna darbibu un finansu
stavokli.

Ta ka elektroenergijas parvades sistémas aktivi Latvija pieder
Koncernam, bet tos ekspluaté tre8d persona - Latvijas parvades
sisttmas operators AS ,Augstsprieguma tikls”, pastav risks, ka
parvades sistémas operators savos ilgtermina darbibas planos nav
paredzéjis  pietiekamus _iequldijumus esoSas akfivu _ vértibas
uzturéSanai, tadejadi samazinot parvades sistémas aktivu vértibu un
radot Koncernam zaudé&jumus. Turklat, ja ES fondu finanséjums
Sadiem aktiviem bids zemaks neka prognozéts, tad Koncernam var
nakties palielinat savu finansu lidzdalibu uzsaktajos parvades sistémas
aktivu _bidvniecibas projektos, attiecigi samazinot citiem projektiem
pieejamo finanséjumu vai palielinot paradsaistibu apméru.

Sagaidama jauna tirgus dalibnieka ienak$ana siltumenergijas tirga, kas
siltumenergijas razo$anai izmanto biomasu, var novest pie Emitenta
termoelektrostaciju slodzes un piegadatd siltumenergijas apjoma
samazinajuma. Tas, jo Tpasi nemot véra, ka ar gazi darbinamo staciju
mainigas izmaksas ir ievérojami augstakas, var atstat batiski
nelabvéligu ietekmi uz Koncerna darbibu un Koncerna komercdarbibas
rezultatiem.

Papildus iepriek§ minétajiem riskiem, Koncerna darbibu un finansu
rezultatus var nelabvelgi ietekmét darfjumu partnera risks, akfivu
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bojajuma risks, tiesvedibas un stridu risks, resursu risks, ar investiciju
projektu realizéSanu saistitais risks, ar ieguldijumiem sadales sistéma
saistitais _risks, valsts parada krizes risks, vides piesarnojuma,
veselibas un droSibas risks un nodoklu risks.

Finansu riski

e Aizdevuma [Tgumos un/vai ieprieks emitéto obligaciju
dokumentacijaietverto finanSu raditaju vai noteiktu citu saistibu un
apliecindjumu parkapsana var novest pie saistibu neizpildes gadijuma
iestdSands un piendkuma veikt aizdevumu pirmstermina atmaksu
un/vai iepriek8 emitéto obligaciju atpirk8anu. Ta ka aizdevuma ligumi
un iepriek$ emitéto obligaciju dokumentacija ietver saistibu neizpildes
atziSanu, iestajoties saistibu neizpildei citu lgumu ietvaros (Cross-
default), Emitentam var rasties nepiecieSamiba parfinansét batisku ta
paradsaistibu dalu.

e Emitentam pieskirtd kreditreitinga pazeminaSana var palielinat
finanséSanas izmaksas un/vai_samazinat finanséjuma pieejamibu un
Emitentam var tikt pieprasits papildu nodro$indjums ligumsaistibam,
tadejadi palielinot darfjumu izmaksas.

e Papildus augstak minétajiem riskiem, Koncerna darbibu un finansu
stavokli var nelabvéligi ietekmét procentu likmju risks un likviditates

risks.
.'f,?i'r’,';'f;,a par e Obligacijas _var _nebit piemérots _ieguldijuma _objekts visiem
batiskakajiem iequldrtajiem. Ikvienam iegulditajam ir jaizvérté ieguldijumu atbilstiba,
'iskkifm_'  kas ir balstoties uz pasa iegulditaja specifiskiem apstakliem, ieskaitot ietekmi
\r,%,fs::g{ﬁem uz $adu Obligaciju vertibu un $adu ieguldijumu ietekmi uz iegulditaja

ieguldijumu portfeli kopuma.

e  Obligacijas, ja emitétas tadu projektu finanséSanai, kas atbilst Emitenta
Zalo obligaciju satvaram (Green Bond Framework), var nebat
piemérots iequldijuma objekts visiem iequlditajiem, kas vélas iequldit
.zalajos” akfivos. Attieciba uz Obligaciju emisiju, kas tiek veikta ar
meérki finansét projektus, kas atbilst Emitenta Zalo obligaciju satvaram
(Green Bond Framework), ir paredzéts, ka Starptautiskais klimata un
vides izpétes centrs — Oslo (the Center for International Climate and
Environmental Research — Oslo), kas ir neatkarigs norvédu institits
starpdisciplinu klimata izpétei, sagatavos neatkarigu atzinumu par
Obligaciju, ka ieguldijuma objekta atbilstibu, noteiktiem vides un
ilgtspéjas kritérijiem. Sads atzinums nav ietverts un nav uzskatams par
Pamatprospekta sastdvdalu. Netiek sniegti nekadi apliecinajumi
saistiba ar Sada atzinuma vai Obligaciju atbilstibu noteiktiem vides un
ilgtspéjas kritérijiem. Sads atzinums var neietvert visu iespéjamo risku
potencialo ietekmi, kas var izrietét no struktdras, tirgus, papildu riska
faktoriem un citiem Obligaciju vértibu ietekméjoSiem tirgus apstakliem,
un tas nav uzskatams par rekomendaciju iegadaties, pardot vai turét
vértspapirus. legito Iidzek|lu izmanto$ana un noteiktu Emitenta
zinoSanas saistibu neizpilde $ada atzinuma sakara netiks uzskatita par
saistibu _neizpildes gadijuma iestd8anos saskana ar Obligaciju
Visparigajiem Noteikumiem. Sada atzinuma anulé$ana var ietekmét
Obligaciju vertibu un/vai radit sekas konkrétiem iequlditajiem, kas ir
sanémusi mandatus veikt iequldijumus ,zalajos” aktivos.

. Emitenta maksatnespéijas iestaSanas gadijuma vai ari, ja tiek ierosinats
Emitenta tiesiskds aizsardzibas process vai arpustiesas tiesiskas
aizsardzibas process, iequlditiji var zaudét procentus un iequldito

amatsummu.
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Obligacijas ir nenodrosinatas Emitenta saistibas, bez jebkadam papildu
garantijam un nodroSinajuma. Emitenta maksatnespéjas gadijuma
Obligacionari k|Gst par nenodroSinatiem kreditoriem.

Ta ka atbilstoSi Latvijas Republikas tiesibu aktiem noteikti Emitenta
pamata aktivi var atrasties tikai Emitenta vai tam pilntbd piederosSu
meitas sabiedribu TpaSuma, nav_iesp&jama prasijumu vérSana pret
minétajiem aktiviem.

Jebkddas nelabvéligas izmainas Emitenta finanSu _stavokll vai
nakotnes prognozés var batiski nelabvéligi ietekmét Obligaciju likviditati
un var novest pie bitiska to tirgus cenas krituma, tadejadi ietekméjot
iespéjas veikt laicigu un pilnu samaksu Obligacionariem.

Emitenta veiksmigas paradsaistibu parfinanséSanas iespéja ir atkariga
no konkrétaja bridi pastavo3ajiem aiznemta kapitala tirgus apstakliem
un Emitenta finanSu stavokla. Pat, ja vérojami tirgus stavokla
uzlabojumi, Emitentam var neblt pieejas finanséjuma avotiem, kas
izsniegtu finanséjumu uz labvéligiem nosacijumiem, vai arT $ada
piekluves iespéja var nepastavét vispar. Emitenta nespéja parfinansét
pastdvoSas paradsaistibas vai parfinansét tds uz labvéligiem
nosacijumiem var nelabvéligi ietekmét Koncerna darbibu, ta finansu
stavokli, pelnu un Obligacionaru iespé&ju atgat veiktos iequldijumus.

Obligacijas veido jaunu Emitenta vértspapiru emisiju, tadejadi pastav
risks, ka aktivs Obligaciju tirqgus var neizveidoties vai arl, ka $ada tirqus
uzturéSana nebis iespéjama, tapat to var ietekmét gan izmainas tirgQ,
gan ekonomiskajos apstaklos, finanSu stavoklT un Emitenta prognozeés,
kas savukart, var ietekmét Obligaciju likviditati un tirgus cenu.

Obligaciju procentu likme ir fikséta, kas attiecigi rada risku, ka 8adu
vértspapiru cenu var ietekmét izmainas tirgus procentu likmés. Turklat
ar_inflacija_var_radit Obligaciju tirgus cenas kritumu, ta ka3 tiek
samazinata valdtas vienibas pirktspéja un izrietoSi — sanemto procentu

apmeérs.

Maksajumi par Obligacijam tiek veikti EUR, ka rezultata valitas mainas
kursu svarstibas un procentu likmju svarstibas var nelabveéligi ietekmét
Obligaciju veértibu gadijuma, ja investora finanSu darbiba galvenokart
tiek Tstenota citd valita. Valsts un monetaras finanSu iestades var
ieviest (Sada prakse jau tikusi Tstenota iepriek§) valGtas mainas
kontroles mehanismus, kas var nelabvélgi ietekmét piemérojamo
valitas mainas kursu. Papildus jau minétajam, ieguldijumi Obligacijas
ietver risku, ka vélakas izmainas tirgus procentu likmés var nelabvéligi
ietekmét Obligaciju vértibu.

Obligacijas tiks iegramatotas Latvijas Centrala depozitarija (LCD) kontu
sisttma un netiek emitétas papira forma. Norékinu veikSana par
Obligacijam, ieskaitot procenta maksajumu veikSana un pamatsummas
atmaksasana, tiek nodrosinata, izmantojot LCD sistému, ka rezultata
iequlditaji ir atkarigi no LCD kontu sistémas darbibas.

Gadijuma, ja kreditreitingu Obligacijam ir piedkirusi kada no
neatkarigdm  kreditreitingu agentiram, tad $§ads reitings var
neatspogulot visu ar Obligacijam saistito risku potencidlo ietekmi,
turklat reitingu adentdra var jebkura bridi parskatit vai atcelt pieskirto
reitingu. Papildus tam, jebkadas nelabvéligas izmainas Emitentam
pieSkirtaja reitingd var nelabvéligi ietekmét Obligaciju pardoSanas
cenu.
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Obligacijam tiek pieméroti Latvijas Republikas tiesibu akti, kas
Obligaciju termina laika var tikt groziti vai mainiti. lzrietoSi — nav
iespéjams _sniegt jebkadas garantijas par $adu likumu vai noteikumu
potencialo grozijumu ietekmi, un §adas izmainas var bitiski nelabvéligi
ietekmét gan pasu Emitentu, gan Obligacijas.

Noteiktu iegulditaju ieguldijumu darbiba ir paklauta ieguldijumu darbibu
reglamentéjoSiem likumiem un noteikumiem, ka arT noteiktu iestazu
atzinumiem un noteikumiem. Katram potencialajam _iequlditdjam
nepiecieSams __konsultéties ar savu _juridisko padomnieku, lai
noskaidrotu vai un kdda apméra Obligacijas ir uzskatdmas par tiesisku
iequldijuma priekSmetu konkrétajam iequlditdjam, vai tds var izmantot
kad nodroSindjumu, ka ari, lai parliecinatos, vai nepastav_kadi citi
ierobezojumi Obligaciju iegadei vai iekillaSanai.

Obligacijas neietver apnems$anas, kas regulé Emitenta darbibu, un
neierobezo ta iespéjas apvienoties, pardot aktivus vai slégt citus
nozimiqus darijumus, kas var bitiski nelabvéligi ietekmét Obligacijas
un_Obligacionarus. Sadu darfjumu slég$ana no Emitenta puses var
atstat batiski nelabvéligu ietekmi uz Obligacionariem. Turklat, ja_tiek
groziti_attiecigi_normativie akti, Emitenta akcionars var bt tiesigs
pilntba vai daléji pardot ta [1dzdalibu Emitenta.

Pastav risks, ka Obligaciju tirgus vértiba bls augstaka neka Obligaciju
pirmstermina izpirkSanas cena, iestajoties Akciondru Mainas
gadijumam, un ka Obligacionari nespés reinvestét iegutos ldzeklus pie
tadas efektivas procentu likmes, kas biatu vienlidz augsta ka Obligaciju
procentu likme, Tstenojot iequldiSanas iespé&ju tikai pie ievérojami
zemakas likmes. Pastdv iespéjamiba, ka obligdtds Obligaciju
atpirkSanas gadijuma Emitenta riciba var nebit pietiekami [1dzekli, lai
veiktu obligato pirmstermina atpirkSanu.

Tikai Emitenta akciondram ir balsstiesibas Emitenta akcionaru
sapulcés. Obligacijas nepieskir to turétdjiem S$adas balsstiesibas.
Attiecigi Obligacionari_nevar ietekmét Emitenta akcionadra [émumus,
pieméram, attieciba uz Emitenta kapitala struktdru.

Obligacionaru _Sapulces lémumi_ (ieskaitot grozijumus Obligaciju
Visparigajos Noteikumos) ir saistoSi visiem Obligacionariem, ieskaitot
tos, kas nepiedalijas un nebalsoja attiecigaja sapulcé, ka ari tos
Obligacionarus, kas balsoja pretéji vairakumam.

Emitentam netiek noteikts aizliegums palielinat paradsaistibas, kas
attiecigi_var__palielinadt to prasijumu__ skaitu, kas Emitenta
maksatnespéjas gadijuma ir apmierindmi no_izmaksatajiem Iidzekliem
proporcionali Obligacionaru prasijumiem. Turklat attieciba uz treSajam
persondm_nav__piemérojami_noteikumi, kas requlé nodroSindjuma
l[idzdalibas nodibindSanas tiesibas treSo personu interesés, ka3,
pieméram, Ipaduma iekiladanas/apgritinaSanas_aizlieqgums (Negative
pledge), kas nozimé, ka gadijuma, ja $ads nodroSinajums ir nodibinats
kddas treSds personas laba, pat ja tas ir nodibinats parkapjot
Emitentam noteiktas saistibas un pienakumus, tad $ads nodroSindjums
ir spékd un realizéjams attiecibd uz iekilatajiem/apgritinatajiem
aktiviem.

Emisijas Agents savas ierastas komercdarbibas ietvaros ir sniedzis un
potenciali var sniegt Koncernam investiciju bankas un/vai
komercbankas un citus pakalpojumus. Jo 1pasi janorada, ka Emisijas
Adents varbit aizdevéjs kadam Koncerna dalibniekam. lzrieto$i -
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Emisijas Agenta agraka vai iespéjama Iidzdaliba darijumos ar citam
[lgumslédzejam pusém, pildot dazadas funkcijas vai slédzot citus
darfjumus, kuros ir iesaistttas treSas puses ar konfliktéjo$§am interesém,
var izraistt intereSu konfliktu.

e Obligacijas nav un netiks registrétas atbilsto$i Amerikas Savienoto
Valstu 1933. gada Vértspapiru likumam (U.S. Securities Act 1933) ar
grozijumiem, vai jebkura cita Amerikas Savienoto Valstu S$tata
vértspapiru likuma noteikumiem. Iznpemot atseviSkus iznémuma
gadijumus, Obligacijas nevar tikt piedavatas vai pardotas Amerikas
Savienotajas Valstis. Emitents nav izteicis apnems$anos registrét
Obligacijas atbilstoSi Amerikas Savienoto Valstu 1933. gada
Veértspapiru likumam vai kada cita Amerikas Savienoto Valstu Stata
vértspapiru likuma noteikumiem vai arm izteikt kadu Obligaciju
apmainas piedavajumu. Emitents nav registréjis Obligacijas atbilstosi
kadas citas valsts vértspapiru likumiem, iznemot Latvijas Republikas
likumus. |kvienam potencidlam iequlditdjam ir jaiepazistas ar
informaciju par Obligaciju nodoSanas ierobezojumiem. Ikvienam
Obligaciondram _janodroSina izteikto Obligaciju piedavajumu un
pardoSanas darfjumu atbilstibu piemé&rojamo vértspapiru likumu
noteikumu prasibam.

E daja - Piedavajums

E2b  Piedavajuma Emitents izmantos no Obligaciju emisijas gltos ienémumus visparéjo
iemesli un - - v . . = . ~ s —y Lo
ienémumu komercdarbibas mérku nodrosinasanai. Gadijuma, ja kadai konkrétai Obligaciju

izmantosana, ja tie  Sgrijai tiks paredzéts konkréts ienémumu izmantoSanas mérkis, tas tiks noradits
nav peloas gisana  attiecigajos Galigajos Noteikumos.
nodrosinasanas

pret dazadiem riska Ko nkratas emisijas kopsavilkums:

i
vediem [Emitents izmantos no katra Laidiena iegitos tiros ienémumus visparéjo
komercdarbibas mérku nodroSinasanai] / [Emitents izmantos no katra Laidiena
iegutos tiros ienémumus [e]].
E3 :Lesfc‘;?g:nmua Programmas Organizators un Emisijas Agents
apraksjts Programmas Organizators un Emisijas Agents ir AS ,SEB banka” (registracijas

numurs: 40003151743, juridiska adrese: Meistaru 1, Valdlaudi, Kekavas
pagasts, Kekavas novads, LV-1076, Latvija).

Emisijas Datums
Emisijas Datums tiks noradits konkréta Laidiena Galigajos Noteikumos.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Emisijas Datums: [e]

Kopéja pamatsumma

Katra Laidiena kopéja pamatsumma sakotné&ji tiks noteikta Galigajos
Noteikumos. Emitentam ir tiestbas Laidiena lzvietoSanas Perioda palielinat vai
samazinat Galigajos Noteikumos sakotnéji noteikto Laidiena kopé€jo
pamatsummu.

Konkreétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Kopéja pamatsumma: [EUR[e] [papildus [e]]]

Obligacijas nominalveértiba:
Katras Obligacijas nominalvértiba bads vismaz EUR 1,000.
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Tulkojums no anglu valodas

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Obligacijas nominalvértiba: [e]

Minimala leguldijuma Summa
Minimala leguldijuma Summa, par kadu varés parakstities uz Obligacijam, tiks
noteikta Galigajos Noteikumos.

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
Minimala leguldijuma Summa: [e]

IzvietoSanas Periods
Katra Obligaciju Laidiena
Noteikumos.

IzvietoSanas Periods tiks noteikts Galigajos

Konkrétas emisijas kopsavilkums:
IzvietoSanas Periods: [e]

lerobezojosie noteikumi

Emitenta Akcionaru Maina (Change of Control), Tpasuma
iekTlasanas/apgritinaSanas aizliegums (Negative pledge), no kada cita liguma
izrietoSa saistibu neizpildes gadijuma iestadSanas (Cross default) un citi.

Depozitarijs
Obligacijas tiks redistrétas AS ,Latvijas Centralais depozitarijs”.

Piemérojamie tiesibu akti
Latvijas Republikas tiestbu akti

Atbilstosi Emitenta riciba eso$ajai informacijai, iznemot Programmas
Organizatoram un Emisijas Agentam maksajamas komisijas maksas, nevienai
personai, kas iesaistita Obligaciju piedavajuma, nepastav intereses, kas ir
bitiskas emisijai/piedavajumam, ka art nepastav interesSu konflikts.

Emitents nepieméro iegulditdjiem jebkadus maksajumus vai nodok|us Obligaciju
emisijas sakara. Tomér iegulditajiem var tikt pieprasits segt izdevumus, kas ir
saistiti ar veértspapiru kontu atvérSanu kreditiestddés vai pie ieguldijuma
pakalpojumu sniedzé&jiem, ka arT veikt komisijas maksajumus kreditiestadem vai
ieguldijumu pakalpojumu sniedzéjiem saistiba ar iegulditaju Obligaciju pirkSanas
vai pardosSanas pieteikumiem, Obligaciju turéSanu vai citam ar Obligacijam
saistitam darbibam. Ne Emitents, ne Programmas Organizators vai Emisijas
Agents nekompensés $adas Obligacionaru izmaksas.

34



Vertimas i$ angly kalbos

SANTRAUKA

Si santrauka sudaryta pagal informacijos atskleidimo reikalavimus, kurie yra jvardyti kaip Punktai. Sie
Punktai yra sunumeruoti A—E skirsniuose (A.1-E.7). Sioje santraukoje pateikti visi Punktai, kurie turi bditi
jtraukti Sio tipo vertybiniy popieriy ir emitento santraukoje. Kadangi kai kurie Punktai néra reikalingi, Punkty
numeravimo eiléje galimi tarpai. Net jeigu Punktas turi bati jtrauktas j santraukg pagal vertybiniy popieriy tipg
ir emitentg, gali bdti, kad jokia svarbi informacija negalés bt pateikta Siame Punkte. Tokiu atveju
santraukoje pateikiamas trumpas Punkto apibddinimas su nuoroda ,netaikoma®.

A skirsnis — Jvadas ir jspéjimai

A1 Ispéjimas

A.2 Sutikimas
Bazinio
prospekto
naudojimo

del

Si santrauka turi biti suprantama kaip $io Bazinio prospekto jvadas ir visi sprendimai
investuoti j Obligacijas turéty bati priimami susipaZinus su visu Baziniu prospektu,
jskaitant dokumentus, kurie yra pridedami prie Bazinio prospekto, taip pat atitinkamy
Obligacijy Galutinémis sglygomis.

Jei dél Siame Baziniame prospekte pateiktos informacijos ieSkinys pateikiamas kurios
nors Valstybés narés teismui, pagal valstybés narés, kurioje ieSkinys buvo pateiktas,
jstatymus, ieSkovui gali tekti prie§ teisminio proceso pradzig apmokéti Bazinio
prospekto vertimo iSlaidas.

Civiliné atsakomybé asmenims uz Sioje santraukoje pateiktg informacijg, jskaitant jos
vertimus, yra taikoma tiktai tada, kai joje pateikta informacija yra klaidinanti, netiksli ar
priestaringa, lyginant su kitomis Sio Bazinio prospekto dalimis, arba joje nepateikta
svarbi informacija, kuri kartu su kitomis Bazinio prospekto dalimis padéty
investuotojams priimti sprendimag dél investavimo j Siuos vertybinius popierius.

Bazinio prospekto galiojimo laikotarpiu AS ,SEB banka“ (registracijos numeris
40003151743, juridinis adresas Meistaru 1, Valdlaudi, Kekava sav., Kekava r., LV-
1076, Latvija) ir jo subagentai (kaip nurodyta taikytinose Galutinése sglygose), véliau
perparduodantys ar platinantys pagal Programg isleistas Obligacijas, turi teise naudoti
Bazinj prospekta:

- Latvijos Respublikoje, Lietuvos Respublikoje ir Estijos Respublikoje, kur vykdomas
vieSasis Obligacijy platinimas instituciniams ir mazmeniniams investuotojams, ir

- Europos ekonominés erdvés valstybése narése, kuriose, vadovaujantis iSimtimi
pagal Direktyvos dél prospekto (Direktyva 2003/71/EB) 3 straipsnj, vykdomas
privatus  Obligacijy platinimas instituciniams investuotojams, kuris yra
jgyvendinamas tam tikrose Europos ekonominés erdvés valstybése narése,

vélesniam atitinkamy Obligacijy perpardavimui ar platinimui per atitinkama platinimo
laikotarpj (kaip nustatyta taikytinose Galutinése salygose), kurio metu gali bdti
atliekamas vélesnis atitinkamy Obligacijy perpardavimas ar platinimas. Emitentas
prisima atsakomybe uz Baziniame prospekte pateikiamg informacijg, taip pat ir
informacija, susijusig su tokiu vélesniu atitinkamy Obligacijy perpardavimu ir platinimu.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Agento (Platintojo) subagentai: [e]

Bazinis prospektas potencialiems investuotojams gali bati pateikiamas tik kartu su
visais iki pateikimo paskelbtais jo priedais (jei tokiy yra). Bazinis prospektas ir visi
Bazinio prospekto priedai skelbiami Emitento internetiniame puslapyje adresu
www.latvenergo.lv.

Naudodamiesi Baziniu prospektu, AS ,SEB banka“ ir jo subagentai turi uztikrinti, kad
baty laikomasi atitinkamoje jurisdikcijoje taikytiny jstatymy ir teisés akty.

Tuo atveju, jei AS ,,SEB banka“ ir (arba) jo subagentai pateikia sitilyma, AS ,,SEB

banka“ ir (arba) jo subagentai investuotojams pateikia informacijg apie
atitinkamo pasitilymo teikimo metu galiojancias sitilomy Obligacijy salygas.
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B skirsnis — Emitentas

B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5,
B.14

B.9

Teisinis ir
komercinis
pavadinimas

Emitento
buveinés vieta,
teisiné forma,
teisés aktai,
pagal kuriuos
emitentas
veikia, ir
jsteigimo Salis

Kity zinomy
tendenciju,
turinéiy jtakos
emitentui ir
sektoriams,
kuriuose jis
veikia,
apibidinimas
Grupés ir
emitento
padéties toje
grupéje
apibadinimas,
jeigu emitentas
priklauso tai
grupei

Jeigu emitentas
yra
priklausomas
nuo kity grupés
subjektu, tai turi
bati aiskiai
nurodyta

Kai pateikiama
pelno prognozé
arba duomenys
apie preliminary
pelna, nurodomi
skaiciai

Istorinés
finansinés
informacijos
audito
ataskaitoje
nurodyty iSlygy
apibidinimas

Atrinkta istoriné
pagrindiné
finansiné
informacija apie
emitenta,
pateikta apie
kiekvienus
istorinés

Emitento juridinis ir komercinis pavadinimas yra Akciju sabiedriba ,Latvenergo®.

Emitentas yra ribotos atsakomybés bendroveé (akciju sabiedriba), jsteigta pagal Latvijos
Respublikos jstatymus 1991 m. spalio 8 d. Emitentas yra jregistruotas Latvijos
Respublikos Komerciniame registre, kuriame jo registracijos numeris yra 40003032949,
o jo registruotas adresas yra Pulkveza Brieza 12, Ryga, LV-1230, Latvija (telefono
numeris +371 67 728 222).

Emitentas savo veiklg vykdo vadovaudamasis Latvijos Respublikos teisés aktais.
Pagrindiniai Latvijos Respublikos teisés aktai, reglamentuojantys Emitento veiklg yra
Sie:

- Prekybos jstatymas (Komerclikums);

- VieSyjy asmeny kapitalo daliy ir kapitalo bendroviy valdymo jstatymas (Publiskas
personas kapitala dalu un kapitalsabiedribu parvaldibas likums);

- Energetikos jstatymas (Energétikas likums);

- Elektros energijos rinkos jstatymas (Elektroenergijas tirgus likums).

Sio Bazinio prospekto sudarymo dieng néra jokios informacijos apie visas Zinomas
tendencijas, neaiSkumus, poreikius, jsipareigojimus ar jvykius, kurie pagrjstai gali turéti
esminj poveikj Emitento ar Grupés perspektyvai ir pramonés Sakoms, kuriose Emitentas
ar Grupé vykdo savo veiklg 2015 mety finansiniais metais.

Emitentas yra patronuojancioji Grupés bendrové. Bazinio prospekto sudarymo dieng
Grupe sudaro Emitentas ir septynios jo dukterinés jmonés:

- penkios jmonés jsteigtos Latvijoje: ,Latvijas elektriskie tikli* AS (100 proc.),
.Sadales tikls“ AS (100 proc.), ,Energijas publiskais tirgotajs“ AS (100 proc.),
,Elektrum Latvija“ SIA (,Elektrum Eesti* OU 100 proc. patronuojamoji jmoné) ir
.Liepajas energija“ SIA (51 proc.);

- UAB ,Elektrum Lietuva“ (100 proc.) jsteigta Lietuvoje;
- ,Elektrum Eesti“ OU (100 proc.) jsteigta Estijoje.

Emitentas yra vienos asocijuotos bendrovés ,Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds“ AS
(Emitentas turi 46,3 proc., o Grupé — 48,15 proc. akcijy) akcininkas.

Emitentas taip pat turi finansine investicijg j ,Rigas Siltums® AS (0,005 proc.).

Netaikoma. Siame Baziniame prospekte Emitentas nepateiké pelno prognozés ar jo
apskai€iavimo.

Netaikoma. Grupés audituotose konsoliduotose metinése ataskaitose uz metus,
pasibaigusius 2013 m. gruodZio 31 d. ir 2014 m. gruodzio 31 d. , néra nurodyta jokiy

iSlygy.

Sie Grupés dvejy finansiniy mety, pasibaigusiy 2013 ir 2014 m. gruodzio 31 d., ir dviejy
tarpiniy laikotarpiy, pasibaigusiy 2014 m. kovo 31 d. ir 2015 m. kovo 31 d., suvestiniai
konsoliduoti veiklos rezultatai ir pagrindiniai veiklos rodikliai, paimti 5§ Grupés
konsoliduoty finansiniy atskaitomybiy pagal Sias datas ir laikotarpius be jokiy esminiy
pakeitimy.
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ReikSmingy
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istorinés
finansinés
informacijos
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reikSmés
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emitento
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apibidinimas
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Trijy ménesiy
Metai, pasibaige laikotarpis,
gruodzio 31 d. pasibaiges
kovo 31 d.
2013 2014 2014 2015
(Audituota) (Neaudituota)
Pagrindiniai finansiniai rodikliai (Grupés)
Pajamos min. EUR 1100 1011 324 260
EBITDA min. EUR 249 237 83 95
Pelnas min. EUR 46 30 31 39
Bendras turtas min. EUR 3575 3487 3598 3527
Bendras nuosavas kapitalas min. EUR 2022 2021 2050 2059
Grynoiji skola min. EUR 689 706 680 689
Investicijos min. EUR 225 178 27 25
Kapitalo koeficientas procentai 57 58 57 58
EBITDA pelningumo koeficientas procentai 23 23 24 26
Grynosios skolos santykis su EBITDA 2,8 3,0 2,5 2,6
Veiklos rodikliai (Grupés)
Mazmeninis elektros energijos tiekimas GWh 7 954 8 688 2488 2132
Elektros energijos gamyba GWh 4 854 3625 1192 1027
Silumos energijos tiekimas GWh 2517 2442 1077 990
Paskirstoma elektros energija GWh 6 447 6421 1724 1795

Nuo Grupés audituotos konsoliduotos metinés ataskaitos uz 2014 metus datos nejvyko
jokiy esminiy neigiamy Emitento ar Grupés perspektyvos pokyciy.

Nuo 2015 m. kovo 31 d. nejvyko jokiy esminiy neigiamy Emitento ar Grupés finansinés
ar verslo padéties pokyciy.

Netaikoma. Pastaruoju metu néra jvyke jokiy esminiy jvykiy, kurie baty reikSmingi
Emitento ir Grupés mokumui jvertinti.

Grupés veikla vykdoma trijuose pagrindiniuose segmentuose. Tai gamyba ir tiekimas,
skirstymas bei perdavimo sistemos turto valdymas.

Gamybos ir tiekimo segmentas apima elektros ir Silumos energijos gamybg, kurig vykdo
Emitentas ir ,Liepajas energija“ SIA, o taip pat ir didmeninj bei mazZmeninj elektros
energijos tiekimg Baltijos 3alyse, kurj vykdo Emitentas ir jos dukterinés bendrovés
,Elektrum Eesti OU ir UAB ,Elektrum Lietuva“. Nuo 2014 m. balandzio 1 d.
visuomeninio pardavéjo funkcijas vykdo Emitento dukteriné bendrové ,Energijas
publiskais tirgotajs® AS.

Skirstymo segmentas apima elektros energijos skirstymo paslaugy teikimg Latvijoje.
Paslaugas teikia jmoné ,Sadales tikls“ AS — didziausias skirstymo sistemos operatorius
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Latvijoje.

Perdavimo sistemos turto segmento valdymg uZtikrina ,Latvijas elektriskie tikli“ AS.
Latvijos Respublikoje taikomas antrasis atskyrimo modelis pagal ES direktyvg
2009/72/EB, kurioje numatoma, kad elektros energijos perdavimo sistemos turtas turi
iSlikti vertikalios integracijos jmonéje, o perdavimo sistemos operatoriaus veikla turi bati
valdoma nepriklausomai. Turtas yra iSnuomotas Latvijos perdavimo sistemos
operatoriui ,Augstsprieguma tikls“ AS.

Emitentas yra pagal Latvijos Respublikos jstatymus jkurta ribotos atsakomybés
bendrové (akciju sabiedriba). Latvijos Respublika yra vienintelis Emitento akcininkas.
Latvijos Respublikos Ekonomikos ministerija valdo visas Emitento akcijas Latvijos
Respublikos vardu.

,Moody’s Investors Service® Emitentui yra nustaciusi kredito reitingg Baa2 su stabilia
perspektyva. Reitingas ir perspektyva buvo atnaujinti 2015 m. vasario 16 d.

Pagal Programg isleisty Obligacijy emisija gali bati reitinguojama arba nereitinguojama.
Jeigu reitinguojama, tokiu atveju Sie reitingai nebutinai bus tokie patys kaip tie, kurie yra
nustatyti Emitentui. Kredito reitingas néra rekomendacija pirkti, parduoti ar iSlaikyti
vertybinius popierius ir gali bdti reitingg nustatanios agentiros sustabdytas,
sumazintas ar atSauktas.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
ISleidziamos obligacijos [néra/buvo/bus] reitinguojamos ir reitingg nustatys [[e]]

C skirsnis — Vertybiniai popieriai

(o]

Sitdlomy ir
(arba) j
prekybos
sgrasa
jtraukiamy
vertybiniy
popieriy tipo ir
klasés
apibadinimas,
jskaitant visus
vertybiniy
popieriy
identifikavimo
kodus

Negarantuotos obligacijos, kuriy bendra nominalioji verté yra iki 100,000,000 EUR.
Obligacijos yra pareikstinés formos nematerialts skolos vertybiniai popieriai.

Obligacijos bus iSleidziamos atskiromis Emisijomis. Kiekvieng Emisijg sudarys viena
arba daugiau Daliy. Tos pacios Emisijos Obligacijoms bus taikomos identiSkos sglygos,
iSskyrus Emisijos jsigaliojimo dienas ir Emisijos kainas, kurios gali skirtis dél skirtingy
Daliy.

Tam kad baty galima identifikuoti atskiras Emisijas ir Dalis, Galutinése salygose
pateikiamas atitinkamos Emisijos serijos numeris ir atitihkamos Dalies serijos numeris.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Obligacijy emisijos numeris: [o]

Dalies numeris: [o]

Prie§ pradedant platinti kiekvienos Emisijos pirmos Dalies Obligacijas, tai atitinkamai
Emisijai bus suteikiamas ISIN kodas. Kai iSleidziama paskesné Dalis, kuri yra skirta
suformuoti vieng Emisijg su esama Dalimi po esamos Dalies Emisijos jsigaliojimo
dienos, tokioms paskesnés Dalies Obligacijoms suteikiamas laikinas ISIN kodas, kuris
skiriasi nuo ISIN kodo, skiriamo atitinkamai Emisijai, iki tol, kol Dalys yra
konsoliduojamos ir sudaro vieng Emisija.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:

ISIN kodas: [[e]] / Laikinas ISIN kodas: [e]. Po Obligacijy jtraukimo j prekybos sgrasg
reguliuojamoje rinkoje Obligacijos bus konsoliduojamos ir sudarys vieng emisijg su [e] ir
turés bendrg ISIN koda [e].
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Vertimas i$ angly kalbos

EUR.

Obligacijos yra laisvai perleidziami vertybiniai popieriai. Tadiau Obligacijos negali bati
sidlomos, parduodamos, perparduodamos, perleidziamos ar pateikiamos tose Salyse ar
jurisdikcijose ar esant kitokioms aplinkybémis, kur ir kai tai yra neteiséta ar reikalauja
priemoniy, kuriy Latvijos jstatymai nenumato, jskaitant Jungtines Amerikos Valstijas,
Australijg, Kanadg, Honkongg ir Japonija.

EiliSkumas

Obligacijos yra tiesioginiai, neapdrausti ir negarantuoti Emitento jsipareigojimai ir bus
lygiaver€iai (pari passu) su visais kitais Emitento neapdraustais, negarantuotais ir
nesubordinuotais jsipareigojimais, neteikiant jiems jokios pirmenybés, iSskyrus tuos
atvejus, kai jsipareigojimams teikiama pirmenybé, nes to reikalauja imperatyviosios
teisés normos.

Emisijos kaina
Obligacijos gali bati iSleidziamos (parduodamos) uz nominaligjg verte, su nuolaida arba
su priemoka prie jy nominaliosios vertés.

Palukany norma

Uz Obligacijas mokama fiksuota Metiné Pallikany Norma. Paldkanos uz Obligacijas bus
mokamos kiekvienais metais tomis dienomis, kurios nurodytos Galutinése salygose.
Paldkanos kiekvienam paltkany laikotarpiui pradedamos skaiciuoti nuo ir jskaitant pirmg
pallkany laikotarpio dieng iki (taiau nejskaitant) paskutinés palikany laikotarpio dienos
uz tuo metu likusig pagrindine (nominaligjg) Obligacijy verte. Pirmas palikany
laikotarpis prasideda Emisijos jsigaliojimo dieng ir baigiasi pirmg Palikany mokéjimo
dieng. Visi po to einantys palUkany laikotarpiai prasideda ankstesne Palikany mokéjimo
dieng ir baigiasi kit Palikany mokéjimo dieng. Paskutinis paltkany laikotarpis baigiasi
ISpirkimo dieng.

Paldkanos uz obligacijas bus skai€iuojamos pagal faktinj atitinkamo pallkany laikotarpio
dieny skaiCiy, padalinta i§ 365 (arba 366, keliamyjy mety atveju), t. y. bus
vadovaujamasi dieny skai¢iavimo principu ,Act/Act (Tarptautiné kapitalo rinky
asociacija)"“.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Paldkany mokéjimo data: [e] kiekvienais metais

Informacija apie pajaminguma

Numatomos sitlomy Obligacijy Pajamingumo iki ISpirkimo ribos (intervalas) bus
nurodytos Galutinése salygose. Tacgiau Emitentas turi teise numatomo Pajamingumo iki
ISpirkimo ribas atnaujinti Obligacijy Platinimo laikotarpiu.

Galutinio pajamingumo iki iSpirkimo, Metinés paliikkany normos ir Emisijos kainos
nustatymas

Galutinis pajamingumas iki iSpirkimo bus nustatomas po Platinimo laikotarpio pagal
investuotojy pateiktus pirkimo pasidlymus. Galutinis pajamingumas iki iSpirkimo bus toks
pats visiems investuotojams, platinimo metu jsigijusiems atitinkamos Dalies Obligacijy.
Nustatytas Galutinis pajamingumas iki iSpirkimo nurodomas Galutinése salygose, kurios
bus skelbiamos po Obligacijy paskirstymo investuotojams.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Galutinis pajamingumas iki iSpirkimo: [e]

Metiné palikany norma (atkarpa) turi bati nustatyta, suapvalinant Galutinj pajaminguma
iki iSpirkimo iki artimiausios skaiCiaus (kuris pateikiamas procentine iSraiSka)
deSimtosios dalies po kablelio. Nustatyta Metiné pallkany norma nurodoma Galutinése
salygose, kurios bus skelbiamos po Obligacijy paskirstymo investuotojams.
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Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Metiné paltkany norma: [e]

Obligacijy emisijos kaina nustatoma pagal formule, pateiktg atitinkamos Dalies
Galutinése salygose ir yra suapvalinama iki artimiausios tikstantosios apvalinamo
skaiiaus dalies pagal aritmetines apvalinimo taisykles. Nustayta Emisijos kaina
nurodoma Galutinése saglygose, kurios bus skelbiamos po Obligacijy paskirstymo
investuotojams.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Emisijos Kainos apskai€iavimo formulé: [e]

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Emisijos kaina: [e]

Galutinés salygos, kuriose pateikiama informacija apie nustatyta Metine pallkany
normg, Emisijos kaing, Bendrg atitinkamos Dalies verte ir galutinj iSleidziamy Obligacijy
kiekj, bus paskelbtos Emitento internetiniame puslapyje adresu www.latvenergo.lv ir taip
pat pateiktos Finansy ir kapitaly rinkos komisijai po Obligacijy paskirstymo
investuotojams.

ISpirkimo terminai

Kiekvienos Obligacijy emisijos trukmé gali bati nuo 1 (vieny) iki 15 (penkiolikos) mety
arba tokj iSpirkimo terming, kokj pasirenka Emitentas, tadiau bet kokiu atveju ne
trumpesnj nei 12 (dvylika) ménesiy.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
ISpirkimo terminas: [e]

ISpirkimas

Obligacijos turi bati visiSkai iSpirktos sumokant ju nominaligja verte suéjus ISpirkimo
terminui. Emitentas neturi teisés iSpirkti Obligacijy anksciau nei ISpirkimo dieng, nebent
Emitentas i§ anksto sumokéjo uz Obligacijas Kontrolés pasikeitimo ar |sipareigojimy
nevykdymo atveju, arba tuo atveju, kai Emitento sidlymu suSauktas Obligacijy savininky
susirinkimas priima sprendimg iSpirkti Obligacijas nesuéjus ISpirkimo terminui.

Skolos vertybiniy popieriy savininky atstovas

Obligacijy savininky teisés nustatyti ir / ar jgalioti organizacijg / asmenj atstovauti visy ar
dalies Obligacijy savininky interesams néra numatytos, taciau, kita vertus, jos néra
apribotos. Obligacijy savininkai turi patys padengti visas su atstovu(-ais) susijusias(-ius)
iSlaidas/mokescius.

Netaikoma. Obligacijos neturi palikany mokejimo iSvestinio komponento.

Emitentas pateiks praSyma jtraukti kiekvieng Dalj | oficialy AS NASDAQ OMX Riga
sgrasg. PraSymas bus parengtas pagal AS NASDAQ OMX Riga reikalavimus ir bus
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pateiktas AS NASDAQ OMX Riga per 3 (tris) ménesius nuo atitinkamos Dalies Emisijos
jsigaliojimo datos.

Rizikos, susije su makroekonominémis sglygomis

Grupés plétra | kaimynines energetikos rinkas ir Grupés integracija j tarptautinio
verslo procesus prisideda prie vis didesnio regioniniy ir tarptautiniy
makroekonominiy pokyciy poveikio Grupés verslui ir finansiniams rezultatams.

Netikétas ekonomikos nuosmukis bei létesnis nei tikétasi ekonomikos augimas ar
politinis _nestabilumas (pvz., dél galimo Graikijos jsipareigojimy nevykdymo ar
stipréjancios Rusijos ir Ukrainos krizés) galéty turéti jtakos Grupés klientams ir gali
neigiamai _paveikti Grupés augima ir operacijy rezultatus dél mazesnio elektros
energijos suvartojimo.

Rizikos, susijusios su verslo operacijomis

Vienintelis Emitento akcininkas — Latvijos Respublika. Tam tikri esminiai akcininko
sprendimai, kuriais keiiama Grupés strategija ar sprendimai dél dividendy
politikos, kapitalo struktdros ir Kiti atitinkami_sprendimai_galéty turéti esminés
neigiamos jtakos Grupei. Be to, Emitento Stebétojy tarybos grgZinimas gali lemti
pokyCius Grupés strategijos ir kity pagrindiniy Grupés veiklos sri¢iy atzvilgiu.
Atsizvelgiant j tai, kad visy dabartiniy Emitento Valdybos nariy kadencija baigiasi
2015 m. lapkriio 15 d., dalies arba visy dabartiniy Emitento Valdybos nariy
pakeitimas gali neigiamai_paveikti Emitento dabartine strategine kryptj, plétros
planus, tikslus ir politikas, o tai galéty turéti neigiamos jtakos Grupei.

Grupés pajamos reguliuojamose rinkose labai priklauso nuo tarify, kuriuos tvirtina
VieSyjy komunaliniy paslaugy komisija ir (arba) kurie yra reguliuocjami
vadovaujantis Latvijos Respublikos teisés aktais. Esama rizikos, kad dél Siy
reguliuojamy_tarify nebus padengtos visos iSlaidos. Be to, egzistuoja rizika, kad
véluojami priimti valstybés institucijy su requliavimu susije sprendimai arba vietos
ar_ES teisinés aplinkos pokyéiai, nustatantys atitinkamus priezidros klausimus,
Grupei turés reikSmingos neigiamos jtakos. Be to, egzistuoja rizika, kad Europos
Komisija gali atidéti valstybés biudzeto subsidijos, kuria siekiama riboti privalomo
su vieSgja paslauga susijusio jsipareigojimo jsigyti mokescio didéjima, patvirtinimg
arba iSvis jos nepatvirtinti, o dél to privalomo jsigijimo iSlaidos galéty tapti
neatlygintinomis. Bet kuri i§ Siy riziky gali turéti reikSmingos neigiamos jtakos
Grupés finansinei biklei.

Tikimasi, kad elektros energijos rinkos Baltijos 3alyse liberalizavimas bus
jgyvendintas per Siuos metus. Liberalizavus rinkg, pavyktu sukurti
konkurencingesne aplinka, kurioje dalyvaus daugiau rinkos dalyviy, kurie gali
sumazinti Grupés rinkos dalj ir turéti jtakos kainodarai ir Grupés verslui bei
finansinei padéciai. Taip pat egzistuoja rizika, kad dél prisijungimo prie netinkamos
rinkos ir netinkamos rinkos plétros strategijos, Grupé patirs ilgalaikiy nuostoliy.

Rinkos dalis Baltijos Salyse rodo dabartine Grupés padétj, taliau egzistuoja rizika,
kad rinkos dalis gali sumazéti arba Grupé gali nesugebéti pasiekti tikimosi rinkos
dalies augimo, kurie turéty neigiamos jtakos Grupés verslui ir finansinei biklei. Be
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to, Bendrové dél ekonominiy, strateginiy ar kitokiy priezas¢iy gali pasitraukti i$
dabartiniy rinky. Tai gali turéti jtakos Grupés veiklai ir finansinei bidklei.

Grupés elektros gamybos portfelis i§ dalies patenkina elektros tiekimo portfelio
poreikius, todél mety eigoje apytiksliai pusé Grupés metinio elektros energijos
tiekimo mazmeniniam sektoriui susiduria su kainos nepastovumo rizika elektros
energijos didmeninéje rinkoje. Grupé taiko iSvestines finansines priemones
siekdama savo tiekimo portfelio dalies atzvilgiu sumazinti elektros kainos rizikg. Dél
Zemo Baltijos regiono elektros energijos iSvestiniy finansiniy priemoniy rinkos
likvidumo, galimybé pasinaudoti apsidraudimo priemonémis yra  ribota, o
apsidraudimo kastai yra nemenki. . Esama rizikos, kad apsidraudimas bus
nepakankamai efektyvus, o tai gali turéti reikSmingos neigiamos jtakos Grupés
finansinei baklei.

Grupés gebéjimas pasiekti trumpalaikius tikslus ir ilgalaikius strateginius tikslus i$
dalies priklauso nuo jstatyminés aplinkos. Veiksniai, galintys turéti reikSmingg
poveikj Grupés veiklai ir finansinei padéciai apima, taciau jais neapsiribojant,
elektros energijos tiekimg pazeidZziamiems vartotojams (nepasiturintiems ar mazas
pajamas gaunantiems asmenims, daugiavaikéms Seimoms), supirkimo tarify
politikg, taikomg ekologiSkiems gamybos S$altiniams, nacionalinius ar ES teisés
aktus dél techniniy, rinkos vientisumo ir skaidrumo, konkurencijos, saugos ir
aplinkos apsaugos klausimy, tam tikry rinkos priezidros institucijy sprendimus
(pavyzdziui, VieSyjy komunaliniy paslaugy komisijos, Konkurencijos tarybos,
Valstybinés mokesciy inspekcijos ir t. t.)

Pagrindinéms Grupés verslo operacijoms i$ dalies turi jtakos oro sglygos. Dél Sios
priezasties Grupés finansinei padéciai apskritai gali turéti jtakos sezoniSkumas, oro
svyravimai ir ilgalaikiai klimato pokydciai.

Emitentas, kaip potencialus investuotojas, yra jtrauktas j derybas dél atominés
elektrinés projekto. Be atominés elektrinés projekto, Grupé gali svarstyti dalyvauti
kituose dideliuose investiciju projektuose, dél kuriy gali padidéti Grupés veiklos ir
(arrba) finansinés rizikos lygis arba gali bati neigiamai paveikta Grupés verté ar
reputacija, taip sukurdama neigiamg poveikj Grupés verslui ir finansinei biklei.

Kadangi Latvijoje esantis elektros perdavimo sistemos turtas priklauso Grupei,
taCiau jj valdo treCiasis asmuo, Latvijos perdavimo sistemos operatorius
»Augstsprieguma tikls“ AS, kyla rizika, kad perdavimo sistemos operatorius
ilgalaikéje perspektyvoje skirs nepakankamai investicijy, kad bty iSlaikyta esama
turto verté, ir tokiu bidu sumazins Sio turto verte ir sukels nuostoliy Grupei. Be to,
jeigu ES lé3y, kuriomis finansuojamas turtas, dalis sumazés labiau nei yra tikimasi,
Grupei gali tekti padidinti savo finansavimo dalj esamos perdavimo sistemos turto
statybos projektuose, o tai sumazinty kitiems projektams galimas skirti 1éSas arba
galéty padidinti jsiskolinimus.

Tikétinas naujas Silumos energijos rinkos dalyvis, gamybos procesui kaip kurg
naudojantis biomase, gali sumazinti Emitento termofikaciniy elektriniy darbo krayvj,
taip_ sumazindamas ir Emitento tiekiamos Silumos energijos kiekj. Tai galéty turéti
reikSmingos neigiamos jtakos Grupés bendrajai veiklai, ypa¢ atsizvelgiant j tai, kad
jégainiy, kuriose naudojamos dujos, kintamos sgnaudos yra palyginti didesnés,

Be anksc€iau iSvardinty riziky, Grupés verslui ir finansinei padéciai neigiamos jtakos
gali turéti kitos sutarties Salies rizika, turto apgadinimo rizika, bylinéjimosi ir gincy
rizika, iStekliy rizika, investiciniy projekty vykdymo rizika, platinimo sistemos
investicijy rizika, valstybés skolos krizés rizika, aplinkosai, sveikatios ir saugumo
rizika bei mokesciy rizika.

Finansinés rizikos

PazZeidus finansinius pasiZadéjimus ar tam tikrus jsipareigojimus ir pareiSkimus
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pagal paskolos sutartis ir (arba) dokumentus, susijusius su iSleistomis
obligacijomis, galimas jsipareigojimy nevykdymo atvejis ir paskoly grgzinimas
prie$ terming ir (arba) pirmiau i$leisty obligacijy iSpirkimas. Dél paskolos sutartyse
ir obligacijy dokumentuose jrasyty kryZzminiy jsipareigojimy nevykdymo nuostaty,
Emitentui gali tekti refinansuoti dideles savo likusios skolos dalis.

Sumazéjus Emitento kredito reitingui, gali padidéti jo finansavimo iSlaidos ir (arba)
sumazéti jo galimybés pasinaudoti finansavimu; Emitentui taip pat gali tekti pateikti
papildomg uztikrinimo priemone pagal sutartis, o tai gali padidinti sandoriy iSlaidas.

Be nurodyty riziky, Grupés verslui ir finansinei padéciai neigiamos jtakos gali turéti
palikany normos rizika ir likvidumo rizika.

Obligacijos gali bdti ne visiems investuotojams tinkama investicija. Todél
kiekvienas galimas investuotojas | Obligacijas privalo jvertinti Siy investicijy
tinkamumg pagal savo aplinkybes, jskaitant jtakg Siy Obligacijy vertei ir Siy
investicijy poveikj jo bendram investicijy portfeliui.

Obligacijos, iSleidziamos finansuoti projektus, kurie atitinka Emitento Aplinkai
draugisky obligacijy koncepcijos (angl. Green Bond Framework) reikalavimus, ne
visiems investuotojams, kurie siekia investuoti j aplinkai draugiSkg turtg, gali bati
tinkama_investicija. Kai yra iSleidziamos Obligacijos, kuriomis siekiama finansuoti
projektus, kurie atitinka Emitento Aplinkai draugisky obligacijy koncepcijos
reikalavimus, tikimasi, kad Tarptautiniy klimato ir aplinkos moksliniy tyrimy centras
— Oslo (the Center for International Climate and Environmental Research — Oslo),
Norvegijos nepriklausomas tarpdisciplininiy klimato moksliniy tyrimy institutas,
pateiké antrosios Salies nuomone dél Obligacijy kaip investicijos, susijusios su tam
tikru aplinkos ir tvarumo kriterijumi, tinkamumo ir tokia antrosios Salies nuomoné
néra jtraukta j Bazinj prospekta ir néra jo dalimi. Néra suteikiama jokiy garantijy dél
tokios nuomonés tinkamumo ar kad Obligacijos atitiks aplinkos ir tvarumo kriterijy.
Tokia nuomoné gali neatspindéti galimo riziky, susijusiy su struktdra, rinka,
papildomais rizikos faktoriais ir kitais faktoriais, kurie gali turéti jtakos Obligacijy
vertei, poveikio; tai néra rekomendacija pirkti, parduoti ar turéti vertybiniy popieriy.
Jei Emitentas nesilaiko tam tikry jsipareigojimy pranesti informacijg ir naudoti
pajamas remiantis tokia nuomone, tai néra laikoma jsipareigojimy pagal Obligacijy
bendrasias saglygas nevykdymu._ Nuomonés panaikinimas gali turéti jtakos
Obligacijy vertei ir (arba) gali turéti pasekmiy tam tikry investuotojy, turinéiy teise
investuoti j aplinkai draugiSka turtg, atzvilgiu.

Investuotojai_gali _netekti palikany ir pagrindinés investuotos sumos, Emitentui
tapus nemokiam arba jei yra inicijuojamos Emitento teisinés apsaugos procediros
arba neteisminés teisinés apsaugos procediros.

Obligacijos laikomos neapdraustais Emitento jsipareigojimais, be jokiy papildomy
garantijy ir apdraudimo priemoniy; Emitentui tapus nemokiu, Obligacijy savininkai
taps neapdraustais kreditoriais.

Atsizvelgiant | tai, kad, pagal Latvijos teise, tam tikras svarbiausias Emitento turtas
nuosavybés teise gali priklausyti tik Emitentui ar jam priklausanéioms dukterinéms
jmonéms, iSieSkojimas nebus nukreiptas j §j turtg.

Neigiamas Emitento finansinés biklés ar perspektyvy pokytis gali turéti esmine
neigiama jtaka Obligacijy likvidumui; jis gali sukelti esminj ju rinkos kainos
sumazéjima, vadinasi, paveikti greitg ir visiSkg atsiskaityma su visais Obligacijy
savininkais.

Emitento gebéjimas sékmingai refinansuoti savo skolas priklauso nuo skolos
kapitalo rinky saglygy ir jo tuometinés finansinés biklés. Net jei skolos kapitaly rinky
padétis pageréja, Emitentas tam tikru metu gali neturéti prieigos prie finansavimo
Saltiniy palankiomis saglygomis arba iSvis neturéti prieigos. Emitento nesugebéjimas
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refinansuoti savo finansiniy jsipareigojimy palankiomis sglygomis arba visiSkas
nesugebéjimas refinansuoti, gali turéti neigiamos jtakos Grupés veiklai, finansinei
padéciai, pelnui ir Obligacijy savininky galimybei atgauti uz Obligacijas sumokétus
pinigus.

Obligacijos sudaro naujg Emitento vertybiniy popieriy emisijg, todél aktyvi
Obligacijy rinka gali nesusidaryti ar neiSsilaikyti: Siai rinkai taip pat gali turéti jtakos
rinkos ir ekonominiy salygy, finansiniy sglygy ir Emitento perspektyvy pokydiai, o
tai savo ruoztu gali turéti atitinkamg poveikj Obligacijy likvidumui ir rinkos kainai.

Uz Obligacijas skaiciuojamos fiksuotos palikany normos palikanos, todél tai
sukelia rizikg, kad Siy vertybiniy popieriy kainai gali turéti jtakos rinkos palikany
normos pokyc€iai. Be to, dél infliacijos Obligacijy rinkos kaina gali sumazéti, nes
infliacija_mazina valiutos vieneto perkamajg galig ir, atitinkamai, gaunamas
palikanas.

Uz Obligacijas mokama eurais, todél uZsienio valiutos keitimo kursy ir palikany
normy_ svyravimai_gali turéti esminés neigiamos jtakos Obligacijy vertei, jei
investuotojo finansiné veikla iS esmés susijusi su kitos valiutos vienetu. Valstybé ir
pinigy institucijos gali jvesti (kaip jau buvo padaryta praeityje) keitimo kontrole, kuri
galéty turéti neigiamos jtakos atitinkamam valiutos keitimo kursui. Be to,
investuojant j Obligacijas kyla rizika, kad vélesni rinkos palikany normy pokyciai
gali turéti esminés neigiamos jtakos Obligacijy vertei.

Obligacijos bus susiejamos su Latvijos centrinio vertybiniy popieriy depozitoriumo
sgskaity sistema ir fizinés obligacijos nebus iSduodamos. Tarpuskaita ir
atsiskaitymai, susije su Obligacijomis, taip pat ir palikany mokeéjimas bei
pagrindinés sumos iSmokéjimas bus atliekami naudojantis Latvijos centrinio
vertybiniy popieriy depozitoriumo apskaitos sistema. Dél to investuotojai bus
priklausomi nuo Latvijos centrinio vertybiniy popieriy depozitoriumo sagskaity
sistemos funkcionalumo.

Jei nepriklausomos kredito reitingo agentiros nustato reitingus Obligacijoms, Sie
reitingai negali atspindéti visy su Obligacijomis susijusiy riziky galimo poveikio; be
to, reitingo agentira gali bet kada perzidréti ar panaikinti Siuos reitingus. Be to, bet
koks neigiamas Emitento taikomo kredito reitingo pasikeitimas gali turéti neigiamos
jtakos Obligacijy pardavimo ir pirkimo kainai.

Obligacijoms taikomi galiojantys Latvijos Respublikos jstatymai; jie gali keistis
Obligacijy galiojimo metu, todél negalima suteikti jokiy garantijy dél Sio galimo
jstatymy ar kity teisés akty pakeitimy poveikio. Dél Sios prieZasties tokie pakeitimai
gali turéti esminés neigiamos jtakos Emitentui ir Obligacijoms.

Tam tikry investuotojy investicinei veiklai taikomi teiséty investicijy jstatymai ir
teisés aktai, ar tam tikry institucijy perzidra ar nuostatai. Kiekvienas galimas
investuotojas turéty pasitarti su savo teisiniais pataréjais, norédamas nustatyti, ar ir
kokia apimtimi_Obligacijos yra teiséta investuotojo investicija, kokios galimybés
pasinaudoti Obligacijomis kaip uzZstatu, ir ar néra kity Obligacijy pirkimui ar jkeitimui
taikomy apribojimu.

Obligacijos neapima jokiy susitarimy dél Emitento veiklos ir neriboja jo galimybés
susijungti, parduoti turtg ar vykdyti kitus reikSminqgus sandorius, kurie gali turéti
reikSminga neigiamg poveikj Obligacijoms ir Obligacijy savininkams. Todél,
Emitentui sudarius tokj sandorj, galima esminé neigiama jtaka Obligacijy
savininkams. Be to, esant atitinkamiems jstatymo pakeitimams, dabartinis Emitento
akcininkas qgali perleisti visas turimas akcijas ar jy dal;.

Egzistuoja rizika, kad Obligacijy rinkos verté yra didesné negu pirmalaikio iSpirkimo
dél Kontrolés pasikeitimo suma ir kad Obligacijy savininkui gali bati nejmanoma
pakartotinai investuoti uz Obligacijas gauty pajamy taikant efektyvig pallikany
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normg (tokio dydZio koks buvo taikomas Obligacijoms) ir tai gali bati padaryta tik
taikant Zymiai maZesne palukany normg. Taip pat yra jmanoma ir tai, kad
Emitentas neturés pakankamai I&éSy privalomam iSankstiniam apmokéjimui, kuris
turi bati atliktas pareikalavus pirmalaikio Obligacijy iSpirkimo.

. Tik Emitento akcininkas gali balsuoti per Emitento akcininky susirinkimus.
Obligacijos tokiy balsavimo teisiy nesuteikia. Todél Obligacijy savininkai negali
daryti jokios jtakos Emitenty akcininky sprendimams dél, pavyzdziui, Emitento
kapitalo struktdros.

. Obligacijy savininky susirinkimo sprendimai (jskaitant Obligacijy Bendryjy sglygy
pakeitimus) yra privalomi visiems Obligacijy savininkams, taip pat ir Obligacijy
savininkams, kurie nedalyvavo ir/ar nebalsavo atitinkamame susirinkime, bei
Obligacijy savininkams, balsavusiems kitaip nei dauguma.

. Emitentui nedraudziama leisti papildomy skolos vertybiniy popieriy. Tai gali
atitinkamai padidinti reikalavimy, turin€iy teise kartu su Obligacijy savininkais gauti
pajamas, skai€iy, Emitentui tapus nemokiu. Be to, nuostatos, kuriomis suteikiama,
siekiama suteikti ar atsisakoma teisé sukurti uztikrinimo interesg treCiyjy asmeny
naudai (pavyzdziui, neigiamas jkeitimas) negalioja santykiuose su treCiaisiais
asmenimis; dél Sios priezasties toks uztikrinimo interesas treciojo asmens naudai,
net jei sukurtas pazeidziant Siame dokumente numatytus Emitento jsipareigojimus,
baty laikomas galiojanciu ir priverstinai vykdomu uztikrinimo interesu jkeisto turto
atzvilgiu.

e Agentas (Platintojas), vykdydamas jprastine verslo veikla, Grupéje teikia ir gali
teikti ateityje investicinés bankininkystés ir (arba) komercinés bankininkystés ar
kitokias paslaugas. Visy pirma, reikia pazyméti, kad Agentas (Platintojas) gali,
naudodamas tam tikrg kredito priemone, veikti kaip skolintojas, Grupés nariui esant
skolininku. Todél gali egzistuoti arba atsirasti interesy konflikty dél to, kad Agentas
(Platintojas) anksCiau buvo sudares arba ateityje sudarys sandorius su kitomis
Salimis, atliekan¢iomis kelias funkcijas arba sudaranciomis sandorius treciyjy Saliy,
kelian¢iy interesy konfliktg, vardu.

. Obligacijos néra ir nebus registruojamos pagal 1933 m. JAV Vertybiniy popieriy
jstatyma su pakeitimais ar bet kurios JAV valstijos vertybiniy popieriy jstatyma. Dél
tam tikry iSim&iy Obligacijy savininkas negali Obligacijy platinti ir parduoti
Jungtinése Valstijose. Emitentas néra jsipareigojes Obligacijas jregistruoti pagal
JAV Vertybiniy popieriy jstatymg ar bet kurios JAV valstijos vertybiniy popieriy
jstatymg ar ateityje Obligacijas platinti birzoje. Be to, Emitentas Obligacijy néra
uzregistraves pagal jokios kitos valstybés vertybiniy popieriy jstatymus, iSskyrus
Latvijos Respublikos jstatymus. Kiekvienas potencialus investuotojas turéty Zinoti
apie Obligacijoms taikomus perdavimo apribojimus. Obligacijy turétojas prisiima
atsakomybe, kad Obligacijos bdty platinamos ir parduodamos laikantis taikytiny
vertybiniy popieriy jstatymuy.

E skirsnis — Sitlymas

E.2b

E.3

Sialymo
priezastys ir
pajamy
naudojimas, kai
sitdlymas
skelbiamas ne
siekiant
uzdirbti pelno ir
(arba)
apsidraudziant
nuo tam tikros
rizikos

Sialymo salygy
apibadinimas

Gryngsias pajamas, gautas i§ Obligacijy emisijos, Emitentas panaudos bendriesiems
jmonés tikslams. Jei pajamoms, gautoms i§ tam tikros Obligacijy emisijos, yra numatyta
tam tikra panaudojimo paskirtis, tai bus nurodyta atitinkamose Galutinése sglygose.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
[Grynasias pajamas uz kiekvieng i$leistg Dalj Emitentas panaudos bendriesiems jmonés
tikslams] / [Grynasias pajamas uz kiekvieng iSleistg Dalj Emitentas panaudos [e]].

Programos organizatorius ir Agentas (Platintojas)
Programos organizatorius ir Agentas yra AS ,SEB banka“ (registracijos numeris:
40003151743, juridinis adresas: Meistaru 1, Valdlaudi, Kekava sav., Kekava r., LV-
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E.4

E.7

Bet kokiy
interesy,
jskaitant
konfliktinio
pobudzio, kurie
yra reikSmingi
atsizvelgiant j
emisija
(sitlyma),
apibudinimas
Numatomos
emitento arba
sitlytojo
iSlaidos, kurias
dengia
investuotojas
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1076, Latvija).

Emisijos data
Emisijos data bus nurodyta atitinkamos Dalies Galutinése salygose.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Emisijos data: [e]

Bendra pagrindiné suma

Bendra kiekvienos Dalies pagrindiné verté pirmiausiai nurodoma Galutinése sglygose.
Per atitinkamos Dalies Platinimo laikotarpj Emitentas gali didinti arba mazinti Galutinése
salygose nurodytg bendrg tos Dalies pagrindine verte.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Bendra nominalioji verté: [[e] EUR[kaip priedas prie [e]]]

Nominalioji Obligacijos verté
Nominalioji kiekvienos Obligacijos verté bus ne mazesné kaip 1,000 EUR.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Nominalioji Obligacijos verté: [e]

Minimali investavimo suma
Obligacijos bus platinamos uz minimalig investavimo suma,
Galutinése salygose.

kuri bus nurodyta

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Minimali investavimo suma: [e]

Platinimo laikotarpis
Kiekvienos Dalies platinimo laikotarpis bus nurodytas Galutinése salygose.

Atskiros emisijos santrauka:
Platinimo laikotarpis: [e]

Susitarimai
Kontrolés pasikeitimas, neigiamas jkeitimas, kryzminés netesybos ir kiti.

Depozitoriumas
Obligacijos bus uzregistruotos depozitoriume Latvian Central Depository (Latvijas
Centralais depozitarijs AS).

Taikytina teisé
Latvijos teise.

ISskyrus komisinius, kurie yra mokami Programos organizatoriui ir Agentui, kiek
Emitentui yra zinoma, néra su Siy Obligacijy sidlymu susijusiy asmenuy, turinciy emisijai /
sidlymui reikSmingy interesy, o taip pat néra konfliktinio pobadzio interesy.

Emitentas nepraSys investuotojy padengti jokiy i8laidy ar mokesc€iy, susijusiy su
Obligacijy iSleidimu. Taciau investuotojams gali tekti padengti iSlaidas, susijusias su
vertybiniy popieriy sgskaity atidarymu kredito institucijose ar finansy maklerio jmonése,
taip pat ir komisinius, kurie mokami kredito institucijoms ar finansy maklerio jmonéms uz
investuotojo vykdomas Obligacijy pirkimo ar pardavimo operacijas, Obligacijy saugojimg
ar bet kurias kitas operacijas, susijusias su Obligacijomis. Nei Emitentas, nei Programos
organizatorius ar Agentas tokiy islaidy Obligacijy savininkams nekompensuos.
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KOKKUVOTE

Kaesolev kokkuvdte koosneb avalikustamisnduetest, mida nimetatakse ,Elementideks®. Need Elemendid on
loetletud jagudes A-E (A.1-E.7). Kaesolev kokkuvote sisaldab koiki Elemente, mis on ndutavad sellist liiki
vaartpaberite ja emitendi kohta kaivas kokkuvdttes. Kuna osasid Elemente pole vaja kasitleda, voib
Elementide numeratsioonis olla vahelejatmisi. Isegi juhul, kui kokkuvote peab vaartpaberite ja emitendi liigi
tottu sisaldama teatud Elementi, ei tarvitse kdnealust Elementi kasitlevat teavet olla vbimalik anda. Sellisel
juhul on kokkuvottes esitatud Elemendi lUhikirjeldus koos markusega, et vastav Element ,ei ole kohaldatav”.

A jagu — Sissejuhatus ja hoiatused

A1

A2

Hoiatus

Luba kasutada
Pohiprospekti

Kéesolevat kokkuvotet tuleb kasitada kaesoleva Pdhiprospekti sissejuhatusena ning
Volakirjadesse investeerimise ule otsustamisel peab uurima Pd&hiprospekti tervikuna,
sealhulgas Pohiprospektile lisatud dokumente ning asjakohaste Volakirjade Loplikke
Tingimusi.

Kui Liikmesriigi kohtule esitatakse kaesolevas Pohiprospektis sisalduva teabega seonduv
noue, vdib hagejal Liikmesriigi siseriikliku diguse alusel olla kohustus kanda P&hiprospekti
télkimise kulud enne kohtumenetluse algatamist.

Tsiviilvastutust kohaldatakse Uksnes selliste isikute suhtes, kes on kaesoleva kokkuvétte
(kaasa arvatud selle tblked) esitanud, kuid Uksnes juhul, kui kokkuvdte on eksitav,
ebatapne vdi Pohiprospekti muude osadega vastuolus véi ei anna koos P&hiprospekti
teiste osadega lugedes podhiteavet, mis aitaks investoritel otsustada neisse
vaartpaberitesse investeerimise Ule.

Kogu Pdhiprospekti kehtivusaja jooksul on AS SEB banka’l (registrikood: 40003151743,
aadress Meistaru 1, Valdlauci, Kekava kiila, Kekava piirkond, LV-1076, Lati Vabariik) ja
tema all-agentidel (nagu nimetatud kohalduvates Loplikes Tingimustes), kes tegelevad
Programmi alusel emiteeritud voélakirjade jargneva edasimutgiga voi 16pliku markimisega,
lubatud Pdhiprospekti kasutada:

- L&t Vabariigis, Leedu Vabariigis ja Eesti Vabariigis, kus toimub Vélakirjade avalik
pakkumine kutselistele- ja jaeinvestoritele; ja

- Euroopa Majanduspiirkonna liikkmesriikides, kus toimub Voélakirjade kutselistele
investoritele suunatud pakkumine, mida korraldatakse direktiivi 2003/71/EU
artiklis 3 satestatud erandi alusel;

emiteeritud Vdlakirjade jargnevaks edasimuugiks vdi Volakirjade [6plikuks markimiseks
konkreetse pakkumisperioodi jooksul (nagu margitud Loplikes Tingimustes), mille jooksul
volakirjade edasimuik vdi [6plik markimine toimub. Emitent vastutab Volakirjade
edasimuugil voi Vélakirjade I6plikul markimisel Pohiprospektis antud informatsiooni eest.

Kénealuse emissiooni kokkuvéte:

Emissiooniagendi all-agendid: [e]

Pdhiprospekti vdib tle anda vdimalikele investoritele Uksnes koos koikide lisadega (kui
neid on), mis on avaldatud enne Pdhiprospekti Uleandmist. Pd&hiprospekt ja selle
vdimalikud lisad on elektrooniliselt kattesaadavad Emitendi kodulehekdiljel

www.latvenergo.lv.

Pdhiprospekti kasutamisel peab AS SEB banka ja kbik tema all-agendid jargima koiki
vastavas jurisdiktsioonis kohalduvaid kehtivaid seadusi, maarusi ning regulatsioone.

Pakkumise tegemisel annavad AS SEB banka ja/voi tema all-agendid investoritele

informatsiooni Voélakirjade tingimuste kohta, mis kehtivad pakkumise tegemise
hetkel.
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B jagu - Emitent

B.1

B.2

B.4b

B.5,
B14

B.9

B.10

Arinimi

Emitendi alaline
asukoht ja diguslik
vorm, emitendi
tegevuse suhtes
kohaldatav 6igus ja
tema asutamise riik

Emitenti ja tema
tegevusharu
mojutavate mis
tahes teadaolevate
suundumuste
kirjeldus

Juhul kui emitent
on osa grupist,
grupi kirjeldus ja
emitendi positsioon
grupis

Kui emitent on
s6ltuv teistest grupi
aritthingutest, siis
see peab olema
selgelt viljendatud

Kui on tehtud
kasumiprognoos
v6i -hinnang,
naidata dra vastav
tulemus

Eelnevate
perioodide
finantsteavet
kasitlevas
auditiaruandes
esinevate mis tahes
markuste olemuse
kirjeldus

Tadlge inglise keelest

Emitendi arinimi on aktsiaselts (akciju sabiedriba) Latvenergo.

Emitent on aktsiaselts (akciju sabiedriba), mis on asutatud 8. oktoobril 1991
vastavalt Lati Vabariigi digusaktidele. Emitent on registreeritud Lati Vabariigi
ariregistris registreerimisnumbri 40003032949 all ning selle registreeritud aadress
on Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riia, LV-1230, Lati (telefon: +371 67 728 222).

Emitent tegutseb kooskdlas Lati Vabariigi digusaktidega. Pohilised Emitendi
tegevuse suhtes kohaldatavad Lati Vabariigi digusaktid:

- ariseadus (Komerclikums);

- avalik-diguslike isikute kapitaliaktsiate ja kapitaliihingute haldamise seadus
(Publiskas personas kapitala daju un kapitalsabiedribu parvaldibas likums);

- energiaseadus (Energétikas likums); ja

- elektrituruseadus (Elektroenergijas tirgus likums).

Kaesoleva Pohiprospekti kuupaeva seisuga puudub teave mistahes teadaolevate
suundumuste, ebakindlate asjaolude, nduete, kohustuste voi sindmuste kohta, mis
madistlikult eeldades vbivad omada olulist mdju Emitendi voi Grupi véljavaadetele ja
tegevusharudele, milles Emitent voi Grupp 2015. majandusaastal tegutsevad.

Emitent on Grupi emaettevotja. Pdhiprospekti kuupadeva seisuga hdlmab Grupp
Emitenti ja tema seitset tltarettevétjat:

- viis Latis asutatud arilihingut: Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS (100 protsenti),
Sadales tikls AS (100 protsenti), Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS (100
protsenti), Elektrum Latvija SIA (100 protsendiline osalus Elektrum Eesti
OU-) ja Liepajas energija SIA (51 protsenti);

- Elektrum Lietuva UAB (100 protsenti), mis on asutatud Leedus; ja
- Elektrum Eesti OU (100 protsenti), mis on asutatud Eestis.

Emitent on osanik Uhes sidusthingus, milleks on Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds AS
(Emitendile kuulub 46,3 protsenti ning kogu Grupile kuulub 48,15 protsenti).

Lisaks omab Emitent 0,005-protsendilist osalust Lati ariiihingus AS Rigas Siltums.

Ei ole kohaldatav. Emitent ei ole kaesolevas andnud

kasumiprognoosi vdi -hinnangut.

Pdhiprospektis

Ei ole kohaldatav. Grupi auditeeritud konsolideeritud aastaaruanded, mis kajastavad
31. detsembril 2013 ja 2014 I16ppenud majandusaastaid, ei sisalda lihtegi markust.
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Emitenti puudutav
valitud
finantsteave, mis
on esitatud iga
majandusaasta
kohta
finantsteabega
hélmatud perioodil
ja mis tahes
jargneva
vaheperioodi kohta,
koos
vordlusandmetega
sama ajavahemiku
kohta eelneval
majandusaastal;
vordleva
bilansiteabe néue
on rahuldatud
aastalopu
bilansiteabe
esitamisega

Avaldus selle
kohta, et emitendi
véljavaadetes ei ole
olnud mingeid
olulisi kahjulikke
muudatusi alates
tema viimaste
avaldatud
auditeeritud
raamatupidamisaru
annete kuupaevast,
vOoi mis tahes
toimunud olulise
kahjuliku
muudatuse
kirjeldus

Finants- voi
kauplemispositsioo
nis parast
finantsteabega
hélmatud perioodi
16ppu aset leidnud
markimisvaarsete
muutuste kirjeldus

Mis tahes hiljutised
emitenti
puudutavad
siindmused, mis on
olulised emitendi
maksevéimelisuse
hindamiseks

Emitendi
pohitegevuste
lihikirjeldus

Tadlge inglise keelest

Jargnevalt on oluliste muudatusteta valja toodud Grupi konsolideeritud
finantsaruannetest parinevad konsolideeritud finantstulemused ja peamised
tegevusnaitajad kahe majandusaasta kohta, mis I6ppesid 31. detsembril 2013 ja
2014 ning kahe vaheperioodi koha, mis I16ppesid vastavalt 31. martsil 2014 ja 2015.

Majandusaasa I6ppes Vaheperiood I6ppes
31. detsembril 31. martsil
2013 2014 2014 2015
(Auditeeritud) (Auditeerimata)
Grupi olulised finantsnaitajad
Kaive € miljon 1,100 1,011 324 260
EBITDA € miljon 249 237 83 95
Kasum € miljon 46 30 31 39
Koguvara € miljon 3,575 3,487 3,598 3,527
Kogu omakapital € miljon 2,022 2,021 2,050 2,059
Puhasvbdlg € miljon 689 706 680 689
Investeeringud € miljon 225 178 27 25
Pdhikapitali suhtarv protsenti 57 58 57 58
EBITDA marginaal protsenti 23 23 24 26
Puhasvéla/ EBITDA suhe 2,8 3,0 2,5 2,8
Grupi olulisemad tegevusnditajad
Elektri jaemuik GWh 7,954 8,688 2,488 2,132
Toodetud elekter GWh 4,854 3,625 1,192 1,027
Soojusenergia milk GWh 2,517 2,442 1,077 990
Jaotatud elekter GWh 6,447 6,421 1,724 1,795

Alates Grupi auditeeritud konsolideeritud 2014. majandusaasta aruannete
kuupdevast pole toimunud olulisi kahjulikke muutusi Emitendi v&i Grupi
véljavaadetes.

Alates 31. martsist 2015 ei ole Emitendi ega Grupi finants- ja kauplemispositsioonis
toimunud olulisi kahjulikke muutusi.

Ei ole kohaldatav. Ei ole toimunud hiljutisi olulisi sindmusi, mis vdiksid olla
asjakohased hindamaks Emitendi vdi Grupi maksejéulisust.

Grupi tegevused on jagatud kolme tegutsemissegmenti — tootmine ja tarnimine,
jaotamine ning pdhivérguga seotud varade haldamine.

Tootmise ja tarnimise segment hdlmab elektri- ja soojusenergia tootmist, mida
teostavad kaks Grupi arilhingut: Emitent ja Liepajas energija SIA, ning
elektrienergia hulgi- ja jaemuiki, mida teostatakse kdigis kolmes Balti riigis Emitendi
ja tema titarettevdtjate Elektrum Eesti OU ja Elektrum Lietuva UAB poolt. Avaliku
kauplemisega tegeleb alates 1. aprillist 2014 Emitendi tltarlhing Energijas
publiskais tirgotajs AS.

Jaotamise segment pakub elektrienergia jaotusteenuseid Lati territooriumil ning neid
teenuseid pakub Sadales tikls AS, Lati suurim jaotussiisteemi operaator.

Pbéhivérgu varade segmendi haldamisega tegeleb Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS. Lati
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Tadlge inglise keelest

kohaldab direktiivis 2009/72/EL satestatud teist elektrijaotusvérgu omandisuhete
eraldamise mudelit, mille kohaselt pdhivdrgu varad jadvad vertikaalselt integreeritud
ettevdtjale, kuid pohivorguettevotja tegevust viiakse labi séltumatult. Varad on
Gdritud Lati pohivorguettevotjale Augstsprieguma tikls AS-le.

Emitent on aktsiaselts (akciju sabiedriba), mis on asutatud vastavalt Lati Vabariigi
oigusaktidele. Lati Vabariik on Emitendi ainuaktsionar. Emitendi aktsiaid hoiab Lati
Vabariigi eest ja nimel Lati Vabariigi Majandusministeerium.

Moody’s Investors Service hindas Emitenti krediidireitinguga Baa2 koos stabiilse
véaljavaatega. Krediidireitingut ja véljavaadet tosteti 16. veebruaril 2015.

Programmi alusel emiteeritud Volakirjade Seeriad vdivad olla reitinguga voi
reitinguta. Kui Vélakirjadele antakse reiting, siis vastav reiting ei pruugi Uhtida
Emitendile antud reitinguga. Krediidireiting ei ole soovitus vaartpabereid osta, miua
vOi hoida ja selle andnud reitinguagentuur vdib vastava reitingu mistahes hetkel
peatada, seda alandada vdi selle tagasi vétta.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Emiteeritavatel Vdlakirjadel [puudub/on/eeldatavalt antakse] [e]] poolt reiting.

Tagamata volakirjad, mille nimivaartuste kogusumma on kuni EUR 100,000,000.
Vélakirjad on dematerialiseeritud esitajavdlainstrumendid.

Volakirjad emiteeritakse Seeriatena. Iga Seeria voib koosneda Uhest vdi mitmest
TranSeest. Iga Seeria koikidele vdlakirjadele kohaldatakse tapselt (hesuguseid
tingimusi. Erinevate TranSeede korral véivad Emissiooni Kuupaevad ja Emissiooni
Hinnad erineda.

Loplikes Tingimustes antakse iga Seeria ja TranSee eristamiseks neist igauhele
eraldi seerianumber.

Konealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Seeria number: [o]

TranSee number: [o]

Enne vastava Seeria esimese TranSee pakkumisega alustamist maaratakse igale
Seeriale ISIN number. Kui emiteeritakse uus Tran3ee, mis kavandatavalt moodustab
hiljem juba varasemalt emiteeritud TranSeega uUhe Seeria, maaratakse selle TranSee
Vélakirjadele ajutine ISIN kood, mis erineb vastava Seeria koodist kuni TranSeed
konsolideeritakse ja need moodustavad Uhtse Seeria.

Kénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:

ISIN kood: [[e]l/Ajutine ISIN kood: [e]. Parast reguleeritud turul Vélakirjadega
kauplemise lubamist Vdlakirjad konsolideeritakse ja nhad moodustavad Uhe seeria
koos [e]-ga ja neil on Uhine ISIN kood [e]]

EUR.

Vélakirjad on vabalt voorandatavad vaartpaberid. Vaatamata eeltoodule ei saa
Vélakirju pakkuda, muua, edasi mlda, Ule kanda vdi Ule anda sellistes riikides ja
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Tadlge inglise keelest

jurisdiktsioonides v6i muudes taolistes oludes, kus see oleks ebaseaduslik vdi kus
nbutakse muid meetmeid kui neid, mis on ndutavad Lati Sigusaktidega, sealhulgas
Ameerika Uhendriikides, Austraalias, Kanadas, Hongkongis ja Jaapanis.

Jéarjekoht

Vélakirjad on Emitendi otsesed, tagamata ja garanteerimata kohustused, olles
omavahel ning kdigi Emitendi tagamata, garanteerimata ja allutamata kohustustega
samavaarsed ilma mistahes eelistuseta, v.a. need kohustused, mida vdidakse
eelistada kooskdlas seaduse kohustuslike satetega.

Emiteerimishind
Volakirjad emiteeritakse kas nende nimivaartuses, alla nimivaartuse voi Ule
nimivaartuse.

Intressimaar

Volakirjade intressimaaraks on fikseeritud Aastane Intressimaar. Volakirjade intressi
makstakse iga-aastaselt Loplikes Tingimustes maaratud kuupdevadel. Intressi
arvutatakse Ilunastamata Volakirjadelt intressiperioodi pdhiselt intressiperioodi
esimesest pdevast (kaasa arvatud) kuni intressiperioodi viimase paevani (valja
arvatud). Esimene intressiperiood algab Emiteerimispdeval ning I6peb esimesel
Intressi Makse Kuupaeval. Iga jargmine intressiperiood algab eelmisel Intressi
Makse Kuupaeval ning [6peb jargmisel Intressi Makse Kuupaeval. Viimane
intressiperiood I16peb Tagasimaksekuupaeval.

Vélakirjade intressi arvestatakse konkreetse intressiperioodi médédunud paevade ja
365 (vdi liigaasta puhul 366) paeva jagatisena, st lahtutakse nn Act/Act paevade
lugemise reeglist (ICMA).

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Intressi Makse Kuupaev: [e] iga aasta

Marge Tulukuse kohta

Pakutavate Volakirjade oodatav Lopptulukuse Vahemik maaratakse kindlaks
Loplikes Tingimustes. Vaatamata sellele, iga vastava Volakirjade Markimisperioodi
jooksul on Emitendil digus uuendada prognoositavat Lopptulukuse Vahemikku.

Lopptulukuse, Intressimaara ja Emiteerimishinna maaramine

Lopptulukus maaratakse kindlaks investorite Ostuorderite alusel parast
Markimisperioodi. Lépptulukus on sama kdikidele investoritele, kes omandavad
pakkumise ajal vastava Tran8ee. Lopptulukus satestatakse Ldplikes Tingimustes,
mis avaldatakse parast Vélakirjade jaotamist investoritele.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvoéte:
Lépptulukus: [e]

Aastane Intressimaar (perioodiliselt makstav intress) saadakse Lopptulukuse
allapoole Umardamisega I&ahima kimnendikuni (kusjuures Ldpptulukus maaratakse
protsentides). Aastane Intressimaar satestatakse Loplikes Tingimustes, mis
avaldatakse parast Volakirjade jaotamist investoritele.

Konealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Aastane Intressimaar: o]

Volakirjade Emiteerimishind maaratakse Emitendi poolt vastava TranSee Ldplikest
Tingimustest tuleneva valemi alusel ning Umardatakse Idhima tuhandikuni
aritmeetiliste Umardamisreeglite alusel. Vélakirjade Emiteerimishind satestatakse
Loplikes Tingimustes, mis avaldatakse parast Vélakirjade jaotamist investoritele.

Kénealuse emissiooni kokkuvéte:
Emiteerimishinna maaramise valem: [e]
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Tadlge inglise keelest

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Emiteerimishind: [e]

Loplikud  Tingimused, mis sisaldavad teavet Aastase Intressimaara,
Emiteerimishinna, vastava TranS8ee pdhiosa kogusumma ning emiteeritavate
Vélakirjade kogusumma kohta, avaldatakse Emitendi kodulehel www.latvenergo.lv,
samuti esitatakse see Finants- ja Kapitaliturgude Komisjonile (Financial and Capital
Market Commission) parast Volakirjade investorite vahel jaotamist.

Tagasimaksetahtajad

Igal Vélakirjade Seerial vbib tagasimaksetahtaeg olla 1 (lhe) ja 15 (viieteistkimne)
aasta vahel v6i muu Emitendi poolt maaratud tagasimaksetadhtaeg, mis igal juhul ei
ole lihem kui 12 (kaksteist) kuud.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Tagasimaksetahtpaev: [e]

Lunastamine

Vélakirjad lunastatakse taielikult nende nimivaartuses Tagasimaksetahtpaeval.
Emitendil ei ole 6igust Volakirju lunastada enne Tagasimaksetahtpaeva, valja
arvatud siis, kui Emitent on Vélakirjad lunastanud Kontrolli Muutuse vdi Kohustuse
Rikkumise korral vdi kui Vélakirjaomanike Koosolek on Emitendi ettepanekul
otsustanud Vélakirjad lunastada enne Tagasimaksetahtpaeva.

Volavaartpaberi omanike esindaja

Volakirjaomanike 0igust asutada ja/voi volitada mdnda organisatsiooni/isikut
esindama kdigi vdi osade Volakirjaomanike huve ei ole kaalutud, kuid samas ei ole
seda ka piiratud. Vdlakirjaomanikud peavad kandma kdik nimetatud esindaja(te)ga
seotud kulud ja tasud.

Ei ole kohaldatav. Vélakirjade intressimaksetel ei ole tuletiskomponenti.

Emitent esitab avalduse iga TranSee noteerimiseks NASDAQ OMX Riia
pdhinimekirjas. Avaldus peab vastama AS NASDAQ OMX Riia poolt kehtestatud
nduetele ja esitatakse NASDAQ OMX Riiale mitte hiliem kui 3 (kolme) kuu jooksul
parast vastava TranSee Emiteerimiskuupaeva.

Makromajanduslike tingimustega seotud riskid

e Grupi_naaberriikide energiaturgudele laienemise ja rahvusvahelistesse
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Tadlge inglise keelest

ariprotsessidesse _integreerumise  t6ttu  omavad  regionaalsed  ja
rahvusvahelised makromajanduslikud arengud Uha kasvavat mdju Grupi ari-
ja finantstulemustele.

Majanduse ootamatu langus, oodatust aeglasem majanduskasv voi poliitiline
ebastabiilsus (nt Kreeka voimaliku maksejduetuse voi Venemaa-Ukraina
kriisi_eskaleerumise tottu) voib modjutada Grupi kliente ning voib seetdttu
avaldada  Grupi  kasvule ja  tegevuse tulemustele  vahenenud
energiatarbimise kaudu negatiivset moju.

Aritegevusega seotud riskid

Lati Vabariik on Emitendi ainuaktsionar. Teatud olulised aktsionari otsused,
mis muudavad Grupi strateegiat, voi dividendipoliitikat, kapitalistruktuuri ja
muid olulisi_kisimusi puudutavad otsused vodivad omada Grupile olulist
negatiivset moju. Noukogu taastamine voib muuta Grupi strateegiat ning
muid Grupi tegevuse jaoks olulisi valdkondi. Vottes arvesse, et Emitendi
juhatuse liikmete ametiaeg 16peb 15. novembril 2015, siis mdne voi kdiqi

praeguste juhatuse liikmete vdimalik asendamine vdib negatiivselt mojutada
Emitendi seni valitud strateegqilist suunda, arenquplaane, eesmarke ja
poliitikat, millel voib olla Grupi jaoks negatiivne tdhendus.

Grupi reguleeritud turgudel saadud tulud sodltuvad olulisel maaral turgude
korraldaja poolt kinnitatud tariifidest, samuti tariifide maaramise
metodoloogiat reguleerivatest digusaktidest. Eelnimetatud kinnitatud tariifid
ei pruugi katta koiki kulusid. Samuti vdivad omada negatiivset moju
riigiasutuste  poolt regulatiivse iseloomuga otsuste vastuvdtmisega
viivitamine vbi muudatused asjakohastes kohalikes v6i Euroopa Liidu
Oigusaktides. Lisaks on risk, et riigieelarvelise toetuse, mille eesmargiks on
hiivitada hankekohustusega avalike teenuste pakkumise kohustuse taitmise
kulud, heakskiitmine Euroopa Komisjoni poolt hilineb vbi seda ei voeta
Ulelldse vastu. Seega on piiratud juba kantud kohustuslike avalike teenuste
pakkumisega seonduvate kulude tagasindudmine. See vdib negatiivselt
mojutada Grupi finantspositsiooni.

Baltikumi elektrituru avanemine peaks I8hitulevikus I6pule joéudma.
Elektrituru avanemine loob konkurentsitihedama keskkonna koos
suurenenud arvu turuosalistega ja vdimaldab turule siseneda uutel
teenuseosutajatel, mis v6ib omakorda vadhendada Grupi turuosa, samuti
mojutada hinnastamist ja Grupi ari- ja finantspositsiooni. Samuti on risk, et
ebadige turule sisenemise ja laienemise strateegia téttu voib Grupil tekkida
pikaajaline kahju.

Grupi turuosa Balti riikides peegeldab Grupi praegust positsiooni, kuid
eksisteerib risk, et Grupi turuosa vaheneb vdi et Grupp ei suuda saavutada
eeldatavat turuosa kasvu, mis mojutab negatiivselt Grupi &ri- _ja
finantspositsiooni. Grupi lahkumine mdnelt praequselt turult majanduslikel,
strateeqilistel v6i muudel pdhjustel vdib mdjutada Grupi tegevust ja
finantspositsiooni.

Grupi elektrienergia tootmisportfell ei pruugi taielikult taita elektrienergia
tarneportfelli vajadusi, mistdttu umbes pool Grupi poolt jaetarbijale aastas
tarnitud elektrienergiast on méjutatav elektrienergia hulgimutgituru hinna
kéikumise riskidest. Elektrienergia hulgimuaugituru hinna kéikumise riskide
maandamiseks sisaldab Grupi tarneportfell osaliselt tuletisinstrumente. Balti
regiooni _elektrienergia tuletisinstrumentide turu vahese likviidsuse téttu véib
riskide maandamise instrumentide saadavus olla piiratud ning riskide
maandamise kulud on kdrged. Lisaks ei tarvitse riskide maandamine tagada
vajalikku efektiivsust, mis voib halvendada Grupi finantspositsiooni.
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Tadlge inglise keelest

e Grupi vbimekus saavutada luhiajalisi ja pikaajalisi strateegilisi eesmarke on
osaliselt soltuv diguskeskkonnast. Teemad, millel v&ib olla oluline mdju Grupi
ari- ja finantspositsioonile, on muuhulgas: elektrienergia tarne haavatavatele
tarbijatele (vaesed vOi madala sissetulekuga inimesed, paljulapselised
pered); keskkonnasodbralike tootmisallikate soodustariifisisteem; riigi voi
Euroopa Liidu Oigusaktid, mis requleerivad tehnilisi eeskirju, energiaturu
terviklikkust ja labipaistvust, konkurentsi, turvalisust ja keskkonnakaitse
kisimusi; teatud jarelevalvet teostavate ametite (nagu naiteks riikide
konkurentsiametite, maksuametite jne) otsused.

e Grupi peamist aritegevust mojutavad osaliselt iimastikuolud. Seetdttu vdib
Grupi__uldine finantspositsioon olla _mo&jutatav__hooajalisusest, ilmastiku
muutustest, samuti pikaajalistest klimamuutustest.

o Emitent osaleb Uhe vdimaliku investorina labiraakimisprotsessis seoses
tuumaenergiajaama projektiga. Lisaks tuumaenergiajaama projektile vdib
Grupp otsustada, et osaleb ka teistes suurtes investeerimisprojektides, mis
vobivad suurendada Grupi tegevus — ja/vdi finantsriske, vdhendada Grupi
vaartust vdi halvendada Grupi mainet ja seelabi negatiivselt mdjutada Grupi
ari- ja finantspositsiooni.

o Arvestades, et Latis asuvad elektrienergia pdhivorguga seotud varad
kuuluvad Grupile, kuid on AS-i Augstsprieguma tikls kui kolmanda isiku
opereerida, esineb risk, et pdhivérguettevdtia arvestab olemasolevatesse
varadesse pikaajaliselt vahem investeeringuid kui on nende varade vaartuse
sdilitamiseks vajalik, vdhendades sellega varade vaartust ning tekitades
Grupile kahju. Lisaks, kui EL-i poolt pakutav rahaline toetus p&hivérguga
seotud varade finantseerimiseks vaheneb alla eeldatava taseme, siis peab
Grupp suurendama enda poolt finantseeritavat osa olemasolevates
pohivorguga seotud varade ehitamisprojektides, mis vastavalt vahendaks
vabu rahalisi vahendeid teistes projektides vdi suurendaks volakoormust.

e Soojusenergia tootmiseks biomassi kasutava ettevotja soojusenergia turule
sisenemine vdib kaasa tuua olukorra, kus Emitendi koostootmisjaama
téémaht, seelabi ka soojusenergia tarne, vaheneb oluliselt. Vottes arvesse,
et gaasikitusel to6tavate jdujaamade muutuvkulud on tunduvalt suuremad,
vbib sellise ettevdtja turule sisenemine mdjutada negatiivselt kogu Grupi
tegevust ja ari.

e Lisaks eelnimetatud riskidele voib Grupi ari- ning finantspositsiooni
negatiivselt méjutada vastaspoolerisk, varade kahjustumise risk, vaidluste
risk (sh kohtuvaidlused), ressursside risk, investeerimisprojektide teostamise
risk, jaotussiisteemidesse investeerimise risk, riikliku vdlakriisi risk,
keskkonnakahiju, tervise ja ohutuse risk ja maksurisk.

Finantsriskid

e Laenulepingutest ja/vdi lunastamata vdlakirjade dokumentatsioonist
tulenevate finantskokkulepete v&i muude kohustuste ja kinnituste
rikkumisega vOib kaasneda lepingu rikkumise olukord ning laenude
ennetahtaegse tagasimaksmise ja/vdi varasemalt emiteeritud vdlakirjade
lunastamise  kohustus. Tulenevalt laenulepingutes ja vdlakirjade
dokumentatsioonis ettenahtud ristrikkumise satetest vdib juhtuda, et Emitent
on sunnitud refinantseerima olulise o0sa oma olemasolevatest
vblakohustustest.

e Emitendi krediidireitingu alandamine vdib suurendada Emitendi rahastamise
kulusid ja/vdi vahendada Emitendi voimalusi kaasata tadiendavaid rahalisi
vahendeid ning voib kohustada Emitenti andma tdiendavaid tagatisi
lepingute osas, mis voib suurendada tehingukulusid.
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Tadlge inglise keelest

e Lisaks eeltoodud riskidele véib Grupi ari- ja finantspositsiooni negatiivselt
mdojutada intressimé&ara- ja likviidsusrisk.

Volakirjad ei pruugi olla kéikidele investoritele sobivaks investeeringuks. Seega,
iga potentsiaalne Volakirjadesse investeerija peab hindama vastava
investeeringu sobilikkust investorist endast tulenevate asjaolude valguses,
sealhulgas mdju vastavate Volakirjade vaartusele ja moju, mida antud
investeering omaks vastava investeerija investeerimisportfellile tervikuna.

Volakirjad, juhul kui emiteeritud finantseerimaks projekte Emitendi Roheliste
Vélakirjade Raamistiku alusel, ei pruugi olla sobilikuks investeeringuks kdikidele
investoritele, kes soovivad investeerida keskkonnasdbralikesse varadesse.
Emitendi Roheliste Volakirjade Raamistiku alusel sobilike projektide
finantseerimiseks emiteeritavate Volakirjadega seonduvalt andis Norra
sOltumatu multidistiplinaarine klimauuringute asutus - Oslo (the Center for
International Climate and Environmental Research — Oslo) valise hinnangu, kas
Volakirjad sobivad investeeringuks teatud keskkonna- ja saastlikkuse
kriteeriumite alusel. See hinnang ei ole kdesoleva Pdhiprospekti osa. Mingeid
kinnitusi ei anta selle arvamuse sobilikkuse vdi Vdlakirjade vastavuse kohta
keskkonna- ja saastlikkuse kriteeriumitele. See arvamus ei pruugi kajastada
koikide struktuuri- ja tururiskide, lisariskifaktorite ja muude Volakirjade vaartust
mojutavate faktorite kogumdju. See arvamus ei ole soovitus vaartpaberite
ostmiseks, mulmiseks vdi hoidmiseks. Kui Emitent ei taida teatud
raporteerimiskohustust véi saadud vahendite kasutamise kohustust seoses
selle arvamusega, ei ole see Vdlakirjade Uldtingimuste kohaselt kohustuse
taitmatajatmine. Arvamuse tagasivétmine v6ib mdjutada Vdlakirjade vaartust
ja/lvdi tuua kaasa teatud tagajérgi investoritele, kelle portfoolio mandaat
kohustab neid keskkonnasdbralikesse varadesse investeerima.

Investorid vodivad jaada ilma intressist ja investeeritud pohiosast juhul, Kkui
Emitent  muutub  maksejouetuks  voi  Emitendi suhtes  alustatakse
saneerimismenetlust.

Vélakirjad on Emitendi tagamata kohustused ilma tadiendava garantiita ning
tagatiseta; Emitendi maksejuetuse korral on Vélakirjiaomanikud tagamata

vblausaldajad.

\Vottes arvesse, et Lati seaduse kohaselt voivad Emitendi teatud pohilised varad
kuuluda vaid Emitendile v6i Emitendi taieliku kontrolli all olevale titarettevatjale,
siis ei ole vastavate varade suhtes ndudeid voimalik taita.

Iga Emitendi finantsseisu vOi véljavaate suhtes esinev negatiivne muutus voib
omada olulist negatiivset mdju Vdlakirjade likviidsusele ning oluliselt alandada
nende turuhinda, mistottu voib see mdjutada kohest ning taielikku maksmist
VVolakirjaomanikele.

Emitendi suutlikkus edukalt oma vdlgu refinantseerida séltub laenukapitalituru
tingimustest ja Emitendi enda finantsolukorrast vastaval ajal. Isegi kui
laenukapitaliturg  paraneb, ei pruugi Emitendil olla juurdepaasu
rahastamisallikatele sobivatel tingimustel konkreetsel ajal véi Ulelldse. Emitendi
suutmatus oma vdlakohustusi sobivatel tingimustel vbi Ulelldse refinantseerida
vbib mdjutada negatiivselt Grupi tegevust, majanduslikku seisu, tulusid ja
Volakirjaomanike Vélakirjadest tulenevaid ndudeid.

Volakirjad on Emitendi-poolne uus vaartpaberite emissioon, mistottu véib
juhtuda, et Vélakirjade suhtes ei pruugi tekkida voi sailida aktiivne turg, samuti
voivad seda moéjutada turumuutused ning muutused Emitendi majandus- ja
finantsseisus ja Emitendi valjavaadetes, mis omakorda vdivad mdjutada
Volakirjade likviidsust ja turuhinda.
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Tadlge inglise keelest

Volakirjade intressimaaraks on fikseeritud intressimaar, mis téhendab, et
Volakirjade hind vdib omakorda olla mojutatav turul kehtiva intressimaara
muutumisest. Volakirjade turuhind voib langeda ka inflatsiooni téttu, kuna see
alandab valuuta ostujdudu ning vastavalt ka Volakirjadest saadavat intressi.

Volakirjadelt tehtavad maksed tehakse eurodes, mistéttu valuutakursside ning
intressimaarade kdikumised voivad Volakirjade vaartust moéjutada negatiivselt
juhul, kui investori finantstegevus on peamiselt nomineeritud teises valuutas.
Riiklikud ja rahandusasutused voivad kohaldada (nagu seda on tehtud
minevikus) valuutade vahetuse lle kontrolli, mis voib negatiivselt mdjutada
kohaldatavat valuutakurssi. Lisaks hdélmavad investeeringud Voélakirjadesse
riski, et edaspidised muutused turu intressimaarades mojutavad negatiivselt
Volakirjade vaartust.

Volakirjad on seotud Lati Keskdepositooriumi kontopdhise slsteemiga ning
fuusilisi volakirju valja ei anta. Vdlakirjadega seonduvad maksed ja arveldused,
intressimaksed ja pdhisumma tagasimaksed toimuvad Lati Keskdepositooriumi
sUsteemis. Seega on investorid sdltuvad Lati Keskdepositooriumi kontopdhisest
susteemist.

Juhul kui séltumatud krediidireitinguagentuurid hindavad Vélakirju, siis vastavad
reitingud ei pruugi kajastada koiki voimalikke Volakirjadega seotud riskide
mojusid, lisaks vodivad reitinguagentuurid mistahes hetkel reitinguid muuta voi
tagasi votta. lga negatiivhe muutus kohaldatava krediidireitingu osas voib
negatiivselt méjutada Vélakirjade kauplemishinda.

Volakirjadele kohaldatakse Lati Vabariigis kehtivat digust, mis vdib muutuda
Vélakirjade eluea perioodil, seega ei ole vdimalik tagada, et kohaldatava
seaduse muudatused ei moéjuta Volakirjasid. Vastavad seadusemuudatused
voivad omada olulist ebasoodsat mdju nii Emitendile kui ka Volakirjadele.

Teatud investorite investeerimistegevus on allutatud lubatavaid investeeringuid
puudutavatele seadustele ja regulatsioonidele véi teatud asutuste jarelevalvele
vbi regulatsioonidele. |ga potentsiaalne investor peaks konsulteerima oma
Oigusndustajatega, et teha kindlaks, kas ja mis maaral Volakirjad on vastavale
investorile diguslikult lubatavad investeeringud, kas Voélakirjasid on vdimalik
kasutada tagatisena ning kas on muid Vdlakirjade ostmisele vOi pantimisele
kohalduvaid piiranguid.

Volakirjade tingimused ei sisalda kohustusi, mis reguleeriksid Emitendi tegevust
ja_piiraks selle 6igust Uhineda, vara muda vO&i muul viisil 1abi viia olulisi
tehinguid, millel véib olla oluline ebasoodne mdju Vodlakirjadele ja
Vélakiriaomanikele. Seega, kui Emitent s6lmib nimetatud tehingu, siis voib
sellega Vdlakirjaomanikele kaasneda oluline negatiivne moju. Taiendavalt,
kooskdlas asjakohaste seaduse muudatustega, voOib Emitendi aktsionar
osaliselt voi taielikult vdérandada oma osaluse Emitendis.

Eksisteerib risk, et Kontrolli Uleminekul véib Vélakirjade turuhind olla kdrgem
kui ennetadhtaegse tagasiostu summa ja Vdlakirjaomanikel ei pruugi olla
voimalik sellist tulu taasinvesteerida efektiivse intressiméaraga, mis on sama
kérge kui Volakirjadel ning see on véimalik ksnes markimisvaarselt madalama
maaraga. Lisaks ei pruugi Emitendil olla kohustusliku ennetdhtaegse makse ajal
piisavalt rahalisi vahendeid Volakirjade lunastamiseks.

Uksnes Emitendi aktsionaril on Emitendi Aktsionaride Koosolekul haéledigus.
Volakirjadest ei tulene nimetatud haaledigust. Seetbttu ei ole Vdlakirjaomanikel
vbimalik mdjutada mistahes Emitendi aktsionaride otsust, sh mistahes Emitendi
kapitalistruktuuri puudutavat otsust.
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E jagu - Pakkumine

E.2b

E.3

Pakkumise pohjused
ja volakirjade
emissioonist
saadavate vahendite
kasutamine juhul, kui
nendeks pole kasumi
teenimine ja/ voi
teatavate riskide
maandamine

Pakkumise tingimuste
kirjeldus

Tadlge inglise keelest

Vélakirjaomanike Koosolekute otsused (kaasaarvatud Vélakiriade Uldtingimuste
muutmised) on _ kdikidele  Vélakirjaomanikele  siduvad, sealhulgas
Vélakirjaomanikele, kes ei osalenud ega haaletanud vastaval koosolekul ning
Vélakirjaomanikele, kes haaletasid enamusseisukoha vastu.

Emitendi OGigust voétta taiendavaid vdlakohustusi ei ole piiratud. See vdib
omakorda suurendada nduete arvu, mida Emitendi maksejouetuse korral tuleb
rahuldada proportsionaalselt Volakirjaomanike nduetega Emitendi pankrotist
tehtavate valjamaksete arvelt. Tdiendavalt, mis tahes sate, mis annab voi mille
eesmargiks on anda voi mis loobub digusest seada tagatist kolmanda isiku
kasuks (nt pandikeeld) pole kolmanda isiku suhtes kohaldatav. Seega selline
kolmanda isiku kasuks seatud tagatis on kehtiv_ja tagatise eseme suhtes
taidetav_vaatamata sellele, et vastava tagatise seadmine on vastuolus
kaesolevast kokkuvottest tulenevate Emitendi kohustustega.

Emissiooniagent on osutanud, ja vbib osutada tulevikus, Grupile
investeerimispangandus- ja/vdi kommertspangandusteenuseid v6i muid
teenuseid igapaevase majandustegevuse raames. Eelkdige tuleb tahele panne,
et Emissiooniagent vdib olla laenuandja teatud laenusuhetes, milles Grupi liige
on laenusaajaks. Huvide konflikt voib seetbttu esineda voi tulevikus tdusetuda
tulenevalt sellest, et Emissiooniagent on osalenud vdi osaleb tulevikus
tehingutes teiste isikutega, omades erinevaid rolle vdéi tehes tehinguid
kolmandate isikutega, kellel on vastanduvad huvid.

Vélakirju ei ole registreeritud ja neid ei ole kavas registreerida Ameerika
Uhendriikide 1933. aasta vaartpaberiseaduse (sh selle muudatused) ega lihegi
USA osariigi vaartpaberiseaduse alusel. Vélakirju ei tohi Ameerika
Uhendriikides pakkuda ega miitia, vélja arvatud teatud erandjuhtudel. Emitent
ei ole Volakirju registreerinud ka mitte Uhegi teise riigi vaartpaberiseaduste
alusel, valja arvatud Lati Vabariigi seaduste alusel. lga potentsiaalne investor
peab olema teadlik Vdlakirjadele kohalduvatest véérandamispiirangutest.
Volakirjaomanikul on kohustus tagada, et Vélakirjiade pakkumine ja miumine
vastab kdikidele kohaldatavatele vaartpaberiseadustele.

Volakirjade emissioonist saadud netovahendeid kasutab Emitent Uldistel &rilistel
eesmarkidel. Kui mdnel konkreetsel Vélakirjade Seerial on konkreetne eesmark,
milleks saadud vahendeid kasutatakse, satestatakse see vastavates Loplikes
Tingimustes.

Kénealuse emissiooni kokkuvéte:

[lga TranSee emiteerimisest saadavaid vahendeid kasutab Emitent oma uldistel
arilistel eesmarkidel] / [Iga TranSee emiteerimisest saadavaid vahendeid kasutab
Emitent [e]-ks]

Programmi Korraldaja ja Emissiooniagent

Programmi Korraldaja ja Emissiooniagent on AS SEB banka (registrinumber
40003151743, juriidiline aadress: Meistaru 1, Valdlaudi, Kekava vald, Kekava, LV-
1076, Lati).

Emiteerimiskuupaev
Emiteerimiskuupaev maaratakse kindlaks vastava TranSee L&plike Tingimustega.

Konealuse emissiooni kokkuvéte:
Emiteerimiskuupaev: [e]

Pohiosa kogusumma

Iga TranSee pobhiosa kogusumma suurus maaratakse algselt kindlaks Loplikes
Tingimustes. Emitent vdib TranSee pobhiosa kogusummat suurendada voi
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E.4

E.7

Emissiooni/pakkumise
suhtes mis tahes
oluliste huvide
kirjeldus, sealhulgas
huvide konfliktid

Hinnangulised kulud,
mille hiivitamist
emitent voi pakkuja
néuab investorilt

Tadlge inglise keelest

vahendada vdrreldes algselt Loéplikes Tingimustes kindlaksmaaratuga selle
TranSee Markimisperioodi jooksul.

Konealuse emissiooni kokkuvoéte:
Pdhiosa kogusumma: [EUR [e] [lisaks [e]]]

Volakirjade nimivaartus
Iga Vdlakirja nimivaartus on vahemalt EUR 1,000.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Vélakirja nimivaartus: [e]

Minimaalne Investeerimissumma
Volakirju pakutakse markimiseks Minimaalse Investeerimissumma eest, mis
maaratletakse Loplikes Tingimustes.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvoéte:
Minimaalne Investeerimissumma: [e]

Markimisperiood
lga Vdlakirjade TranSee Markimisperiood maaratakse kindlaks Loplikes
Tingimustes.

Koénealuse emissiooni kokkuvote:
Markimisperiood: [e]

Kohustused
Kontrolli Muutus, Pandikeeld, Ristrikkumine ning muud.

Hoidmine
Vélakirjad registreeritakse Lati Keskdepositooriumis (Lati keeles: Latvijas
Centralais depozitarijs AS).

Kohaldatav 6igus
Lati digus.

Emitendile teadaolevalt ei ole peale Programmi Korraldajale ja Emissiooniagendile
makstavate tasude Uhelgi Voélakirjade pakkumisega seotud isikul huve, mis on
oluline emissiooni/pakkumise suhtes, ega huvide konflikti.

Emitent ei palu investoritel hiivitada mistahes Vdlakirjade emiteerimisega seotud
kulusid ega makse. Vaatamata sellele vbivad investorid olla kohustatud kandma
kulusid  seoses  vaartpaberikontode  avamisega krediidiasutustes  voi
investeerimisvahendusuhingutes, samuti maksma tasusid, mida nduavad
krediidiasutused vdi investeerimisvahendusiihingud seoses investorite poolsete
Volakirjade ostu- vbi mudgiorderite taitmisega, Volakirjade hoidmise vdi muude
Vblakirjadega seotud toimingutega. Emitent, Programmi Korraldaja ega
Emissiooniagent ei hivita Vélakirjaomanikele selliseid kulutusi.
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RISK FACTORS

Prospective investors are advised to carefully consider the risk factors and other information provided in this
Base Prospectus. Investing in the Notes involves certain risks including but not limited to the following risks
described herein.

The Issuer believes that if one or more of the risk factors described herein realises, it may have a negative
effect on the Issuer’s business operations, financial position and/or business results and, thereby, the
Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes, as well as the market price and value of the Notes. If
these risks were to lead to a decline in the market price of the Notes, prospective investors may lose all or
part of their investment.

The risks and uncertainties described hereafter are the risks which the Issuer has deemed material,
however, they are not the only factors affecting the Issuer’s activities, therefore the Issuer does not represent
that the statements below regarding the risks of acquiring and/or holding any Notes are exhaustive. Also
other factors and uncertainties than those mentioned herein, which are currently unknown or deemed
immaterial, may negatively affect the Issuer’s business operations, financial position and/or business results
and, thereby, the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes, as well as the market price and value
of the Notes.

The below description of the risk factors does not reflect the probability of the respective risk’s realisation or
their order of importance. Most of these risk factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and the
Issuer is not in a position to assess or express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

All investors should make their own evaluations of the risks associated with an investment in the Notes and
should consult with their own professional advisers if they consider it necessary.

Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditions
Exposures of business results to macroeconomic developments

The results of the Group operations are dependent on Latvia's macroeconomic situation. In particular, the
Group's operations are affected by such factors as the level of Latvia's GDP, the level of industrial
production, the rate of inflation, fuel prices, the unemployment rate, changes in consumer affluence levels,
and the fiscal policy of the Republic of Latvia.

The Group’s expansion into neighbouring energy markets and the Group's integration into international
business processes creates growing exposures of the Group’s business and financial results to regional and
international macroeconomic developments. The Group’s business is influenced by electricity price trends in
local and Nordic markets, commodities prices (including, but not limited to, natural gas, oil), consumer
behaviour and electricity demand in the Baltic countries, and other indices that may reflect local and global
macroeconomic trends and have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

The Group has a strong balance sheet and operates in a relatively non-cyclical or late-cyclical industry.
However, an unexpected downturn in the economy as well as a slower than expected economic growth or
political instability (e.g. due to potential Greece default or further Russian-Ukrainian crisis escalation) could
have an impact on the Group’s customers and may negatively affect the Group’s growth and results of
operations through reduced electricity consumption.

Risks Related to Business Operations

Corporate Governance risks

Shareholder

The sole shareholder of the Company is the Republic of Latvia and the rights and duties of the shareholder
are awarded to the Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia. Certain and substantial shareholder’s

decisions alternating the Group’s strategy or decisions in respect of dividend policy, capital structure and
other relevant decisions could have a material adverse effect on the Group.
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Supervisory Board

In October 2014, the Saeima (the Parliament of the Republic of Latvia) adopted the Law on the Management
of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital Companies, effective from 1 January 2015, replacing the
former Law on State and Municipality Capital Shares and Capital Companies. In addition to other
requirements, the new law stipulates reinstatement of the Supervisory Board as a supervisory body as of
2016 in a large state owned companies. The Company, Sadales tikls AS and Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS all
qualify in this category. The new governance body may have material influence on the Group’s strategy and
other key areas of the Group's operations.

Management Board

The strategic management of the Group is ensured by the Company’s Management Board, whose main
duties include defining the Group's strategic direction, its development plans, goals and policies. The term of
office for all current members of the Company’s Management Board expires on 15 November 2015.
Replacement of some or all of current members of the Company’s Management Board may negatively
influence the Company'’s currently selected strategic direction, development plans, goals and policies, thus
adversely affecting the Group.

Regulated market

Approximately two thirds of the Group revenues and assets are related to regulated business activities. The
Group’s revenues from regulated market activities are highly dependable on tariffs approved by the Public
Utilities Commission (the “PUC”) and/or regulated by legislative acts of the Republic of Latvia. Electricity
distribution and heat tariffs as well as mandatory procurement public service obligation fee (the “PSO Fee”)
are reviewed or approved by the PUC based on the Group’s proposals, developed in accordance with the
approved methodology. There is a risk that not all costs will be covered by such regulated tariffs. Besides,
there is a risk of material adverse effect on the Group due to delayed regulatory decisions by state
authorities in the markets where the Group operates or due to changes in local or EU legislative environment
governing relevant regulatory matters.

Mandatory procurement

Legislative acts of the Republic of Latvia currently allow the Company’s subsidiary Energijas publiskais
tirgotajs AS to act as an agent in the mandatory procurement administration process. The agent does not
take any substantial risks within the payment flow and thus it has no financial impact on results of the Group.
Amendments in the regulation of the mandatory procurement resulting in changes of the mandatory
procurement administration process or in incurred mandatory procurement costs not being recoverable to
their full amount may have material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position.

In order to limit the effects of an increase of the PSO Fee, the Group receives a state budget grant that
compensates for expenditures incurred in the performance of the public trader functions. In 2014, the Group
received a state budget grant in the amount of EUR 29 million, while a grant in the amount of EUR 28 million
is budgeted in the state budget for 2015 for this purpose. The support scheme currently is under review by
the European Commission and there is a risk that approval of the state budget grant aimed at limiting an
increase of the PSO fee may be delayed or not approved by the European Commission. This could result in
incurred mandatory procurement costs not being recoverable. This may have material adverse effect on the
Group's financial position.

Distribution assets

Subsequent to the approval of the current distribution system tariff in 2011, the Company invested its
revalued distribution system assets in Sadales tikls AS, thus increasing the regulatory asset base of
distribution assets. Current distribution service tariffs do not fully cover Sadales tikls AS required return on
revalued assets. There is a risk that the PUC would not approve the necessary tariff increase to cover all
costs, thus resulting in an impairment of value of the distribution assets. This may have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s business and financial position.
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Electricity market opening

The Group supplies electricity in all three Baltic countries. While the Latvian and Estonian electricity markets
are fully liberalized, the household segment of the Lithuanian electricity market is expected to be fully
deregulated only in the coming years. The electricity market liberalization creates a more competitive
environment with an increased number of market participants, which may reduce the Group's market share,
as well as affect the pricing and the Group’s business and financial position. There is also a risk of the Group
incurring long-term losses due to incorrect market entry and expansion strategy.

Foreign expansion

Simultaneously with the opening of electricity markets in neighbouring countries Estonia and Lithuania, the
Group commenced its operations in these new markets. In 2014, the Group obtained a 17 per cent market
share in Estonia and a 18 per cent market share in Lithuania.

Reflecting the fact that these markets were only recently de-regulated, there are risks and opportunities
inherent to the further developments of these markets such as an expected increase in the number of clients
switching between electricity suppliers, and possible changes in the legal environment which could influence
the Group’s operations.

The market share in the Baltic countries indicates the Group’s current standing, but there is a risk that the
market share may decrease or that the Group may be unable to attain the anticipated market share growth,
and thus causing adverse effects on the Group’s business and financial position. Furthermore, there is also a
risk of exiting any of current markets subject to various reasons, including economic and strategic. This may
affect the Group’s operations and financial position.

Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk is inherent to all business activities the Group is engaged in. Counterparty risk may result
in financial losses (including, but not limited to, revenues not being received from customers, funds deposited
at banks, money not being received under the Group’s hedging agreements, partners in long term projects
failing to perform their obligations etc.) to the Group. Default of a Group counterparty may affect the
completion of the Group’s commenced investment projects, the quality of services provided by the Group or
harm the Group’s reputation. Although, the Group monitors and manages its counterparty risk, the
occurrence of any of the mentioned counterparty risks may have an adverse impact on the Group’s business
and financial position.

Electricity market price risk

The Group's electricity generation portfolio does not fully cover the needs of the electricity supply portfolio,
thus throughout the year approximately half of the Group’s annual electricity supply to the retail sector is
subject to price volatility risk in the electricity wholesale market. The Group uses financial derivative contracts
to mitigate electricity price risk for part of its supply portfolio. If effective, hedging is the best way to protect
the Group against unfavourable changes in the electricity market prices. Due to low liquidity in the electricity
derivatives’ market currently in the Baltic region, the availability of hedging instruments is limited and hedging
costs are high. Therefore, the Group partly uses Nordic electricity derivatives for hedging purposes in the
Baltic region (proxy hedge). Because of strong positive correlation between Finnish and Estonian electricity
market prices, proxy hedge closes effectively the market price risk of the Group’s Estonian retail portfolio.

On average one sixth of the electricity sales portfolio remains open to market price fluctuations after the
hedging. Nevertheless, it is expected that in 2016 liquidity in the Baltic financial markets will increase with
decreased hedging costs as a result and usage of Nordic electricity derivatives for hedging will become more
efficient due to new transmission capacities between Lithuania and Sweden and Lithuania and Poland.
Notwithstanding this, there is a risk that hedging will not provide the required efficiency. This may have
material adverse effect on the Group's financial position.

Political and regulatory risks

The ability of the Group to attain short-term goals and long-term strategic targets is partially dependent on
the legislative environment in the markets where the Group operates, and on political and social decisions in

61



these markets as well as in the EU. Matters that may have a material effect on the Group’s business and
financial position include, but are not limited to, electricity supply to vulnerable customers (poor or low-
income persons, large families); feed—in tariff policy for environment friendly generation sources; state or EU
regulations on technical, market integrity and transparency, competition, safety and environmental protection
issues; decisions of certain market supervising institutions (such as the PUC, the Competition Council, the
State Revenue Service etc.).

Although, the Group is managing these risks by representing its interests in a wide range of professional
organizations and monitoring relevant regulatory environments, adverse political and regulatory decisions
may increase operating costs of the business and thus may have a negative impact on the Group's business
and financial position.

Electricity supply to vulnerable customers

According to the Electricity Market Law, throughout year 2015 the Group has to supply electricity to
vulnerable customers (poor or low-income persons, large families) at a price set below the market price. For
the period after 2015, the Latvian State will announce procurement to electricity traders for the opportunity of
providing state defined aid to vulnerable custumers. There is a risk that the Group’s obligation to provide
support to vulnerable customers might be prolonged or the customer groups qualifying as vulnerable might
be widened which could adversely impact the Group's business and financial position.

State-aid notification risk

The Issuer receives capacity payments for the operation of the Riga 1®* combined heat and power plant
(“‘Riga TEC-1") and the Riga 2" combined heat and power plant (“Riga TEC-2”) under the support scheme
for cogeneration power plants meeting the criteria of Directive 2004/8/EC and Directive 2012/27/EU. The
revenues from capacity payments to Riga TEC-1 and Riga TEC-2 are around EUR 85 million per year after
tax.

When introducing the abovementioned support scheme it was a common understanding of involved state
authorities that implemented support for the production of electricity from renewable energy sources and in
efficient cogeneration are not considered to be state aid. Based on this judgement, the support scheme has
not been notified as state aid to the European Commission. However, in 2013 representatives of Latvia and
European Commission concluded that the implemented aid policy in the energy sector should be notified to
the European Commission. At the end of 2013 Latvian State authorities started the pre-notification procedure
with the European Commission, by explaining the existing support scheme for the production of electricity
from renewable energy sources and in efficient cogeneration, including the support to the cogeneration
plants Riga TEC-1 and Riga TEC-2.

In the process of notification on the support to the cogeneration plants Riga TEC-1 and Riga TEC-2, there is
a risk that the current support mechanism will be recognized inappropriate and could be abolished with or
without the requirement for repayment of the received revenues from the capacity payments or changed in a
way, that the scheme will generate insufficient revenues for the operation of Riga TEC-1 and Riga TEC-2.
This could potentially lead to a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.

Disposal of Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS assets

In the process of unbundling of energy suppliers from network operators in Latvia, all transmission system
operator unbundling models were evaluated. The Republic of Latvia has applied the second unbundling
model under EU Directive 2009/72/EC, which provides that the electricity transmission system assets shall
remain with a vertically integrated utility, while the activities of the transmission system operator are
independently managed. The assets are owned by Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS and are leased out to the
Latvian transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS. The legal documentation for the unbundling
includes a provision under which the Ministry of Economics in 2015 may reconsider the possibility of
introducing full ownership unbundling following an evaluation of the impact of the existing unbundling model
on the development of the Baltic electricity market and the Company’s financial situation. A disposal of
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS assets following a decision on a full ownership unbundling, if not made at fair
value, may potentially lead to a material adverse effect on the financial position and business of the Group.

62



Risks in relation to the implementation of the EU energy efficiency directive

The Group will be obliged to participate in an EU energy efficiency obligation scheme that on the one hand
will create new costs, while on the other hand it may provide some opportunities in the development of new
products. While there are still uncertainties as to what form these obligations will be applied to the Group,
there is a risk that the costs incurred under this scheme may not be possible to recover.

EU energy policy changes

Significant changes are expected with respect to the EU energy policy. Currently a design of new documents
of “Energy Union” has been started that will result into new regulations for the energy sector in the coming
years. The expected, revised electricity market regulations and the potential harmonization of capacity
markets or the capacity remuneration mechanisms may have a material adverse effect on general operations
of the Group, as well as the Group’s business and financial position.

Seasonality and climate changes

The Group’s core business operations, particularly, electricity generation in hydro power plants (“HPPs”) and
combined heat and power plants (“CHPPs”), are partially influenced by weather conditions. HPPs ability to
generate electricity is dependent on the water inflow in the River Daugava, thus the total electricity
generation volumes fluctuate annually.

CHPPs are generally working in cogeneration mode, thus electricity generation in the CHPPs is largely
dependent on thermal energy consumption which is affected by weather conditions, i.e. external air
temperature and duration of the heating season.

Due to this, the Group’s overall financial position may be influenced by seasonality, weather fluctuations, as
well as long-term shifts in climate affecting electricity generated in the HPPs and/or number of working hours
of CHPPs operated in effective cogeneration mode. A decrease of the annual flow volume in the River
Daugava below long-term average flow level and/or untypically mild weather conditions during autumn and
winter months may result in a reduced volume of annual electricity generation by the Group’s power plants,
exposing the Group to electricity procurement price risk and lower profitability margins. Long-term shifts in
climate conditions may result in more permanent changes to the generation patterns and thus creating
adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Asset damage risks

The Group’s main assets include generation assets (including HPPs and CHPPs), electricity transmission
system assets, distribution system assets, and other assets necessary for the Group’s operations. The
Group manages asset-related risks through implementation of maintenance, investment and prevention
programmes, as well as by transferring risks to the insurance market, where such insurance is commercially
available. In certain circumstances adequate insurance cover may not be available, either as a result of the
lack of relevant insurance or excessive costs. In addition, insurance proceeds received may be inadequate to
fully cover replacement costs for damaged assets, sequential financial losses due to business interruption,
liabilities to third parties incurred, and similar costs and expenses associated with such asset damages. The
assets of the Group are exposed to the risks of loss or damage due to malicious damages (including acts of
terrorism); natural disasters (such as storms, fire, flooding, etc.); breakdown of equipment; structural
damages and other risks of loss or damage of assets. If materialised, these asset damage risks could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Litigation and disputes

The Group may become a party to legal proceedings and disputes, including claims in relation to actions of
regulatory and supervisory institutions.

Notwithstanding all detective and prevention activities implemented within the Group with the aim to prevent
any corruptive, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practices performed by the Group’s employees, directors,
representatives and with respect to any transaction the Group is involved in, there is still a risk of a prohibited
practice performed by the Group’s employees, directors, representatives or with respect to any transaction
the Group is involved in. This may adversely affect the Group’s reputation, business and financial position as
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well as involve the Group into legal proceedings and disputes, including claims in relation to actions by
regulatory and supervisory institutions.

There can be no assurance that the Group will not be a party to court and administrative proceedings in the
future or that, with respect to its current proceedings, it will not be subject to fines, damages, penalties or
other costs which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Resource risks

The Group’s operations depend on consistent and commercially adequate resource supplies of natural gas
needed for the operation of CHPPs, supplies of electricity from power producers in Latvia and neighbouring
countries etc. Risk factors associated to resource availability include non-availability of supplies due to
technological and/or other errors and accidents (including, but not limited to, accidents in natural gas supply
networks, accidents in high voltage transmission system networks interconnecting Latvia with neighbouring
countries) and limitations on resource availability due to commercial, technological or other reasons. The risk
that required supplies may not be available, or may only be available on commercially unfavourable terms
would affect the Group’s profitability, which could adversely affect the Group’s business and financial
position.

Since natural gas is the main fuel source for electricity and heat generation in CHPPs and the incumbent gas
supplier Latvijas Gaze AS currently has the exclusive rights of sale of natural gas and gas prices are subject
to monthly revision, the Group is exposed to single supplier risk and gas price risk. The materialization of any
of the abovementioned risks could weaken the Group’s competitive position, expose the Group to additional
electricity import risk and thus adversely impact the Group’s profitability and financial position.

The recently built liquefied natural gas floating storage and regasification unit terminal in the port of Klaipeda
(Lithuania) technically mitigates the single supplier risk in the natural gas market. Nevertheless, the
regulatory framework in Latvia for natural gas availability is uncertain, and currently excludes the possibility
to obtain natural gas from any other supplier than Latvijas Gaze AS.

Risks associated with the execution of investment projects

During recent years the Group has commenced an extensive capital investment programme, aimed at
upgrading of the Group’s generating facilities, as well as the Group’s transmission and distribution system
assets. Following a successful completion of the recent investment projects, including the reconstruction of
Riga TEC-2 first unit (commissioned in 2008), Riga TEC-2 second unit (commissioned in 2013), the Group
has commenced the upgrade of the Daugava HPPs. An upgrade of two hydro units of Plavinas HPP was
commenced in 2014 and is scheduled to be completed in 2017, an upgrade of three hydro units of Kegums
HPP was commenced in 2014 and is scheduled to be completed in 2017 and an upgrade of six hydro units
of Riga HPP is planned to commence in 2015 and to be completed in 2022.

The Group has no information that indicates any material risks associated with potential delays or cost
overruns in relation to the current investment projects. Nevertheless, there is still a risk, that cost overruns
and project delays or similar aspects related to the execution of current or future investment projects could
have material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Risks from potential participation in capital intensive projects

The Company is, as a potential investor, involved in the negotiations of a nuclear power plant construction
project. The Company has not thus far undertaken any financial commitments regarding participation in this
or any other nuclear project. Before any significant commitment in the project is undertaken, the Company
would need to agree on several matters, including, but not limited to, the business plan of the project, legal
environment, sharing of open risks and provision of other guarantees to the project. Such a project would be
capital intensive and, if undertaken, additional solutions would need to be considered for meeting the
Group’s funding needs for this project.

If the Group participates in the nuclear power plant project, it would likely to be exposed to a number of risks
which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position. Whilst the Group
will not have a day-to-day responsibility for the principal operations of the nuclear power plant, the Group
may, nonetheless, still be exposed to risks in relation to the operation and decommissioning of nuclear
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facilities, the manipulation, treatment, disposal and storage of radioactive materials and the potential harmful
effects on human health of such materials. In addition, changes to the regulatory regime in the EU and/or in
the respective EU country could have a material impact on the Group’s ability to participate in, or raise
finance for, the project.

Besides the nuclear power plant project, the Group may review its participation in other extensive investment
projects that may increase the Group’s exposure to operational and/or financial risk levels or may negatively
impact the Group’s value or reputation, thus creating adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial
position.

Electricity distribution system investment risks

The Group’s electricity distribution system network is aged due to a prolonged lack of investments in respect
of these assets. There is a risk that the quality of provided distribution services in some locations may not
correspond to the safety and service level requirements set out in legal acts. This in turn may lead to
additional service interruptions, losses and damages causing the Group additional unplanned repair and
maintenance costs, legal disputes, as well as reallocation of resources from other investments projects. This
could potentially lead to a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.

Transmission system investments and EU financing risks

The Company’s subsidiary Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS is the owner and manager of the transmission system
assets in Latvia. Nevertheless, operations and strategic decision making on asset maintenance and
development is not within the control of the Group. The investment plans are prepared and approved by
Latvian transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS, which shares are held by the Ministry of
Finance of the Republic of Latvia. Part of the transmission system asset investment projects are co-financed
with the EU funds, where the Group has contingency liability and financial commitments towards the project
implementation, without having any control over the implementation of particular projects.

There is a risk that the transmission system operator provides in its long-term plan insufficient investments to
maintain the existing value of the assets, thus reducing their value and causing losses to the Group.

In addition, if the EU would have objections in relation to their co-financed project execution, there is a risk
that the Group would need to increase its financing share in the existing transmission system asset
construction projects. This would reduce funds available for other projects or could result in increased debt
levels for the Group.

Sovereign debt crisis

The current global crisis and sovereign debt crisis in Europe has had a significant impact on the world's
banking systems and financial markets. If the global economic situation worsens, this could lead to systemic
and structural changes in the Eurozone, including but not limited to, the reintroduction of national currencies
in one or more Eurozone countries or, in extreme circumstances, unprecedented rates of inflation and
collapse of the euro entirely. The occurrence of such risks could have a negative effect on the Group’s
existing contractual relations, including financing obligations to its banks and other third parties, all of which
could have a significant negative impact on the Group’s business and financial position.

Environmental, health and safety risks

The Group’s core business activities such as electricity generation and distribution, and the management of
the electricity transmission assets include operations with certain assets, mixtures, substances and
processes that inherently have increased levels of riskiness, thus exposing the Group’s personnel, third
parties and the environment to potential damages or harm due to operational accidents or other sudden and
unforeseen occurrences. Certain technology processes, including, but not limited to, the operation of CHPPs
and HPPs, the operation of electricity transmission and distribution system assets and other processes,
involve materials, mixtures or substances that are potentially dangerous in uncontrolled chemical processes,
such as fires, explosions, emissions, major accidents or failures of equipment or structures. The
consequences of an uncontrolled release of dangerous substances or other environmental risks, such as
subsequent loss mitigation activities and clean-up costs, environment pollution risks, fines, penalties and
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similar costs imposed in accordance with relevant legislation, third party claims and other losses could
adversely affect the Group’s business and financial position.

The Group has made substantial investments into technologies and processes and takes risk mitigation
measures, aimed at minimising the Group’s actual impact on environment and environmental accidents.
Furthermore, the introduction of new legislative initiatives aimed at minimising the environmental impact
could impose additional costs on the Group.

The Group’s personnel, as well as personnel of the Group’s subcontractors are exposed to increased health
and safety risks by operating certain assets of the Group. Notwithstanding that the Group has implemented a
wide array of activities and procedures aimed at mitigation of occupational health and safety risks, third party
or claims by the Group’s personnel in relation to personal damages or harm caused at workplace may incur
substantial costs to the Group, as well as negative publicity, causing material adverse effect on the Group.

Tax risk

Some of the tax laws applicable to the Group are complicated or subject to changing interpretations by the
tax authorities. The Group is exposed to changes in tax laws, treaties and regulations. The possible
imposition of penalties due to misinterpretation of the tax application or other sanctions may result in
additional amounts payable by the Group. The misinterpretation of the tax application may also lead to
disputes and litigation between the Group, its clients and counterparties. The occurrence of the
abovementioned risk could have an adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial condition. In addition, the Group companies transact with related parties. During the execution and
rendering the mutual services and transactions within the Group’s entities, the Group has set different price
methodologies. However, the Group cannot exclude that the adopted price methodologies may be
questioned and possible tax penalties being imposed as a result, thus having an adverse effect on the
Group’s operations and financial results.

Redistribution of heat market risk

The legal framework for heat supply ensures that several independent producers may supply heat to certain
centralized heating systems and the system operator is obliged to buy the supplied heat or refuse the
purchase gradually following economic principles stated in the legislation.

An expected new entrant in the heat market using biomass as fuel in the production process may reduce the
workloads of the Company’s CHPPs, thus also reducing the heat supply by the Company. This could,
particularly in light of the comparatively higher variable costs for gas fuelled plants, have a material adverse
effect on general operations of the Group, as well as the Group’s business.

Financial Risks

Risk of breaching financial covenants and other obligations under loan agreements and bond
documentation

The existing Group’s long term loan agreements generally have certain financial covenant clauses. In
addition, the loan agreements and documentation in relation to outstanding bonds provide for certain other
obligations and representations the violation of which may lead to an event of default and acceleration of the
loans and issued bonds. While the Group has not breached such provisions in the past, however, the
Group’s ability to comply with covenants and restrictions contained in the loan agreements and bond
documentation may be affected by events beyond its control, including prevailing economic, financial, legal
and industry conditions. In the event that these obligations were to be breached, the involved creditors would
be able to declare an event of default pursuant to the relevant loan agreements and bond documentation
and require prepayment of the entire outstanding loan amounts and redemption of the outstanding bonds.
Due to the cross default clauses in the loan agreements and bond documentation, the Company may need
to refinance substantial part of its outstanding debt. Ability to rise funding for refinancing of bank and market
debt or negotiate other terms with the existing lenders might be limited, thus causing significant going
concern risk for the Group.
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from long-term borrowings at variable rates. This exposes the
Group to the risk that borrowing costs might increase significantly in the event that the relevant benchmark
market interest rates rise. The Group’s policy is to maintain at least 35 per cent of its borrowings as fixed
interest rates borrowings (taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps) with duration between two to
four years. Adverse interest rate fluctuations, if not hedged, may negatively impact the Group’s operations,
prospects and financial results.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group is unable to maintain a sufficient reserve of cash and cash equivalents
that can be used to meet its debt payments and to meet other payment obligations as they fall due or to fund
the Group’s capital investments.

Sufficient liquidity for business activities and the ability to access long-term financing is necessary to enable
the Group to implement its capital investment projects and to meet its debt refinancing needs. Although, the
Group’ policy of liquidity risk management is to maintain a sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of long and short term funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to
meet its payment commitments according to the Group’s strategic plans, as well as to balance the
fluctuations in the cash flows is a matter of great importance, and a reduction in the Group’s liquidity position
may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and financial position.

Downgrade of the Company’s credit rating

A downgrade of the Company’s credit rating may increase its costs of funding and/or reduce its access to
funding and may require the Issuer to provide additional security for contracts which may increase the costs
of the transactions. In addition to a deterioration in the Company's own credit quality, the Company's credit
rating may be downgraded if the credit rating of the Republic of Latvia is downgraded due to weak
macroeconomic conditions or there is a change of the support assumptions provided by the Republic of
Latvia.

Risks Related to the Notes

The following risk factors are, among other things, material in order to assess the risks associated with the
Notes. Words and expressions in this section shall have the same meaning as defined in the General Terms
and Conditions of the Notes.

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Thus, each potential investor in the Notes must
assess the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. A potential investor should not
invest in the Notes unless it has the expertise (either alone or with the relevant support from a financial
advisor) to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value
of such Notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.
In particular, each potential investor should:

(i) have a sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits
and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or referred to in this Base
Prospectus, the Final Terms and documents attached to this Base Prospectus;

(i)  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its
overall investment portfolio;

(iii)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate either alone or with the relevant support from a financial adviser possible scenarios
for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risk.
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The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to green assets

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, which purpose is to finance projects eligible under the Issuer’'s
Green Bond Framework, the Center for International Climate and Environmental Research - Oslo (“Cicero”),
a Norwegian independent institute for interdisciplinary climate research, is expected to issue a second-party
opinion regarding the suitability of the Notes as an investment in connection with certain environmental and
sustainability criteria (the “Cicero Opinion”). The Cicero Opinion is not incorporated into and does not form a
part of this Base Prospectus. Neither the Issuer nor the Arranger of the Programme or Issuing Agent makes
any representation as to the suitability of the Cicero Opinion or the Notes to fulfil such environmental and
sustainability criteria. The Cicero Opinion may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to the
structure, market, additional risk factors discussed in the Base Prospectus and other factors that may affect
the value of the Notes. The Cicero Opinion is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and is only
current as of the date that the Cicero Opinion is initially issued. In addition, although the Issuer has agreed to
certain reporting and use of proceeds in connection with the Cicero Opinion, it will not be an event of default
under the General Terms and Conditions of the Notes if the Issuer fails to comply with such obligations. A
withdrawal of the Cicero Opinion may affect the value of the Notes and/or may have consequences for
certain investors with portfolio mandates to invest in green assets.

Possibility to forfeit interest and principle amount invested

Should the Issuer become insolvent, legal protection proceedings or out-of-court legal protection
proceedings of the Issuer are initiated during the term of the Notes, an investor may forfeit interest payable
on, and the principle amount of, the Notes in whole or in part. An investor is always solely responsible for the
economic consequences of its investment decisions.

No guarantee or security

The Notes will not be obligations of anyone other than the Issuer and they will not be guaranteed. No one
other than the Issuer will accept any liability whatsoever in respect of any failure by the Issuer to pay any
amount due under the Notes.

The Notes are unsecured debt instruments and the Noteholders would be unsecured creditors in the event of
the Issuer's insolvency.

Claims cannot be enforced against the Issuer’s key assets

The Issuer holds a number of assets which under applicable laws of the Republic of Latvia can be owned
only by the Issuer or its wholly-owned subsidiaries. As a consequence, such assets are not transferable to
any other party except for the Issuer or its subsidiaries. Section 20." (2) of the Energy Law (Energétikas
likums) lists the following non-transferable assets: (i) Plavinas, Kegums and Riga HPPs on the River
Daugava; (ii) Riga TEC-1 and Riga TEC-2; and (iii) electricity transmission grid and distribution grid,
telecommunication grid and equipment owned by the Issuer. Because of their non-transferable nature, no
claims, either on the ground of the Notes or otherwise, can be enforced against these assets. Furthermore,
in case of the Issuer’s insolvency these assets will not be used for settling the creditors’ claims.

Adverse change in the financial condition or prospects of the Issuer

Any adverse change in the financial condition or prospects of the Issuer may have a material adverse effect
on the liquidity of the Notes, and may result in a material decline in their market price, such adverse change
may result in a reduced probability that the Noteholders will receive the prompt and full payment, when due,
for principal and interest and/or any other amounts and items payable to the Noteholders pursuant to the
General Terms and Conditions of the Notes from time to time.

Refinancing risk
The Issuer may be required to refinance certain or all of its outstanding debt, including the Notes. The
Issuer's ability to successfully refinance its debt is dependent on the conditions of the debt capital markets

and its financial condition at such time. Even if the debt capital markets improve, the Issuer's access to
financing sources at a particular time may not be available on favourable terms, or at all. The Issuer’s
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inability to refinance its debt obligations on favourable terms, or at all, could have a negative impact on the
Group’s operations, financial condition, earnings and on the Noteholders' recovery under the Notes.

An active market for the Notes may not develop

The Notes constitute a new issue of securities by the Issuer. Prior to admission to trading on the regulated
market, there is no public market for the Notes.

Although application(s) will be made for the Notes to be admitted to trading on NASDAQ Riga stock
exchange, there is no assurance that such application(s) will be accepted and the Notes will be admitted to
trading. In addition, admission to trading the Notes on a regulated market will not guarantee that a liquid
public market for the Notes will develop or, if such market develops, that it will be maintained, and neither the
Issuer, nor the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent is under any obligation to maintain such
market. If an active market for the Notes does not develop or is not maintained, it may result in a material
decline in the market price of the Notes, and the liquidity of the Notes may be adversely affected. In addition,
the liquidity and the market price of the Notes can be expected to vary with changes in market and economic
conditions, the financial condition and the prospects of the Issuer, as well as many other factors that
generally influence the market price for securities. Accordingly, due to such factors the Notes may trade at a
discount to the price at which the Noteholders purchased the Notes. Therefore, investors may not be able to
sell their Notes at all or at a price that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar financial
instruments that are traded on a developed and functioning secondary market. Further, if additional and
competing financial instruments are introduced on the markets, this may also result in a material decline in
the market price and value of the Notes.

Fixed interest rate and inflation

The Notes will bear interest on their outstanding principal at a fixed interest rate. A holder of a security with a
fixed interest rate is exposed to the risk that the price of such security could fall as a result of changes in the
market interest rate. Market interest rates follow the changes in general economic conditions, and are
affected by, among many other things, demand and supply for money, liquidity, inflation rate, economic
growth, central banks' benchmark rates, implied future rates, and changes and expectations related thereto.

While the nominal compensation rate of a security with a fixed interest rate is fixed during the term of such
security or during a certain period of time, current interest rates on capital markets (market interest rates)
typically change continuously. In case market interest rates increase, the market price of such a security
typically falls, until the yield of such security is approximately equal to the market interest rates. If market
interest rates fall, the price of a security with a fixed interest rate typically increases, until the yield of such a
security is approximately equal to market interest rates. Consequently, the Noteholders should be aware that
movements of market interest rates may result in a material decline in the market price of the Notes and can
result in losses for the Noteholders if they sell the Notes. Furthermore, the past performance of the Notes is
not an indication of their future performance.

Also inflation may result in a decline of the market price of the Notes, as it decreases the purchasing power
of a currency unit and respectively the received interest.

Fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Notes

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in EUR. This presents certain risks relating to currency
conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the
‘Investor's Currency”) other than EUR. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of EUR or revaluation of the Investor's Currency) and the risk that
authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An
appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to EUR would decrease the Investor's Currency-
equivalent: (i) yield on the Notes; (ii) value of the principal payable on the Notes; and (iii) market value of the
Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that
could adversely affect the applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest or
principal than expected, or no interest or principal at all. In addition, investment in the Notes involves the risk
that subsequent changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the value of the Notes.
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Risks relating to the clearing and settlement in the LCD's book-entry system

The Notes will be affiliated to the account-based system of the LCD, and no physical notes will be issued.
Clearing and settlement relating to the Notes will be carried out within the LCD's book-entry system as well
as payment of interest and repayment of the principal. Investors are therefore dependent on the functionality
of the LCD's account-based system.

Credit ratings

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Notes. In case the Notes
are rated by the credit rating agencies, such ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to
structure, market, additional factors discussed above, or other factors that may affect the value of the Notes.
A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or withdrawn by
the rating agency at any time. Any adverse change in an applicable credit rating of the Issuer could
adversely affect the trading price of the Notes.

No assurance on change of laws or practices

The Notes are governed by the laws of the Republic of Latvia, as in force from time to time. Latvian laws
(including but not limited to tax laws) and regulations governing the Notes may change during the life of the
Notes, and new judicial decisions can be given and administrative practices may take place. No assurance
can be given as to the impact of any such possible change of laws or regulations, or new judicial decision or
administrative practice taking place after the date of this Base Prospectus. Hence, such change may have a
material adverse effect on the Issuer's business, financial condition, results of operations and/or future
prospects and, thereby, the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes, taxation of the Notes, as
well as the market price and value of the Notes. Such event may also result in material financial losses or
damage to the Noteholders.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or reviews
or regulations by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent: (i) the Notes are legal investments for the investor; (ii) the Notes can be used as
collateral for various types of borrowings; and (iii) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any
Notes.

The Notes do not contain covenants governing the Issuer’s operations and do not limit its ability to
merge, effect asset sales or otherwise effect significant transactions that may have a material
adverse effect on the Notes and the Noteholders

The Notes do not contain provisions designed to protect the Noteholders from a reduction in the
creditworthiness of the Issuer. In particular, the General Terms and Conditions of the Notes do not, except
for the Change of Control and Events of Default conditions (see Clause 16 and Clause 18 of the General
Terms and Conditions of the Notes), restrict the Issuer’s ability to increase or decrease its share capital, to
enter into a merger, asset sale or other significant transaction that could materially alter its existence,
jurisdiction of organization or regulatory regime and/or its composition and business. In the event that the
Issuer enters into such a transaction, Noteholders could be materially adversely affected. Furthermore, the
Change of Control condition does not restrict the current shareholder of the Issuer from disposing any or all
of their shareholdings, in case the law, which at the date of this Base Prospectus restricts privatisation or
alienation of the shares of the Issuer, is changed.

Risks related to early redemption

There is a risk that the market value of the Notes is higher than the early redemption amount following a
Change of Control and that it may not be possible for Noteholders to reinvest such proceeds at an effective
interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower
rate. It is further possible that the Issuer will not have sufficient funds at the time of the mandatory
prepayment to make the required redemption of Notes.
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No voting rights

Only the shareholder of the Issuer has voting rights in the Shareholders Meetings of the Issuer. The Notes
carry no such voting rights. Consequently, the Noteholders cannot influence any decisions by the Issuer's
shareholders concerning, for instance, the capital structure of the Issuer.

Amendments to the Notes bind all Noteholders

The General Terms and Conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to
consider matters affecting their interests generally. The decisions of the Noteholders’ Meeting (including
amendments to the General Terms and Conditions of the Notes), subject to defined majorities requirements
will be binding to all Noteholders, including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting
and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority. This may incur financial losses, among
other things, to all Noteholders, including such Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

No limitation on issuing additional debt

The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt. If the Issuer incurs significant additional debt ranking
equally with the Notes, it will increase the number of claims that would be entitled to share rateably with the
Noteholders in any proceeds distributed in connection with an insolvency of the Issuer. Further, any provision
which confers, purports to confer, or waives a right to create security interest in favour of third parties, such
as a negative pledge, is ineffective against third parties since: (i) it is a question of a contractual arrangement
only being binding upon the parties to such contractual arrangement; (ii) there is no specific legislation in
Latvia providing beneficiaries of negative pledge undertakings or covenants with a preferred position vis-a-
vis the claims of third parties; and (iii) no registry or public record exists in Latvia through which negative
pledge undertakings or covenants could be filed to obtain a preferred position. Should the Issuer breach its
obligations under such undertakings and covenants and create a security interest in favour of a third party,
such third party would obtain a valid and enforceable security interest over the pledged asset.

Certain material interests

The Issuing Agent has engaged in, and may in the future engage in, investment banking and/or commercial
banking or other services for the Group in the ordinary course of business. In particular, it should be noted
that the Issuing Agent may be a lender under certain credit facilities with a member of the Group as
borrower. Therefore, conflicts of interest may exist or may arise as a result of the Issuing Agent having
previously engaged, or will in the future engage, in transactions with other parties, having multiple roles or
carrying out other transactions for third parties with conflicting interests.

Restrictions on the transferability of the Notes

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or
any U.S. state securities laws. Subject to certain exemptions, a holder of the Notes may not offer or sell the
Notes in the United States. The Issuer has not undertaken to register the Notes under the U.S. Securities Act
or any U.S. state securities laws or to effect any exchange offer for the Notes in the future. Furthermore, the
Issuer has not registered the Notes under any other country's securities laws, other than laws of the Republic
of Latvia. Each potential investor should read the information under the heading "Notice to Investors and
Restrictions on Distribution" for further information about the transfer restrictions that apply to the Notes. It is
the Noteholder's obligation to ensure that the offers and sales of Notes comply with all applicable securities
laws.
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PARTY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE BASE PROSPECTUS
Party Responsible for the Base Prospectus

Latvenergo AS
Registration number: 40003032949
Legal address: PulkveZa Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia

Assurance of the Information Given in the Base Prospectus

The Company and its Management Board are responsible for the information contained in this Base
Prospectus. The Company ang its Management Board, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such
is the case, confirms that the/information contained in the Base Prospectus is, to the best of their knowledge,
in accordance with the fact$ and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

Riga, 25 May 2015

Management Board of Latvenergo AS:

Chairman of the anage;m{nt Board (CEQ)

Aris Zigurs

‘\“

Member of the Management Board (CFQ)
Zane Kotane

wm the Management Board (CCO)
Uldis Bariss ||

4 s
)
il
Membel of the Management Board (CAO)
Arnis Kurgs

Membef of the Management Board (COO)

Maris W
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Management Board of the Company

Name Position

Aris Zigurs Chairman of the Management Board (CEQ)
Zane Kotane Member of the Management Board (CFO)
Uldis Bariss Member of the Management Board (CCO)
Arnis Kurgs Member of the Management Board (CAQO)
Maris Kunickis Member of the Management Board (COQ)

Company’s Auditor

ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC SIA

Registration number: 40003593454

Legal address: Muitas 1A, Riga, LV-1010, Latvia

Auditor in charge: Diana Kri§jane (number of certificate: 124)

Arranger of the Programme and Issuing Agent

The Issuer has appointed AS SEB banka (registration number: 40003151743, legal address: Meistaru 1,
Valdlaudi, Kekava parish, Kekava region, LV-1076, Latvia) as the Arranger of the Programme and as the
Issuing Agent.

Legal Adviser to the Arranger of the Programme and to the Issuing Agent

Attorneys at Law BORENIUS
Legal Address: LacpléSa 20A, Riga, LV-1011, Latvia

Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved in the Issue/Offer

Save for commissions to be paid to the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent, so far as the
Issuer is aware, no person involved in the offer of the Notes has an interest material to the issue/offer, nor
any conflicting interests.

Credit Ratings

The Issuer is rated Baa2 with a stable outlook by Moody’s Investors Service. The rating and outlook was
upgraded on 16 February 2015.

The Series of Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. If rated, such ratings will not
necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to the Issuer. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of the issue of Notes will be used by the Issuer for its general corporate purposes. If in
respect of any particular Series of Notes, there is a particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in
the relevant Final Terms.

Availability of the Base Prospectus and Final Terms

The copies of the Base Prospectus and any Final Terms are available at the legal address of the Company
at Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia and legal address of the Issuing Agent at Meistaru 1, Valdlaugi,

Kekava parish, Kekava region, LV-1076, Latvia on weekdays within the limits of normal business hours upon
request, and in electronic format on the Company’s website www.latvenergo.|v.

73



Third Party Information and Statement by Experts and Declarations of any Interest

The audited consolidated annual reports of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014
attached to the Base Prospectus contain auditor’s reports. During the preparation of the Base Prospectus,
information provided on the websites of European Commission and the Public Utilities Commission was
used. This information has been accurately reproduced and as far as the Company is aware and was able to
ascertain from the information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render
the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

Other Information on the Website is not Part of the Base Prospectus

The Base Prospectus and the Final Terms, as well as documents attached to the Base Prospectus will be
published on the Company’s website www.latvenergo.lv. Other information presented on the above-
mentioned website or on any other website does not, however, form part of the Base Prospectus or the Final
Terms.

Issuing Agent’s Right to Invest

The Issuer has agreed that the Issuing Agent and any legal entity within the SEB Group has a right to invest
in the Notes.

Governing Law

The Base Prospectus and any Final Terms, as well as the issuance and/or offering of Notes in question at
the time shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Latvia. Any
disputes relating to or arising from the above-mentioned will be settled solely by the courts of the Republic of
Latvia of competent jurisdiction.

Consent to use the Base Prospectus

Throughout the period of the validity of this Base Prospectus AS SEB banka (registration number:
40003151743, legal address: Meistaru 1, Valdlauci, Kekava parish, Kekava region, LV-1076, Latvia) and its
sub-agents (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) subsequently reselling or finally placing the Notes
issued under the Programme are entitled to use the Base Prospectus:

- in the Republic of Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and Republic of Estonia where the public offering of the
Notes to institutional and retail investors takes place; and

- in Member States of the European Economic Area where the private placement of the Notes to
institutional investor takes place pursuant to an exemption under Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive
(Directive 2003/71/EC), as implemented by the respective Member States of the European Economic
Area;

for the subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant Notes during the respective offer period (as
determined in the applicable Final Terms) during which subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant
Notes can be made. The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information given in this Base Prospectus also
with respect to such subsequent resale or final placement of the Notes.

The Base Prospectus may only be delivered to potential investors together with all supplements (if any)
published before such delivery. The Base Prospectus and any supplement to the Base Prospectus are
available for viewing in electronic form on the website of the Issuer www.latvenergo.lv.

When using the Base Prospectus, AS SEB banka and its sub-agents must make certain that they comply
with all applicable laws and regulations in force in the respective jurisdictions.

In the event of an offer being made by AS SEB banka and/or its sub-agents, AS SEB banka and/or its

sub-agents will provide information to the investors on the terms and conditions of the Notes at the
time of that offer.
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Resolutions of the Issuer

The shareholder of the Issuer has at its meeting on 12 May 2014 (Meeting minutes No. 6., 10.§) authorised
the issue of the Notes and authorised the Management Board of the Issuer to approve the characteristics of
the Notes, the Base Prospectus and any of the documents thereto, as well as any amendments and
supplements thereof.

The Management Board of the Issuer has at its meeting on 25 May 2015 approved the Base Prospectus and
the General Terms and Conditions of the Notes to be issued under the Programme.
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GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

1. Principal Amount and Issuance of the Notes

Under this second programme for the issuance of notes (the “Programme”) the Issuer may issue notes up to
an aggregate principal amount of EUR 100,000,000 (one hundred million euro) (the “Notes”).

The Notes shall be issued in series (the “Series”).

Each Series may comprise one or more tranches of Notes (the “Tranches”). The Notes of each Series will all
be subject to identical terms, except that the Issue Dates (as defined below) and the Issue Prices (as defined
below) thereof may be different in respect of different Tranches.

In order to identify each Series and Tranches, the Final Terms (as defined below) shall stipulate a serial
number of a respective Series and a serial number of a respective Tranche.

The terms and conditions of each Tranche shall consist of these general terms and conditions of the Notes
(the “General Terms and Conditions”) and the final terms (the “Final Terms”). The General Terms and
Conditions shall apply to each Tranche.

The aggregate principal amount of a Tranche shall be initialy specified in the Final Terms. The Issuer may
increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of a Tranche as initially set out in the Final Terms
during the Placement Period of that Tranche.

The nominal amount of each Note shall be specified in the Final Terms and shall be at least EUR 1,000.

The Notes will be offered for subscription for a minimum investment amount (the “Minimum Investment
Amount”), which will be specified in the Final Terms.

The offering of Notes will consist of:

- public offering to institutional and retail investors in the Republic of Latvia, Republic of Lithuania and
Republic of Estonia; and

- private placement to institutional investors in certain Member States of the European Economic Area
(the “EEA”) in each case pursuant to an exemption under Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive
2003/71/EC), as implemented by the respective Member States of EEA.

2. ISIN Code of the Notes

Each Series will be assigned a separate ISIN code, which will be different from the ISIN code of the other
Series.

Before commencement of the offering of the Notes of the first Tranche of each Series, Latvian Central
Depository ((Latvijas Centralais depozitarijs AS) registration number: 40003242879, legal address: Valnu 1,
Riga, LV-1050, Latvia) (the “LCD”) upon request of the Issuer will assign to the respective Series an ISIN
code. Where a further Tranche is issued which is intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche at
a point after the Issue Date of the existing Tranche, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a
temporary ISIN code, which is different from the ISIN code assigned to the relevant Series until such time as
the Tranches are consolidated and form a single Series.

The ISIN code of respective Series and a temporary ISIN code of respective Tranche, if applicable, will be
specified in the Final Terms.

3. Governing Law
The issue of the Notes is governed by the laws of the Republic of Latvia:
- The Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital Companies;
- Commercial Law;

- Financial Instruments Market Law;
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as well as other applicable legal acts of the Republic of Latvia, including regulations of the LCD and
NASDAQ Riga.

Any disputes relating to or arising in relation to the Notes shall be settled solely by the courts of the Republic
of Latvia of competent jurisdiction.

4. Form of the Notes

The Notes are freely transferable debt securities, which contain payment obligations of the Issuer towards
the holders of the Notes (the “Noteholders”).

The Notes are dematerialized debt securities in bearer form which are disposable without any restrictions.
However, the Notes cannot be offered, sold, resold, transferred or delivered in such countries or jurisdictions
or otherwise in such circumstances in which it would be unlawful or require measures other than those
required under Latvian laws, including the United States of America, Australia, Canada, Hong Kong and
Japan.

According to the Financial Instruments Market Law the book-entry and accounting of the dematerialized
securities in the Republic of Latvia, which will be admitted to trading in regulated market, shall be made by
the LCD.

5. Status and Security
The Notes constitute direct, unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu
without any preference among each other and with all other unsecured, unguaranteed and unsubordinated
indebtedness of the Issuer, save for such obligations as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of law.

6. Currency of the Notes
The Notes will be issued in EUR.

7. lIssue Price
The Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a discount or a premium to their nominal amount (the
“Issue Price”). The Issue Price shall be determined by the Issuer according to the Section “Placement of the
Notes” of this Base Prospectus and shall be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after
allotment of the Notes to the investors.

8. Underwriting
None of the Tranches will be underwritten.

9. Issue Date
The issue date of each Tranche (the “Issue Date”) shall be specified in the Final Terms.

10. Interest
The Notes shall bear interest at fixed annual interest rate (the “Annual Interest Rate”) which shall be
determined by the Issuer according to the Section “Placement of the Notes” of this Base Prospectus and
shall be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.
The interest on the Notes will be paid annually on the dates specified in the Final Terms (“Interest Payment
Date”) until the Maturity Date (as defined below) and will be calculated on the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Notes of the respective Series.
Interest shall accrue for each interest period from and including the first day of the interest period to (but
excluding) the last day of the interest period on the principal amount of Notes of the respective Series

outstanding from time to time. The first interest period commences on the Issue Date and ends on the first
Interest Payment Date (the “First Interest Period”). Each consecutive interest period begins on the previous
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Interest Payment Date and ends on the following Interest Payment Date. The last interest period ends on the
Maturity Date (as defined below).

Interest in respect of the Notes will be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in the
relevant interest period divided by 365 (or, in the case of a leap year, 366), i.e. a day count convention
Act/Act (ICMA) will be used.

When interest is required to be calculated in respect of a period of less than a full year other than in respect
of the First Interest Period, it shall be calculated on the basis of (a) the actual number of days in the period
from and including the date from which interest begins to accrue (the “Accrual Date”) to but excluding the
date on which it falls due divided by (b) the actual number of days from and including the Accrual Date to but
excluding the next following Interest Payment Date.

Interest on the Notes shall be paid in accordance with the LCD Rules No 8 “On payment of dividends,
coupons, principal and other cash proceeds”. The Issuer shall transfer all payable amounts to the LCD
account on the Interest Payment Date until 2 p.m. (Riga time). The LCD shall transfer all payable amounts
received from the Issuer to the account holders (credit institutions and investment brokerage firms, which are
participants of the LCD) on the same day according to the number of Notes on the LCD’s corresponding
accounts of the account holders 8 (eight) Business Days prior to the Interest Payment Date. The account
holders shall transfer the amounts payable to the Noteholders or the nominee holders, which shall further
transfer the respective amounts to the Noteholders.

Should any Interest Payment Date fall on a date which is not a Business Day, the payment of the interest
due will be postponed to the next Business Day. The postponement of the payment date shall not have an
impact on the amount payable.

“‘Business Day” means a day on which banks in Riga are open for general business.
11. Maturity and Principal Payment

The Notes shall be repaid in full at their nominal amount on the date which will be specified in the Final
Terms (the “Maturity Date”). The Issuer does not have a right to redeem the Notes prior to the Maturity
Date, unless the Issuer has prepaid the Notes in accordance with Clause 16 (Change of Control) or 18
(Events of Default) below or in case the Noteholders’ Meeting, upon proposal of the Issuer, has decided that
the Notes shall be redeemed prior to the Maturity Date.

Each Series of Notes may have a maturity between 1 (one) and 15 (fifteen) years or such other maturity as
the Issuer decides, but in any case not shorter than 12 (twelve) months.

The principal of the Notes shall be paid in accordance with the LCD Rules No 8 “On payment of dividends,
coupons, principal and other cash proceeds”. The Issuer shall transfer all payable amounts to the LCD
account on the Maturity Date until 2 p.m. (Riga time). The LCD shall transfer all payable amounts received
from the lIssuer to the account holders (credit institutions and investment brokerage firms, which are
participants of the LCD) on the same day. The account holders shall transfer the amounts payable to the
Noteholders or the nominee holders, which shall further transfer the respective amounts to the Noteholders.

Should the Maturity Date fall on a date which is not a Business Day, the payment of the amount due will be
postponed to the next Business Day. The postponement of the payment date shall not have an impact on the
amount payable.

12. Taxation

All payments in respect of the Notes by the Issuer shall be made without withholding or deduction for, or on
account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature
(“Taxes”), unless the withholding or deduction of the Taxes is required by laws of the Republic of Latvia. In
such case, the Issuer shall make such payment after the withholding or deduction has been made and shall
account to the relevant authorities in accordance with the applicable laws for the amount so required to be
withheld or deducted. The Issuer shall not be obligated to make any additional compensation to the
Noteholders in respect of such withholding or deduction.

78



13. Publication of the Final Terms
The intial Final Terms of each Tranche will be approved by the Management Board of the Issuer.

Before the offering of the respective Tranche commences, the Final Terms:

- will be submitted to the Financial and Capital Market Commission, who will forward them to the Bank of
Lithuania (Lietuvos Bankas) and the Estonian Financial Supervision Authority (Finantsinspektsioon); and

- will be published on the Issuer’s website www.latvenergo.lv.

Final Terms containing information about the established Annual Interest Rate, Issue Price, the aggregate
principal amount of the respective Tranche and definitive amount of the Notes to be issued will be published
on the Issuer's website www.latvenergo.lv and submitted to the Financial and Capital Market Commission
after allotment of the Notes to the investors.

14. Estimated Expenses Charged to the Investors

No expenses or taxes will be charged to the investors by the Issuer in respect to the issue of the Notes.
However, the investors may be obliged to cover expenses which are related to the opening of securities
accounts with the credit institutions or investment brokerage firms, as well as commissions which are
charged by the credit institutions or investment brokerage firms in relation to the execution of the investor’s
purchase or selling orders of the Notes, the holding of the Notes or any other operations in relation to the
Notes. Neither the Issuer, nor the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent shall compensate the
Noteholders for any such expenses.

15. Admission to Trading

The Issuer shall submit an application regarding inclusion of each Tranche in the official list of AS NASDAQ
OMX Riga, registration number: 40003167049, legal address: Valnu 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia (“NASDAQ
Riga”). An application shall be prepared according to the requirements of NASDAQ Riga and shall be
submitted to NASDAQ Riga within 3 (three) months after the Issue Date of the respective Tranche.

The Issuer shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Notes remain listed in the official list of NASDAQ Riga
or, if such listing is not possible to obtain or maintain, listed or traded on another regulated market. The
Issuer shall, following a listing or admission to trading, take all reasonable actions on its part required as a
result of such listing or trading of the Notes.

The Issuer will cover all costs which are related to the admission of the Notes to the relevant regulated
market.

16. Change of Control

If, after the Issue Date, at any time, the Republic of Latvia ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51
(fifty one) per cent of the issued share capital of the Issuer or ceases to have the power, directly or indirectly,
to cast, or control the casting of, at least 51 (fifty one) per cent of the maximum number of votes that might
be casted at a Shareholders’ Meeting of the Issuer (the “Change of Control”), the Issuer immediately and
without any delay after it becomes aware of the Change of Control shall notify the Noteholders in accordance
with Clause 19 (Notices) about the occurrence of the Change of Control. Accordingly, on the Prepayment
Date (as defined below) the Issuer shall prepay all Noteholders the principal amount of and the interest
accrued on the Notes, but without any premium or penalty. Interest on the Notes accrues until the
Prepayment Date (excluding the Prepayment Date).

“Prepayment Date” means the date falling 45 (forty-five) Business Days after the Issuer becomes aware of
the occurrence of the Change of Control.

17. Negative Pledge
So long as any Note remains outstanding, the Issuer shall not, and shall procure that none of its Subsidiaries

creates mortgage, pledge or any other security interest (each a “Security Interest”), other than a Permitted
Security Interest, upon the whole or any part of its undertaking or assets, present or future, to secure their
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obligations in respect of any present or future Relevant Indebtedness, unless prior to or simultaneously
therewith the Issuer's obligations under the Notes are secured equally and rateably therewith.

“Subsidiary” means a company: (i) in which the Issuer holds a majority of the voting rights; or (ii) of which
the Issuer is a shareholder or participant and has the right to appoint or remove a majority of the members of
the Management Board; or (iii) of which the Issuer is a shareholder or participant and controls a majority of
the voting rights, and includes any company which is a subsidiary of a Subsidiary of the Issuer.

“Group” means the Issuer and its Subsidiaries from time to time.

“Permitted Security Interest’” means any Security Interest created over any asset of any company which
becomes a member of the Group after the issue of the Notes where such Security Interest is created: (i) prior
to the date on which the company becomes a member of the Group, provided that such Security Interest was
not created in contemplation of the acquisition of such company; or (ii) simultaneously with the acquisition of
such company for the sole purpose of financing the acquisition of such company.

“‘Relevant Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness which is in the form of, or represented by, bonds, notes,
debentures or other similar securities which are issued by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries and which are,
or are capable of being, quoted, listed or ordinarily traded on any regulated market or market place or other
established securities, but shall not include any Project Finance Indebtedness.

“Indebtedness” means any indebtedness (whether principal, premium, interest or other amounts) in respect
of any borrowed money of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (other than from the Issuer to any of its
wholly-owned Subsidiaries and from any of the Issuer’s wholly-owned Subsidiaries to the Issuer or to another
wholly-owned Subsidiary).

“Project Finance Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness of the Project Company incurred to finance the
ownership, acquisition, construction, development and/or operation of any specific assets within the energy
sector or any Indebtedness of such Project Company incurred to refinance any of such aforementioned
Indebtedness, where neither persons to whom such Indebtedness is owed nor any other persons shall have
any recourse whatsoever to the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (other than the Project Company) for the
repayment or payment of any sum relating to such Indebtedness.

“Project Company” means a company established or acquired by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries for
the purpose of owning, constructing, developing, operating and/or financing of any specific assets within
energy sector, provided that the respective purpose of the Project Company is specifically
approved/designated by the Issuer.

18. Events of Default

If an Event of Default (as defined below) occurs, the Issuer immediately and without any delay shall notify the
Noteholders in accordance with Clause 19 (Noftices) about the occurrence of an Event of Default.
Accordingly, on the 10" (tenth) Business Day after the occurrence of an Event of Default the Issuer shall
prepay all Noteholders the outstanding principal amount of the Notes and the interest accrued on the Notes,
but without any premium or penalty. Interest on the Notes accrues until the prepayment date (excluding the
prepayment date).

Each of the following events shall constitute an event of default (an “Event of Default”):

(a) Non-Payment: Any amount of interest on or principal of the Notes has not been paid within 5 (five)
Business Days from the relevant due date, unless the failure to pay is caused by a reason referred to
in Clause 20 (Force Majeure).

(b) Breach of Other Obligations: The Issuer fails to perform any its obligations pursuant to these
General Terms and Conditions, or otherwise act in contravention of these General Terms and
Conditions, except that the Issuer has rectified such situation within 20 (twenty) Business Days after
the Issuer becomes or should have become aware of such failure to comply with these General Terms
and Conditions.

80



(c) Disposal of Assets: The Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries enters into a single transaction or a series of
transactions (whether related or not) to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any asset to the Project
Company, unless such disposal is made for a fair market value.

(d)  Cross Default: Any outstanding Indebtedness (including guarantees given by the Issuer) of the Issuer
or any of its Material Subsidiaries (other than in respect of the Project Finance Indebtedness) in a
minimum amount of EUR 10,000,000 (ten million euro) or its equivalent in any other currency, is
accelerated prematurely because of default, howsoever described, or if any such Indebtedness is not
paid or repaid on the due date thereof or within any applicable grace period after the due date, or if
any security given by the Issuer for any such Indebtedness becomes enforceable by reason of default.

(e) Negative Pledge: the Issuer does not comply with its obligations under Clause 17 (Negative Pledge).

(f) Cessation of Business: The Issuer or/and any of its Material Subsidiaries cease to carry on its
current business in its entirety or a substantial part thereof, other than: (i) pursuant to any sale,
disposal, demerger, amalgamation, reorganization or restructuring or any cessation of business in
each case on a solvent basis and within the Group, or (ii) for the purposes of, or pursuant to any terms
approved by the Noteholders’ Meeting, or (iii) in relation to a Material Subsidiary, if the cessation of the
respective business (or substantial part thereof) of the Material Subsidiary is required by any specific
EU regulations or laws of the Republic of Latvia or decisions of any regulatory authority in relation to
the operation of the electricity markets and it does not materially affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its
obligations with regard to the Notes.

(g) Liquidation: An effective resolution is passed for the liquidation of the Issuer or any of its Material
Subsidiaries other than, in case of a Material Subsidiary: (i) pursuant to an amalgamation,
reorganization or restructuring in each case within the Group, or (ii) as a result of the cessation of the
respective business required by any specific EU regulations or laws of the Republic of Latvia or
decisions of any regulatory authority in relation to the operation of the electricity markets and it does
not materially affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations with regard to the Notes, or (iii) for the
purposes of, or pursuant to any terms approved by the Noteholders’ Meeting.

(h) Insolvency: (i) the Issuer or any of its Material Subsidiaries is declared insolvent or bankrupt by a
court of competent jurisdictions or admits inability to pay its debts; (ii) the Issuer or any of its Material
Subsidiaries enters into any arrangement with majority of its creditors by value in relation to
restructuring of its debts or any meeting is convened to consider a proposal for such arrangement; or
(iii) an application to initiate insolvency, restructuring (including procedures such as legal protection
process and out of court legal protection process) or administration of the Issuer or any of its Material
Subsidiaries or any other proceedings for the settlement of the debt of the Issuer or of any of its
Material Subsidiaries is submitted to the court by the Issuer or any of its Material Subsidiaries.

In case of the Issuer’s liquidation or insolvency the Noteholders shall have a right to receive payment of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes and the interest accrued on the Notes according to the relevant
laws governing liquidation or insolvency of the Issuer.

“Material Subsidiary” means at any time any Subsidiary:

(i) whose sales or total assets represent not less than ten 10 (ten) per cent of the consolidated sales or the
consolidated total assets of the Group taken as a whole, all as calculated by reference to the most recent
audited financial statements of the Group; or

(ii) to which is transferred the whole or substantially the whole of the sales or assets and undertakings of the
Subsidiary which, immediately prior to such transfer, is a Material Subsidiary.

19. Notices

Noteholders shall be advised of matters relating to the Notes by a notice published in English and Latvian in
the Central Storage of Regulated Information (www.oricgs.lv), on the Issuer's website www.latvenergo.lv
and, after the Notes are admitted to the regulated market, also on NASDAQ Riga website. Any such notice
shall be deemed to have been received by the Noteholders when published in the manner specified in this
Clause 19.
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20. Force Majeure

The Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent shall be entitled to postpone the fulfilment
of their obligations hereunder, in case the performance is not possible due to continuous existence of any of
the following circumstances:

(a) action of any authorities, war or threat of war, rebellion or civil unrest;

(b) disturbances in postal, telephone or electronic communications which are due to circumstances
beyond the reasonable control of the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent and
that materially affect operations of any of them;

(c) any interruption of or delay in any functions or measures of the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme
or the Issuing Agent as a result of fire or other similar disaster;

(d) any industrial action, such as strike, lockout, boycott or blockade affecting materially the activities of
the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent even if it only affects part of the
employees of any of them and whether any of them is involved therein or not; or

(e) any other similar force majeure or hindrance which makes it unreasonably difficult to carry on the
activities of the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme or the Issuing Agent.

In such case the fulfilment of the obligations may be postponed for the period of the existence of the
respective circumstances and shall be resumed immediately after such circumstances cease to exist,
provided that the Issuer, the Arranger of the Programme and the Issuing Agent shall put all best efforts to
limit the effect of the above referred circumstances and to resume the fulfiiment of their obligations, as soon
as possible.

21. Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of and notice to the Noteholders, create and issue
further Notes whether such further Notes form a single Series with already issued Notes or not. For the
avoidance of doubt, this Clause 21 shall not limit the Issuer's right to issue any other notes.

22. Purchases

The Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries may at any time purchase the Notes in any manner and at any price in
the secondary market. Such Notes may be held, resold or surrendered by the purchaser through the Issuer
for cancellation. Notes held by or for the account of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries for their own account
will not carry the right to vote at the Noteholders’ Meetings and will not be taken into account in determining
how many Notes are outstanding for the purposes of these General Terms and Conditions.

23. Time Bar
In case any payment under the Notes has not been claimed by the respective Noteholder entitled to this
payment within 10 (ten) years from the original due date thereof, the right to such payment shall be forfeited

by the Noteholder and the Issuer shall be permanently released from such payment.

24. Representation of the Noteholders

Within the Programme described herewith, rights of the Noteholders to establish and/or authorize an
organization/person to represent interests of all or a part of the Noteholders are not contemplated, but on the
other hand these are not restricted. The Noteholders should cover all costs/fees of such representative(s) by
themselves.

25. Noteholders’ Meeting

(@) The lIssuer shall have a right to convene a meeting of the Noteholders or the Noteholders of the
relevant Series (as applicable) (the “Noteholders’ Meeting”) or shall do so following a written request
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from the Noteholders who, on the day of the request, represent not less than one-tenth of the principal
amount of the Notes outstanding or the principal amount of the Notes of the relevant Series
outstanding (as applicable) (excluding the Issuer and its Subsidiaries), to decide on amendments of
these General Terms and Conditions, the Final Terms of the Tranches of the relevant Series or other
matters that may significantly affect the interests of the Noteholders.

All expenses in relation to the convening and holding the Noteholders' Meeting shall be covered by the
Issuer.

In case convening of the Noteholders’ Meeting is initiated by the Noteholders, the Issuer shall be
obliged to convene the Noteholders’ Meeting within 3 (three) months after receipt of the respective
Noteholders’ written request.

Notice of the Noteholders’ Meeting shall be published in accordance with Clause 19 (Notices) no later
than 10 (ten) Business Days prior to the meeting. Furthermore, the notice shall specify the time, place
and agenda of the meeting, as well as any action required on the part of the Noteholder that will attend
the meeting. No matters other than those referred to in the notice may be resolved at the Noteholders’
Meeting.

Only those who, according to the register kept by the LCD in respect of the Notes, were registered as
the Noteholders on the 6™ (sixth) Business Day prior to the Noteholders’ Meeting or proxies authorised
by such Noteholders, shall be entitled to vote at the meeting and shall be recorded in the list of
Noteholders in the Noteholders’ Meeting.

The Noteholders’ Meeting shall be held in Riga, Latvia, and its chairman shall be the Issuer’s
representative appointed by the Issuer.

The Noteholders’ Meeting shall constitute a quorum only if one or more Noteholders holding 50 (fifty)
per cent in aggregate or more of the principal amount of the Notes outstanding or the principal amount
of the Notes of relevant Series outstanding (as applicable) are present in the meeting. If the Issuer
and/or any of its Subsidiaries are the Noteholders, their principal amount of the Notes will be excluded
when a quorum of the Noteholders’ Meeting is calculated.

If, within 30 (thirty) minutes after the time specified for the start of the Noteholders’ Meeting, a quorum
is not present, any consideration of the matters to be dealt with at the meeting shall be adjourned for
consideration at a meeting to be convened on a date not earlier than 14 (fourteen) calendar days and
no later than 28 (twenty-eight) calendar days after the original meeting at a place to be determined by
the Issuer. The adjourned Noteholders’ Meeting shall constitute a quorum if one or more Noteholders
holding 25 (twenty-five) per cent in aggregate or more of the principal amount of the Notes outstanding
or the principal amount of the Notes of the relevant Series outstanding (as applicable) are present.
Only those who, according to the register kept by the LCD in respect of the Notes, were registered as
the Noteholders on the 6" (sixth) Business Day prior to the adjourned Noteholders’ Meeting or proxies
authorised by such Noteholders, shall be entitled to vote at the adjourned Noteholders’ Meeting and
shall be recorded in the list of the Noteholders in the adjourned Noteholders’ Meeting.

Notice of the adjourned Noteholders’ Meeting shall be given in the same manner as notice of the
original Noteholder’s Meeting. The notice shall also state the requirements for the constitution of a
quorum.

Voting rights of the Noteholders shall be determined according to the principal amount of the Notes
held. The Issuer and any Subsidiary shall not hold voting rights at the Noteholders’ Meeting.

The Noteholders’ Meeting shall be held in English with translation into Latvian, unless the Noteholders
present in the respective Noteholders’ Meeting unanimously decide that the respective Noteholders’
Meeting shall be held only in Latvian or English.

A representative of the Issuer and a person authorised to act for the Issuer may attend and speak at
the Noteholders’ Meeting.
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Minutes of the Noteholders’ Meeting shall be kept, recording the day and time of the meeting,
attendees, their votes represented, matters discussed, results of voting, and resolutions which were
adopted. The minutes shall be signed by the keeper of the minutes, which shall be appointed by the
Noteholders’ Meeting. The minutes shall be attested by the chairman of the Noteholders’ Meeting, if
the chairman is not the keeper of the minutes, as well as by one of the persons appointed by the
Noteholders’ Meeting to attest the minutes. The minutes shall be published in accordance with Clause
19 (Notices) after the Noteholders’ Meeting as soon as possible and without any delay. If applicable,
new or amended General Terms and Conditions or Final Terms of the Tranches of the relevant Series
(as applicable) shall be appended to the minutes. The minutes shall be stored in a secure manner by
the Issuer.

The Noteholders’ Meeting shall be organised by the chairman of the Noteholders’ Meeting.

The Noteholders’ Meeting is entitled to make the decisions that are binding on all Noteholders as
follows:

consent of simple majority of the Noteholders present at the Noteholders’ Meeting (subject to quorum
requirements) is required to the following decisions:

(i) agreement with the Issuer to change the terms and conditions of the Notes;
(ii) granting of consent to the Issuer which is required according to this Base Prospectus;

however, consent of at least 75 (seventy-five) per cent of the aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding Notes is required for the following decisions:

(iii) agreement with the Issuer to change the law governing the Notes or jurisdiction;

(iv) agreement with the Issuer to amend Clause 5 (Status and Security), Clause 15 (Admission to
Trading), Clause 16 (Change of Control), Clause 17 (Negative Pledge) and Clause 18 (Events of
Default);

(v) agreement with the Issuer to amend the requirements for the constitution of a quorum at a
Noteholders’ Meeting;

(vi) agreement with the Issuer to amend the majority requirements of the Noteholders' Meeting;
(vii) agreement with the Issuer to amend this sub-clause (0);

and consent of at least 75 (seventy-five) per cent of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding
Notes of the respective Series is required for the following decisions:

(vii)  agreement with the Issuer to change the date, or the method of determining the date, for the
payment of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of the relevant Series, to reduce or
cancel the amount of principal, interest or any other amount payable on any date in respect of
the relevant Series or to change the method of calculating the amount of interest or any other
amount payable on any date in respect of the relevant Series;

(ix) agreement with the Issuer to change the currency of the relevant Series;

(x) agreement with the Issuer on any exchange or substitution of the Notes of relevant Series for, or
the conversion of the Notes of relevant Series into, any other obligations or securities of the
Issuer or any other person;

(xi) in connection with any exchange, substitution or conversion of the type referred to in paragraph
(x) agreement with the Issuer to amend any of the provisions of the relevant Series describing
circumstances in which the relevant Series may be redeemed or declared due and payable prior
to their scheduled maturity.
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Resolutions passed at the Noteholders’ Meeting shall be binding on all Noteholders irrespective of
whether they have been present at the Noteholders' Meeting.

The Issuer shall have a right to increase the aggregate principal amount of the Notes to be issued
under the Programme without the consent of the Noteholders or the Noteholders’ Meeting.

The Issuer shall have a right to amend the technical procedures relating to the Notes in respect of

payments or other similar matters without the consent of the Noteholders or the Noteholders’ Meeting,
if such amendments are not prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.
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PLACEMENT OF THE NOTES

1. Placement Account

Initially the Notes of the respective Tranche will be book-entered in the placement account of the Issuing
Agent with the LCD.

2. Placement Period
The placement period for each Tranche (the “Placement Period”) will be specified in the Final Terms.
3. Submission of Purchase Orders

The investors wishing to purchase the Notes shall submit their orders to acquire the Notes (the “Purchase
Orders”) at any time during the Placement Period to the Issuing Agent and its sub-agents, which will be
specified in the Final Terms. The procedure of submission of the Purchase Orders will be specified in the
Final Terms.

4. Purchase Orders

Total amount of the Notes to be acquired and indicated in each Purchase Order shall be for at least Minimum
Investment Amount.

The Purchase Order shall also indicate the lowest acceptable yield to maturity of the Notes (the “Yield to
Maturity”) within the established Yield to Maturity Range (as defined below) (the “Competitive Purchase
Orders”) or an acceptance to acquire the Notes at any Yield to Maturity within the established Yield to
Maturity Range that shall be established by the Issuer in the manner provided in this Base Prospectus (the
“Non-competitive Purchase Orders”). Yield to Maturity is the percentage rate of return paid if the Note is
held to its Maturity Date, assuming that interest paid over the life of the Note is reinvested at the same rate.

Only valid Non-competitive Purchase Orders and Competitive Purchase Orders indicating Yield to Maturity
that is less or equal to the Final Yield to Maturity (to be established as described below) shall be treated as
qualifying Purchase Orders (the “Qualifying Purchase Orders”).

Purchase Orders by the same legal entity or person will be aggregated into one if all order parameters
(except the purchase amount) are the same.

All Purchase Orders are binding and irrevocable commitment to acquire the allotted Notes, with the
exceptions stated below.

5. Range of Yield to Maturity
An expected yield to maturity range (the “Yield to Maturity Range”) for the Notes being offered will be
specified in the Final Terms. The Issuer has a right to amend the Yield to Maturity Range during the
Placement Period and announce updated Yield to Maturity Range (the “Updated Yield to Maturity Range”).
The Updated Yield to Maturity Range will be published on the Issuer's website www.latvenergo.lv.
Investors should follow the information on the aforementioned website and have a right to modify or cancel
their Purchase Orders if the Yield to Maturity Range has been updated, provided that such modification or
cancellation of the Purchase Order is received by the Issuing Agent before the end of the Placement Period.
6. Invalid Purchase Orders
The Purchase Order shall not be considered valid and shall not be processed in case the purchase amount
indicated in the Purchase Order is less than the Minimum Investment Amount, the Purchase Order was

received after the Placement Period or the Yield to Maturity indicated in the Purchase Order is higher than
the maximum value of the Yield to Maturity Range or the Updated Yield to Maturity Range, as the case may
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be, applicable at the end of the Placement Period. Neither the Issuer, nor the Issuing Agent has any
obligation to inform investors about the fact that their Purchase Orders are invalid.

7. Allotment

On the next Business Day following the Placement Period the Issuer will decide whether to proceed with the
offering of the Notes of a Tranche or cancel the offering.

In case the offering of the Notes of a Tranche is cancelled, the Issuer will publish an announcement on the
Issuer’s website www.latvenergo.lv, as well as submit this information to the Financial and Capital Market
Commission.

In case the Issuer decides to proceed with the offering of the Notes of a Tranche the following actions shall
be taken on the next Business Day following the Placement Period:

(a) Establishment of the Final Yield to Maturity and Qualifying Purchase Orders

The Issuer together with the Issuing Agent, on the basis of the submitted valid Purchase Orders and
indicated Yield to Maturity shall establish the final Yield to Maturity (the “Final Yield to Maturity”) payable to
the investors.

The Final Yield to Maturity shall be established according to the following procedure: the Purchase Orders
with the lowest Yield to Maturity shall be fulfilled as first. Afterwards, the Purchase Orders with the next
highest Yield to Maturity shall be fulfilled in ascending order. The procedure continues until the amount of the
Purchase Orders fulfilled, including the Non-competitive Purchase Orders, reaches the aggregate principal
amount of the respective Tranche. The Yield to Maturity at which the amount of the Purchase Orders fulfilled
reached the actual amount of the respective Tranche shall be considered as the Final Yield to Maturity. The
established Final Yield to Maturity shall be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after
allotment of the Notes to the investors.

The Final Yield to Maturity shall be the same for all investors acquiring the Notes of the respective Tranche
during the offering.

Based on the established Final Yield to Maturity the Issuer together with the Issuing Agent shall determine
which Purchase Orders can be treated as Qualifying Purchase Orders, and the extent of their satisfaction.

(b) Determination of Annual Interest Rate and Issue Price

The Annual Interest Rate shall be set by rounding down Final Yield to Maturity to the nearest tenth of the
rounded digit (which itself is set in percentage terms). The established Annual Interest Rate shall be
specified in the Final Terms to be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.

The Issue Price of the Notes shall be established according to a formula provided in the Final Terms and
shall be rounded to the nearest thousandth of the rounded digit under arithmetic rounding rules. The
established Issue Price shall be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the
Notes to the investors.

(c) Allotment of the Notes to the Investors

Upon determination of the Annual Interest Rate and the Issue Price, the Issuer together with the Issuing
Agent will establish the exact amount of the Notes to be allotted with respect to each Qualifying Purchase
Order. The procedure of allotment of the Notes will be specified in the Final Terms for the offering of the
relevant Tranche.

(d) Announcement
Final Terms containing the information about the established Annual Interest Rate, Issue Price, the
aggregate principal amount of the respective Tranche and definitive amount of the Notes to be issued will be

published on the Issuer's website www.latvenergo.lv, as well as submitted to the Financial and Capital
Market Commission.
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(e) Confirmations

After completion of the allotment with respect to each Qualifying Purchase Order the Issuing Agent shall
submit a trade confirmation (the “Confirmation”) to each investor by way of fax or by e-mailing an electronic
copy of the Confirmation. The Confirmation will evidence the extent of satisfaction or rejection of the
Purchase Order submitted by the investor, the number of Notes allotted to the investor, the Issue Price and
the amount (price) payable for the Notes, as well as Annual Interest Rate.

8. Settlement

The settlement for the Notes will be carried out in accordance with the DVP (Delivery vs Payment) principle
pursuant to the LCD Rules No 5 “On DVP Settlement for OTC Transactions”.

The settlement will take place on the Issue Date. After the Issuing Agent submits a corresponding DVP
instruction via LCD system, an investor, acting through its credit institution or investment brokerage firm with
which the investor has opened a securities account, must confirm that instruction immediately (by sending a
relevant instruction) but not later that by 4 p.m. (Riga time) on the same day. All paid up Notes shall be
treated as issued. The Notes which are not paid up shall be cancelled.

9. Information About the Results of the Placement
Information about the results of the placement of each Tranche (amount of the Notes issued and aggregate

principal amount of the respective Tranche) shall be published on the Issuer’s website www.latvenergo.lv
within 3 (three) Business Days after the Issue Date.

88



FORM OF THE FINAL TERMS

Final Terms dated [e]
Latvenergo AS
Issue of [e] Notes due [e]
under the Second programme for the issuance of Notes
in the amount of EUR 100,000,000
[to be consolidated and form a single series with [e]]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the General Terms and
Conditions set forth in the Base Prospectus of the Second programme for the issuance of Notes in the
amount of EUR 100,000,000 of Latvenergo AS dated 25 May 2015 [as supplemented by supplement(s) to it
dated [e] [and [e]] (the “Base Prospectus”), which constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of
Directive 2003/71/EC as amended (which includes the amendments made by Directive 2010/73/EU to the
extent that such amendments have been implemented in a relevant Member State of the European
Economic Area (the “Prospectus Directive”)).

This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of
the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus.

Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of
these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus. However, a summary of the issue of the Notes is annexed to
these Final Terms.

The Base Prospectus has been published on the Issuer’s website www.latvenergo.lv.

1. Issuer: Latvenergo AS

2. Series Number: [®]

3. Tranche Number: [o]

4, ISIN Code: [[e]/[Temporary ISIN Code: [e]. Upon admission of the Notes to the

regulated market the Notes will be consolidated and form a single
series with [e] and will have a common ISIN code [e]]

5. Aggregate principal amount: [EUR [e]" [in addition to [e]]]

6. Nominal amount of the Note: EUR [e]

7. Issue Date: [o]

8. Annual Interest Rate [o]

9. Interest Payment Date: [e] each year
10.  Maturity Date: [o]

11.  Minimum Investment Amount:  [e]

' The Issuer may increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Tranche during the Placement Period of the Tranche. The
final aggregate principal amount of the Tranche will be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes
to the investors.

2 Annual Interest Rate shall be determined by the Issuer according to the Section “Placement of the Notes” of the Base Prospectus.
Annual Interest Rate will be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors .
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Yield to Maturity Range”:
Final Yield to Maturity:

Formula for calculation of the
Issue Price:

Issue Price:
Placement Period:

Procedure for submission of
the Purchase Orders:

Procedure for allotment of the
Notes:

Indication of the material
features of the agreement with
the lIssuing Agent, including
quotas:

Sub-agents of the Issuing
Agent:

Rating:

Use of Proceeds:

Information about the notes of
the lIssuer that are already
admitted to trading on
regulated markets:

from [e] to [e]*
[o]°

The Issue Price of the Notes will be established by the Issuer
according to the following formula: [e]

OF
[e]
[e]

[]

[]

[e]

the Notes to be issued [are not/have been/are expected to be] rated
[oy:[e]]

[The net proceeds of the issue of each Tranche will be used by the
Issuer for its general corporate purposes] / [The net proceeds of the
issue of each Tranche will be used by the Issuer for [e]].

[e]

These Final Terms have been approved by the Management Board of the Issuer at its meeting on [date]
[month] [year] [and will be updated after allotment of the Notes to the investors, as well as published on the
Issuer’s website www.latvenergo.lv and submitted to the Financial and Capital Market Commission] / [and
have been updated on [date] [month] [year] after allotment of the Notes to the investors].

Riga, [date] [month] [year]

[e]

3 The Issuer has a right to amend the Yield to Maturity Range during the Placement Period and announce the updated Yield to Maturity
Range (the “Updated Yield to Maturity Range”). Updated Yield to Maturity Range will be published on the Issuers website
www.latvenergo.lv. Investors should follow the information on the aforementioned website and have a right to modify or cancel their
Purchase Orders if the Yield to Maturity Range has been updated, provided that such modification or cancellation of Purchase Order is
received by the Issuing Agent before the end of the Placement Period.

4

[e]

5 Final Yield to Maturity shall be determined by the Issuer according to the Section “Placement of the Notes” of the Base Prospectus.
Final Yield to Maturity will be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.

6 Issue Price shall be determined by the Issuer according to the Section “Placement of the Notes” of the Base Prospectus. Issue Price
will be specified in the Final Terms, which will be published after allotment of the Notes to the investors.
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Annex - Issue Specific Summary
(Issuer to annex an issue specific summary and its translations to the Final Terms)
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP

General information

The legal and commercial name of the Company is Latvenergo AS. The Company is a public limited company
(akciju sabiedriba) incorporated pursuant to the laws of the Republic of Latvia on 8 October 1991. The Company
is registered with the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia and operates according to the legislation of
the Republic of Latvia. All the shares of the Company are owned by the Republic of Latvia and held by the
Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia.

Basic information

Registration number: 40003032949

Registered address: Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia
Website: www.latvenergo.lv

Telephone number: +371 67 728 222

History and development of the Group

In October 1939, the first hydroelectric unit of Kegums hydropower plant - the first hydropower plant on the River
Daugava, was launched.

On 22 December 1939, the National Electricity Company Kegums was founded, which is the historical starting
point of the Group.

In 2" half of the 20" century the power system in the territory of Latvia was developed and the electrification of
Latvia was launched. The main power plants were constructed and gradually putinto operation, including
Plavinas hydropower plant (1965) and Riga hydropower plant (1974) on the River Daugava and Riga TEC-1
combined heat and power plant (1955) and Riga TEC-2 combined heat and power plant (1975). The
transmission and distribution systems were established throughout the respective time period.

During 1990 — 2014, extensive reconstruction and renovation works of the power stations and transmission and
distributions systems were made in order to improve the capacity, efficiency and safety.

In 1989, the production company Latvenergo was established.
In 1991, the production company Latvenergo was restructured into a state owned enterprise.

In 2001, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Augstsprieguma tikls AS was established, which deals with the
transmission of electric power. In 2005, Augstsprieguma tikls AS started to function as a legally independent
transmission system operator.

In 2005, the Company’s subsidiary Liepajas Energija SIA was established, which deals with electricity and
thermal energy generation, transmission and sales in Liepaja district (Latvia). The Company possess a 51 per
cent controlling share in Liepajas Energija SIA.

In 2006, the Company’'s wholly-owned subsidiary Sadales tikls AS was established, which deals with the
distribution of electric power. In 2007, Sadales tikls AS started to function as a legally independent distribution
system operator.

In 2007-2008, the Group expanded its business abroad. The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Latvenergo

Kaubandus OU (in Estonia) and Latvenergo Prekyba UAB (in Lithuania) were established with the main
business area - electricity trade in each particular country. In 2012, the Estonian and Lithuanian subsidiaries
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acquired a new trade name — Elektrum — and were registered as Elektrum Eesti OU (in Estonia) and Elektrum
Lietuva UAB (in Lithuania).

In 2011-2012, for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of legal and functional unbundling of transmission
system ownership from generation, distribution and supply activities, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS was established to be the owner of the electricity transmission system assets and the
transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS was sold to the Republic of Latvia in person of the
Ministry of Finance.

In 2014, a new wholly-owned subsidiary to the Company — Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS — was established.
The subsidiary has taken over the mandatory procurement administration functions from the Company.

At the date of this Base Prospectus the Company is the parent company of the Group. The Group includes
seven subsidiaries, of which six are wholly-owned by the Company.

Key consolidated figures
The following table summarizes key consolidated financial data and the volume of electricity sales and

generation as of, and for each of the years ended, 31 December 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 and as of,
and for each of the three-month periods ended 31 March 2014 and 2015 respectively.

Year ended 31 December Three months ended

31 March
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Key Financial data (the Group)
Revenue € million 804 962 1,064 1,100 1,011 324 260
EBITDA " € million 294 255 244 249 237 83 95
Profit € million 63 62 51 46 30 31 39
Total assets € million 3,243 3,256 3,518 3,575 3,487 3,598 3,527
Total equity € million 1,913 1,923 2,007 2,022 2,021 2,050 2,059
Net Debt ? € million 443 575 604 689 706 680 689
Investments € million 181 283 264 225 178 27 25
Capital ratio * per cent 59 59 57 57 58 57 58
EBITDA margin * per cent 37 26 23 23 23 24 26
Net debt/EBITDA 15 2.3 2.5 2.8 3.0 2.5 2.8
Operating Figures (the Group)
Retail electricity supply GWh 7,620 8,980 8,287 7,954 8,688 2,488 2,132
Electricity generation GWh 5,869 5,285 5,077 4,854 3,625 1,192 1,027
Thermal energy supply GWh 2,928 2,524 2,669 2,517 2,442 1,077 990
Distributed electricity GWh 6,380 6,199 6,468 6,447 6,421 1,724 1,795

1) EBITDA: earnings before interest, corporate income tax, share of profit or loss of associates, depreciation and amortisation, and
impairment of intangible and fixed assets.

2) Net debt: borrowings at the end of the period minus cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

3) Capital ratio: total equity / total assets

4) EBITDA margin: EBITDA / revenue
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There have not been any recent material events that would be relevant for assessing solvency of the Company
and the Group.

The Group’s Strategy

The Group’s strategy for the period 2012 - 2016 takes into account the following key challenges expected
during this period: complete liberalization of the electricity market in the Baltics, reduced electricity generation
capacities in the region, necessity of significant improvements in the distribution infrastructure and quality of
service and construction of transmission interconnections and continued integration into the Nordic market.

After evaluating challenges in the external environment in the next few years and the strong position of the
Group, three strategic goals were identified:

- strengthening of the market position in the Baltics;

- diversification of electricity generation sources;

- balanced development of networks.

Electricity supply

The Group supplies electricity in all three Baltic countries. The Group expanded its operations to Estonia and
Lithuania from the time of the market liberalization in these countries. Based on the experience from these de-
regulated markets, the Group has adjusted internal processes and systems with a focus to continuously improve
and extend the Group’s customer services. The Group has managed to strengthen its position as the largest
electricity supplier in the Baltics by wisely seizing opportunities and scaling up its trade activities outside Latvia.
In 2014, the Group supplied 8.7 TWh of electricity in the retail market segment, thus covering more than one-
third of the Baltic electricity retail market needs.

Strengthening of the position of the Group in the Baltic market is aimed at making the Group a fully-fledged and
equally positioned electricity retail participant in all three Baltic countries, retaining an economically substantial
market share and increasing the number of customers, focusing on small and medium sized enterprises and
households. The target is particularly challenging as during the strategy implementation period the Baltic
electricity market is transforming. Trading on the Nord Pool Spot exchange within the Lithuanian bidding area
had started in June 2012; opening of the Latvian bidding area followed in June 2013, and since June 2014 the
Group trades all of its generated electricity on the exchange. The launch of the Estlink-2 interconnection between
Finland and Estonia significantly impacted the wholesale segment in the beginning of 2014, levelling out prices
and further integrating the Baltics into the Nordic electricity market.

As the Baltic market continues its convergence with the Nordic electricity markets, strengthening of the Group’s
market position will continue to be the main challenge in coming years. This is expected to result in the
appearance of new market participants and increasing competition, continued electricity price volatility and
access to imports of cheaper electricity from the Nordic countries.

Electricity and Heat Generation

The Group’s key strategic targets for the generation segment are related to the diversification of electricity
generation sources in two directions — geographical expansion and underlying generation resource variations. It
is achieved by restoring the existing capacities and investing in new facilities, with a focus on economically
justified investments in low-emission sources. The programme to overhaul the Daugava HPP cascade continues
and is scheduled for completion in 2022, and is expected to improve the efficiency, safety and competitiveness
of the Daugava HPPs. Now when more than half of the hydropower units of the Daugava HPPs have been
reconstructed and the second power unit of Riga TEC-2 has been commissioned, the Group has a balanced
portfolio of efficient, environmentally friendly generation capacities — 976 MW at the CHPPs and 1,536 MW at
the HPPs — allowing the Group to operate successfully in both base and peak regimes and providing flexibility
in adjusting operations to electricity market processes.
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In relation to geographical expansion of the operations, the Group considers various investments and acquisition
projects, including also nuclear energy. Low emission rates and payback characteristics are the key selection
criteria for the projects considered for development or acquisition.

Distribution

The balanced maintenance and further modernization of the distribution network in Latvia is another strategic
target of the Group. In implementing the strategy, the greatest challenge in respect of electricity distribution
infrastructure was the accelerated aging of this infrastructure with poor electricity availability and low quality
indicators, which is a result of prolonged lack of investments in this field. Considering the extent of the
distribution infrastructure and its complicated structure, improvement of quality indicators while maintaining
distribution service tariffs at levels that are affordable to consumers, is a long-term endeavor.

The Sadales tikls AS Development Plan 2014-2023 was drafted in 2013, specifying investment priorities for the
coming decade, including replacement of overhead lines with cables, network automation, and development of
smart technologies. Coherent implementation of the Development Plan in the coming years will be a major
challenge in the electricity distribution segment. By implementing the strategy, the Group achieves increase in
value and makes a major contribution in satisfaction of public necessities, at the same time applying
sustainability principles.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The operations of the Group are organised along three operating segments: generation and supply, distribution
and management of transmission system assets.

The generation and supply segment includes generation of electricity and thermal energy, conducted by the
Company and Liepajas energija SIA, as well as electricity wholesale and retail in the Baltics carried out by the
Company and its subsidiaries Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB. As of 1 April 2014, the functions of
public trader are handled by the subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS.

The distribution segment provides electricity distribution services in Latvia. Services are provided by Sadales tikls
AS — the largest distribution system operator in Latvia.

The management of transmission system assets segment is ensured by Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS — the owner
and manager of transmission system assets. The Republic of Latvia has applied the second unbundling model
under EU Directive 2009/72/EC, which provides that the electricity transmission system assets shall remain with
a vertically integrated utility, while the activities of the transmission system operator are independently managed.
The assets are leased out to the Latvian transmission system operator — Augstsprieguma tikls AS.

Year ended 31 December Three;r;v;rrl:hended
2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Key financial data divided in the operating
segments:
(€ million) (€ million)

Revenue 962 1,064 1,100 1,011 324 260
Generation and supply 748 744 774 677 239 173
Distribution 270 291 293 297 78 75
Management of Transmission System Assets 54 55 58 61 15 12
Other* (109) (27) (25) (25) (7) 0
EBITDA 255 244 249 237 83 95
Generation and supply 128 105 103 86 42 53
Distribution 78 86 91 93 26 25
Management of Transmission System Assets 33 35 38 41 10 11
Other* 15 18 17 17 4 5
Assets 3,256 3,518 3,575 3,487 3,598 3,527
Generation and supply 1,320 1,519 1,497 1,514 1,528 1523
Distribution 1,227 1,241 1,252 1,272 1,252 1276
Management of Transmission System Assets 371 384 431 457 435 456
Other* 338 374 395 243 384 272

* Including corporate functions, discontinued operations (in 2011), adjustments and eliminations

The Group reports financial results in respect of each operating segment since 2011.
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Generation and supply
Generation and supply is the largest business segment of the Group in terms of both revenue and asset value.

Activities within this segment include supply of generated and purchased electricity to retail customers in the
Baltics as well as in wholesale — mostly on the Nord Pool Spot exchange — and production and supply of thermal
energy for district heating purposes in Liepaja and Riga.

The major part of the generation and supply segment revenues are unregulated, while the tariff-regulated
operational revenues comprise revenues from:

- supply of electricity to vulnerable customers (poor or low-income persons, large families);

- generation of electricity (payment for installed capacity) and thermal energy at Riga CHPPs;

- generation of electricity and thermal energy at Liepaja generation facilities and small plants.

Revenues of the operating segment also include revenues from supply of thermal energy generated at the
Group’s plants. The revenues from thermal energy supply amounted to EUR 109 million in 2014, accounting for
approximately 11 per cent of the total Group revenues. Approximately 90 per cent of thermal energy generated
by the Group is supplied to the Riga district heating company Rigas Siltums AS at regulated tariffs.

The generation business is subdivided according to generation types — CHPPs, HPPs and other generation
units. Total installed electrical capacity of the Group’s plants is 2,569 MW, of which 40 per cent are installed at
CHPPs and 60 percent — at HPPs. The total installed thermal energy capacity of the Group is 1,844 MW.

Market outlook

Since 2007, the Baltics have been undergoing gradual liberalisation of the electricity market. As of 1 January
2013, electricity market is open to all customers in Estonia and as of 1 January 2015 — also in Latvia. In
Lithuania, the electricity market is open to business customers, while electricity market opening for households is
expected to take place in the coming years.

Size of the market and competition

The size of Baltic electricity market was approximately 24.6 TWh in 2014. The largest market is Lithuania with
9.6 TWh, followed by the Estonian market with 7.9 TWh and the Latvian market with 7.1 TWh. The Lithuanian
market is also the largest Baltic market in terms of number of customers — 1.6 million. The Estonian electricity
market is the largest among the three Baltic countries measured by per capita electricity consumption. The
relatively higher electricity consumption level in Estonia is explained by the country's substantial level of
industrialization and a relatively higher number of homes heated with electricity.

In the first quarter of 2015, the Group was the largest retail electricity supplier by its market share in the Baltics,
supplying more than one third of the Baltic retail electricity supply to its customers. The Group is a market leader
in Latvia, holding 80 per cent market share in the first quarter of 2015. The Group’s market share in Lithuania
and Estonia was 11 per cent and 16 per cent in the first quarter of 2015, respectively. The Group’s main
competitor in the Baltic market is Eesti Energia AS, holding approximately 26 per cent of the overall Baltic
market, and being the market leader in Estonia. The market is more fragmented in Lithuania, where the Group is
among the four largest market players. A significant competitor in all three Baltic countries is also the Russian
electricity supplier Inter Rao with its subsidiaries in Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia.

Unregulated electricity market retail
The amount of electricity supplied by the Group in the Baltics was 8,688 GWh in 2014 and 2,132 GWh in the
first quarter of 2015. The amount of electricity supplied outside Latvia represents more than one third of the total

retail electricity supply, reaching 3,053 GWh in 2014 and 645 GWh in the first quarter of 2015, which is
approximately 80 per cent more than the supply volume of competing electricity suppliers in Latvia.
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Overall, the Group supplied electricity to approximately 867.8 thousand customers as of 31 March 2015, of
which — approximately 833.7 thousand in Latvia, 5.6 thousand in Lithuania and 28.5 thousand in Estonia. More
than 96 per cent of the customers are in the household segment, while the rest are legal entities.

Regulated electricity market retail

According to the Electricity Market Law in the transitional period (2015), the Company has an obligation to
supply a certain amount of electricity to vulnerable customers (100 kWh per month to poor and low-income
persons, 300 kWh per month to large families) at discounted electricity price of 0.0131 EUR per kWh (excluding
VAT). From 1 January 2016 the supply to vulnerable customers will be co-financed from the State, and the
supplier will be determined in a public tender.

Mandatory Procurement

The electricity public supplier licence provides an obligation for the Group to purchase electricity from supported
generation types under the feed-in tariff scheme (a policy mechanism designed to accelerate investments in
renewable energy technologies). In accordance with the Electricity Market Law, as of 1 April 2014, the functions
of public trader were transferred to the Company’s newly-established subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotajs
AS. Until 1 April 2014, these functions were performed by the Company.

Mandatory procurement net expenditures7 are compensated for the public trader through the PSO Fee paid by
the end-users in Latvia and a state budget grant. The amount of the PSO Fee is determined based on actual
expenditures in the preceding year as approved by the PUC, and the changes take effect on 1 April in the
following year. As of 1 April 2015, the PSO Fee is EUR 2.679 cents/kWh.

The Subsidised Electricity Tax (the “SET”) was introduced on 1 January 2014 for a four-year period. The tax
applies to state support for generators within mandatory procurement, i.e. to income from electricity supplied
within the mandatory procurement and guaranteed capacity payments for installed capacity at the CHPPs. The
SET is aimed at financing the state budget grant for limiting an increase in the PSO Fee. In 2014, a grant for
compensation of mandatory procurement expenditures in the amount of EUR 29 million was credited to the
account of Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS. The grant is restricted with respect to its use until the European
Commission concludes the conformation process. A EUR 28 million grant is provided in the state budget for
2015.

Wholesale

Since mid-2014, the Group trades all of the generated electricity on the Nord Pool Spot exchange and at the
same time procures electricity for supply of customer consumption, increasing electricity supply and turnover in
the Latvian bidding area. The generation capacity of the Group also ensures electricity supply support services,
such as provision of emergency back-up capacity and supply of regulating electricity to transmission system
operators, as well as supply of balancing electricity.

In addition, the Group’s electricity wholesale unit is responsible for managing electricity price fluctuation risks
including the use of electricity price hedging transactions for this purpose.

Generation

The Group has a balanced energy production portfolio, consisting of efficient power stations and renewable
energy sources. The Group is the leading electricity and thermal energy generator in Latvia — its power plants
provide approximately 70 per cent of all electricity generated in the country, satisfying more than half of the
electricity demand in Latvia. The Group also accounts for approximately 70 per cent of the overall thermal
energy output in Riga.

" Mandatory procurement net expenditures — costs of electricity procured within the mandatory procurement process and guaranteed
payments for installed capacity at power plants minus revenues from trade of procured electricity on Nord Pool Spot exchange, minus
Subsidised Energy Tax
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The total electric capacity of generators installed at the Group’s production facilities as of 31 March 2015 was
2,569 MW, whereas the total heat generation capacity of installed thermal generation facilities was 1,844 MWj,.

The Group’s installed electrical capacity as per 31 March 2015:
31 March 2015

(MWe)
Daugava HPPs 1,536
Riga CHPPs 1,025
Liepaja plants 6
Small plants 2
Total 2,569

*installed capacity in the condensation mode

The Group’s thermal energy capacity of installed generation facilities as per 31 March 2015:
31 March 2015

(MW
Riga CHPPs 1,617
Liepaja plants 223
Small plants 4
Total 1,844

Generation at HPPs

The Group’s three largest HPPs — Plavinas, Kegums and Riga plants - are located on the River Daugava. In
2014, the respective HPPs produced 53 per cent of the total electricity generated by the Group. Although, the
HPPs have a large installed capacity, their ability to generate electricity is dependent on the water inflow. HPPs
usually operate at full capacity only during spring flooding, which typically lasts for about two months. Peak
electricity production typically occurs in April.

The Plavinas HPP is the largest HPP in the Baltics in terms of installed capacity. It started operations in 1968
with ten hydropower units with a total capacity of 825 MW, at that time. Following a reconstruction of six of the
hydropower units during 1991 to 2001 the plant’s installed capacity was increased to 869 MW,. From 1991 to
2010, nine of ten hydropower units were reconstructed, resulting in a total capacity of 894 MW, for the plant.
The reconstruction of the hydropower units has not only resulted in increased capacities and efficiency ratios but
also in increased share of energy produced from renewable sources.

The Kegums HPP is the oldest on the River Daugava, built in 1936-1939 and restored in 1945-1947. The
installed capacity of the plant reaches 240 MW,.

The Riga HPP entered into service in 1974 and has six hydropower units with a total capacity of 402 MW,.
Generation at CHPPs

Riga CHPPs owned by the Group are mostly used to cover the requested thermal load operated in the highly
efficient cogeneration mode, simultaneously generating both electricity and thermal energy.

According to the change in support mechanism for CHPPs with installed capacity above 4 MW, Riga CHPPs no
longer receive compensation for natural gas and other variable costs. Riga CHPPs receive only capacity
payments and the amount of this support has been decreased by introducing the SET as of 1 January 2014.
Riga CHPPs operate efficiently and flexibly, operating modes of Riga CHPPs are adjusted to the market
conditions.

Riga TEC-1 was built in 1954 -1958 and fully reconstructed in 2005. The installed electric capacity and thermal
capacity at Riga TEC-1 is 144 MW, and 493 MWy, respectively.
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Riga TEC-2 is the largest combined heat and power plant in Latvia. It was launched in 1973. The reconstruction
of the Riga TEC-2 was commenced in 2006. The construction of the first power unit was completed in 2008, and
the second unit was commissioned at the end of 2013. Riga TEC-2 is currently the most efficient CHPP in the
Baltics. With the commissioning of the second power unit, the electrical capacity of Riga TEC-2 in cogeneration
mode reached 832 MW, and the total thermal energy capacity of the two power units is 544 MWy, The total
thermal energy capacity of Riga TEC-2, including water boilers, is 1,124 MWy,. Riga CHPPs are the guarantee of
the electricity base-load capacity and almost fully can cover entire Latvian electricity consumption in
circumstances where due to some factors electricity import from foreign countries is limited.

Other generation units

The Company holds 51 per cent of the equity in Liepajas energija SIA. This company primary ensures
generation and supply of thermal energy to the Latvia’s city of Liepaja. The total installed thermal energy
capacity of the Liepaja plants as of 31 March 2015 was 223 MWy, including 40 MWy, from a renewable resource
(wood chips). Installed electric capacity totals 6 MWy,

Generation facilities within the energy system of the Group also include two small power plants — the Ainazi wind
power plant (WPP) with a capacity of 1.0 MW, and the Aiviekste HPP with a capacity of 0.8 MW,.

Distribution

Distribution is the second largest operating segment within the Group in terms of both revenue and asset value.
Its operations involve provision of distribution services to approximately 840 thousand customers in Latvia at
regulated tariffs.

The distribution system service is provided by the Company’s subsidiary Sadales tikls AS, the largest distribution
system operator in Latvia. The distribution system operator ensures equal access to electricity distribution
networks, which is one of the prerequisites for facilitating competition on the electricity market in Latvia. The
electricity distribution network ensures the flow of electricity from the electricity transmission network and
electricity generators to electricity consumers. The total length of low and medium-voltage cable and overhead
lines at the end of 2014 was 94,609 km, with 29,711 transformers and 26,764 transformer substations with a
total installed capacity of 5,869 MVA. The total volume of distributed electricity in 2014 was 6,421 GWh, and
during the period from 2010 to 2014 electricity losses were reduced by 25 per cent reaching 4.8 per cent in
2014.

The PUC develops methodology for and approves tariffs for distribution system operators. Distribution system
assets of the Group have been revalued, thus increasing the regulatory asset base. The current distribution
service tariffs do not cover the required return in the full amount. Last amendments to distribution tariffs were
approved in April 2011.

Management of transmission system assets

Transmission system asset management functions are performed by Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS. Operation of the
segment in 2014 included construction, maintenance and lease of transmission assets in Latvia (330 kV and 110
kV electricity transmission lines, substations and distribution points) to the transmission system operator —
Augstsprieguma tikls AS.

As of 1 January 2015, the transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS has taken over the
construction and maintenance functions of the transmission system assets. Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS continues
to conduct the transmission asset management, i.e. financing and lease of transmission system assets.

At the end of 2014, the total length of electricity transmission lines was 5,273 km, of which 74 per cent relate to
110 kV lines and 26 per cent to 330 kV lines. Sixteen 330 kV substations with a total automatic transformer
capacity of 3,825 MVA and one hundred twenty-one 110 kV substations with a total installed transformer
capacity of 5,075 MVA are maintained in order to ensure the operation of the transmission network.
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Investments

Operations of the Group are capital intensive and require significant investments. The following table
summarises the total investments of the Group for the period 2010 — 2014 and for two interim periods ended 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2015.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 3 months 3 months
2014 2015
(Audited) (Unaudited)
(€ million) (€ million)
Investments 181 2,837 264 225 178 27 25

On-going investments (committed capital expenditures) as at 31 March 2015

The table below provides information as at 31 March 2015 on contractually committed capital investments of the
Group for the period 2015 - 2022.

2015 2016 2017 2018-2022
(€ million)
Generation 423 411 22.4 4.8
Daugava HPPs reconstruction 32.7 27.3 16.0 4.8
Distribution
379 0.4 0.2 0.0
Other 13.5 0.1 0.0 0.0
Total committed 93.7 41.6 22.6 4.8

According to the Electricity Market Law, the Company’s subsidiary Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS is obliged to
finance investments in transmission system assets. Transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS sets
and the PUC approves the amount of investments for the next 10 years. The Company’s subsidiary Latvijas
elektriskie tikli AS assesses financing options and finances the investments implemented by Augstsprieguma
tikls AS. Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS has a right to refuse providing financing, which means that Augstsprieguma
tikls AS may decide upon other financing options. The ten year investment plan is annually revised by
Augstsprieguma tikls AS. According to the transmission system development plan, the contingent liabilities of the
Group are EUR 21.3 million, EUR 42.1 million and EUR 76.7 million for 2015, 2016 and 2017 respectively. Total
financing needs for transmission system assets amounts to EUR 452 million according to the latest 10 year
investment plan approved by the PUC.

The Group has one major on-going committed investment project - the reconstruction project of Daugava HPPs,
and two on-going contingent investment projects - the NORDBALT-02-330kV Kurzeme Ring final stage and
Estonia — Latvia third interconnection. Other commitments represent regular maintenance and replacements.

Daugava HPPs hydropower unit reconstruction programme

The Group pursues gradual reconstruction of 11 Daugava HPPs hydropower units. The programme is scheduled
for completion in 2022, with estimated total reconstruction costs of around EUR 200 million.

Until the end of 2014, contracts were signed for the replacement of two Plavinas HPP hydropower units and
three hydropower units at Kegums HPP, with total committed capital investments amounting to EUR 81 million.
In April 2015, a contract for the reconstruction of Riga HPP hydropower units was signed, increasing committed
capital expenditure by EUR 105 million.
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NORDBALT -02 - 330kV Kurzeme Ring

The project implementation will increase safety in Kurzeme region and in Latvia as a whole and enable the use
of the Lithuania-Sweden marine cable NordBalt (commissioning expected until 2016), and thus further
integrating the Baltics into the Nordic electricity market. In 2013, the Riga Ring was commissioned and in August
2014, a 330 kV electricity transmission line connection Grobina-Ventspils was commissioned. Investments in the
first and second stage of the project totalled EUR 95 million. The final stage of the project Ventpils-Tume-Riga is
expected for completion in 2019. Total construction costs are estimated at approximately EUR 220 million. In
May 2015, a contract with the European Commission Innovation and Networks Executive Agency was concluded
providing 45 per cent EU co-funding of all eligible costs of the project. It is estimated that the total investments
for the Group related to the third phase of the project will amount to EUR 127 million.

Estonia-Latvia third interconnection

Implementation of this project is a part of the 10-year electricity transmission network development plan devised
by Augstsprieguma tikls AS. The new 330 kV interconnection will increase the available throughput between the
Latvian and Estonian energy systems, decreasing the price difference between Estonian and Latvian/Lithuanian
bidding areas. Three parties are involved in the implementation of the project: the Estonian transmission system
operator Elering OU, Latvian transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS and the Company’s
subsidiary Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS as the owner of transmission system assets in Latvia. The planned length
of the new 330 kV interconnection line will be about 190 km in Latvia, and it is scheduled for completion by late
2020. The construction costs of the project on Latvian side are expected to total about EUR 100 million. In May
2015, a contract with the European Commission Innovation and Networks Executive Agency was concluded
providing 65 per cent EU co-funding of all eligible costs of the project.

Financing

In order to finance committed capital investments the Group uses cash flow from operating activities and
borrowed funds. External funding consists of bilateral bank loans and bonds issued. The Group has established
long-standing funding cooperation with supranational financial institutions and commercial banks. The Group
has diversified the borrowing sources by issuing bonds during the preceding years — the total principal amount of
bonds issued is EUR 105 million, accounting for 13 per cent of the total debt as at 31 March 2015.

The Group’s gross debt as at 31 March 2015 was EUR 839 million with the following debt maturity schedule:

2015 2016 2017-2019 2020-2028 Total
(9 months)
(€ million)
Debt repayment 125 93 377 244 839

The table below provides information about the Group’s borrowings by lender category as at 31 March 2015.

31 March 2015

(€ million)
International investment banks 508
Commercial banks 225
Issued bonds 106
Total 839
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Borrowings outstanding were used for funding the Group’s investment program including the modernisation of
power generation, transmission and distribution facilities.

In late 2014, the Group took up loans from commercial banks in the amount of EUR 150 million and from the
European Investment bank in the amount of EUR 100 million. Thus, together with undisbursed amount of EUR
40 million under the loan agreement concluded with European Reconstruction and Development Bank in 2010,
as at 31 March 2015 total long term committed credit lines available for the Group amounted to EUR 290 million.

All borrowings are denominated in the euro currency. As at 31 March 2015, the weighted average repayment
period was 4.2 years. Nearly all borrowings from financial institutions have a variable interest rate, comprising 3
to 6 month EURIBOR and a margin rate. Taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, as at 31 March
2015, 41 per cent of the borrowings had a fixed interest rate with a weighted average interest fixing period of
2 years. The effective weighted average interest rate (with interest rate swaps) of the Group's outstanding
borrowings was 2.5 per cent for the first quarter of 2015.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

As at the date of this Base Prospectus the Group comprises the parent company Latvenergo AS and its seven

subsidiaries:
Company Name Qountry . @il Business activity Proportpn ol
incorporation ownership
Subsidiaries:
Sadales tikls AS Latvia Electricity distribution 100 per cent
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS Latvia Transmission system 100 per cent
asset management
Administration of
Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS Latvia electricity mandatory 100 per cent
procurement process
Elektrum Eesti OU Estonia Electricity supply 100 per cent
Elektrum Latvija SIA (subsidiary : -
of Elektrum Eesti OU) Latvia Electricity supply 100 per cent
Elektrum Lietuva UAB Lithuania Electricity supply 100 per cent
Electricity and thermal
Liepajas Energija SIA Latvia energy generation and 51 per cent

supply (in Liepaja city)

On 25 February 2014, a new subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS of the Company was established. The
subsidiary has taken over the mandatory procurement administration functions from the Company.

The Company is a shareholder in an associated company Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds AS (Latvia), engaged
in the management of pension plans (the Company’s and the Group's shareholding is 46.3 per cent and 48.15
per cent respectively). In addition, the Group has a financial investment in Rigas siltums AS (0.005 per cent),
which is engaged in supply of thermal energy in Riga.

In late 2013, according to the requirements of Directive 2009/72/EC of the European Parliament and the Council
of 13 July 2009, the transmission assets of Nordic Energy Link AS were sold to Estonian and Finnish
transmission operators. In 2014, the company was liquidated and the Company’s participation (25 per cent) in

this company has been fully terminated.
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ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

In accordance with the Commercial Law, the Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and
Capital Companies and the Financial Instruments Market Law, the Company has the following management and
supervisory bodies:

- Shareholders’ Meeting, which represents shareholder interests, rights and obligations. The State
Secretary of the Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia or his authorised representative is the
sole shareholder representative in the Shareholders’ Meetings;

- Supervisory board: the Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital
Companies (Publiskas personas kapitala daju un kapitalsabiedribu parvaldibas likums), effective from 1
January 2015, provides that from 2016 supervisory boards shall be reinstalled for large and very large
state owned entities, including the Company. Until 2016, supervisory board is not allowed for the
Company and its wholly owned Latvian subsidiaries, thus functions of the Supervisory board in these
entities are performed by the Shareholders’ Meeting, according to provisions established in the Electricity
Market Law. Supervisory boards are established only for the foreign subsidiaries of the Company -
Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB. Supervisory functions of these subsidiaries are ensured by
three Management Board members of the Company. The Latvian subsidiary Liepdjas energija SIA is
supervised by the Supervisory Board consisting of six members;

- Audit Committee was established in August 2012 according to the requirements of the Financial
Instruments Market Law (Finansu instrumentu tirgus likums) and started its operation on 4 December
2012. All members are independent and are not involved in the operations of the Group;

- Management Board of the Company consists of five management board members.
The Company’s Management Board

The Company’s Management Board consists of five members elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting for a term of
three years based on an evaluation of necessary competences, experience and expected sphere of
responsibility. The Shareholders’ Meeting also appoints one of the members of the Management Board as
Chairman of the Management Board.

All Management Board members are executive directors of the Company, and are involved in the daily
operations of the Company.

At the date of this Base Prospectus the members of the Management Board of the Company are:

Mr. Aris Zigurs - Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Management Board, responsible for management
of corporate strategy, international affairs and strategy, communication, human resource management, security
and transport services. Mr. Zigurs is a member of the Board of Directors at the Union of the Electricity Industry of
Europe (‘EURELECTRIC”), as well as the vice-president of the Latvian National Committee of the World Energy
Council.

Mrs. Zane Kotane - Chief Financial Officer, responsible for business planning and controlling, treasury,
accounting, risk management and insurance. Mrs. Kotane is a member of the supervisory boards of the
Company’s subsidiaries Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB.

Mr. Uldis Bariss - Chief Commercial Officer, responsible for management of electricity supply, wholesale
activities, marketing and customer service, customer settlements, IT&T and regulatory affairs. Mr. Bariss is a
representative of the Company in the Latvian Chamber of Commerce and Industry and a member of the
supervisory boards of the Company’s subsidiaries Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB.
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Mr. Maris Kunickis - Chief Operating Officer, responsible for generation planning, technical management of
HPPs and CHPPs, generation project management, project maintenance, technical inspection, research and
development, environment and safety at work. Mr. Kunickis is a representative of the Company in Latvian
Association of Power Engineers & Energy Constructors and a substitute member of the Board of Directors at the
EURELECTRIC.

Mr. Arnis Kurgs — Chief Administrative Officer, responsible for managing legal affairs, document registration
and management, procurement and logistics, real estate management and operational support. Mr. Kurgs is a
member of the supervisory boards of the Company’s subsidiaries Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum Lietuva UAB.

All members of the Management Board of the Company were appointed on 16 November 2012. The business
address of each Member of the Management Board is Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia.

Conflict of interest

In accordance with the Law on Prevention of Conflict of Interest in Activities of Public Officials, all members of
the management boards of state owned companies have the status of state officials. As such, all Management
Board members of the Company and its fully owned subsidiaries in Latvia are state officials, and subject to
detailed requirements of this law. The abovementioned law permits to combine their office of public official only
with activities which are indicated by the law as compatible (e.g., offices in a trade union, an association or
similar organisation, the work of teacher, scientist and creative work) in order to prevent personal or material
interest in the activity of the state official. In accordance with the abovementioned law, all state officials are
obliged to submit an annual declaration of interest.

The Company confirms that the members of the Management Board of the Company do not have conflict of
interest between their duties performed in the Company and their private interests and/or their other duties.

Development of Supervision Principles

Supervision of the Company is performed in accordance with the Commercial Law and the Law on the
Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital Companies. In October 2014, the Saeima (the
Parliament of the Republic of Latvia) passed the Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and
Capital Companies, effective from 1 January 2015, and replacing the former Law on State and Municipality
Capital Shares and Capital Companies. The new law stipulates the procedures for the establishment, operation,
liquidation and management of capital shares in state owned and municipal companies, as well as stipulates the
requirements for definition of goals, assessment of performance, disclosure of information, and obliges state-
owned companies to establish medium-term strategies.

Employees

The Group had 4,142 employees as at 31 March 2015 of whom 72 per cent were men and 28 per cent women.
The average age of the employees was 44.4 years. The Group’s staff turnover was less than 6 per cent in 2014.

Effective from 1 January 2015, the transmission system operator Augstsprieguma tikls AS took over
transmission system asset construction and maintenance functions including the transfer of 430 employees from
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS to Augstsprieguma tikls AS.

The opinions of all Group’s employees on issues of the Collective Bargaining Agreement are represented by
“Energija” Trade Union in Latvia. About 70 per cent of the Group’s employees are members of this union. The
Group notifies “Energija” Trade Union on, among other things, planned changes in the organisation of the Group
and its subsidiaries or remuneration, and reports on the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement and
on the fulfilment of occupational health and safety requirements, as well as agrees terminations of employment
of members of “Energija” Trade Union, if any.
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BOARD PRACTICES

In October 2014, the Saeima (the Parliament of the Republic of Latvia) adopted the Law on the Management of
Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital companies, effective from 1 January 2015, and replacing the former
Law on State and Municipality Capital Shares and Capital Companies. The new law stipulates the procedures
for the establishment, operation, liquidation and management of capital shares in state owned and municipal
companies, as well as stipulates requirements for definition of goals, assessment of performance, disclosure of
information and obliges state owned companies to create medium-term strategies.

In addition to other requirements, the new law stipulates reinstatement of the Supervisory Board as a
supervisory body as of 2016 in large state owned companies. The Company, Sadales tikls AS and Latvijas
elektriskie tikli AS all qualify in this category. The number of Supervisory Board members will be determined by
the Cabinet of Ministers of the Republic of Latvia.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge it complies with current Latvian corporate governance regime for the
state owned entities.

Audit Committee

An independent Audit Committee was established in August 2012 and started its operation on 4 December
2012. It is accountable on its operation and performance to the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company. Having
evaluated the necessary competencies and professional experience, the Shareholders’ Meeting elected three
members to form the Audit Committee. All members of the Audit Committee are independent specialists who are
not involved in the operational activities of the Group, and they are authorised for a three-year term. As at 31
December 2014, the members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Torben Pedersen, Mr. Svens Dinsdorfs and Mrs.
Inita Hane.

The Audit Committee operates on the basis of the Commercial Law (Komerclikums), the Financial Instruments
Market Law (Finansu instrumentu tirgus likums) and the Regulation of the Audit Committee as approved by the
Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company.

In addition to the standard responsibilities of the audit committees, such as supervision of financial reporting
processes, internal control assessments, oversight of the internal audit function and the external auditor, the
Audit Committee also has a responsibility for the supervision of implementation of the fraud risk management
plan.

The Audit Committee reports its assessments and findings to the Shareholders’ Meeting at least once a year.
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SHAREHOLDERS

All shares of the Company are owned by the Republic of Latvia. The holder of the Company’s shares is the
Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia, whose representative - the State Secretary of the Ministry of
Economics or other authorised person appointed by the State Secretary of the Ministry of Economics, represents
the Shareholder’s interests at Shareholders’ Meetings.

Pursuant to the current Energy Law (Energétikas likums), the Company’s business is designated as of national
importance and, therefore, the Company’s shares are not subject to privatisation or alienation.

The Law on the Management of Public Persons’ Capital Shares and Capital Companies provides that the
Cabinet of Ministers has the right to appoint specially established institution as holder of the shares in the state

owned entities.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table is a summary of the Group’s consolidated financial performance and key performance
indicators for the two financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the two interim periods ended 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2015. The information set out in the table below has been extracted (without any
material adjustment) from, and is qualified by reference to and should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated annual reports of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the unaudited
consolidated interim reports of the Group for the three month period ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015,
each of which is attached to this Base Prospectus and forms an integral part of this Base Prospectus. Annual
reports and interim reports of the Group are prepared according to International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

Year ended 31 December Three3n;?\;‘ll;l:§hended
2013 2014 2014 2015
(Audited) (Unaudited)

Key Financial data (the Group)

Revenue € million 1,100 1,011 324 260
EBITDA " € million 249 237 83 95
Profit € million 46 30 31 39
Total assets € million 3,575 3,487 3,598 3,627
Total equity € million 2,022 2,021 2,050 2,059
Net Debt 2 € million 689 706 680 689
Investments € million 225 178 27 25
Capital ratio ® per cent 57 58 57 58
EBITDA margin * per cent 23 23 24 26
Net debt/EBITDA 2.8 3.0 25 2.8
Operating Figures (the Group)

Retail electricity supply GWh 7,954 8,688 2,488 2,132
Electricity generation GWh 4,854 3,625 1,192 1,027
Thermal energy supply GWh 2,517 2,442 1,077 990
Distributed electricity GWh 6,447 6,421 1,724 1,795

1) EBITDA: earnings before interest, corporate income tax, share of profit or loss of associates, depreciation and amortisation, and
impairment of intangible and fixed assets.

2) Net debt: borrowings at the end of the period minus cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

3) Capital ratio: total equity / total assets

4) EBITDA margin: EBITDA / revenue
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FINANCIAL AND TREND INFORMATION
Historical Financial Information

The Group’s consolidated audited annual reports as of and for the financial years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014 and the unaudited consolidated interim reports of the Group for the three month periods ended 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 (prepared according to IFRS) are attached to this Base Prospectus and forms an
integral part of this Base Prospectus.

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

Except as described below, the Group is not engaged in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, or is
aware of any such proceedings pending or threatened against it during the 12 month-period prior to the date of
this Base Prospectus that may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effect on the Company and/or
the Group’s financial position or profitability.

Claims in relation to price for mandatory procurement

Producers of electricity in WPP, who are entitled to mandatory procurement have submitted claims against the
Company and its subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS in its capacity as the public trader and the Ministry
of Economics arguing that the Company and its subsidiary Energijas publiskais tirgotdjs AS have applied
incorrect feed-in tariff. In 2014 the Administrative District Court dismissed the claims on grounds that the public
trader had applied correct feed-in tariff and there was no breach of law. However, these electricity producers
have submitted appeals and cases will be heard in 2015 before the Administrative Regional Court. As the
actions are brought under the Administrative Procedure Law, the obligation to compensate damages (if any)
would be attributable to the State and thus the proceedings will not have significant effect on the Company’s
and/or the Group’s financial position.

Claim in relation to public service obligation fee

The decision No.44 of the PUC dated 20 February 2013 on approving the public service obligation fee for the
period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 and the decision No.23 of the PUC dated 19 February 2013 on approving
the public service obligation fee for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 have been challenged in the
Administrative District Court. The public service obligation fee is a payment made by each electricity end-user in
Latvia to compensate for expenses of the public trader accrued due to the purchase of electricity at regulated
prices in a framework of feed-in tariff scheme. The applicants of the claim have challenged the interpretation of
the existing methodology and thus the justification of the costs to be included in the public service obligation fee.
The matter has not been resolved yet by the court and litigation proceedings continue. The Group maintains the
position that the claims should be dismissed. The claims, if approved by the court in full amount, have the
potential financial impact of EUR 27.2 million.

Criminal proceedings in relation to power supply disruptions

The extensive power supply disruptions due to extreme weather conditions (heavy snowfall and icing causing
damage to electricity distribution system) during December 2010 — January 2011 were considered as grounds
for initiating criminal proceedings on alleged negligence (lack of adequate diligence) of officials of the
Company’s subsidiary and electricity distribution system operator Sadales tikls AS. Considering the fact that
electricity supply disruptions were observed in a large geographical area of Latvia, there were initiated four
separate criminal proceedings. Investigations under the aforementioned proceedings are performed by regional
offices of Latvia police (i.e. Kurzeme Police Department, Zemgale Police Department, Latgale Police Department
and Jékabpils Police Department). In accordance with the legal acts of the Republic of Latvia only individuals
can be held criminally liable, not legal entities, and thus these adjudications in criminal proceedings will not be
applicable to the company Sadales tikls AS. With regards to any damages or losses sentenced within these
proceedings, the Company does not envisage a high possibility of such being binding to Sadales tikls AS, but if
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otherwise stipulated by the final adjudication of the court, all risks are insured and all mentioned cases have
already been disclosed to the corresponding insurers.

Incident of corruption
In June 2010 criminal proceedings were initiated against a number of executives of the Group suspected in
corruption and money laundering. Neither the Company, nor the subsidiaries of the Company are involved in the

ongoing investigation.

The Group has reviewed internal processes for the purpose of bringing the Group’s internal control procedures
in line with best practice, thus further reducing the risks of corruption, illegal activity or fraud within the Group.

Significant Changes in Financial or Trading Position

There has been no material adverse change in the Company’s or the Group’s financial or trading position since
31 March 2015.

Trend Information

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Company or the Group since the date of the
audited consolidated annual report of the Group for 2014.

At the date of this Base Prospectus there are no information on any known trends, uncertainties, demands,
commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the Company’s or the Group’s
prospects and the industries in which the Company or the Group operates.

Future Outlook

The Issuer has not made any profit forecast or profit estimate in this Base Prospectus.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Share Capital

The amount of the share capital of the Company is EUR 1,288,446,357 and it is composed of 1,288,446,357
shares. All shares are paid up. All shares are registered shares and they are dematerialised. The nominal value
of a share is EUR 1.

In accordance with the Energy Law (Energétikas likums) all shares of the Company are the property of the
Republic of Latvia and they are not a subject to privatisation or alienation.

Articles of Association

The Company is registered with the Commercial Register of the Republic of Latvia under registration number
40003032949.

The objects and purposes of the Company are stated in Clause 2 of the Articles of Association of the Company
of which the main objects are to generate electricity and heat, to sell electricity and to provide telecommunication
services.

Material Contracts

Except as described below, the Group has not entered into any material contracts outside the ordinary course of
business, which could result in the Group coming under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the
Company’s ability to meet its obligations to the Noteholders in respect of the Notes.

In order to operate the Group’s hydropower units, the Group pursues a gradual reconstruction of 11
unreconstructed Daugava HPPs hydropower units. The programme is scheduled for completion until 2022, and
includes the following contracts:

e Until the end of 2014, contracts for replacement of two Plavinas HPP hydropower units and three
hydropower units at Kegums HPP were signed, respectively:

- on 13 December 2013 a contract for upgrading of the Plavinas HPP hydro units No.1 and 3 was signed
with OJSC Power Machines. The project includes replacement of turbine runner, generator stator and
modernization of unit auxiliary systems. Completion of the project is scheduled for 2017;

- on 21 February 2014 a contract for upgrading of the Kegums-2 HPP hydro units No.5, 6 and 7 was
signed with OJSC Power Machines. The project includes replacement of the turbine runner and unit
control, protection systems and the rehabilitation of generator equipment. Completion of the project is
scheduled for 2018;

e On 17 April 2015 a contract for upgrading of the Riga HPP hydro units No. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 was signed with

Alstom Hydro France. The project includes replacement of the turbine runner and unit control, protection
systems and rehabilitation of generator equipment. Completion of the project is scheduled for 2022.
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THE LATVIAN ECONOMY

General

Latvia is a small, open economy with exports contributing notably to its GDP. Export growth has been the main
driver of the economic recovery after the crisis. Still the bulk of the country's economic activity is in the services’
sector. Owing to its geographical location, transit services are well developed.

In 2014 the Latvian economy grew by 2.4 per cent, which is the slowest pace of the post-crisis period. The
biggest fall was observed in the manufacturing and real estate sectors, while the construction sector expanded
the most. Positive trends were also observed in the retail trade and service sectors. Despite concerns that the
latter sector may suffer from decreasing Russian transit, the positive trend lasted in transport and storage
activities, though the outlook for this year remains uncertain. Consequently, the main source of GDP growth was
private consumption, which accounted for the lion's share of the total growth.

Within the coming two years private consumption is expected to remain the primary economic driver. While there
are necessary prerequisites for the private demand to keep growing (e.g. raising wages, decreasing
unemployment, etc.), the pace of growth will be determined by the consumers’ sentiment. Most of the uncertainty
and growth potential is related to capital spending activity. Current surveys confirm that businesses stay cautious
about the expansion of operations. Therefore, the availability of EU funds and smoothness of procedures will
play a major role. Due to brighter euro zone prospects, there is some potential for growth of exports of goods,
which could slightly push up the investment activity, whereas export of services is likely to remain in a more
complex situation.

GDP, per cent 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia 5.0 4.8 4.2 2.4
EU (28) average 1.7 -0.5 0.0 1.4

Source: European Commission
Inflation

Falling prices of energy and food have had the greatest impact on the price level and kept inflation low. Food
prices are expected to stay subdued and not pick up until food exports rebound; therefore low inflation
environment is expected to continue to dominate in 2015. However, prices are expected to gradually pick up
starting next year. The initiatives to raise utility tariffs as well as the expected oil price development should help
inflation rebound. Furthermore, a growing wage pressure should also be reflected in inflation developments.

Inflation, HICP, average, per cent 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia 4.2 23 0.0 0.7
EU (28) average 3.1 2.6 1.5 0.6

Source: European Commission
Unemployment

In 2014 the unemployment rate fell to 10.8 per cent, which is 1.1 ppt. less than in 2013. In 2015 unemployment
is expected to keep shrinking, partly due to continued emigration and negative demographic trend. The latter
effect is visible in the fact that in 2014 employment increased by 0.9 ppt., but the number of employees fell by
9.2 thousand. Last year the number of employees mainly increased in sectors such as transport and storage as
well as construction. Meanwhile, the number of employees declined in agriculture, forestry and fisheries,
education and manufacturing sectors. Latvia is gradually approaching the natural rate of unemployment at 9-10
per cent, which implies an inflation risk in the medium term. At the same time, the growing demand for
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specialists will remain one of the biggest concerns. Unemployment might become an even more acute regional
problem, compounded by the Russian crisis; therefore, in certain areas unemployment is expected to increase.

Unemployment, per cent 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia 16.2 15.0 11.9 10.8
EU (28) average 9.7 10.5 10.9 10.2

Source: European Commission
Public Finances

The general government consolidated budget closed 2014 with a deficit of 1.4 per cent of GDP. In 2014
government budget deficit, compared to 2013, was 0.7 ppt. higher. This was primarily driven by a single capital
transfer to comply with the obligations towards the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, as well
as the rise of expenditure for remuneration and social benefits. Although the Latvian government is expected to
keep its grip on public finances, the slowing growth and rising demand for higher expenditures may prolong the
way towards a balanced budget. The table below shows the government surplus or deficit as a percentage of
GDP in Latvia for 2011 to 2014, compared to the average of the 28 EU Member States, as calculated by
European Commission.

General government balance, as a per cent of GDP 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia -3.3 -0.8 -0.7 -1.4
EU (28) average -4.5 -4.2 -3.2 -2.9

Source: European Commission

In 2014, general government consolidated gross debt, compared to 2013, increased by 757.3 million euro or 1.8
ppt. The increased debt level in 2014 was due to two Eurobond issues, which were placed to create a financial
buffer to repay borrowings from the European Commission carried out within the framework of an international
borrowing program. Within the coming years, the public sector debt is expected to shrink. The table below shows
the public debt as a percentage of GDP in Latvia, compared to the average of the 28 EU Member States, as
calculated by Europian Commission.

General government gross debt, as a per cent of GDP 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia 42.7 40.9 38.2 40.0
EU (28) average 81.4 85.1 87.3 88.6

Source: European Commission
Foreign Trade

Latvia’'s geographical position favours foreign trade, with the availability of ice-free ports as well as a well-
developed railway and road transport infrastructure. Despite the challenging conditions, which include Russian
sanctions and Russia’s deepening economic recession, falling ruble and its side-effects to neighbouring
markets, as well sluggish recovery in the euro zone, Latvian exports in 2014 climbed by 2.2 per cent. By
contrast, the volume of imports fell by 0.4 per cent. Total exports are likely to grow barely in 2015. A large part of
the business, particularly those focusing on Russia and related markets, will continue to evaluate risks and
decrease exposure, as well as keep looking for new markets. There has been good progress in penetrating
Asian and the Middle Eastern markets, which allows for keeping a cautiously optimistic view on export
prospects. Historically, the impact of the Russian factor has always been significant, but not overly critical.
Positive flashes in the euro zone should help partially offset this negative impact.
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Balance of Payments

The current account showed a deficit of 2.9 per cent of GDP in 2014. A gradual pick-up in exports in combination
with modest upturn in the capital spending and higher consumption growth will facilitate imbalance, but within the
coming two years the current account is expected to stay relatively balanced.

Current account balance, as a per cent of GDP 2011 2012 2013 2014
Latvia -3.1 -3.5 -2.0 -2.9
EU (28) average 0.2 1.0 1.5 1.6

Source: European Commission
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TAXATION

The following is a general summary of certain tax consideration in the Republic of Latvia, the Republic of Estonia
and the Republic of Lithuania in relation to the Notes. It is not exhaustive and does not purport to be a complete
analysis of all tax consequences relating to the Notes, as well as does not take into account or discuss the tax
implications of any country other than the Republic of Latvia, the Republic of Estonia and the Republic of
Lithuania. The information provided in this section shall not be treated as legal or tax advice; and prospective
investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to the tax consequences of the subscription,
ownership and disposal of the Notes applicable to their particular circumstances.

This summary is based on the laws of Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania as in force on the date of this Base
Prospectus and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date, provided that such changes
could apply also retroactively.

The Republic of Latvia

Latvia has entered into number of tax conventions on elimination of the double taxation, which may provide more
favourable taxation regime. Therefore if there is a valid tax treaty with the country of a non-resident prospective
investor, it should be also examined. The procedures for application of tax conventions are provided in the
Republic of Latvia Cabinet of Ministers Regulations No. 178 Procedures for Application of Tax Relief Determined
in International Agreements for Prevention of Double Taxation and Tax Evasion.

Taxation of the Noteholders Individuals

Resident Individuals

An individual will be considered as a resident of Latvia for taxation purposes:

- if the individual's permanent place of residence is in the Republic of Latvia, or

- if the individual stays in the Republic of Latvia 183 days or more within any 12-month period, starting or
ending in the taxation year; or

- if the individual is a citizen of the Republic of Latvia employed abroad by the government of the Republic of
Latvia.

In accordance with the Law on Personal Income Tax the interest income from the Notes for resident individuals
will be subject to 10 per cent withholding tax, deductable by the Issuer before the payment. Also the income from
the alienation of the Notes will be subject to 10 per cent tax, but the tax would be payable by the individual
him/herself.

Non-Resident Individuals

In accordance with the Law on Personal Income Tax the interest income from the Notes being circulated publicly
as well as income from the alienation of the publicly circulated Notes will not be subject to tax in Latvia.

Taxation of the Noteholders Entities

Resident Entities

An entity will be considered as a resident of Latvia for tax purposes if it is or should have been established and
registered in the Republic of Latvia in accordance with the legislative acts of the Republic of Latvia legal acts.
This may also include permanent establishments of foreign entities in Latvia.

In accordance with the Law on Corporate Income Tayx, if the Notes are listed on a regulated market of the EU or
the European Economic Area, the income from the Notes (interest payments, as well as gains) for the resident
entities, will not be subject to corporate income tax in Latvia. If the Notes are not listed on a regulated market of
the EU or the European Economic Area, income from such notes (interest payments and gains) should be
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included in taxable income of the respective Noteholder and should be subject to corporate income tax at the
rate of 15 per cent.

Non-Resident Entities

In accordance with the Law on Corporate Income Tax the interest income from the Notes for non-resident
entities will not be taxable in Latvia, except if the receiver is located in tax haven country or territory, as
determined by the Republic of Latvia Cabinet of Ministers Regulations No. 276 Regulations on Low Tax or Zero
Tax Countries and Territories, in which case 15 per cent withholding tax would apply, deductable by the Issuer
upon the payment, unless an exemption relief is received from the State Revenue Service.

The income from the alienation of the Notes will not be subject to tax in Latvia.

The Republic of Estonia

Taxation of the Noteholders Individuals

Resident Individuals

In accordance with the Estonian Income Tax Act an individual will be considered as a resident of Estonia for
taxation purposes:

- if the individual’s place of residence is in Estonia, or

- if the individual stays in Estonia for at least 183 days over a period of 12 consecutive calendar months, or

- if the individual is a citizen of Estonia employed abroad by the Estonian government.

If the residency determined on the basis of an international agreement to which Estonia is a party differs from
the residency determined pursuant to the Estonian Income Tax Act, the provisions of the international
agreement apply.

In accordance with the Estonian Income Tax Act the interest income from the Notes received by a resident
individual is subject to income tax at the rate of 20 per cent. Income tax which has been withheld on interest
income received from abroad is deducted from the income tax to be paid in Estonia, in accordance with the
conditions specified in the Estonian Income Tax Act.

The income from the transfer of the Notes is also subject to income tax at the rate of 20 per cent. Income tax is
charged on the gain derived from the transfer of the Notes, i.e. on the difference between the acquisition cost
and the selling price of the Notes. Resident individual has a right to deduct documented expenses directly
related to the transfer of the Notes from the gain. Resident individual also has a right to deduct any loss suffered
upon the transfer of other securities from the gain derived from the transfer of the Notes, in accordance with the
conditions specified in the Estonian Income Tax Act.

Different taxation rules apply for the transfer of the Notes if the resident individual uses an investment account
as specified in the Estonian Income Tax Act. It is possible for individuals to postpone the tax liability created on
income derived from the transfer of financial assets as specified in the Estonian Income Tax Act (including
publicly offered securities and securities traded in a securities market) until the gain is withdrawn from the
investment account to be used for other purposes (i.e. not to be reinvested into other financial assets).

Non-Resident Individuals

Income of the non-resident individual from the Notes (i.e. interest income and income from the transfer of the
Notes) is not subject to tax in Estonia.
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Taxation of the Noteholders Entities

Resident Entities

An entity will be considered as a resident of Estonia for tax purposes if it is established or registered in Estonia.

If the residency determined on the basis of an international agreement to which Estonia is a party differs from
the residency determined pursuant to the Estonian Income Tax Act, the provisions of the international
agreement apply.

According to the Estonian corporate income tax system the moment of taxation of corporate income (including
income from the Notes, e.g. interest income, as well as gains) is postponed until the distribution of the profits.
The system applies to resident entities and also permanent establishments of non-resident entities in Estonia.

All profit distributions (including dividends) are taxed at a rate of 20/80 of the distributed net amount which is 25
per cent. This is the corporate income tax which is paid by the resident entity making the distribution.

Non-Resident Entities

Income of the non-resident entity from the Notes (i.e. interest income and income from the transfer of the Notes)
is not subject to tax in Estonia.

The Republic of Lithuania

In accordance with the Law on Tax Administration of the Republic of Lithuania where any international treaties to
which Lithuania is a party provide for the rules on taxation different from those of the relevant taxation legislation,
and provided the international treaties have been ratified, enacted and enforceable in the Republic of Lithuania,
the rules of such international treaties shall prevail. Lithuania and Latvia have entered into a tax convention on
elimination of the double taxation, which provides more favourable taxation regime (effective from 1 January
1995). The rules for application of tax conventions are provided in the Law on Tax Administration of the Republic
of Lithuania and in the Order No. 159 of the Head of State Tax Inspectorate under the Ministry of Finance dated
27 June 2001.

Taxation of the Noteholders Individuals

Resident Individuals

Only permanent residents of Lithuania have an obligation to declare and to pay personal income tax from the
foreign source income (if such income, eliminating the double taxation, is not exempt from the income tax).

An individual will be considered as a resident of Lithuania during the calendar year for taxation purposes if
he/she meets at least one of the criteria laid out in paragraph 1 of Article 4 of the Law On Personal Income Tax
of the Republic of Lithuania, i.e.:

- ifthe individual’'s permanent place of residence is in Lithuania during the calendar year;

- if the individual’s place of personal, social or economic interests is in Lithuania rather than in a foreign
country during the calendar year;

- if the individual is present in Lithuania for a period or periods in the aggregate of 183 days or more
during the calendar year;

- if the individual is present in Lithuania for a period or periods in the aggregate of 280 days or more
during successive calendar years and who stayed in Lithuania for a period or periods in the aggregate of
90 days or more in any of such periods (in such case a person is deemed to be a resident of Lithuania
for both years of presence in Lithuania).
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In accordance with the Law on Personal Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania any interest generated by a
resident of Lithuania from Notes shall be taxed by a 15 per cent rate personal income tax, except EUR 3,000
non-taxable minimum applicable to interest from the Notes.

The resident of Lithuania shall be taxed at a rate of 15 per cent on gains from disposal of the Notes, except EUR
3,000 non-taxable minimum applicable to gains from disposal of the Notes.

Non-Resident Individuals

Since the Issuer is a non-resident entity for Lithuanian taxation purposes, the income of the non-resident
individual from the Notes (i.e. interest income and income from the transfer of the Notes) will not be subject to
tax in Lithuania.

Taxation of the Noteholders Entities

Resident Entities

An entity will be considered as a resident of Lithuania for tax purposes if it is established and registered in the
Republic of Lithuania. This may also include permanent establishments of foreign entities in Lithuania.

In accordance with provisions of the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania any income of a
Lithuanian entity (legal person) from the Notes, including an interest, shall be considered as the taxable income
of the entity. Having disposed of the Notes a Lithuanian entity shall recognize the gain (the difference between
the Notes purchase and sale price). The income from the Notes interest and the gain from the disposal of the
Notes shall be included into the overall taxable result of the Lithuanian entity that shall be subject to taxation in
the manner set forth in the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania.

Non-Resident Entities

Since the Issuer is a non-resident entity for Lithuanian taxation purposes, the income of the non-resident entity
from the Notes (i.e. interest income and income from the transfer of the Notes) will not be subject to tax in
Lithuania.

EU Savings Directive

In accordance with the EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State
is required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar
income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in that
other Member State or to certain limited types of entities established in that other Member State.

On 24 March 2014, the Council of the EU adopted a Council Directive amending and broadening the scope of
the requirements described above. Member States are required to apply these new requirements from 1 January
2017. The changes will expand the range of payments covered by the Directive, in particular to include
additional types of income payable on securities. The Directive will also apply a “look through approach” to
payments made via certain persons, entities or legal arrangements (including trusts and partnerships), where
certain conditions are satisfied, where an individual resident in a Member State is regarded as the beneficial
owner of the payment for the purposes of the Directive. This approach may in some cases apply where the
person, entity or arrangement is established or effectively managed outside of the EU.

For a transitional period, Austria is instead required (unless during that period it elects otherwise) to operate a
withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon
the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries),
deducting tax at a rate of 35 per cent. Luxembourg, which before 1 January 2015 also operated a withholding
tax under the transitional rules, has now replaced such withholding tax with the information reporting regime
described above. Luxembourg has announced that it will no longer apply the withholding tax system as from 1
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January 2015 and will provide details of payments of interest (or similar income) as from this date. A number of

non-EU countries and territories including Switzerland have adopted similar measures (a withholding system in
the case of Switzerland).

Investors who are in any doubt should consult their professional advisers.
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DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

Copies of the following documents during validity of this Base Prospectus are available on the Company’s
website www.latvenergo.lv and at the legal address of the Company at Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, Latvia on
weekdays within the limits of normal business hours:

(a) Articles of Association of the Company;

(b) Latvenergo Consolidated Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (prepared
according to IFRS);

(c) Latvenergo Consolidated Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 (prepared
according to IFRS);

(d) Latvenergo Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the 3 months period ended
31 March 2015 (prepared according to IFRS); and

(e) Latvenergo Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the 3 months period ended
31 March 2014 (prepared according to IFRS).
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Accrual Date

Annual Interest Rate

Arranger of the Programme

Base Prospectus

Business Day

Change of Control

CHPPs

Cicero

Cicero Opinion

Company or Issuer

Competitive Purchase Orders

Confirmation

EEA
Elements
EU

EUR, euro or €

EURELECTRIC

Event of Default

Final Terms

DEFINITIONS

shall have the meaning assigned to it in Clause 10 of the General
Terms and Conditions

shall mean the fixed annual interest rate

shall mean AS SEB banka (registration number: 40003151743, legal
address: Meistaru 1, ValdlauCi, Kekava parish, Kekava region, LV-
1076, Latvia)

shall mean this Base Prospectus

shall mean a day on which banks in Riga are open for general
business

shall have the meaning assigned to it in Clause 16 of the General
Terms and Conditions

shall mean combined heat and power plants

shall mean the Center for International Climate and Environmental
Research - Oslo, a Norwegian independent institute for
interdisciplinary climate research

shall mean a second-party opinion issued by Cicero regarding the
suitability of the Notes as an investment in connection with certain

environmental and sustainability criteria

shall mean Latvenergo AS (registration number 40003032949 and its
registered address is PulkveZa Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230)

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 4 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 7 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall mean European Economic Area

shall mean disclosure requirements, as described in the Summary
shall mean European Union

shall mean the single currency introduced at the start of the third stage
of the European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant, and as
defined in Article 2 of the Council Regulation (EC) N0.974/98 of 3 May
1998 on the introduction of the euro, as amended

shall mean the Union of the Electricity Industry of Europe

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 18 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean the final terms of the relevant Tranche of the Notes
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Final Yield to Maturity

First Interest Period

Functional Currency
General Terms and Conditions

Group

HPPs
IFRS

Indebtedness

Interest Payment Date

Investor's Currency

Issuing Agent

Issue Date
Issue Price

Issuer

LCD

LVL, lats or Ls

Material Subsidiary

Maturity Date

Member State

Minimum Investment Amount

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 7 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to it in Clause 10 of the General
Terms and Conditions

shall meen the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group’s entity operates

shall mean the general terms and conditions of the notes

shall mean Latvenergo AS together with its consolidated subsidiaries
or shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General
Terms and Conditions, respectively

shall mean the hydropower plants

shall mean International Financial Reporting Standards

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean the interest payment date specified in the Final Terms

shall have the meaning assigned to under in risk factor “Fluctuations in
exchange rates and interest rates may adversely affect the value of
the Notes”

shall mean AS SEB banka (registration number: 40003151743, legal
address: Meistaru 1, Valdlaudi, Kekava parish, Kekava region, LV-
1076, Latvia)

shall mean the issue date of each Tranche of the Notes

shall mean the issue price of the Notes

shall mean Latvenergo AS (registration number 40003032949 and its
registered address is Pulkveza Brieza 12, Riga, LV-1230)

shall mean Latvian Central Depository (Latvijas Centralais depozitarijs
AS, registration number: 40003242879, legal address: Valnu 1, Riga,
LV-1050, Latvia)

shall mean the lawful currency of the Republic of Latvia through 31
December 2013

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 18 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean the date specified in the Final Terms on which the Notes
shall be repaid in full at their nominal amount

shall mean Member State of the European Economic Area

shall mean the minimum investment amount for subscription of the
Notes, as specified in the Final Terms
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NASDAQ Riga

Non-competitive Purchase Orders

Noteholders

Noteholders’ Meeting

Notes

Placement Period

Permitted Security Interest

Prepayment Date

Project Company

Project Finance Indebtedness

Prospectus Directive

PSO fee
PUC
Purchase Orders

Qualifying Purchase Orders

Relevant Indebtedness

Riga TEC-1
Riga TEC-2
Securities Act

Security Interest

Series of Notes

shall mean NASDAQ OMX Riga AS (registration number:
40003167049, legal address: Valnu 1, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia)

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 4 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall mean the holders of the Notes

shall mean the meeting of the Noteholders or meeting of the
Noteholders of the relevant Series of Notes

shall mean the notes to be issued under the Programme

shall mean the placement period for each Tranche of the Notes, as
specified in the Final Terms

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall have the meaning assigned to it in Clause 16 of the General
Terms and Conditions

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean Directive 2003/71/EC (and any amendments thereto,
including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented
in the Relevant Member State)

shall mean mandatory procurement public service obligation fee

shall mean the Public Utilities Commission

shall mean orders of the investors to acquire the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 4 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean Riga 1* combined heat and power plant
shall mean Riga 2" combined heat and power plant
shall mean the U.S. Securities Act of 1933

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall mean any series of notes
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SET

Subsidiary

Tranche

Updated Yield to Maturity Range

Yield to Maturity

Yield to Maturity Range

Taxes

2010 PD Amending Directive

shall mean Subsidised Electricity Tax

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 17 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 1 of the General Terms
and Conditions

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 5 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 4 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall have the meaning assigned to in Clause 5 of the Section
Placement of the Notes

shall mean any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or
governmental charges of whatever nature

shall mean Directive 2010/73/EU
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“A!,

“GW,!

“Gwh ”

113 kv”

113 kwh”

“MVA”

“MW”

“Mwh”

“TW”

“Twh ”

GLOSSARY

Ampere, a unit for measuring allowed load, which is usually limited by the
main fuse

Gigawatts, a unit for measuring the capacity to produce electricity. One
gigawatt equals 1,000,000,000 watts

Gigawatt hours, a unit for measuring the generation and consumption of
electricity

Kilovolts, a unit for measuring voltage or electrical tension. One kilovolt equals
1,000 volts

Kilowatt hours, a unit for measuring the generation and consumption of
electricity. One thousand watts over the period of an hour

Megavolt ampere, a unit of measure of apparent power

Megawatts, a unit for measuring the capacity to produce electricity. One
megawatt equals 1,000,000 watts

Megawatt hours, a unit for measuring the generation and consumption of
electricity. One million watts over the period of an hour

Terawatts. A unit for measuring the capacity to produce electricity. One
terawatt equals 100,000,000,000 watts

Terawatt hours, a unit for measuring the generation and consumption of

electricity. One terawatt hour is equal to sustained electricity consumption of
approximately 114 MW for a period of one year
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CROSS-REFERENCE LIST

A cross-reference list below identifies the pages where each item of Annexes IV and V of the Commission
Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 can be found in the Base Prospectus.

Items of Annexes IV of the Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004

Page number

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

All persons responsible for the information given in the Registration Document and,
as the case may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of
such parts. In the case of natural persons including members of the issuer's
administrative, management or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function
of the person; in case of legal persons indicate the name and registered office.

72

1.2

A declaration by those responsible for the registration document that, having taken
all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case the information contained in the
registration document is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the
facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. As the case may be,
declaration by those responsible for certain parts of the registration document that,
having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information
contained in the part of the registration document for which they are responsible is,
to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omission likely to affect its import.

72

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Names and addresses of the issuer's auditors for the period covered by the
historical financial information (together with their membership in a professional
body).

73

If auditors have resigned, been removed or not been re-appointed during the period
covered by the historical financial information, details if material.

N/A

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selected historical financial information regarding the issuer, presented, for each
financial year for the period covered by the historical financial information, and any
subsequent interim financial period, in the same currency as the financial
information. The selected historical financial information must provide key figures
that summarise the financial condition of the issuer.

109

3.2.

If selected financial information for interim periods is provided, comparative data
from the same period in the prior financial year must also be provided, except that
the requirement for comparative balance sheet data is satisfied by presenting the
year end balance sheet information.

109

RISK FACTORS
Prominent disclosure of risk factors that may affect the issuer’s ability to fulfil its
obligations under the securities to investors in a section headed "Risk Factors".

59-71

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

5.1.

History and development of the Issuer:

5.1.1.

the legal and commercial name of the issuer;

92

5.1.2.

the place of registration of the issuer and its registration number;

92

5.1.3.

the date of incorporation and the length of life of the issuer, except where indefinite;

92

5.1.4.

the domicile and legal form of the issuer, the legislation under which the issuer
operates, its country of incorporation, and the address and telephone number of its
registered office (or principal place of business if different from its registered office);

92

5.1.5.

any recent events particular to the issuer which are to a material extent relevant to
the evaluation of the issuer’s solvency.

N/A

5.2

Investments

5.21.

A description of the principal investments made since the date of the last published
financial statements.

101-102

5.2.2.

Information concerning the issuer's principal future investments, on which its

101-102
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management bodies have already made firm commitments.

5.2.3.

Information regarding the anticipated sources of funds needed to fulfil commitments
referred to in item 5.2.2.

102-103

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

6.1

Principal activities:

611,

A description of the issuer’s principal activities stating the main categories of
products sold and/or services performed; and

96-100

6.1.2.

an indication of any significant new products and/or activities

96-100

6.2.

Principal markets
A brief description of the principal markets in which the issuer competes

96-100

6.3.

The basis for any statements made by the issuer regarding its competitive position.

97

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

7.1.

If the issuer is part of a group, a brief description of the group and of the issuer's
position within it.

104

7.2.

If the issuer is dependent upon other entities within the group, this must be clearly
stated together with an explanation of this dependence.

N/A

TREND INFORMATION

Include a statement that there has been no material adverse change in the
prospects of the issuer since the date of its last published audited financial
statements. In the event that the issuer is unable to make such a statement,
provide details of this material adverse change.

111

Information on any known trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events
that are reasonably likely to have a material effect on the issuer's prospects for at
least the current financial year.

111

PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES
If an issuer chooses to include a profit forecast or a profit estimate, the registration
document must contain the information items 9.1 and 9.2:

N/A

9.1.

A statement setting out the principal assumptions upon which the issuer has based
its forecast, or estimate. There must be a clear distinction between assumptions
about factors which the members of the administrative, management or supervisory
bodies can influence and assumptions about factors which are exclusively outside
the influence of the members of the administrative, management or supervisory
bodies; the assumptions must be readily understandable by investors, be specific
and precise and not relate to the general accuracy of the estimates underlying the
forecast.

N/A

9.2.

A report prepared by independent accountants or auditors stating that in the
opinion of the independent accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has
been properly compiled on the basis stated, and that the basis of accounting used
for the profit forecast or estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of the
issuer.

Where financial information relates to the previous financial year and only contains
non-misleading figures substantially consistent with the final figures to be published
in the next annual audited financial statements for the previous financial year, and
the explanatory information necessary to assess the figures, a report shall not be
required provided that the prospectus includes all of the following statements:

(a) the person responsible for this financial information, if different from the
one which is responsible for the prospectus in general, approves that
information;

(b) independent accountants or auditors have agreed that this information is
substantially consistent with the final figures to be published in the next
annual audited financial statements;

(c) this financial information has not been audited.

N/A

9.3.

The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared on a basis comparable with the

N/A
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historical financial information.

10

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

10.1.

Names, business addresses and functions in the issuer of the following persons,
and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the issuer
where these are significant with respect to that issuer:
(a) members of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies;
(b) partners with unlimited liability, in the case of a limited partnership with a
share capital.

105-106

10.2.

Administrative, Management, and Supervisory bodies conflicts of interests
Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to the issuing entity of the
persons referred to in item 10.1 and their private interests and or other duties must
be clearly stated. In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a statement to
that effect.

106

11

BOARD PRACTICES

11.1.

Details relating to the issuer's audit committee, including the names of committee
members and a summary of the terms of reference under which the committee
operates.

107

A statement as to whether or not the issuer complies with its country’s of
incorporation corporate governance regime(s). In the event that the issuer does not
comply with such a regime a statement to that effect must be included together with
an explanation regarding why the issuer does not comply with such regime.

107

12.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

12.1.

To the extent known to the issuer, state whether the issuer is directly or indirectly
owned or controlled and by whom and describe the nature of such control, and
describe the measures in place to ensure that such control is not abused.

108

12.2.

A description of any arrangements, known to the issuer, the operation of which may
at a subsequent date result in a change in control of the issuer.

N/A

13.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE ISSUER’S ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES, FINANCIAL POSITION AND PROFITS AND LOSSES

13.1.

Historical Financial Information Audited historical financial information covering the
latest 2 financial years (or such shorter period that the issuer has been in
operation), and the audit report in respect of each year. Such financial information
must be prepared according to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002, or if not applicable
to a Member States national accounting standards for issuers from the Community.

The most recent year’s historical financial information must be presented and
prepared in a form consistent with that which will be adopted in the issuer's next
published annual financial statements having regard to accounting standards and
policies and legislation applicable to such annual financial statements.

If the audited financial information is prepared according to national accounting
standards, the financial information required under this heading must include at
least:

(a) balance sheet;

(b) income statement;

(c) cash flow statement; and

(d) accounting policies and explanatory notes.

The historical annual financial information must have been independently audited
or reported on as to whether or not, for the purposes of the registration document, it
gives a true and fair view, in accordance with auditing standards applicable in a
Member State or an equivalent standard.

110,
Appendices

13.2.

Financial statements
If the issuer prepares both own and consolidated financial statements, include at

110,
Appendices
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least the consolidated financial statements in the registration document.

13.3.

Auditing of historical annual financial information

13.3.1.

A statement that the historical financial information has been audited. If audit
reports on the historical financial information have been refused by the statutory
auditors or if they contain qualifications or disclaimers, such refusal or such
qualifications or disclaimers must be reproduced in full and the reasons given.

110,
Appendices

13.3.2.

An indication of other information in the registration document which has been
audited by the auditors.

N/A

13.3.3.

Where financial data in the registration document is not extracted from the issuer's
audited financial statements state the source of the data and state that the data is
un-audited.

N/A

13.4.

Age of latest financial information

13.4.1.

The last year of audited financial information may not be older than 18 months from
the date of the registration document.

110,
Appendices

13.5.

Interim and other financial information

13.5.1.

If the issuer has published quarterly or half yearly financial information since the
date of its last audited financial statements, these must be included in the
registration document. If the quarterly or half yearly financial information has been
reviewed or audited the audit or review report must also be included. If the quarterly
or half yearly financial information is un-audited or has not been reviewed state that
fact.

110,
Appendices

13.5.2.

If the registration document is dated more than nine months after the end of the last
audited financial year, it must contain interim financial information, covering at least
the first six months of the financial year. If the interim financial information is un-
audited state that fact. The interim financial information must include comparative
statements for the same period in the prior financial year, except that the
requirement for comparative balance sheet information may be satisfied by
presenting the years end balance sheet.

N/A

13.6.

Legal and arbitration proceedings

Information on any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any
such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the issuer is aware),
during a period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have
had in the recent past, significant effects on the issuer and/or group's financial
position or profitability, or provide an appropriate negative statement.

110-111

13.7.

Significant change in the issuer’s financial or trading position

A description of any significant change in the financial or trading position of the
group which has occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either
audited financial information or interim financial information have been published,
or an appropriate negative statement.

111

14

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

14.1.

Share Capital

14.1.1.

The amount of the issued capital, the number and classes of the shares of which it
is composed with details of their principal characteristics, the part of the issued
capital still to be paid up, with an indication of the number, or total nominal value,
and the type of the shares not yet fully paid up, broken down where applicable
according to the extent to which they have been paid up.

112

14.2.

Memorandum and Articles of Association.

14.21.

The register and the entry number therein, if applicable, and a description of the
issuer's objects and purposes and where they can be found in the memorandum
and articles of association.

112

15.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

A brief summary of all material contracts that are not entered into in the ordinary
course of the issuer's business, which could result in any group member being
under an obligation or entitlement that is material to the issuer’s ability to meet its
obligation to security holders in respect of the securities being issued.

112
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16.

THIRD PARTY INFORMATION AND STATEMENT BY EXPERTS AND
DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST

16.1.

Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the
Registration Document, provide such person’s name, business address,
qualifications and material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been
produced at the issuer’'s request a statement to that effect that such statement or
report is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of
that person who has authorised the contents of that part of the Registration
Document.

74

16.2.

Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that
this information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is
aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no
facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate
or misleading. In addition, the issuer shall identify the source(s) of the information

74

17.

DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY
A statement that for the life of the registration document the following documents
(or copies thereof), where applicable, may be inspected:

- the memorandum and articles of association of the issuer;

- all reports, letters, and other documents, historical financial information,
valuations and statements prepared by any expert at the issuer's request
any part of which is included or referred to in the registration document;

- the historical financial information of the issuer or, in the case of a group,
the historical financial information of the issuer and its subsidiary
undertakings for each of the two financial years preceding the publication
of the registration document. An indication of where the documents on
display may be inspected, by physical or electronic means.

121
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Items of Annexes V of the Commission Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004

Page
number

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE

All persons responsible for the information given in the prospectus and, as the case
may be, for certain parts of it, with, in the latter case, an indication of such parts. In the
case of natural persons including members of the issuer's administrative, management
or supervisory bodies indicate the name and function of the person; in case of legal
persons indicate the name and registered office.

72

1.2

A declaration by those responsible for the prospectus that, having taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in the prospectus is, to
the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission
likely to affect its import. As the case may be, declaration by those responsible for
certain parts of the prospectus that the information contained in the part of the
prospectus for which they are responsible is, to the best of their knowledge, in
accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

72

RISK FACTORS

Prominent disclosure of risk factors that are material to the securities being offered
and/or admitted to trading in order to assess the market risk associated with these
securities in a section headed “Risk Factors”.

59-71

KEY INFORMATION

Interest of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer
A description of any interest, including conflicting ones, that is material to the
issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest.

73

3.2.

Reasons for the offer and use of proceeds

Reasons for the offer if different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks. Where
applicable, disclosure of the estimated total expenses of the issue/offer and the
estimated net amount of the proceeds. These expenses and proceeds shall be broken
into each principal intended use and presented by order of priority of such uses. If the
issuer is aware that the anticipated proceeds will not be sufficient to fund all the
proposed uses, state the amount and sources of other funds needed.

73

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE SECURITIES TO BE OFFERED/ADMITTED TO
TRADING

4.1.

A description of the type and the class of the securities being offered and/or admitted
to trading, including the ISIN (International Security Identification Number) or other
such security identification code.

76-78

4.2.

Legislation under which the securities have been created.

76

4.3.

An indication of whether the securities are in registered form or bearer form and
whether the securities are in certificated form or book-entry form. In the latter case,
name and address of the entity in charge of keeping the records.

77

4.4.

Currency of the securities issue.

77

4.5.

Ranking of the securities being offered and/or admitted to trading, including summaries
of any clauses that are intended to affect ranking or subordinate the security to any
present or future liabilities of the issuer

77

4.6.

A description of the rights attached to the securities, including any limitations of those
rights, and procedure for the exercise of those rights.

76-85

132




4.7.

The nominal interest rate and provisions relating to interest payable.

- The date from which interest becomes payable and the due dates for interest
- The time limit on the validity of claims to interest and repayment of principal

Where the rate is not fixed, description of the underlying on which it is based and of the
method used to relate the two and an indication where information about the past and
the further performance of the underlying and its volatility can be obtained.

- A description of any market disruption or settlement disruption events that
affect the underlying

- Adjustment rules with relation to events concerning the underlying

- Name of the calculation agent

If the security has a derivative component in the interest payment, provide a clear and
comprehensive explanation to help investors understand how the value of their
investment is affected by the value of the underlying instrument(s), especially under
the circumstances when the risks are most evident.

77-78

4.8.

Maturity date and arrangements for the amortization of the loan, including the
repayment procedures. Where advance amortization is contemplated, on the initiative
of the issuer or of the holder, it shall be described, stipulating amortization terms and
conditions

78

4.9.

An indication of yield. Describe the method whereby that yield is calculated in
summary form

86-87

4.10.

Representation of debt security holders including an identification of the organisation
representing the investors and provisions applying to such representation. Indication of
where the public may have access to the contracts relating to these forms of
representation

82

4.11.

In the case of new issues, a statement of the resolutions, authorisations and approvals
by virtue of which the securities have been or will be created and/or issued.

N/A

4.12.

In the case of new issues, the expected issue date of the securities.

N/A

4.13.

A description of any restrictions on the free transferability of the securities.

77

4.14.

In respect of the country of registered office of the issuer and the country(ies) where
the offer being made or admission to trading is being sought:

- Information on taxes on the income from the securities withheld at source;
- Indication as to whether the issuer assumes responsibility for the withholding
of taxes at the source.

116-120

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

Conditions, offer statistics, expected timetable and action required to apply for
the offer

Conditions to which the offer is subject

N/A

Total amount of the issue/offer; if the amount is not fixed, of the arrangements and
time for announcing to the public the definitive amount of the offer.

76 and 87

The time period, including any possible amendments, during which the offer will be
open and description of the application process.

86

A description of the possibility to reduce subscriptions and the manner for refunding
excess amount paid by applicants.

87

5.1.5.

Details of the minimum and/or maximum amount of application, (whether in number of
securities or aggregate amount to invest).

76

5.1.6.

Method and time limits for paying up the securities and for delivery of the securities.

88

5.1.7.

A full description of the manner and date in which results of the offer are to be made
public.

88

The procedure for the exercise of any right of pre-emption, the negotiability of
subscription rights and the treatment of subscription rights not exercised.

N/A
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5.2

Plan of distribution and allotment

5.21.

The various categories of potential investors to which the securities are offered. If the
offer is being made simultaneously in the markets of two or more countries and if a
tranche has been or is being reserved for certain of these, indicate any such tranche.

76

5.2.2.

Process for notification to applicants of the amount allotted and indication whether
dealing may begin before notification is made.

88

5.3

Pricing

5.3.1.

An indication of the expected price at which the securities will be offered or the method
of determining the price and the process for its disclosure. Indicate the amount of any
expenses and taxes specifically charged to the subscriber or purchaser.

79 and 86-
87

54.

Placing and Underwriting

5.4.1.

Name and address of the co-ordinator(s) of the global offer and of single parts of the
offer and, to the extend known to the issuer or to the offeror, of the placers in the
various countries where the offer takes place.

76

5.4.2.

Name and address of any paying agents and depository agents in each country.

N/A

5.4.3.

Name and address of the entities agreeing to underwrite the issue on a firm
commitment basis, and name and address of the entities agreeing to place the issue
without a firm commitment or under “best efforts” arrangements. Indication of the
material features of the agreements, including the quotas. Where not all of the issue is
underwritten, a statement of the portion not covered. Indication of the overall amount of
the underwriting commission and of the placing commission.
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5.4.4.

When the underwriting agreement has been or will be reached.

N/A

ADMISSION TO TRADING AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

6.1.

An indication as to whether the securities offered are or will be the object of an
application for admission to trading, with a view to their distribution in a regulated
market or other equivalent markets with indication of the markets in question. This
circumstance must be mentioned, without creating the impression that the admission
to trading will necessarily be approved. If known, give the earliest dates on which the
securities will be admitted to trading.

79

6.2.

All the regulated markets or equivalent markets on which, to the knowledge of the
issuer, securities of the same class of the securities to be offered or admitted to trading
are already admitted to trading.

Final Terms

6.3.

Name and address of the entities which have a firm commitment to act as
intermediaries in secondary trading, providing liquidity through bid and offer rates and
description of the main terms of their commitment.

N/A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

If advisors connected with an issue are mentioned in the Securities Note, a statement
of the capacity in which the advisors have acted.
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7.2.

An indication of other information in the Securities Note which has been audited or
reviewed by statutory auditors and where auditors have produced a report.
Reproduction of the report or, with permission of the competent authority, a summary
of the report.

N/A

7.3.

Where a statement or report attributed to a person as an expert is included in the
Securities Note, provide such persons' name, business address, qualifications and
material interest if any in the issuer. If the report has been produced at the issuer’s
request a statement to that effect that such statement or report is included, in the form
and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person who has authorised
the contents of that part of the Securities Note.
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7.4.

Where information has been sourced from a third party, provide a confirmation that this
information has been accurately reproduced and that as far as the issuer is aware and
is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been
omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. In
addition, identify the source(s) of the information.
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7.5.

Credit ratings assigned to an issuer or its debt securities at the request or with the
cooperation of the issuer in the rating process. A brief explanation of the meaning of
the ratings if this has previously been published by the rating provider.
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Key Figures

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Revenue 1,010,757 1,099,893 1,063,691 962,453 804,246
EBITDA" 236,838 248,694 244,108 254,670 294,334
Operating profit? 49,243 61,091 70,234 74,053 87,639
Profit before tax 9 31,510 48,841 59,859 60,711 72,584
Profit 29,790 46,149 50,856 62,290 63,069
Dividends 31,479 23,605 40,618 56,773 49,801
Total assets 3,486,576 3,575,358 3,517,752 3,255,536 3,243,103
Non-current assets 3,109,253 3,128,064 3,102,019 2,883,583 2,763,546
Total equity 2,020,801 2,021,714 2,006,975 1,923,119 1,918,404
Borrowings 827,222 944,675 846,961 730,408 776,329
Net debt ¥ 706,211 689,252 604,468 575,492 443,000
Net cash flows from operating activities 135,329 146,540 214,526 256,685 228,461
Capital expenditure 177,607 224,868 264,260 282,757 181,472
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net debt / EBITDA ratio 3.0 2.8 2.5 2.3 1.5
EBITDA margin ® 23.4 % 22.6 % 22.9 % 26.5 % 36.6 %
Operating profit margin © 4.9 % 5.6 % 6.6 % 7.7 % 10.9 %
Profit before tax margin 7 3.1 % 4.4 % 5.6 % 6.3 % 9.0 %
Profit margin® 2.9 % 4.2 % 4.8 % 6.5 % 7.8 %
Capital ratio? 58 % 57 % 57 % 59 % 59 %
Return on assets (ROA) 1% 0.8 % 1.3 % 1.5% 1.9 % 2.2 %
Return on equity (ROE) ' 1.5 % 2.3% 2.6 % 3.2% 4.0 %
Retail electricity supply GWh 8,688 7,954 8,287 8,980 7,620
Electricity generated in power plants GWh 3,625 4,854 5,077 5,285 5,869
Aggregate heat supply GWh 2,442 2,517 2,669 2,624 2,928
Number of employees at the end of the year 4,563 4,512 4,457 4,490 4,517
Moody’s credit rating of the Parent Company Baa2 (stable)* Baa3 (stable) Baa3 (stable) Baa3 (stable) Baa3 (stable)

* Credit rating upgraded on 16" February 2015

' EBITDA - earnings before interest, income tax, share of result of
associates, depreciation and amortisation, and impairment of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment

2 Operating profit — earnings before income tax, finance income and
costs

3 Profit before tax — earnings before income tax

4 Net debt — borrowings at the end of the year minus cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year

9 EBITDA margin — EBITDA / revenue

9 Operating profit margin — operating profit / revenue

7 Profit before tax margin — profit before tax / revenue

8 Profit margin — profit / revenue

9 Capital ratio — total equity / total assets

9 Return on assets (ROA) — profit / average value of assets (assets at
the beginning of the year + assets at the end of the year / 2)

" Return on equity (ROE) — profit / average value of equity (equity at the
beginning of the year + equity at the end of the year / 2)



Management Report

Latvenergo Group is a pan-Baltic power supply utility
operating in generation and supply of electricity and
thermal energy, provision of electricity distribution
services and management of transmission system
assets.

In 2014, Latvenergo Group has successfully retained

its leadership in electricity supply on the Baltic market,
supplying 9 % more electricity to Baltic retail customers
reaching a total volume of 8,688 GWh (2013: 7,954 GWh).
Most significantly electricity supply increased outside
Latvia — in Lithuania and Estonia, where it increased
almost by a half compared to the previous year and
reached 3,053 GWh. Also, the number of customers in
neighbouring countries has increased by more than one-
fifth reaching approximately 34 thousands as at the end
of 2014.

More than 1/3 of retail electricity
supply in Lithuania and Estonia

In 2014, the total amount of electricity generated by

the power plants of Latvenergo Group was 3,625 GWh
(2013: 4,854 GWh). Compared to 2013, electricity output
at Daugava HPPs decreased by 32 % or 926 GWh due
uncommonly low water inflow in the Daugava River — the
lowest since the 1976. Likewise, electricity generation

at Riga combined heat and power plants (Riga CHPPs)
decreased by 309 GWh or 16 % compared to the
previous year. Reduction of electricity output at Riga
CHPPs was mainly determined by change in support
mechanism for large cogeneration plants, not providing
compensation for natural gas and other electricity
generation variable costs, thus Riga CHPPs operated in
market conjuncture effectively planning operating modes
and fuel consumption.

In 2014, the total amount of thermal energy generated
by Latvenergo Group was 2,488 GWh (2013: 2,566). The
decrease was determined by warmer weather conditions
during the heating season.

In 2014, Latvenergo Group revenue was
EUR 1,010.8 million (2013: EUR 1,099.9 million).

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to change in
mandatory procurement accounting principles

as of 1%t of April 2014 along with the establishment of
Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS, as the mandatory
procurement public service obligation (PSO) fee
revenues are no longer included in revenue of the
Latvenergo Group.

Latvenergo Group EBITDA was EUR 236.8 million in
2014 (2013: EUR 248.7 million), but profit was

EUR 29.8 million (2013: EUR 46.1 million). The results
of the Group were negatively impacted by significantly
lower output at Daugava HPPs. Besides, the lost
revenues due to electricity supply at the regulated tariff
in Latvia, which is below the market price, are estimated
at EUR 48.2 million in 2014.

In 2014, the total amount of investments was

EUR 177.6 million (2013: EUR 224.9 million). Decrease of
investments was mainly due to completion of the

Riga TEC-2 second power unit reconstruction project in
late 2013 and lower investments in the final phase of the
second stage of the Kurzeme Ring project transmission
line construction.

The amount invested in networks
represents 74 % of the total
investments

Latvenergo Group has invested a significant amount in
modernisation of the network to improve the quality of
network services, technical parameters and safety.

In 2014, the amount invested in the network represents
74 % of the total investments. As a result of these
investments the losses in distribution network have
decreased — during the period from 2010 to 2014

the electricity distribution losses have decreased by

25 %. Likewise, the Group continuously invests in
environmentally friendly and environmental development
projects — in 2014, almost EUR 10 million were invested
in Daugava HPPs hydropower unit reconstruction.

In August 2014, 330 kV electricity transmission line
connection Grobina-Ventspils of the Kurzeme Ring
project was commissioned thus completing the second
stage of the Kurzeme Ring project. The final stage of
the project Ventpils—-Tume—-Riga has been included in
the indicative funding allocation list of the European
Commission assigning 45 % co—funding. As a result of
the project implementation safety in Kurzeme region and
in Latvia as whole has significantly increased enabling
future opportunity to use the Lithuania—Sweden marine
cable NordBalt and access to the Nordic electricity
market.

Second stage of the Kurzeme Ring
project is completed

Latvenergo Group regularly sources borrowed capital to
ensure the required funding for investment programme
of following years and debt repayment. In late 2014, two
activities were completed within the borrowed capital
sourcing plan: procurement of bank loans was finalised
in November 2014, attracting borrowed funds in the
amount of EUR 150 million with maturity of 5 and 7 years
and, in December 2014, a loan agreement for EUR 100
million was concluded with European Investment Bank.

The net borrowings of Latvenergo Group have increased
due to investments in the reconstruction of network
assets and reached EUR 706.2 million (2013:

EUR 689.3 million) as at 31t of December 2014,

while the net debt/ EBITDA ratio was 3.0 (2013: 2.8).
Latvenergo Group maintains stable capital structure

and in the end of 2014 the equity is 58 % of total assets
(831/12/2013: 57 %), which is considered to be an
appropriate rate within the industry.

Funding of EUR 250 million
has been raised
In early 2015, the international rating agency Moody’s

Investors Service has raised Latvenergo AS credit rating
to Baa2 with a stable outlook.












Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity shareholders

of the Parent Company Non-
Notes sh Retained controlling TOTAL
are etaine interests
capital Reserves earnings Total

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

As at 31¢t of December 2012 1,287,137 644,113 70,803 2,002,053 4,922 2,006,975

Increase in share capital 19 874 - - 874 - 874

Dividends for 2012 20b - - (40,619) (40,619) (813) (40,932)
Total contributions by and distributions to equity holders of the Parent Company, _

recognised directly in equity 874 (40,619) (39,745) (313) (40,058)

Profit for the year - - 44,305 44,305 1,844 46,149

Other comprehensive income 20 a - 8,305 343 8,648 - 8,648

Total comprehensive income - 8,305 44,648 52,953 1,844 54,797

As at 31¢ of December 2013 1,288,011 652,418 74,832 2,015,261 6,453 2,021,714

Increase in share capital 19 435 - - 435 - 435

Dividends for 2013 20b - - (23,605) (23,605) (1,197) (24,802)
Total contributions by and distributions to equity holders of the Parent Company, _

recognised directly in equity 435 (23,605) (23,170) (1,197) (24,367)

Profit for the year - - 28,515 28,515 1,275 29,790

Other comprehensive (loss) / income 20a - (6,589) 253 (6,336) - (6,336)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income - (6,589) 28,768 22,179 1,275 23,454

As at 31¢ of December 2014 1,288,446 645,829 79,995 2,014,270 6,531 2,020,801

The notes on pages 10 to 61 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes 2014 2013
EUR'000 EUR'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 31,510 48,841
Adjustments:
— Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 184,14 a 187,595 187,603
- Loss from disposal of non—current assets 2,470 3,068
- Losses / (gains) on investments accounting at equity method 15 357 (1,061)
- Interest costs 11b 20,351 21,500
- Interest income 11a (2,045) (2,170)
- Fair value (gains) / losses on derivative financial instruments 8, 11 (8,759) 2,261
- Increase in provisions 22 150 339
- Unrealised losses / (gains) on currency translation differences 11a,b 65 (122)
Operating profit before working capital adjustments 231,694 260,259
Decrease in inventories 2,468 1,322
Increase in trade and other receivables (93,285) (10,486)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 19,062 (64,800)
Cash generated from operating activities 159,939 186,295
Interest paid (20,915) (24,350)
Interest received 2,082 2,361
Income tax paid (5,777) (17,7606)
Net cash flows from operating activities 135,329 146,540
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets and PPE (177,988) (209,812)
Proceeds from sales of investments 15 5,779 -
Proceeds on financing from EU funds and other financing 2,161 10,138
Proceeds from redemption of held-to—maturity assets 60 60
Net cash flows used in investing activities (169,988) (199,614)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issued debt securities (bonds) 21b - 84,835
Proceeds on borrowings from financial institutions 21b 22,600 117,300
Repayment of borrowings 21b (139,695) (105,174)
Dividends paid to non—controlling interests (1,197) (813)
Dividends received from associates 1,924 -
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Parent Company* (12,649) (30,644)
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities (129,017) 66,004
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (163,676) 12,930
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18 255,423 242,493
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year** 18 91,747 255,423

The notes on pages 10 to 61 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

* dividends declared for 2013 in the amount of EUR 23,605
thousand are settled partly by corporate income tax
overpayment in the amount of EUR 10,956 thousand (dividends
declared for 2012 — EUR 40,619 thousand are settled partly by
corporate income tax overpayment in the amount of EUR 9,975
thousand);

** received government grant for mandatory procurement public
service obligation costs compensation in the amount of EUR
29,264 has not be included in cash and cash equivalents at

the end of the year because it is defined as restricted cash and
cash equivalents (Note 18)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

All shares of public limited company Latvenergo or
Latvenergo AS (hereinafter — the Parent Company) are
owned by the Republic of Latvia and are held by the
Ministry of Economics of the Republic of Latvia. The
registered address of the Company is 12 Pulkveza
Brieza Street, Riga, LV-1230, Latvia. According to the
Energy Law of the Republic of Latvia, Latvenergo AS

is designated as a national economy object of State
importance and, therefore, is not subject to privatisation.

Public limited company Latvenergo is power supply
utility engaged in electricity and thermal energy
generation, as well as supply of electricity. Latvenergo
AS is one of the largest corporate entities in the Baltics.

Latvenergo AS heads the Latvenergo Group (hereinafter
- the Group) that includes following subsidiaries:

» Sadales tikls AS (since 18" of September
2006) with 100 % interest held;

» Elektrum Eesti OU (since 27t of June 2007) and
its subsidiary Elektrum Latvija SIA (since 18" of
September 2012) with 100 % interest held;

» Elektrum Lietuva UAB (since 7" of January
2008) with 100 % interest held;

» Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS (since 10t of
February 2011) with 100 % interest held;

» Liepajas energija SIA (since 6" of July 2005)
with 51 % interest held;

» Energijas publiskais tirgotajs AS (since 25" of
February 2014) with 100 % interest held.

Latvenergo AS and its subsidiaries Sadales tikls AS,
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS and Energijas publiskais
tirgotajs AS are also shareholders with 48.15 %
interest held in associated company Pirmais Slegtais
Pensiju Fonds AS that manages a defined-contribution
corporate pension plan in Latvia.

On 26" of September 2013 Shareholder’s Meeting

of Latvenergo AS passed a decision outermination

of Latvenergo AS participation in Nordic Energy Link
AS. According to the Directive 2009/72/EC of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 13™ of July
2009 concerning common rules for the internal market
in electricity and repealing Directive 2003/54/EC,
Latvenergo AS, as electricity generator and supplier,
performed activities so that after 31! of December 2013
it would not be owner of the electricity transmission
infrastructure. On 12" of February 2014 the Cabinet of
Ministers of the Republic of Latvia adopted decision
No. 67 ,,On Latvenergo AS termination of partnership
in Nordic Energy Link AS” and on 19" of March 2014
at the Nordic Energy Link AS Shareholders’ meeting

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. Where it is necessary comparatives are
reclassified.

2.1. Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use in the European
Union. Due to the European Union’s endorsement
procedure, the standards and interpretations not
approved for use in the European Union are presented in

was approved decision to liquidate Nordic Energy Link
AS. In December 2014 Latvenergo AS terminated its
shareholdering in Nordic Energy Link AS with 25 %
interest held.

The Parent Company’s shareholdering in subsidiaries,
associates and other non-current financial investments
is disclosed in Note 15.

Since 15™ of August 2011 until the date of approving
of the 2014 Annual Report, the Management Board of
Latvenergo AS includes the following members: Aris
Zigurs (Chairman), Uldis Bariss, Maris Kunickis, Arnis
Kurgs and Zane Kotane.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for year 2014
include the financial information in respect of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ending 31t of
December 2014 and comparative information for year
2013. Financial Statements for year 2014 are prepared
by comparability of financial results, and where it is
necessary, comparatives for year 2013 are reclassified
using the same principles applied for preparation of the
2014 Annual Report.

The Management Board of Latvenergo AS has approved
the Consolidated Financial Statements on 14™ of April
2015. The decision on approval of the Consolidated
Financial Statements is made by Shareholder’s Meeting.

this note as they may have impact on the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the following periods if
endorsed.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of land and buildings, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial



instruments) at fair value through profit or loss as
disclosed in accounting policies presented below.

All amounts shown in these Consolidated Financial

Statements are presented in thousands of euros (EUR).

Comparative figures for year 2013 are translated from
Latvian lats (LVL) into euros using official currency
rate of the Bank of Latvia 1 EUR = 0.702804 LVL, that
conforms with the Latvian lats conversion rate to the
euros determined by the European Central Bank in
accordance with the ECOFIN decision passed by the
European Union Council on 9" of July 2013.

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use
of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the Parent
Company Management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ
from those. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the Consolidated
Financial Statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRS
and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)

interpretations
The following new and/or amended International
Financial Reporting Standards or interpretations
published or revised during the reporting year, which
became effective for the reporting period started from
1st of January 2014, have been adopted by the Group:
» Amendment to IAS 27 “Separate Financial
Statements” — As a result of the new standards
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this standard was
amended to contain accounting and disclosure
requirements for investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates when an entity
prepares separate financial statements. The
implementation of this amendment had no impact
on the financial statements of the Group.

» Amendment to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures” - As a result of the new
standards IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this
standard was renamed and addresses the
application of the equity method to investments
in joint ventures in addition to associates. The
implementation of this amendment had no impact
on the financial statements of the Group.

» Amendment to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” — This amendment clarifies the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set-off” and also clarifies the application of the IAS
32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.
The implementation of this amendment had no
impact on the financial statements of the Group.

» Amendment to IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” —
This amendment adds a few additional disclosure
requirements about the fair value measurement
when the recoverable amount is based on fair value
less costs of disposal and removes an unintended
consequence of IFRS 13 to IAS 36 disclosures.

The amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

» Amendment to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” — The amendment
provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting
when novation of a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The
amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

» IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

— IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities, including special purpose
entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10

will require management to exercise significant
judgment to determine which entities are controlled
and, therefore, are required to be consolidated
by a parent. IFRS 10 replaces the part of IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
related to consolidated financial statements

and replaces SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. Management has assessed
that the Group does not have entity controlled

investments, except its subsidiaries owned by
51 % and above, that would be required to
be consolidated by the Parent Company

» IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” — IFRS 11 eliminates
proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled
entities. Under IFRS 11, jointly controlled entities,
if classified as joint ventures (a newly defined
term), must be accounted for using the equity
method. Additionally, jointly controlled assets and
operations are joint operations under IFRS 11,
and the accounting for those arrangements will
generally be consistent with today’s accounting.
That is, the entity will continue to recognise its
relative share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. The implementation of this amendment
had no impact on the financial statements of
the Group since it has no joint ventures.

» IFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities” — IFRS 12 combines the disclosure
requirements for an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, investments in associates
and structured entities into one comprehensive
disclosure standard. A number of new disclosures
are also required such as disclosing the judgments
made to determine control over another entity.
The amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group, but
certain additional disclosures added (see Note 15).

» Amendment to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 -
Investment Entities — The amendments apply
to entities that qualify as investment entities.

The amendments provide an exception to

the consolidation requirements of IFRS 10 by
requiring investment entities to measure their
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss,
rather than consolidate them. The implementation
of this amendment had no impact on the

financial statements of the Group, as the parent
of the Group is not an investment entity.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following IFRS and IFRIC
interpretations that have been issued as of the date of
authorisation of these financial statements for issue, but
which will become effective for the reporting periods
started from 1%t of January 2015 or later. At present

11



the Management of the Group evaluates the impact or

expected effect from adoption of these standards, but

does not consider that any of these amendments will
have significant effect to the Consolidated Financial

Statements:

» Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements: Disclosure Initiative” (effective
for financial years beginning on or after 15t of
January 2016, once endorsed by the EU). The
amendments aim at clarifying IAS 1 to address
perceived impediments to preparers exercising
their judgment in presenting their financial reports.
The Group has not yet evaluated the impact of the
implementation of this standard, but considers
that these amendments will have an effect to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

» Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant &
Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible assets:
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization” (effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1t of January
2016, once endorsed by the EU). The amendment
provides additional guidance on how the depreciation
or amortisation of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets should be calculated. It
is clarified that a revenue-based method is not
considered to be an appropriate manifestation of
consumption. Implementation of these amendments
will not have an effect to the Consolidated Financial
Statements as the Group does not use revenue
based depreciation and amortisation methods.

» Amendments to IAS 27 “Equity method in
separate financial statements” (effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1t of January
2016, once endorsed by the EU). The amendments
reinstate the equity method as an accounting
option for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in an entity’s separate financial
statements. The Group has not yet evaluated the
impact of the implementation of this standard, but
considers that these amendments will not have an
effect to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

» IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1st of January
2018, once endorsed by the EU). IFRS 9 will replace
IAS 39 and will have effect on the classification

and measurement framework for financial

assets, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. The Group has not yet evaluated the
impact of the implementation of this standard, but
considers that this standard will have an effect

to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

» Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - “Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture” (effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1%t of January 2016,
once endorsed by the EU). The amendments
address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28,
in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

The main consequence of the amendments is that
a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business and partial gain or loss is
recognised when a transaction involves assets that
do not constitute a business. The Group has not
yet evaluated the impact of the implementation

of this standard, but does not consider that any

of these amendments will have significant effect

to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

» IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (effective for financial years beginning
on or after 15t of January 2017, once endorsed by
the EU). IFRS 15 establishes a five—step model
that will apply to revenue earned from a contract
with a customer, regardless of the type of revenue
transaction or the industry. Extensive disclosures
will be required, including disaggregation of total
revenue; information about performance obligations;
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgments
and estimates. Management still evaluating
whether adoption of this IFRS will have an impact
on the presentation of revenue disclosures in
the Consolidated Financial Statements and
financial position or performance of the Group.

The Management of the Group plans to adopt the above
mentioned standards and interpretations that were
applicable for the Group on their effectiveness date.

Standards issued but not yet effective and

not applicable for the Group

» Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
(effective for financial years beginning on or after
1t of February 2015). The amendments address
accounting for the employee contributions to a
defined benefit plan. Since the Group’s employees
do not make such contributions, the implementation
of this amendment will not have any impact
on the financial statements of the Group.

» Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 -
“Investment Entities: Applying the consolidation
exception” (effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1t of January 2016, once endorsed
by the EU). The amendments address issues
that have arisen in the context of applying the
consolidation exception for investment entities. The
implementation of these amendments will have no
impact on the financial statements of the Group, as
the parent of the Group is not an investment entity.

» Amendment to IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements:
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations” (effective for financial years beginning
on or after 15t of January 2016, once endorsed by
the EU). IFRS 11 addresses the accounting for
interests in joint ventures and joint operations. The
amendment adds new guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation
that constitutes a business in accordance with IFRS
and specifies the appropriate accounting treatment
for such acquisitions. Management has assessed that
this amendment will have no impact on the financial
statements of the Group, as the Group has not any
interests in joint ventures and joint operations.

» IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”
(effective for financial years beginning on or after
1st of January 2016, once endorsed by the EU).
IFRS 14 provides first-time adopters of IFRS
with relief from derecognising rate-regulated
assets and liabilities. The implementation of this
standard will not have any impact on the Group
since the Group is not first-time adopter of IFRS.

The Management of the Group will not adopt these
amendments because they will not be applicable for the
Group.
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Improvements to IFRSs

» In December 2013 the IASB issued the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle, which is
a collection of amendments to the following IFRSs
(effective for financial years beginning on or after
1st of January 2015): IFRS 1 First-time adoption
of IFRS, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 13
Fair value Measurement and IAS 40 Investment
Property; and to IFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle (effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1t of
February 2015) — IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating
Segments, IFRS 13 Fair value Measurement, IAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 24 Related
Party Disclosures and IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

» In September 2014 IASB issued the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
(effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1t of January 2016, once endorsed by the
EU): IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operation, IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee
Benefits and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The adoption of these amendments may result in
changes to accounting policies or disclosures but
will not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (effective for financial
years beginning on or after 17" of June 2014). This
interpretation addresses the accounting for levies
imposed by governments. Liability to pay a levy is
recognised in the financial statements when the activity
that triggers the payment of the levy occurs. The Group
has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation
of this interpretation.

2.2. Consolidation

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, which are those entities where the Group
has control over the financial and operating policies of
the entity, financial reports are consolidated. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee

and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Subsidiaries’ financial reports are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Parent
Company and are no longer consolidated from the date
when control ceases. General information about entities
included in consolidation and its primary business
activities are disclosed in Note 15.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost

of an acquisition is measured, as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Costs
directly attributable to the acquisition are expensed to
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the value
of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration

is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between the Group’s entities
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
but considered an impairment indicator of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group’s Parent Company. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in the Group’s equity.

c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20 % and

50 % of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting

in the consolidated financial statements and are

initially recognised at cost. Under this method the
Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition

profits and losses is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss, and its share of post—
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in associate equals or
exceeds its interest in associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group interest in the associates. Unrealised losses

are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3. Disclosures of Operating Segments

For segment reporting purposes the Group allocates
division into operating segments based on the Group’s
internal management structure, which is the basis for
the reporting system, performance assessment and the
allocation of resources by the chief operating decision
maker.

The Group allocates its operations into three main
operating segments — generation and supply,
distribution and management of transmission system
assets. In addition Corporate Functions, that covers
administration and other support services, are
presented separately.
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2.4. Foreign Currency Translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group’s entity operates

(“the functional currency”). The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in euros (EUR), which is
the Parent Company’s functional currency.

b) Transactions and balances

All transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into functional currency at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into functional currency using the
exchange rate at the last day of the reporting year. The
resulting gain or loss is charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

c) Consolidation of the Group’s foreign companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s

entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper—

inflationary economy) that have functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

1) Assets and liabilities for each financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that financial position;

2) Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
transactions).

2.5. Intangible Assets

a) Licenses and software

Licenses and software are shown at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost

of licenses and software over their estimated useful
lives (5 years). Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years.

b) Greenhouse gas emission allowances

Emission rights for greenhouse gases (or allowances)
are recognised at purchase cost. Allowances received
from the Government free of charge are recognised

at zero cost as off-balance sheet assets. Emission
rights are recognised at cost when the Group is able to
exercise the control. In those cases when the quantity
of emitted greenhouse gases exceeds the quantity of
allowances allocated by the state free of charge, the
Group purchases additional allowances and carrying
value of those allowances is determined on the basis of
the market price of greenhouse gas emission allowances
at the reporting period. Allowances are accounted for
within ‘Intangible assets’ (see Note 13 b).

2.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at
historical cost or revalued amount (see point 2.8) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss.

The cost comprises the purchase price, transportation
costs, installation, and other direct expenses related to
the acquisition or implementation. The cost of the self-
constructed item of PPE includes the cost of materials,
services and workforce. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of an item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance
expenses are charged directly to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss when the expenditure is
incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised proportionally
to the part of the cost of fixed assets under construction
over the period of construction. Effective part of the
changes in the fair value of forward foreign currencies
exchange contracts, the purpose of which is to

hedge currency exchange risk on PPE items, are also
capitalised and included in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss along with the expenses of depreciation
over the useful life of the asset or at the disposal of the
asset.

If an item of PPE consists of components with different
useful lives, these components are depreciated as
separate items. Homogenous items with similar useful
lives are accounted for in groups.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on the other
assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Type of property, plant and equipment Estimated useful life,

years
Buildings and facilities, including
- Hydropower plants, combined
heat and power plants 15-100
- Electricity transmission lines 30-50
- Electricity distribution lines 30-40
Technology equipment and machinery, including
- Hydropower plants 10-40
- Combined heat and power plants 3-25
- Transmission and distribution 10— 40
machinery and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment 2-25

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see point 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. Those are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss. If revalued property, plant and equipment have
been sold, appropriate amounts are reclassified from
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

All fixed assets under construction are stated at historical
cost and comprised costs of construction of assets. The
initial cost includes construction and installation costs
and other direct costs related to construction of fixed
assets. Assets under construction are not depreciated as
long as the relevant assets are completed and assigned
for the operation.
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2.7. Investment Property

Investment properties are land or a building or part

of a building held by the Group as the owner to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production of goods or supply of services or for
administrative purposes, or sale in the ordinary course
of business. The investment properties are initially
recognised at cost and subsequently measured at
acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The applied depreciation rates are
based on estimated useful life set for respective fixed
asset categories — from 15 to 80 years.

2.8. Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Revaluations have been made with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment items subject to valuation does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair value at the end of reporting period.

The following property, plant and equipment groups are
revalued regularly but not less frequently than every five
years:

a) Buildings and facilities, including
- Daugava hydropower plants’ buildings and facilities,
- Buildings and facilities of transmission system,
- Buildings and facilities of distribution system;

b) Technology equipment and machinery, including
- Daugava hydropower plants’ technology
equipment and machinery,
- Technology equipment and machinery
of transmission system,
- Technology equipment and machinery
of distribution system;
c) Other property, plant and equipment, including
- Other PPE of Daugava hydropower plants’,
- Other PPE of transmission system,
- Other PPE of distribution system.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
net of deferred tax is credited to the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as “Property, plant and

equipment revaluation reserve” in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same
asset are charged in ‘Other comprehensive income’
and debited against the revaluation reserve directly in
equity; all other decreases are charged to the current
year’s Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross
carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying
amount of the asset after the revaluation equals its
revalued amount.

Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is
decreased at the moment, when revalued asset has
been eliminated or disposed.

Revaluation reserve cannot be distributed in dividends,
used for indemnity, reinvested in other reserves, or used
for other purposes.

2.9. Impairment of Assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation
and land are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss

is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing the value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate

that reflects the current market expectations regarding
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash—generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Other Comprehensive Income within PPE revaluation
reserve for the assets accounted at revalued amount
and in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
within amortisation, depreciation and impairment charge
expenses for the assets that are accounted at amortised
historical cost and for the assets accounted at

revalued amount in case if impairment charge exceeds
revaluation surplus previously recognised on individual
asset.

The key assumptions used in determining recoverable
amount of the asset are based on the Group entities’

or the Parent Company’s management best estimation
of the range of economic conditions that will exist

over the remaining useful life of the asset, on the basis
of the most recent financial budgets and forecasts
approved by the management for a maximum period

of 10 years. Assets are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that impairment must be
reviewed. The reversal of impairment for the assets that
are accounted at amortised historical cost is recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Reversal
of impairment loss for revalued assets is recognised

in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss to the
extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued
asset was previously recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss; the remaining reversals of
impairment losses of revalued assets are recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income.

2.10. Leases

a) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease (Note 14 e).

b) The Group is the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are recorded
within property, plant and equipment at historic cost
less depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to
write down each asset to its estimated residual value
over estimated useful life. Rental income from operating
lease and advance payments received from clients (less
any incentives given to lessee) are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease (Note 14e).
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2.11. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method.

Purchase cost of inventories consists of the purchase
price, import charges and other fees and charges,
freight-in and related costs as well as other costs
directly incurred in bringing the materials and goods
to their present location and condition. The value of
inventories is assigned by charging trade discounts,
reductions and similar allowances.

Amount of inventories as of the end of reporting period
is verified during stock-taking.

At the end of each reporting year the inventories are
reviewed for any indications of obsolescence. In cases
when obsolete or damaged inventories are identified
allowances are recognised. During the reporting year

at least each month revaluation of the inventories is
performed with the purpose to identify obsolete and
damaged inventories. Allowances for an impairment loss
are recognised for those inventories.

The following basic principles are used in determining

impairment losses for idle and obsolete inventories:

a) Inventories (spare parts, that are not considered
as emergency reserve under property, plant and
equipment) for machinery and equipment of
hydropower plants and thermal power plants that
haven’t turned over during last 12 months are
impaired in amount of 90 %,

b) Other inventories that haven’t turned over during last
12 months are fully impaired,

c) Inventories (spare parts, that are not considered
as emergency reserve under property, plant
and equipment) for machinery and equipment
of hydropower plants and thermal power plants
that haven’t turned over during last 6 months are
impaired in amount of 45 %,

d) Other inventories that haven’t turned over during last
6 months are impaired in amount of 50 %,

e) Allowances are not calculated for the inventory of
heating materials necessary to ensure uninterrupted
operations of heat power plants.

2.12. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently carried at amortised cost or cost
less impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect

all amounts due according to the original terms of
repayment. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probabilities that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
as indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.

Trade receivables are classified in groups:

a) Electricity receivables,

b) Heating receivables,

c) Other services trade receivables (IT &
telecommunication services, connection service
fees, distribution system services and services
of transmission system assets construction,
management and lease).

An allowance for impairment of doubtful debts is

calculated on the basis of trade receivables aging

analysis according to estimates defined by the Group
entities management and the Parent Company’s
management, which are revised at least once a year.

Allowances for electricity trade receivables are calculated

for debts overdue 45 days, and, if the debt is overdue

for more than 181 day, allowances are established

at 100 %. For other trade receivables allowances are

calculated for debts overdue 31 day, and, if the date of

payment is overdue for more than 91 day, allowances are

established at 100 % (see Note 17 a).

Individual impairment assessments are performed for

the debtors:

a) In Latvia - if their debt balance exceeds EUR 700
thousand and debt repayment schedule has been
individually agreed,

b) In Lithuania and Estonia - if their debt balance
exceeds EUR 200 thousand and debt repayment
schedule has been individually agreed,

c) If debtor has been announced as insolvent,
allowances are established at 100 %.

The level of allowance for such type of debtors is

based on the individual risk assessment of insolvency

probability.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss within selling and customer services costs. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against selling and customer services costs in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances

on bank accounts, demand deposits at bank and
other short-term deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents also
are consisting of restricted cash, that are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows (see Note 18).

2.14. Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Parent Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Parent Company’s shareholders.

2.15. Pensions and Employment Benefits

a) Pension obligations

The Group makes monthly contributions to a closed
defined contribution pension plan on behalf of its
employees. The plan is managed by the non—profit
public limited company Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds,
with the participation of the Group companies amounting
for 48.15 % of its share capital. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
contributions into the plan. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The contributions amount to 5 % of each
pension plan member’s salary. The Group recognizes
the contributions to the defined contribution plan as an
expense when an employee has rendered services in
exchange for those contributions.
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b) Provisions for post-employment obligations arising
from collective agreement

In addition to the aforementioned plan, the Group
provides certain post-employment benefits to
employees whose employment meets certain criteria.
Obligations for benefits are calculated taking into
account the current level of salary and number of
employees eligible to receive the payment, historical
termination rates as well as number of actuarial
assumptions.

The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The liability recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position in respect of post-employment
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of government bonds. The Group uses
projected unit credit method to establish its present
value of fixed benefit obligation and related present

and previous employment expenses. According to this
method it has been stated that each period of work
makes benefit obligation extra unit and the sum of
those units comprises total Group’s obligations of post—
employment benefits. The Group uses objective and
mutually compatible actuarial assumptions on variable
demographic factors and financial factors (including
expected remuneration increase and determined
changes in benefit amounts).

Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.
Past service costs are recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.16. Income Tax
a) Corporate income tax

Latvia and Lithuania
Income tax expense for the period comprises current
income tax and deferred income tax. Current income

tax charges are calculated on current profit before tax
using the tax rate 15 % in accordance with applicable
tax regulations as adjusted for certain non-deductible
expenses/non-taxable income and are based on the
taxable income reported for the taxation period.

Estonia

Under the Income Tax Act, the annual profit earned by
entities is not taxed in Estonia. Corporate income tax
is paid on dividends, fringe benefits, gifts, donations,
costs of entertaining guests, non-business related
disbursements and adjustments of the transfer price.
The tax rate on the net dividends paid out of retained
earnings is 21/79 (20/80 starting from 15t of January
2015). In certain circumstances, it is possible to
distribute dividends without any additional income tax
expense. The corporate income tax arising from the
payment of dividends is accounted for as a liability and
expense in the period in which dividends are declared,
regardless of the actual payment date or the period for
which the dividends are paid.

b) Deferred income tax

Latvia and Lithuania

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted by the end
of reporting period and are expected to apply when

the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit of the
respective Group entity will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Tax incentives for new technological equipment are not
considered when calculating deferred income tax.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and

associates, except where the Group controls the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Estonia

Due to the nature of the taxation system, the entities
registered in Estonia do not have any differences
between the tax bases of assets and their carrying
amounts and hence, no deferred income tax assets and
liabilities arise.

2.17. Subsidised Energy Tax

In order to limit the increase of the mandatory
procurement public service obligation fee for electricity
consumers in Latvia, a Subsidised Energy Tax (SET)
has been introduced for a four-year period as of 1st

of January 2014, which applies to state support for
generators of subsidised electricity. The SET applies
both to income from electricity supplied under

the mandatory procurement process as well as to
mandatory procurement capacity payments for installed
capacity at cogeneration plants. The tax is differentiated
according to the type of energy sources used. For
cogeneration plants that use fossil energy sources a
15 % tax rate applies to the received support (taxable
income) amount, 10 % tax rate — plants that use
renewable energy sources, 5 % — cogeneration plants
that use gas, biogas and biomass energy sources and
installed electrical capacity in cogeneration plants is
over 4 MW. Taxpayers are all producers of subsidised
electricity. Revenues from SET are used as a funding
for the grant included in the State Budget programme
“Electricity user support” to limit the increase of
mandatory procurement public service obligation fee.

2.18. Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed

17



in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.19. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Provisions are presented in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of reporting period. Provisions are used only

for expenditures for which the provisions were originally
recognised and are reversed if an outflow of resources is
no longer probable.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected tto be required for settling the
obligation by using pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of the money and
the risks specific to the obligation as a discount rate.
The increase in provisions due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Environmental protection provisions are recognised to
cover environmental damages that have occurred before
the end of the reporting period when this is required by
law or when the Group’s past environmental policies
have demonstrated that the Group has a constructive
present obligation to liquidate this environmental
damage. Experts’ opinions and prior experience in
performing environmental work are used to set up the
provisions (see Note 22 b).

2.20. Grants

Government grants are recognised as income over

the period necessary to match them with the related
costs, for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. A government grant is not recognised
until there is reasonable assurance that the entity will
comply with the conditions attaching to it, and that the

grant will be received. Receipt of a grant does not of
itself provide conclusive evidence that the conditions
attaching to the grant have been or will be fulfilled.
Government grants are received with the purpose

to reduce the increase of mandatory procurement
public service obligation fee partly compensating the
increase of mandatory procurement costs. Acceptance
from European Union is a prerequisite for use of the
government grant received in 2014.

Property, plant and equipment received at nil
consideration are accounted for as grants. Those grants
are recognised at fair value as deferred income and are
credited to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Financing provided by European Union funds

The Group ensures the management, application of
internal controls and accounting for the Group’s projects
financed by the European Union funds, according to the
guidelines of the European Union and legislation of the
Repubilic of Latvia.

Accounting of the transactions related to the projects
financed by the European Union is ensured using
separately identifiable accounts. The Group ensures
separate accounting of financed projects with detailed
income and expense, non—current investments

and value added tax in the relevant positions of the
Group’s Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

2.21. Financial Instruments — Initial
Recognition, Subsequent Measurement and
De-recognition

a) Financial assets

1) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held—to—-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

ll) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non—
current. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position

at fair value with net changes in fair value presented
as finance costs (negative net changes in fair value) or
finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at their initial
recognition date and only if the criteria under IAS 39 are
satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair
value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non—-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,



such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method, less impairment.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other operating expenses for receivables.

Held-to—maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity.
After initial measurement, held to maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the EIR, less
impairment. If the Group were to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held—to—maturity financial assets,
the whole category would be tainted and reclassified

as available for sale. Held-to—maturity financial assets
with maturities more than 12 months from the end of
the reporting period are included in non—current assets;
however those with maturities less than 12 months from
the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets.

The Group follows the IAS 39 guidance on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held—to—-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity (see Note 4 g).

If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for specific circumstances explained in

IAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as
available—for-sale. Therefore the investments would be
measured at fair value not at amortised cost.

Purchases and sales of financial assets held-to-maturity
are recognised on trade date — the date on which the
Group commits purchase of the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired. Held—-to-maturity
financial assets are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest rate method, net of accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the amortised value of the financial
instruments are included in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise.

Available—for-sale financial assets

Available—for-sale financial assets include equity
instruments and debt securities. After initial
measurement available—for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised
gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income and credited in the available—for—sale financial
assets reserve until the investment is derecognised.

lll) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired,

2) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

b) Financial liabilities

1) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are

classified as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines

the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings,
financial guarantee contracts, and derivative financial
instruments.

ll) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss, except for the capitalised
part. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability at least for 12 months after the
end of reporting period.

Trade and other payables

The Group’s trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

lll) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the de-recognition of the original liability and the
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recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

2.22. Derivative Financial Instruments and
Hedging Activities

The Group uses derivatives such as forward foreign
exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and electricity
forward and future contracts to hedge risks associated
with currency exposures, the interest rate and purchase
price fluctuations.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on

the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values
are obtained from quoted market prices and discounted
cash flow models as appropriate (see point 2.23).

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, on the nature / content of
the relevant asset or liability being hedged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of
a particular risk associated with a recognised liability or
highly probable forecast transactions denominated in
foreign currency (cash flow hedge). Other derivatives are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging instruments

and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objectives and strategy for undertaking various

hedging transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an on-
going basis, whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair value of the derivative instruments is presented
as current or non—current based on settlement date.
Derivative instruments that have maturity of more than
twelve months and have been expected to be hold for
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
year are classified as non—current assets or liabilities.
Derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

a) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity within ‘Hedging reserve’.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion, if
such arise, would be recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion

of electricity forward and future contracts hedging
variable electricity prices and interest rate swaps
hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Fair value changes of derivatives through profit

and loss

Changes in the fair value of derivatives at fair value
through profit or loss, ineffective part of changes in
the fair value of hedging derivatives and amounts
accumulated in equity that are recycled to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, are classified
according to the purpose of the derivatives — gains/
losses from electricity forward and future contracts are
recognised within ‘Raw materials and consumables
used’, while gains / losses from interest rate swap
agreements and forward foreign currencies exchange
contracts are recognised within ‘Finance costs’ or
‘Finance income’.

2.23. Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as,
derivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Such non—financial assets as investment properties
are measured at amortised cost, but some items of
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property, plant and equipment at revalued amounts.
Also fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost are disclosed in Note 21 d.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair values are
estimated based on market prices and discounted cash
flow models as appropriate (see Note 4 c).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting period. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
prices.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group use a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each end of reporting period. Estimated
discounted cash flows are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows, by
discounting their future contractual cash flows at current
market interest rates for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of electricity forward and future contracts
is calculated as discounted difference between actual
market and settlement prices multiplied by the volume of
the agreement.

If counterparty is a bank, then fair values of financial
instruments are obtained from corresponding bank’s
revaluation reports and in financial statements fair
values of financial instruments as specified by banks
are disclosed. In case of electricity forward and future
contracts concluded with counterparties others than
a bank; fair values as calculated by the Group are
disclosed in Consolidated Financial Statements.

2.24. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the value of goods sold and
services rendered in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. The Latvian regulatory authority (Public



Utilities Commission) determines tariffs for electricity
and heat. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of value-added
tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue
is recognised as follows:

a) Electricity sales

The Group records electricity sales to residential
customers on the basis of reported meter readings.
Where relevant, this includes an estimate of the
electricity supplied between the date of the last meter
reading and the year-end. Electricity sales to corporate
customers are recognised on the basis of issued
invoices according to meter readings of customers.
Revenues from electricity sales to associated users are
based on regulated tariffs approved by Public Utilities
Commission, while revenues from market participants —
on contractual prices included in electricity trade
agreements. Revenues from trade of electricity in Nord
Pool Spot power exchange are based on the calculated
market prices.

b) Heat sales

The Group recognises revenue from sales of thermal
energy at the end of each month on the basis of the
meter readings.

c) Connection fees

When connecting to the electricity network, the clients
must pay a connection fee that partly reimburses for

the cost of infrastructure to be built to connect the

client to the network. Connection fees are carried in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as deferred
income and amortised to Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
customer relationship period.

d) Sales of distribution services

Revenues from electricity distribution services are based
on regulated tariffs that are subject to approval by the
Public Utilities Commission. The Group recognizes
revenue from sales of distribution services at the end

of each month on the basis of the automatically made
meter readings or customers’ reported meter readings.

e) Lease and management of transmission system
assets

Revenues from lease and management of transmission
system assets are recognised on the basis of invoices
which are prepared for transmission system operator
accordingly to lease agreement.

f) Sales of IT & telecommunication services

Revenues derived from information technology services
(internet connection services, data communication
services), open electronic communication network

and telecommunication services to customers are
recognised on the basis of invoices which are prepared
for clients upon either usage of services listed in
telecommunications billing system.

g) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. Interest income is recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss as “Finance income”.

h) Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive
the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

i) Accrued income on mandatory procurement public
service obligation fee

Before the applying of agent principle revenue is
recognised as accured income the amount of income
on mandatory procurement can be reliably measured
and it is virtually certain that the economic benefits
from mandatory procurement will flow to the Group
with collected mandatory procurement public service
obligation fees from electricity end users. Income from
mandatory procurement component is calculated as
difference between mandatory procurement expenses
above the electricity market price and collected
mandatory procurement component payments from all
end users of electricity.

j) Mandatory procurement public service obligation fees
Since 15t of April 2014 revenue from mandatory
procurement public service obligation fees is not
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss, but as assets or liabilities in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position by applying agent
accounting principle as subsidiary Energijas publiskais
tirgotajs AS (hereinafter — the entity) is acting in
management of the mandatory procurement process as
an agent. Features that indicate that an entity is acting
as an agent include:

» The entity has not the primary responsibility for
including the mandatory procurement public
service obligation fee as a part of the services or
products ordered or purchased by customers;

» The entity has not latitude in establishing
prices, either directly or indirectly,

» The entity does not bear the customer’s credit risk
for the amount receivable from the customer.

By applying agent principle difference between
revenue from sale of electricity in Nord Pool Spot
power exchange by market price, received mandatory
procurement public service obligation fees, received
government grant for compensating the increase of
mandatory procurement costs and costs of purchased
electricity under the mandatory procurement from
electricity generators who generate electricity in
efficient cogeneration process or using renewable
energy sources, as well as guaranteed fees for installed
electrical capacity in cogeneration plants (over 4 MW), is
recognised in net amount in assets or liabilities.

2.25. Related Parties

The parties are considered related when one party has
a possibility to control the other one or has significant
influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Related parties of the Group are
associates, Shareholder of the Parent Company who
could control or who has significant influence over

the Group’s entities in accepting operating business
decisions, key management personnel of the Group’s
entities including members of Supervisory body — Audit
Committee and close family members of any
above-mentioned persons, as well as entities over which
those persons have control or significant influence.
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2.26. Non-current Assets Held for Sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and
sale is considered highly probable. Non—current assets
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs of selling.

2.27. Share Capital

The Group’s share capital consists of the Parent
Company’s ordinary shares. All shares have been fully
paid.

2.28. Issued Guarantees

Guarantees issued are initially recognised at fair
value, which is usually equal to the premium received.
Subsequently they are measured at the higher of the
amount expected to be paid and the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation.

2.29. Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the balance
sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when
material.
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3. Financial Risk Management

3.1. Financial Risk Factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value

and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, pricing risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures.

Financial Assets by Categories

Risk management (except for pricing risk) is carried

out by the Parent Company’s Treasury department

(the Group Treasury) according to the Financial

Risk Management Policy approved by the Parent
Company’s Management Board. The Group Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in

close co-operation with the Group’s operating units /
subsidiaries. The Parent Company’s Management Board
by approving the Financial Risk Management Policy

Notes Loans and Derivatives used Held-to-maturity

receivables for hedging assets
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial assets as at 315 of December 2014
Trade receivables, net 17 a 108,107 - -
Other non-current receivables 14 - -
Accrued income and other financial current receivables 17b 113,396 - -
Held-to-maturity financial assets 21a - - 28,528
Cash and cash equivalents 18 121,011 - -
342,528 - 28,528

Financial assets as at 31%t of December 2013
Derivative financial instruments 21¢, 1 - 617 -
Trade receivables, net 17 a 89,608 - -
Other non-current receivables 57 - -
Accrued income and other financial current receivables 17b 53,774 - -
Held-to-maturity financial assets 21a - - 28,588
Cash and cash equivalents 18 255,423 - -
398,862 617 28,588

provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, liquidity

risk, and credit risk, use of financial instruments and
investment of excess liquidity. Pricing risk management
is carried out by the Parent Company’s Electricity
Trading department according to Electricity Wholesale
Regulation approved by the Parent Company’s
Management Board.
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Financial Liabilities by Categories

Derivatives used

Other financial

Liabilities at fair

EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Financial liabilities as at 31¢t of December 2014
Borrowings 21b - 827,222 -
Derivative financial instruments 21¢, | 16,333 - 4,220
Trade and other payables 24 - 101,940 -
16,333 929,162 4,220

Financial liabilities as at 31 of December 2013
Borrowings 21b - 944,675 -
Derivative financial instruments 21¢, | 10,455 - 12,979
Trade and other payables 24 - 95,622 -
10,455 1,040,297 12,979

a) Market risk
I) Foreign exchange risk

The introduction of euro in Latvia as at 1 of January 2014
prevented the euro currency risk, which primarily was arising
from settlements in foreign currencies for borrowings,
capital expenditures and imported electricity. As at 31t of
December 2014 the Group had borrowings denominated
only in euros (Note 21 b).

Management has set up a Financial Risk Management
policy inter alia to manage the Group’s foreign currencies
exchange risk against functional currency. To manage

the Group’s foreign currencies exchange risk arising from
future transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, the
Group uses forward contracts. Foreign currencies exchange
risk arises when future transactions or recognised assets

or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
Group’s functional currency.

The Group Treasury’s Financial Risk Management Policy

is to hedge all anticipated cash flows (capital expenditure
and purchase of inventory) in each major foreign currency
that might create significant currency risk. During 2014

the Group had not any capital expenditure project who’s
expected transactions would create significant currency risk
(Note 21 ¢, IV).

In 2014, the Parent Company had certain investment in
subsidiary, which was exposed to foreign currency risks.
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations in Lithuania was limited as
subsidiary had insignificant amount of assets and Lithuania
had fixed currency peg to euro. The introduction of euro

in Lithuania as at 1%t of January 2015 prevented the euro
currency risk arising from above mentioned investments in
subsidiary in Lithuania.

Il) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has significant floating interest-bearing assets
and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk, the Group’s
financial income and operating cash flows are substantially
dependent on changes in market interest rates.

During 2014, if euro interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher or lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s income from the cash reserves held at bank for the
year would have been EUR 314 thousand higher or lower
(2013: EUR 280 thousand).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises

from long-term borrowings at variable rates. They expose
the Group to a risk that finance costs might increase
significantly when interest rates rise up. The Group’s policy

is to maintain at least 35% of its borrowings as fixed
interest rates borrowings (taking into account the effect of
interest rate swaps) with duration between 2—4 years.

The Group analyses its interest rate risk exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
hedging. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates
the impact on profit and loss as well as on cash flows of a
defined interest rate shift.

Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at floating
rates and based on the various scenarios, the Group
manages their cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-
to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have
the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating
rates to fixed rates. Thereby fixed rates are obtained that
are lower than those available if the Group borrowed at
fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, the
Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified
intervals (primarily semi-annually), the difference between
fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

To hedge cash flow interest rate risk the Group has entered
into rate swap agreements with total notional amount of
EUR 320.0 million (2013: EUR 347.7 million) (Note 21 c,

Il). As at 31t of December 2014 42 % of the total Group’s
borrowings (31/12/2013: 43 %) had fixed interest rate
(taking into account the effect of the interest rate swaps)
and average fixed rate duration was 2.2 years (2013:

2.1 years).

During 2014, if interest rates on euro denominated
borrowings at floating base interest rate (after considering
hedging effect) had been 50 basis points higher or lower
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year net of taxes would have been EUR 2,164 thousand
lower or higher (2013: EUR 2,021 thousand).

The Group’s borrowings with floating rates do not impose
fair value interest rate risk. Derivatives such as interest rate
swaps are the only source of fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 of December 2014, if short and long term euro
interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower with
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all other variables held constant fair value of interest rate
swaps would have been EUR 5,321 thousand higher or
lower (31/12/2013: EUR 5,569 thousand). Furthermore EUR
209 thousand (2013: EUR 413 thousand) would have been
attributable to Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and EUR 5,112 thousand (2013: EUR 5,156 thousand) to
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as
hedge accounting item.

Ill) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value and cash flows
of financial instruments will fluctuate in the future due
to reasons other than changes in the market prices
resulting from interest rate risk or foreign exchange
risk. The purchase and sale of goods produced and the
services provided by the Group under the free market
conditions, as well as the purchases of resources used
in production is impacted by the price risk.

The most significant price risk is related to purchase of
electricity. To hedge the risk related to changes in the
price of electricity the Parent Company during 2014
has purchased electricity forward and future contracts
(Note 21 c, Ill).

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed at the Group level. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative
financial instruments and deposits with banks,
outstanding receivables. Credit risk exposure in
connection with trade receivables is limited due to broad
range of the Group’s customers. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk with any single
counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Impairment loss has been deducted from
gross accounts receivable (Note 17).

The maximum credit risk exposure related to financial
assets comprises of carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents (see table below and Note 18), trade
and other receivables (Note 17), derivative financial
instruments (Note 21 c) and held-to-maturity financial
assets (Note 21 a).

Assessment of Maximum Possible Exposure to Credit Risk

Note 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

EUR’000 EUR’000
Trade receivables 17 a 108,107 89,608
Accrued income 17b 31,249 53,487
Other non-current financial receivables 14 57
Other current financial receivables 17b 19,001 287
Cash and cash equivalents 18 121,011 255,423
Derivative financial instruments 21c¢c = 617
Held-to-maturity financial assets 21a 28,528 28,588

307,910 428,067

For banks and financial institutions, independently
rated parties with own or parent bank’s minimum

rating of investment grade are accepted. Otherwise, if
there is no independent rating, management performs
risk control to assess the credit quality of the financial
counterparty, taking into account its financial position,
past co-operation experience and other factors. After
performed assessment individual credit limits are set
based on internal ratings in accordance with principles
set by the Financial Risk Management Policy. The basis
for estimating the credit quality of financial assets not
past due and not impaired is credit ratings assigned by
the rating agencies or, in their absence, the earlier credit
behaviour of clients and other parties to the contract.

For estimation of the credit quality of fully performing
trade receivables two rating categories are used:

» Customers with no overdue receivables,

» Customers with overdue receivables.

Credit limits are regularly monitored.

Credit risk related to cash and short-term deposits

with banks is managed by balancing the placement of
financial assets in order to maintain the possibility to
choose the best offers and to reduce probability to incur
losses.

The table below shows the balance of cash and cash
equivalents by financial counterparties at the end of the
reporting period:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

EUR’000 EUR’000
Investment level credit rating 95,325 218,536
No or non-investment level credit rating 25,686 36,887
121,011 255,423

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and the Group management does not expect any

losses from to occurrence of credit risk.
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c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy of liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents,
the availability of long and short term funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
commitments according to the Group’s strategic plans
as well as to compensate the fluctuations in the cash
flows due to occurrence of variety of financial risks.

The Group entities’ management is monitoring rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve, which
comprises of undrawn borrowing facilities (Note 21 b),
and cash and cash equivalents (Note 18).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the settlement
terms. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Contractual
undiscounted cash flows originated by the borrowings
are calculated taking into account the actual interest
rates at the end of the reporting period.

3.2. Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as to ensure necessary financing

for investment program and to avoid breaches of
covenants, which are linked to capital structure and are
stipulated in the majority of loan agreements.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may evaluate the amount and timing of raising

Liquidity Analysis (Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows)

Less than 1 year From 1 to 2 years From 3 to 5 years Over 5 years TOTAL
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000

At 315t of December 2014
Borrowings from banks 148,268 96,802 312,507 211,340 768,917
Issued debt securities (bonds) 2,940 2,940 74,900 35,980 116,760
Derivative financial instruments 10,704 5,351 7,029 3,146 26,230
Trade and other payables* 101,940 - - - 101,940
263,852 105,093 394,436 250,466 1,013,847

At 31t of December 2013
Borrowings from banks 146,993 229,895 248,403 266,137 891,428
Issued debt securities (bonds) 2,940 2,940 76,860 36,960 119,700
Derivative financial instruments 22,386 6,870 6,653 1,841 37,750
Trade and other payables* 95,622 - - - 95,622
267,941 239,705 331,916 304,938 1,144,500

* Excluding advances received, deferred income, tax related liabilities and other non-current or current non-financial payables

new debt due to investment programs or initiate
new investments in the share capital by shareholder.
Also asset revaluation directly influences the capital
structure. To comply with loan covenants, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the capital ratio.

This ratio is calculated by dividing the equity by the
sum of total assets and nominal value of issued and
outstanding financial guarantees. According to the

Group’s strategy and defined loan covenants as per

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgments are regularly evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

a) Estimates concerning property, plant and equipment

1) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group makes estimates concerning the expected
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment. These are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are based on the past experience
as well as industry practice. Previous experience has
shown that the actual useful lives have sometimes been
longer than the estimates. As at 31t of December 2014,
the net book amount of property, plant and equipment
of the Group totalled EUR 3,066 million (31/12/2013:

loan agreements the capital ratio shall be maintained at
least at 30 % level.

The capital ratio figures were as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

Total equity 2,020,800 2,021,714
Total assets 3,486,576 3,575,358
Capital Ratio 58 % 57 %

EUR 3,087 million), and the depreciation charge for the
reporting period was EUR 174.1 million

(2013: EUR 168.0 million) (Note 14 a). If depreciation
rates were changed by 10%, the annual depreciation
charge would change by EUR 17.4 million (2013: EUR
16.8 million).

Il) Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
When the events and circumstances indicate a potential
impairment, the Group performs impairment tests for
items of property, plant and equipment. According to
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these tests assets are written down to their recoverable
amounts, if necessary. When carrying out impairment
tests management uses various estimates for the

cash flows arising from the use of the assets, sales,
maintenance, and repairs of the assets, as well as in
respect of the inflation and growth rates. The estimates
are based on the forecasts of the general economic
environment, consumption and the sales price of
electricity. If the situation changes in the future, either
additional impairment could be recognised, or the
previously recognised impairment could be partially or
fully reversed. Such factors as high maintenance and
reconstruction costs, low load of several auxiliaries,
comparatively substantial maintenance expense, limited
facilities to sell property, plant and equipment in the
market and other essential factors have an impact of
decreasing of the recoverable amounts. If discount rate
used for the purposes of impairment charge calculation
would be lower or higher by one per cent point the current
year’s impairment charge on technological equipment
would be by EUR 32.5 million higher or lower (2013:
EUR 36.8 million). Impairment charges recognised during
the current reporting year are disclosed in Note 14 d.

1lll) Revaluation

External, certified valuers have performed revaluation of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment by applying
the depreciated replacement cost model. Valuation has
been performed according to international standards
on property valuation and IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment, based on current use of property, plant

and equipment. As a result of valuation, depreciated
replacement cost was determined for each asset.
Depreciated replacement cost is calculated as

property, plant and equipment instant market value at
its current use, increased by the replacement cost of
existing buildings, machinery and equipment as well as
refinements on the said property, plant and equipment
decreased by the depreciation expenses and other
impairment losses. Last revaluation was performed

for assets of Daugava hydropower plants as at 1t of
January 2012, for assets of transmission system as at 1¢t
of January 2011 and for assets of distribution system as
at 1t of September 2011.

b) Recoverable amount of trade receivables

The estimated collectability of accounts receivable is
assessed on the basis of trade receivables aging analysis
according to estimates defined by the Group entities
management and the Parent Company’s management.

In case individual assessment is not possible due to

the large number of individual balances, receivables are
classified into groups of similar credit risk characteristics
and are collectively assessed for impairment, using
historical loss experience. Historical loss experience

is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to
reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in

the historical period that do not exist currently. The
circumstances indicating an impairment loss may include
initiated insolvency of the debtor and inability to meet
payment terms (point 2.12). The methodology and

assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss incurred (Note 17).

c) Fair value estimation for financial instruments
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value, by valuation
method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:
» Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),
» Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices) (Level 2),
» Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that
is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

As at 31+ of December 2014 i el e el balanee
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Electricity trading derivatives 21 ¢, I - 2,112 - 2,112
- Interest rate derivatives 21¢, I - 2,108 - 2,108
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging 21¢ |l - 16,333 - 16,333
Total liabilities - 20,553 - 20,553
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31¢t of December 2013 balance
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Assets
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging 21¢ |l - 617 - 617
Total assets - 617 - 617
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- Electricity trading derivatives 21¢, 1l - 9,912 - 9,912
- Interest rate derivatives 21¢c, i - 3,051 - 3,051
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 21¢, IV - 16 - 16
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging 21¢, - 10,455 - 10,455
Total liabilities - 23,434 - 23,434
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d) Recognition of connection service fees

Connection and other service fees are recognised as
income over the estimated customer relationship period,
which is 20 years (see Note 23). The estimated customer
relationship period is based on the Management'’s
estimate. In the reporting period the Group’s received
connection fees totalled EUR 18.2 million (2013: EUR
17.9 million), and to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss credited EUR 10.9 million (2013: EUR 9.9
million).

If the estimated customer relationship period is reduced/
increased by 25%, the annual income from connection
service fees would increase/decrease by EUR 2.7 million
(2013: EUR 2.5 million).

e) Recognition and revaluation of provisions

As at 31st of December 2014, the Group had set up
provisions for environmental protection and post-
employment benefits totalling EUR 15.6 million
(31/12/2013: EUR 15.6 million) (Note 22). The amount
and timing of the settlement of these obligations is
uncertain. A number of assumptions and estimates have
been used to determine the present value of provisions,
including the amount of future expenditure, inflation
rates, and the timing of settlement of the expenditure.
The actual expenditure may also differ from the
provisions recognised as a result of possible changes

in legislative norms, technology available in the future

to restore environmental damages, and expenditure
covered by third parties. For revaluation of provisions for
post-employment obligations probabilities of retirement

5. Operating Segment Information

Operating segments

For segment reporting purposes, the division into
operating segments is based on the Group’s internal
management structure, which is the basis for the
reporting system, performance assessment and the
allocation of resources by the operating segment
decision maker.

The Group divides its operations into three main
operating segments — generation and supply, distribution
and management of transmission system assets. In
addition, Corporate Functions, that cover administration
and other support services, are presented separately.

in different employees’ aging groups as well as variable
demographic factors and financial factors (including
expected remuneration increase and determined
changes in benefit amounts) have been estimated. The
probabilities and other factors are determined on the
basis of previous experience.

f) Evaluation of effectiveness of hedging instruments
The Group has concluded significant number of forward
and future contracts and swap agreements to hedge
the risk of the changes in prices of electricity and
interest rate fluctuations to which cash flow hedge

risk accounting is applied and the gains and losses
from changes in the fair value of the effective hedging
instruments and items secured against risk are included
in respective equity reserve. The evaluation of the
effectiveness of the hedging is based on Management’s
estimates with regard to future purchase transactions of
electricity and signed variable interest loan agreements.
When hedging instruments turn out to be ineffective,
gains/losses from the changes in the fair value are
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss (Note 21 c).

g) Held-to-maturity financial assets

The management of the Group applies judgement in
assessing whether financial assets can be categorised
as held-to-maturity at initial recognition, in particular (a)
its intention and ability to hold the assets to maturity
and (b) whether the assets are quoted in an active
market. If the Group fails to keep these investments to

Generation and supply comprises the Group’s
electricity and heat generation operations, which are
organised into the legal entities: Latvenergo AS and
Liepajas energija SIA; electricity sales operations,
including wholesale, which are conducted Pan-Baltic
by Latvenergo AS, Elektrum Eesti OU and Elektrum
Lietuva UAB, as well as management of the mandatory
procurement process provided by Energijas publiskais
tirgotajs AS.

The operations of the distribution operating segment
relates to the provision of electricity distribution services
in Latvia and is managed by the subsidiary Sadales fikls
AS (the largest distribution system operator in Latvia)
and Latvenergo AS - the owner of the distribution
system real estate assets.
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maturity other than in certain specific circumstances -

for example, selling an insignificant amount or settle a
position close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify
the entire category as available-for-sale. The investments
would therefore be measured at fair value rather than
amortised cost. For the estimated fair value of investment
securities held-to-maturity as at 315t of December 2014
refer to Note 21 a.

Evidence of an active market exists if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

h) Financial investments

The Group has applied judgement in determining that

it has a financial investment with 48.15 % interest held
in the company Pirmais Slegtais Pensiju Fonds AS that
manages closed pension plan in Latvia as investment
that has been valued at cost without applying equity
method. The Group is only a nominal shareholder as all
risks and benefits arising from management of pension
plan will accrue to the Group’s employees who are
members of the pension plan and the Group does not
have existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee. Therefore this
investment has been determined as financial investment
in Pirmais Slégtais Pensiju Fonds AS and not as
investment in associate.

The operations of the management of transmission
system assets operating segment is managed both by
Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS — the owner of transmission
system assets (330 kV and 110 kV transmission

lines, substations and distribution points), which
provides construction and maintenance as well as the
lease of assets to the transmission system operator
Augstsprieguma tikls AS, and Latvenergo AS -

the owner of the transmission system real estate
assets. The Republic of Latvia has applied the second
unbundling model under EU Directive 2009/72/EC,
which provides that the electricity transmission system
assets shall remain with a vertically integrated utility,
while the activities of the transmission system operator



are independently managed. In accordance with this
directive and concerning common rules for the internal
market of electricity and the Electricity Market Law

of the Republic of Latvia, Latvijas elektriskie tikli AS

at 1%t of January 2015 transfers to Augstsprieguma tikls

AS functions of the reconstruction or renewal, operation
and routine maintenance of the existing transmission
network system assets as well as development of the
transmission system and construction of new networks.

The following table presents revenue, profit information

and segment assets and liabilities of the Group’s

operating segments. Inter-segment revenue is
eliminated on consolidation.

. L Management ;
e py o eices  ©f ransmission Functions sogmonts " slminations _ Consolidated
EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Year ended 31%' of December 2014
Revenue
External customers 652,778 295,314 57,795 4,870 1,010,757 - 1,010,757
Inter-segment 24,603 2,040 2,933 46,432 76,008 (76,008) -
Total revenue 677,381 297,354 60,728 51,302 1,086,765 (76,008) 1,010,757
Results
Amortisation, depreciation and property, plant and
equipment impairment loss (74,492) (77,498) (24,293) (11,312) (187,595) - (187,595)
Segment profit 11,935 15,010 16,416 5,882 49,243 (17,733) 31,510
Segment assets at the end of the year 1,514,218 1,272,355 456,723 87,283 3,330,579 155,997 3,486,576
Segment liabilities at the end of the year 73,185 185,019 48,934 6,300 313,438 1,152,337 1,465,775
Capital expenditure 33,542 99,830 31,836 12,399 177,607 - 177,607
Year ended 31%t of December 2013
Revenue
External customers 747,993 290,664 55,758 5,478 1,099,893 - 1,099,893
Inter-segment 25,677 1,836 2,536 45,160 75,209 (75,209) -
Total revenue 773,670 292,500 58,294 50,638 1,175,102 (75,209) 1,099,893
Results
Amortisation, depreciation and property, plant and
equipment impairment loss (80,182) (71,908) (23,675) (11,838) (187,603) - (187,603)
Segment profit 23,294 19,074 14,032 4,691 61,091 (12,250) 48,841
Segment assets at the end of the year 1,497,066 1,252,016 431,224 86,458 3,266,764 308,594 3,575,358
Segment liabilities at the end of the year 70,375 170,498 34,802 6,070 281,745 1,271,899 1,553,644
Capital expenditure 53,423 88,617 68,941 13,887 224,868 - 224,868

Adjustments and eliminations

Finance income and expenses, fair value gains and
losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual
segments as the underlying instruments are managed

on a group basis. Taxes and certain financial assets and
liabilities are not allocated to those segments as they are

also managed on a group basis.

Capital expenditure consists of additions of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment

properties including assets from the acquisition of
subsidiaries.
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Reconciliation of Profit

Notes 2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Segment profit 49,243 61,091
Finance income 11a 3,004 4,529
Finance costs 11b (20,380) (17,840)
Share of profit of associates 15 (357) 1,061
Profit before tax 31,510 48,841
Reconciliation of Assets
Notes 2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Segment operating assets 3,330,579 3,266,764
Investments in associates and other investments 15 41 41
Held-to-maturity financial assets 21a 28,528 28,588
Current financial assets = 617
Other assets and assets held for sale 6,417 23,925
Cash and cash equivalents 18 121,011 255,423
Group operating assets 3,486,576 3,575,358
Reconciliation of Liabilities
Notes 2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Segment operating liabilities 313,438 281,745
Deferred income tax liabilities 12 268,026 269,116
Current corporate income tax liabilities 3 3
Borrowings 21b 827,222 944,675
Derivative financial instruments 21¢c 20,553 23,434
Trade and other payables 36,533 34,671
Group operating liabilities 1,465,775 1,553,644
Geographical Information on Segments
2014 2013
EUR'000 EUR'000
Revenue from external customers
Baltics 997,445 1,069,436
Scandinavian countries 13,312 30,457
Total revenue 1,010,757 1,099,893

Non-current assets are located in the Group’s country of domicile — Latvia and consist of intangible assets, property,

plant and equipment and investment properties. Revenue from major customer in 2014 amounted to

EUR 98,410 thousand (2013: EUR 105,270 thousand) arising from sales by the generation and supply segment.
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0. Revenue

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

Electricity and electricity services* 820,523 898,037
Heat sales 108,963 117,466
Lease and management of transmission system assets 57,161 55,095
Other revenue 24,110 29,295
Total revenue 1,010,757 1,099,893

* in period from 15t of April 2014 through 31t of December 2014 revenue of mandatory procurement public service obligation fee is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position by applying agent accounting principle (Note 2.24. )

7. Other Income

2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Net gain from sale of assets held for sale and PPE 754 941
Net gain from sale of current assets and other income 4,519 3,109
Total other income B 278 4,050

8. Raw Materials and Consumables Used
2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000

Electricity:

Purchased electricity” 338,551 381,144
Fair value loss / (income) on electricity forwards and futures (Note 21 c, lll) (7,800) 4,447
Electricity transmission services costs 73,824 74,173
404,575 459,764
Fuel expense 178,033 212,967
Raw materials, spare parts and maintenance costs 38,677 38,295
Capitalised costs of raw materials and consumables used (fuel) - (9,573)
Total raw materials and consumables used 621,285 701,453

*in period from 1stof April 2014 through 31 of December 2014 costs of purchased electricity under the mandatory procurement from electricity
generators who generate electricity in efficient cogeneration process or using renewable energy sources, as well as guaranteed fee for installed
electrical capacity in cogeneration plants (over 4 MW) are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position by applying agent
accounting principle (Note 2.24. j)
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9. Personnel Expenses

2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Wages and salaries 74,770 71,922
Expenditure of employment termination 1,824 2,258
Pension costs — defined contribution plan 3,283 3,172
State social insurance contributions and other benefits defined in the Collective Agreement 18,376 18,056
Capitalised personnel expenses (299) (834)
Total personnel expenses, including remuneration to the management 97,954 95,074
Including remuneration to the management:
Wages and salaries 1,459 1,241
Pension costs — defined contribution plan 64 54
State social insurance contributions and other benefits defined in the Collective Agreement 251 303
Total remuneration to the management* 1,774 1,598
2014 2013
Number of employees at the end of the year 4,563 4,512
Average number of employees during the year 4,559 4,504

* remuneration to the management includes remuneration to the members of the Management Boards and Supervisory body of the Group entities.

10. Other Operating Expenses

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

Selling expenses and customer service costs* 8,172 19,776
Information technology maintenance expenses 3,694 3,661
Transportation expenses 7,546 7,809
Environment protection and work safety expenses 4,224 3,540
Rent, maintenance and utilities costs 7,966 7,247
Telecommunications expenses 2,455 2,486
Electric power transit and capacity services costs 270 3,944
Real estate tax 1,063 1,024
Public utilities regulation fee 987 1,426
Subsidised energy tax (SET)** 15,338 -
Other expenses 8,238 7,809
Total other operating expenses 59,953 58,722

* selling expenses and customer service costs in 2014 are decreased due fewer allowances for impaired electricity trade receivables (Note 17a)
** subsidised energy tax according to the “Subsidised energy tax Law” has been introduced for a four-year period as of 1% of January 2014 and applies to state
support for generators of subsidised electricity (Note 2.17.)



11. Finance Income and Costs

a) Finance income

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

Interest income on bank accounts and deposits 501 629
Interest income from held-to-maturity financial assets 1,544 1,541
Fair value gain on interest rate swaps (Note 21 ¢, Il) 943 1,917
Fair value gain on forward foreign currencies exchange contracts (Note 21 ¢, IV) 16 -
Fair value gain on issued guarantees - 285
Net gain on issued debt securities (bonds) = 35
Net gain from currency exchange rate fluctuations - 122
Total finance income 3,004 4,529

b) Finance costs

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

Interest expense on borrowings 9,856 9,680
Interest expense on issued debt securities (bonds) 2,940 2,614
Interest expense on interest rate swaps 7,655 9,206
Fair value loss on forward foreign currencies exchange contracts (Note 21 c, IV) - 16
Net losses on redemption of held-to-maturity financial assets 60 60
Net losses on issued debt securities (bonds) 1 -
Capitalised borrowing and finance costs (Note 14 a) (167) (8,819)
Net losses on currency exchange rate fluctuations 65 -
Other finance costs 70 83
Total finance costs 20,380 17,840
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12. Income Tax

2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Current tax 2,796 725
Deferred tax (1,076) 1,967
Total income tax 1,720 2,692
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise if using the tax rate
applicable to profits of the Group as follows:
2014 2013
EUR’000 EUR’000
Profit before tax 31,510 48,841
Corporate income tax at the statutory rate 15 % 4,727 7,326
Expense non-deductible for tax purpose 639 343
Impairment of receivables 186 2,133
Discount on undistributed profit - (26)
Income / (losses) as a result of re-measurement on defined post-employment benefit plan 24 (46)
Real estate tax (159) (154)
Other expenses 222 36
Tax incentives for new technological equipment® (8,919) (6,920)
Total income tax 1,720 2,692

*increase in the amount of depreciation of PPE applying coefficients for additions of PPE and calculation of depreciation for tax purposes as defined in

article No. 13 of the Law of Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Latvia
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

The Movement on the Deferred Income Tax Accounts

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000

At the beginning of the year 269,116 267,246
(Income) credited / expense charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (1,076) 1,967
Attributable to non-current assets revaluation reserve in equity (Note 20 a) (14) 97)
Deferred tax liabilities at the end of the year 268,026 269,116

Deferred income tax has been calculated from the following temporary differences between assets and liabilities
values for financial reporting and tax purposes:

2014 2013

EUR’000 EUR’000
Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation

At the beginning of the year 275,167 272,512
Expense charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 3,300 2,752
Attributable to non-current assets revaluation reserve in equity (Note 20 a) (14) 97)
At the end of the year 278,453 275,167

Deferred tax assets

Accruals/provisions

At the beginning of the year (6,051) (5,266)
Income credited to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (4,376) (785)
At the end of the year (10,427) (6,051)
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13. Intangible Assets

a) Intangible assets

Assets under

Licenses Software TR ETe TOTAL
EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
At 31t of December 2012
Cost 2,490 29,270 1,676 33,436
Accumulated amortisation (1,228) (23,950) - (25,178)
Net book amount 1,262 5,320 1,676 8,258
Year ended 31t of December 2013
Additions - 3,196 2,129 5,325
Disposals (210) - - (210)
Amortisation charge - (2,243) - (2,243)
Closing net book amount 1,052 6,273 3,805 11,130
At 31t of December 2013
Cost 2,490 30,654 3,805 36,949
Accumulated amortisation (1,438) (24,381) - (25,819)
Net book amount 1,052 6,273 3,805 11,130
Year ended 31 of December 2014
Additions - 268 4,740 5,008
Transfers - 8,217 (8,217) -
Disposals (210) 27) - (237)
Amortisation charge - (2,890) - (2,890)
Closing net book amount 842 11,841 328 13,011
At 31st of December 2014
Cost 2,490 38,992 328 41,810
Accumulated amortisation (1,648) (27,151) - (28,799)
Net book amount 842 11,841 328 13,011
b) Greenhouse gas emission allowances
2014 2013
Number of Number of
allowances allowances
At the beginning of the year 2,619,839 3,190,862
Allowances allocated free of charge 494,041 517,163
Purchased allowances - 16,196
Used allowances (1,092,621) (1,104,382)
At the end of the year 2,021,259 2,619,839
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Allowances are allocated free of charge in accordance
with the law “On Pollution” and Directives of the Ministry
of Environmental Protection and Regional Development
of the Republic of Latvia and are recognised as
off-balance sheet assets.

As at 315t of December 2014 the number of allowances
in the Group received in 2014 from the Government free
of charge was 494,041 (31/12/2013: 517,163). Therefore
their carrying amount as at 31st of December 2014 was
nil (31/12/2013: nil).

The fair value of greenhouse gas emission allowances
as at 31t of December 2014 was EUR 14,755 thousand
(31/12/2013: EUR 13,152 thousand). For estimation of
the fair value of allowances was used fixed daily price in
NASDAQ Commodities Exchange for European Union
Allowances (EUA) on 30" of December 2014 what was
the last trade date in 2014 - 7.30 EUR/t (30/12/2013:
5.02 EURA).

Received European Union Allowances (EUA) must be
used until the end of 2020.

As at 315t of December 2014 the Group has not
purchased greenhouse gas emission allowances
(81/12/2013: 16,196). In 2013 purchase costs of
allowances in the amount of EUR 3 thousand are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss position ‘Fuel expense’ (see Note 8). All purchased
allowances during the 2013 are used therefore their
carrying amount as at 315t December 2013 was nil.



14. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment
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